# MOUNT MARY COLLEGE UNDERGRADUATE BULLETIN 2010-11

## **About This Book**

The Undergraduate Bulletin of Mount Mary College is intended as a guide that describes all courses in the undergraduate curriculum, lists major study and graduation requirements and sets forth official College policies. All Mount Mary students are responsible for the College rules and regulations that appear in this publication. The Bulletin is also available on the Mount Mary College Web site.

We believe this Bulletin to be accurate at the time of publication. Changes will undoubtedly occur. Various committees and offices of the College having responsibility for the areas covered in the Bulletin reserve the right to make changes in the College regulations, policies, procedures and other matters as appropriate. Students hav e access to information on any changes through publications and notices from the appropriate office and through the Web site.

Mount Mary College students, faculty and employees who wish further information about topics covered in this Bulletin are encoura ged to contact the Office of the Vice President for Academ ic and Student Affairs. Comments and suggestions for the next edition are also encouraged.

Mount Mary College is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, 30 N. LaSalle, St., Suite 2400, Chicago, IL 60602-2504, Phone: (800) 621-7440 or (312) 263-0456.

Mount Mary College does not discriminate against any applicant because of race, color, religion, age, national or ethnic origin, or disability. The College is dedicated to the principle of equal opportunity for students, faculty, employees and applicants for employment. For this reason, Mount Mary College does not discriminate on the basis of race, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, color, religion, national origin, disability or age in its programs and activities. Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and constitutes a violation of the equal opportunity policy of Mount Mary College. Reasonable accommodations will be made for students with documented disabilities.

Mount Mary is a women's college. Both women and men not pursuing a degree at Mount Mary College may take courses within both the undergraduate and graduate programs. Inquiries regarding non-discrimination policies should be directed to: Director of Human Resources, Mount Mary College, 2900 North Menomonee River Parkway, Milwaukee, WI 53222. Phone: (414) 256-1208

All information in this bulletin is accurate at the time of publication. Please refer to our website, mtmary.edu for latest information and updates.

## **Table of Contents**

I.	Mount Mary College	1
	Mission	8
	Vision	8
	Educational Philosophy	8
II.	General Information	
	About Mount Mary College	8
	Facilities	9
	Midtown Campus Program	10
	Academic Programs	11
	Accreditations	11
	Then and Now	11
III	l. Admission	
	Admission Classifications	12
	Admission Requirements	13
	First- Year Requirements	13
	Transfer Requirements	14
	Transfer Credits	14
	Post-Baccalaureate Requirements	14
	International Student Requirements	15
	Accelerated Program Requirements	15
	Non-degree Seeking Requirements: Special Student Status	16
	Enrollment Deposit	16
	Assessment for New Students	16
	Deferred Admission	17
	Graduate Program Admission Requirements	17
	Campus Visits	17
IV	. Financial Aid	
	The Application Process	
	Student Consumer Information	
	Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy	

	Scholarships and Grants	19
	Institutional Scholarships and Awards	19
	Institutional Grants	21
	Employment	21
	Loans	21
V.	Tuition and Fees 2010/2011	22
VI.	Student Information	22
	Student Government	22
	Student Rights and Responsibilities	22
	Campus Life	24
	Student Services	26
	Student Activities	28
	Cultural Activities and Opportunities	29
	Organizations and Clubs	30
	Intercollegiate Athletics	30
	Recreation and Fitness	31
VII	Academic Information	31
	Academic Honesty and Integrity	31
	Academic Program	32
	Student Advising	32
	Core Curriculum	32
	Requirements for Undergraduate Degrees	34
	Major Studies	34
	Minor Studies	38
	Concentration	39
	Elective Courses	39
	Graduate Courses	39
	Pre-baccalaureate Certificate Programs	39
	College in the High School-ConnectEd Program	39
	Youth Options	40
Co	ntinuing Education	40

VIII. Academic Policies	40
Attendance	
Declaring a Major	
Declaring a Minor	
Residency Requirement	
Writing Requirement	
Mathematics Competency Requirement	
Final Examinations	
Advanced Placement	
Nontraditional Means of Obtaining Credit	
Study Abroad	
Academic Standing	
Semester Credit Hour	
Classification of Students	
Course Load	
Course Overload	
Withdrawal From and Re-Entry to the College	
Academic Probation and Dismissal from the College	
Application for Graduation	
Graduation with Honors	
Honors Program	
Grading Policies	
Cumulative Grade Point Average	50
VIII. Arts and Design Division Foundation Courses in the Division	52
Fine Art Major	53
Art Education Major (K-12)	54
Adaptive Education in Art	54
Art Therapy with Emphasis in Community Arts	59
Fashion	61
Graphic Design	67
Interior Design	70

4

November 15, 2010

	Music	74
IX.	Business Administration Division	77
	Traditional Programs	
	Accounting	
	Business Administration	
	Business Education	
	Merchandise Management	
	Computer Studies	
	Accelerated Programs	
	Business Administration	
	Business/Professional Communication	
	Graduate Program in Business Administration	
X.	Education and Mathematics Division	
	Education	
	Post-baccalaureate Certification Program	
	Geography	
	316 Reading Teacher License Program	
	Graduate Program in Education	
	Mathematics	
XI.	Health and Sciences Division	
	Dietetics	
	Graduate Program in Dietetics	
	Occupational Therapy	
	Master of Science Component of the BS/MS OT Program	
	Physical Education and Dance	115
	Radiologic Technology	
	Diagnostic Medical Sonography	
	Sciences	
	Biology	
	Chemistry	126
	Physics	

5

November 15, 2010

Interdisciplinary Science	130
Environmental Studies Minor	130
XII. Interdisciplinary Studies	
XIII. Language, Literature, and Communication Division	132
Communication and Public Relations	133
Communication	134
Public Relations	134
Business/Professional Communication Major	134
Journalism	135
Theater Arts	135
English Language and Literature	139
English: Professional Writing	141
Journalism	141
English Education	141
Journalism Education Minor	142
World Languages and International Studies	146
Spanish	147
American Sign Language	151
German	151
French	152
Italian	154
International Studies	154
XIV. Nursing	
XV. Philosophy and Theology Division	
Liberal Studies	157
Philosophy	
Theology	161
Religious Education Major (38 credits)	162
XVI. Preprofessional Studies	
XVII. Social Sciences and Related Disciplines Division	
Behavioral Science	168

Psychology/Behavioral Science Major	
Anthropology/Sociology Minor	
Peacebuilding Certificate	
Master of Science Degree in Counseling	
Social Work	
History and Political Science Majors	
Justice	
XVIII. Board of Trustees	
President's Council	
XIX. Administration	
XX. Faculty	
XXI. Academic Calendars	

### Mission

Mount Mary College, an u rban Catholic college for women sponsored by the School Sisters of Notre Dam e, provides an environm ent for the development of the whol e person. The College encourages leader ship, integrity, and a deep sense of social justice arising from a sensitivity to moral values and Christian principles.

Mount Mar y College commits it self to excellence in teaching and learning with an emphasis on thi nking critically. The baccalaureate curriculum integrates the liberal arts with career preparation for women of diverse ages and personal circumstances; the programs at the graduate level provide opport unities for both m en and wo men to enhance their professional excellence.

### Vision

Mount Mary College is recognized as a diverse learning community that works in partnership with local, national and global organizations to educate women to transform the world.

## **Educational Philosophy**

Mount Mary College provides an environment and an approach to teaching and learning that emphasizes development of the whole person.

Holistic education fosters intellectual, spiritual and emotional growth in both one's personal and professi onal life. In an ed ucational environment that is fully dedicated to the student's total deve lopment, a holistic approach promotes interaction between the student and all members of the College community in such a way that learning is not limited by the boundaries of the classroom.

A holistic e ducation places value on a student's past experiences and integrates that e xperience into the academic and co-curricular activities of college life. This approach also encourages the student to connect theory to practice through the process of personal reflection, through the application of her skills and knowledge in the broader community, and through experiential learning.

Educated in this manner, a Mount Mar y College student will evidence a strong sense of personal identity and professional competence. The student's life will reflect a commitment to per sonal wellness, service and world citizenship, along with a pursuit of lifelong learning and leadership opportunities.

## **General Information**

#### **About Mount Mary College**

Welcome to Mount Mary College, an urban Catholic college for women sponsored by the School Sisters of Notre Dame. At Mount Mary we are dedicated to the development of the whole person through a program of studies based on the values of the liberal arts integrated with career preparation.

8

More than 1900 students from a vari ety of backgr ounds, representing numerous states and countries, attend Mount Mary College. The size of the College and t he friendly openness of its concerned faculty and st aff assist each student to address her individual needs and attain her personal, academic and professional goals. Students can choose from more than 60 undergraduate majors leading to the Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree. The College also offers a Bach elor of Science in Nursing join tly with Columbia College of Nursing. Information about this degree is available under separate cover from the Admission Office. In addition to time spent in the classroom, many m ajors incorporate additional of f-campus study arrange ments such as clinical exp eriences, internships, fieldwork and student teaching. Study abroad is ava ilable either through programs provided by Mount Mary College or through cooperation with other institutions.

Outside the classroo m, academic and so cial organizations span a wide spectru m of interest s. Honor societies and student a ffiliates of national professional organiz ations enhance students' academic endeavors. Student m usic groups present concerts and num erous clubs attract students with common interests. Phy sical fitness is fostered through fitness programs and intercoll egiate athletics. M ount Mary College is an official mem ber of the NCAA Division III. Student publications, service organizations and student government offer more ways for students to get involved. Op portunities for student le adership abound, fr om organizing a cam pus-wide activity t o s erving in student government, to initiating a stimulating classroom discussion with peers.

## **Facilities**

Mount Mary College is located on 80 wooded acres in a resi dential area of Milwaukee. The campus is only 15 minutes from downtown Milwaukee and 5 minutes from a popular shopping mall, restaurants, theaters and other attractions. The city, located on the shores of beautiful Lake Michigan, of fers a wide range of cultural and recreational activities: a major symphony; theater and dan ce companies; highly regarded art and natural history museums; a major zoo; beautiful parks, beaches and recreation trails; and numerous professional and college sports teams. Public transportation is readily available to and from campus.

Mount Mary College stu dents find a stimulating learning envir onment in the cluster of College buildings. Arches inspired by traditional English Gothic buildings unite many structures on campus, both architecturally and aesthetically. Notre Dame Hall houses ad ministrative offices, classrooms, l aboratories, art and music studios, Stiemke Hall and Conference Center, and two cha pels. The Gerhardinger Center houses the Natural Sciences, Nursing and Occupational Therapy programs on the second and third floors. The first floor is a campus community center comprised of quiet and social lounges, a c yber-cafe', and electronic lecture hall and meeting rooms. The Bloechl Recreation Center is the newest building on campus. It contains basketball and v olleyball courts as well as the Fitness Center. Kostka Hall houses the 800-seat theater, d esign studios for the fashion depart ment and faculty offices. Additional faculty offices are f ound on the upper fl oors of Fidelis Hall, while the lower floor serves as residence for a number of the religious faculty. The Campus Child Care Center and play ground area complement our student friendly facilities.

The upper floors of Caroline Hall contain the resident students' rooms and lounges and a number of computer

workstations. All residents' rooms are wired for computer use, including Internet access and include standard cable The lower floors contain sports and recreational facilities, including a gy m and swimm ing pool, along with the Marian Art Gallery, Counseling Center, Ewens Center and ministrative offices, and Bradley Grill, equipped with vending machines, computers and study and relaxation areas. Additional divide facilities, the bookstore, and post office are found in Bergstrom Hall.

The Haggerty Librar y is dedicated to the information gathering, research, curricular support, and lifelong learning needs of the College community. The core collection includes more than 110,000 volumes, 760 periodical titles, daily and weekly newspapers and significant collections of audio-visual and government documents. The library has an online catalog accessible across the campus network and from the Internet. The Fitzpatrick Level of Haggerty Library houses classrooms, the Computer Center, the Development offices, the Fourier Language Laboratory, and the Teacher Education Center. The library also belongs to a consortium (SWITCH) in the Milwaukee area that makes resources readily available from other local colleges and universities.

## **Midtown Campus Program**

The Midtown Campus Program, located at the Martin Luther King Drive YWCA, provides a substantial financial and academic support to academically talented young women from Milwaukee's urban community. It is a comprehensive educational initiative that focuses on college retention and completion for young women between the ages of 18 and 21 who meet the following criteria: academic ability (admission to the College is the first requirement); potential for leadership in an urban community; and financial need.

Applications are accepted from September through May of the school year prior to admission to the College. Admission to Midtown is on a first-co me, first-served basis for those who meet the above criteria. Enrollment is limited to 50 students each year.

The Midtow n Cam pus Program consists of three com ponents: Summer Brid ge, First-Year Satellite Cam pus Program, and Years 2-4.

Students accepted into Mount Mar y C ollege's Midt own Cam pus Program begin taking classes during the summer prior to the fall semester. The Summer Bridge Program consists of a six-week term during which Midtown students engage in a week-long intensive orientation after which they enroll in 1 - 3 college courses for a total of 4 - 8 credits based on academic need.

A key feature of Midtown is the First-Year Satellite Campus Program. The fall semester is spent entirely at the Midtown Campus. Strong support services include onsite tutoring, academic advising, and personalized support from staff. During the spring semester, Midtown students begin the transition to the main campus.

After the first year at Mount Mary College, Midtown students spend years 2–4 entirely on the main campus. By year two, students have s elected their majors and work with depart mental advisers to d evelop their acade mic programs. Mi dtown students meet with the Director on a regular basis. These meetings are designed to provide continued support as needed and as identified by Midtown sophomores, juniors, and seniors.

10

## **Academic Programs**

The Mount Mary College curriculum is based on the human search for meaning. Students divide their studies into three areas of concentration: core courses, which provide a l iberal arts framework for understanding hum an knowledge in the liberal arts; major courses, which prepare students in an area of academ ic concentration; and electives. (For a complete listing of the majors, please see the Majors section of this Bulletin.)

Faculty m embers holding advanced degrees do all teach ing; no classes are taught by t eaching assistants. Faculty m embers provide academic advising. The Acade mic Resource Center provides assistance for st udents in the areas of writing, reading, science, mathematics and study skills. An Honors Program is available to provide special challenges to qualified students.

To qualify for graduation, all baccalaureate degree stude nts must complete a minimum of 128 credits with a grade point average (GPA) of 2.0 or better. These credits must consist of 48 core credits, a minimum of 24 credits in the major (the number varies among majors) and enough credits in elective courses to complete the requirements. Each major a lso has speci fic course and GPA require ments. Students ordinar ily apply for admission to a major department at the end of their first y ear. Many majors require additional off-cam pus study arrangements such as clinical experiences, internships, fieldwork and student teaching.

In addition to the undergraduate programs, Mount Mary College offers graduate programs leading to the Master of Science or the Master of Arts. (See the Graduate Bulletin or contact the Center for Professional and Education Advancement for information about the specific degrees offered.)

## Accreditations

Mount Mary College is approved by the State of Wisc onsin to confer degrees and by the Wisconsin State Department of Public Instruction for Teachers' Certificates. The College is fully accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Ass ociation. It a lso has approval or accreditation for particular bacca laureate programs from the Accreditation Council for Occupational Therapy Education, the American Dietetic Association, the Council on Social Work Education and t he Foundation for Interior Design Education Resear ch. The joint Bachelor of Science in Nursing degree is a ccredited by the Wisconsin State Board of Nursing and the National League for Nursing Accreditation Committee.

Among the organizations in which M ount Mary College holds institutional membership are the Am erican Council on Education, the National Catholic Educ ation Association, the Co uncil of I ndependent Colleges, the Council for the Advancement and Su pport of Edu cation, the American Association of College Registrars and Admission Officers, the National A ssociation of Colle ge and University Business Officers, the National Association of Independent Colleges and Universities, the Wi sconsin Association of Independent Colleges and Universities and the Wisconsin Foundation of Independent Colleges.

11

## Then and Now

Mount Mary's roots are deep in the heritage of Wisc onsin. Saint Mary's Institute was founded in 18 72 by the School Sisters of Notre Dam e in Prairie du Chien, Wisconsin. In 1913, it extended its educational program to the post-secondary level and was chartered as Saint Mary's Colle ge, a four- year Catholic liberal arts college for women, the first in the State. Its acade mic standards were accepted by the North Central Association of Colleges in 1926 and have been continually recognized since that time. The College moved to its present Milwaukee location in 1929, changing its name to Mount Mary College.

During the e nsuing years, a variety of program s and majors have been added to and deleted from the curriculum, reflecting the changing world around us. So me a cademic areas, such as h istory, art, p hilosophy and theology, were am ong the first majors offered by the College. Others, such as occupational therapy and fashion, were developed to fulfill a particular need, while programs such as graphic design reflect the changing nature of today's workplace. The need for post-baccal aureate education has been met as well. In 1982 the College expanded its offerings to the graduate level with its Master of Science in Dietetics. Subsequent graduate programs have been added since that time.

The College's original buildings, Notre Dame Hall and Caroline Hall, remain in use today. Over the years, the facilities have been expanded and enhanced, while rem aining sensitive to the character of the original designs and respectful of the College's beautiful natural surroundings. Today the College o ffers an inviting atm osphere that strongly supports teaching and learning. Since 1929, Mount Mary College has prospered under the adm inistration of eleven presidents. Our ad ministration, as well as our facu lty, students, and staff are plea sed to welcome y ou to the Mount Mary College community.

## Admission

Candidates for undergrad uate ad mission to Mou nt Mary College are considered on the basis of academ ic preparation and evidence of the ability to do college work and to benefit from it. Each applicant is given individual consideration. Applicants are considered for admission on a rolling basis starting Septem ber 15<sup>th</sup> for the following fall term and February 1st for the following spring term. The College does not discriminate against any applicant because of race, color, religion, age, national or ethnic origin, or disability.

The Admission Office serves the needs of t he various undergraduate student populations seeking enrol lment at Mount Mary College. The only undergraduate programs that are open to men are nursing and post baccal aureate certificates.

## **Admission Classifications**

Candidates for undergrad uate ad mission into Mount Mary C ollege are considered as one of the foll owing classifications:

12

**First-Year** – A student who has never attended college.

Transfer - A student who is currently attending, or has attended a two- or four-year college.

**Post-baccalaureate** – An indi vidual who holds a baccalaureate degree who wishes to pursue a second baccalaureate degree or a post baccalaureate certificate.

**Pre-baccalaureate Certification Student** – An individual who does not have a bachelor's degree but who is taking courses in a pre-baccalaur eate certification program. Certification students follow the sa me admission process as special students and are not eligible for financial aid.

**Accelerated** – Applicant who plans to pursue an accelerated degree program as a first-year student, transfer or post baccalaureate.

**International** – A student with first-y ear student, transfer or post baccalaureate status who does not hold U.S. Permanent Residency or U.S. Citizenship.

**Non-degree Status (Special Student)** – An individual who does not wish to pursue a degree at this time, but wishes to take credits at Mount Mary College as a non-degree seeking student. Special students are not eligible for financial aid.

## **Admission Requirements**

The Mount Mary College ad mission process reflects the personal attention students can expect to receive in their college careers, and applicants are encouraged to provide additional information that they consider helpful.

All applicants are required to complete an application form and submit official transcripts to the Admission Office. Additional requirements are noted under the detailed description of admission classifications. Students are encouraged to submit an essay and activities or work resume' as supplemental information.

Applicants are notified of their ad mission status approximately two we eks after all required documents have been received and evaluated. Individual departments may require specific courses and/or grade point for admission into their programs.

Note: All transcripts and related records become the property of the College and cannot be returned to the student or sent to another institution.

#### **First-Year Requirements**

Admission to Mount Mary College will be determined after the applicant has submitted an official high school transcript and an ACT (writing com ponent not required) or SAT score. Students w ho graduated from high school more than three years prior to the entry term to which they are being considered do not need to submit ACT or SAT scores. Students may be asked to complete assessment exams through Mount Mar y College if additional information is needed to determ ine academ ic ability. A pplicants who did not graduate from a high school, but

received a General Education Diploma (GED) must submit their GED certificate along with an official transcript of completed high school work. Indivi dual consideration will be given to each applicant based on academ ic credentials and out of classroom activities including work experience.

#### **Transfer Requirements**

Applications should be submitted with official high school transcripts and official transcripts from all institutions attended since graduation from high school. Tran scripts should come to Mount Mary College directly from the institution(s) attended.

Students who have attended another regionally accredited college or unive rsity and have earned a m inimum grade point average of 2.0 (C) on a 4.0 scale and are eligible to return to their previous college or university can b e considered for ad mission. Individual depart ments may require specific courses and/or a spec ific grade point for admission into their programs. Transfer students should be aware of these requirements prior to applying to the College. Departments have the right to require students to update course work taken in the past.

#### **Transfer Credits**

Only coursework sim ilar to t hat offered at Mou nt Mary College and with a grade of C (2.0) or better from another accredited college or university will tr ansfer. A maximum of 64 credits can be transferred from a junior college or two-year campus.

After a student has completed 60\* transferable credits at any college, including Mount Mary, she may no longer earn credits for transfer from any junior or two-year college or technical school. There is no charge for transfer credits.

The final 32 credits toward the bachelor's degree m ust be earned at Mount Mary College. Credit is n ot granted for retroactive credits received at another university or college.

For specific information on the credit policies for Liberal Studies and Nursing, see those sections of this Bulletin.

#### **Post-baccalaureate Requirements**

A person who hol ds a bachelor's degree from an accredited college or universit y may earn a second major/certificate or a second bachelor's degree from Mount Mary College.

Post-baccalaureates pursuing a second major/certificate must submit all official college transcripts. High school transcripts ar e not required. Persons desiring to obtain a second major/certificate must s atisfy all admission requirements in force for transfer students, have departmental approval and fulfill the requirements of that major.

Individuals earning a second bachelor 's degree must satis fy all adm ission requirements for transfer students (high school transcripts are not required); earn at least 32 credits at Mount Mary beyond the completion of studies for the first degree; satisfy all core requirements; main tain a C (2.0) average and fulfill the requirements of the major.

#### **International Student Requirements**

Mount Mary College is authorized under federal law to enroll international students.

International students need to apply as a first-y ear, transfer or post baccalaureat e st udent fulfilling the requirements previously listed. In ad dition to the spe cific requirements listed, non-native sp eakers of English are required to subm it the results of the Test of Eng lish as a Foreign Language (TOEFL). TOEFL score minimum requirements: Paper based test (PBT): 500, Computer based test (CBT): 173, and Internet based test (IBT): 76.

The application fee for international students is \$100 . This fee must accompany the applic ation form and is nonrefundable and nontransferable. Applications without this fee will not be processed. International students are required to have their a dmission process completed a minimum of one month prior to the date of planned enrollment. Applications should be submitted with the required application fee, original or officially certified copies of grade reports for all secondary and higher educational studies, any other pertinent academic records or major examination scores, an official transcript evaluation from a recognized evaluation service and a TOEFL score. Photocopies, scanned, or notarized copies are not accepted as official documents. Academic records issued in a language other than Engl ish must be accompanied by an official (school issued or certified) complete and literal English translation. The translation must include detailed course syllabi or detailed course descriptions.

Prior to acceptance into the College, the international student will be asked to provide official verification that she has adeq uate finances to cover all transportation, education and living cos ts during both the school year and vacations. Once this official financial verification is received, the College will issue the federal Certificate of Eligibility (Form I-20).

In addition to the ab ove requirements, international students are required t o have a health insurance policy which covers health care costs, medical evacuation (minimum coverage U.S. \$10,000) and repatriation (minimum coverage U.S. \$7,500). All students who do not reside in the contiguous 48 states of the United States m ust have medical evacuation and r epatriation coverage. The insuran ce policy m ust be in English . Students are a able to purchase health insurance through Mount Mary College. Information on this policy and costs can be obtained from the Director of Residence Life.

#### **Accelerated Program Requirements**

The accel erated degree and certificate program s are d esigned for working adults. Unlike the traditional academic program, which offers two 16-week s emesters, the ac celerated program offers five terms per y ear, each eight weeks in length. Accelerated courses meet one night during the week or on Saturday for eight or four sessions (depending on the credit value for the course). To be e ligible for the ac celerated program a student must be accepted to t he College as a first-y ear, transfer or post baccalau reate (as stated above) and meet the f ollowing criteria:

15

- at least five years since her high school class graduated;
- at least two years of full-time work experience or the equivalent, excluding work experience while a

full-time student;

• suc cessful com pletion of the m athematics competency requirement and placement into English composition.

Accelerated degrees and certific ates are avail able in Business Ad ministration, Liberal Studies, and Business/Professional Communication. To earn a certificate a student must already hold a bachelor's degree in any field from an accredited college or university.

#### Non-degree Seeking Requirements: Special Student Status

An individual who holds a high school l diplom a or its equivalent, or an advanced high school student with special permission from the high school and College, may take a limited number of courses at the College without being regularly admitted. This student is assigned special student status. If the special student seeks regular admission to the College and is formally admitted, special student status will be terminated.

Special students are subject to the same prerequisites for courses as any other student at the College. The status of a special student must be reviewed by the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs after 12 credits have been taken. The special student may take up to 16 credits, but must be formally admitted to the College before exceeding that number.

The special student must receive the signature of the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs each semester that a course is taken. In no case may a student graduate from the College without having been formally admitted. Taking courses at the College as a special stude nt does not guarantee that the student will be admitted as a regular student. Special students are not eligible for financial aid.

#### **Enrollment Deposit**

To ensure enrollment at Mount Mary College, accepted students are required to submit a \$200 tuition deposit and a \$100 residence hall security deposit if housing is desir ed. Accepted fall term admission candidates who ar e notified of admission before April 20th are required to submit the enrollment deposit by May 1st (postmarked date). Students accepted for the fall ter m on or after April 20th are required to submit the enrollment deposit within 10 days of notification of admission. Accepted spring term admission candidates who are notified of admission before December 5th are required to submit the enrollment deposit by December 15th (postmarked date) or within 10 days of notification of admission after December 15th. Students may request extensions if financial aid award s are not yet received. The tuition and residen ce hall deposits are nonrefundable aft er May 1st for the fall semester, December 15th for the spring semester or within the 4 weeks prior to an accelerated term start date.

#### **Assessment for New Students**

To assure that incoming students are placed in courses that challenge their abilities, first-year and transfer students are assessed in mathematics, college-level reading, and English composition. If new students have earned a C or better in an accepta ble college mathematics or E nglish course as nee ded for the core curricul um, their competency requirement for that area is fulfilled. St udents who desire to continue st udy of a language will meet with a member of the World Languages Department for assessment of their current level in that language.

16

#### **Deferred Admission**

Students wishing to defer their ad mission for up to one year from original te rm of ad mission must submit a written request for the deferm ent along with the enrollm ent deposit. If a deferment is denied the deposit will be refunded but under no circumstance will it be refunded if deferment is granted. All deferral requests are reviewed on an individual basis.

#### **Graduate Program Admission Requirements**

Students interested in enrolling i n one of the gradu ate programs must file an application with the Center for Educational and Professional Advanc ement (CEP A). Gra duate program admission is open to wom en and m en. Inquiries and requests for application forms are to be addressed to CEPA (414-256-1252). Degree requirements for the Master of Arts in Education: Professional Development, the Master of Arts in English, the Master of Business Administration, the Master of Science in Art Therapy, the Master of Science in Counseling, the Master of Science in Dietetics, and the Master of Science in Occupati onal Therapy : Professional Develop ment are detailed in a separate graduate bulletin.

#### **Campus Visits**

Applicants are encouraged to visit the campus and experience firsthand the opportunities available at Mount Mary College. Individuals wishing to visit should contact the Ad mission Office at 414-256-1219 or 1-800-321-6265. Tours of the campus are conducted Monday through Friday as well as some Saturdays. Appointments made in advance are encouraged.

#### **Admission Office**

Mount Mary College 2900 North Menomonee River Parkway Milwaukee, WI 53222 414-256-1219 or 1-800-321-6265 ad miss@mtmary.edu

## **Financial Aid**

Mount Mary College makes every effort to assist students with financial need in identifying sources of aid to help finance their education. The College participa tes in both federal and state financial aid programs. These programs are available to students enrolled on at least a half-time basis. In order to award financial aid in the most equitable manner, Mount Mary College uses the "Federal Methodol ogy" of need analy sis. This method of determining a student's financial need is used in conjunction with the Free A pplication for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). The College expects all students receiving financial aid to file a FAFSA form annually.

17

## **The Application Process**

The following forms are required to apply for financial aid at Mount Mary College:

- Acceptance letter to Mount Mary College (all first-year students)
- Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA)

Additional forms may be required on a case-by-case basis. Students will be notified by the Financial Aid Office of any additional forms required.

In order to be considered for financial aid students must be:

- Admitted as a degree candidate at Mount Mary College
- Enrolled at least half-time in their degree program
- A U.S. citizen OR eligible noncitizen or other eligible category (verification required)

## **Student Consumer Information**

Financial aid is awarded on a first-co me, first-served basis. The College encourages students to apply as soon after January 1st as possible to be considered for all sources of aid for the following academic y ear. Students must apply annually for financial aid.

Financial aid awards are made for the entire acade mic y ear (Fall and Spring) unless othe rwise noted. All students must return a signed award lett er to indicate their acceptance of the financial aid offered before ai d can be disbursed. Financial aid is disbursed t o a student's account in the Business Office on the first day of the semester for which it applies.

Students receiving financial aid must be making *satisfactory academic progress* to remain eligible for financial aid. A copy of the College's Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy for financial aid recipients is available from Financial Aid Office.

Students who withdraw fr om the College or from individual courses during the se mester may be require d to return a port ion of t he financial aid funds received accord ing to the College refund poli cy. It is t he student's responsibility to review the refund policy and to be aware of important dates before filing a change in registration.

Further information regarding financial aid may be obtained by contacting the Financial Aid Office at Mount Mary College.

## **Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy**

Mount Mary College and f ederal regulations require t hat a student be making satisfactory academic progress toward a degree to eligible for financial aid. The regulations govern all aid ad ministered by Mount Mary College, including all Federal Title IV aid funds (Federal Stafford Loans, Federal Pell Grants, Federal Plus Loans, Federal

Supplemental Education O pportunity Grants, Federal Perkins Loans, Wiscons in Tuition Grant, Wiscons Talent Incentive Program Grants, Wiscons Minority G rants, and the Federal W ork-Study Pr ogram). The federal regulations published in the October 6, 1983 Federal Register Part 668.1 6 are the source documents governing the following institutional policy . A copy of Mount Mary College's Satisfact ory Academ ic Progress P olicy for financial aid recipients is mailed to all students receiving financial aid. Additional copies are available upon request from the Financial Aid Office.

Students bear prim ary responsibility f or their own academ ic progress and for seeking assistance when experiencing academic difficulty. Students are encouraged to keep a file of their grades and transcripts.

## **Scholarships and Grants**

Scholarships are merit aw ards renewab le providing a minimum grade point average is maintained and the student continues full-time enroll ment. Grants are need based aid determined through submission of the FAF SA form and eligibility may change from year to year.

#### Federal/State Grants and Scholarships:

Bureau of Indian Affairs Grant Federal Pell Grant Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant (SEOG) Talent Incentive Program (TIP) Grant Wisconsin Academic Excellence Scholarship Wisconsin Handicapped Student Grant Wisconsin Indian Grant Wisconsin Minority Retention Grant Wisconsin Tuition Grant (WTG)

#### Army, Air Force, Navy, and Coast Guard Funds

Students who are veterans of any of t he armed forces may receive funding f or their college education thr ough that branch of the ar med services. Students should contact their educational liaison or local benefits off icer for additional information.

## **Institutional Scholarships and Awards**

Mount Mar y College believes that outstanding st udents deserve recognition and should be given the opportunity to develop their individual talents and interests. For this reason, Mount Mary offers scholarships which are awarded based on academ ic excellence and outstanding ability. Contact the Ad mission Office for more details on the scholarship program. Unless otherwise noted all scholarships are awarded prior to enrollment at Mount Mary and can not be awarded after enrollment.

#### **Achievement Award**

A renewable award of \$2,000 or \$2,500 per year, the Achievement Award is presented to students who have

19

demonstrated a high leve 1 of school and/or comm unity in volvement while maintaining a strong GPA. The Achievement Award applies to students entering full time as a first-year, transfer, and post baccalaureate student. Students who have received a Mount Mary College scholarship are not eligible.

#### **Caroline Scholars Program (currently enrolled students only)**

This program provides scholars with a full-tuition schol arship as well as a room and board stipend for the residence hall. Living in the residence hall is a requirem ent. The program is open to studen ts with fewer than 60 credits by June of the year in which application is made. Students must demonstrate acad emic ability; financial need; commitment to social justice; and, engagement in leadership at Mount Mary College and in the community. It requires a separate application and replaces any Mount Mary scholarship.

#### Departmental Awards and Scholarships (currently enrolled students only)

Every y ear Mount Mary recognizes outstanding merit and achievement among current students. Numerous departmental scholarships and awards are presented on an annual basis. Students are encouraged to check with their academic department for specific scholarship opportunities and applications.

#### Frederick R. Layton Art Scholarship

It is awarded to full-tim e incoming first-year students and transfer students m ajoring in art, art education, art therapy, graphic design, interior design or fashion. Sc holarship application and submission of work is required. Scholarship amounts vary.

#### **International Scholarship**

It is awarded to international students who demonstrate academic ability and financial need. Scholarship value ranges from \$2,500-\$4,500 per year.

#### Legacy Award

Students submitting a referral from a Mount Mary College alumna along with their application for admission are eligible for a renewable award of \$1,00 0 per year. The Legacy Award applies to st udents entering full time at the undergraduate level (first-year students only; does not include transfer students).

#### Mount Mary First-Year Academic Scholarship Program

The Mount Mary Scholarship Program has been developed to carry out the mission of Mount Mary College. It is designed not only to assist deserving students in pursuing their educational goals, but also to honor those whose contributions to Mount Mary College — as founders, as ad ministrators and/or as longtime, outstanding faculty — have enabled us to fulfill the College's mission.

These scholarships are based on stand ardized test scores, cumulative grade p oint average (GPA), and class rank. In addition conside rations for activities in the community, vol unteerism, and work experience will be considered.

20

Deans Scholarship \$10,000 per year (\$5,400 per semester), \$40,000 four year total

Heritage Scholarship \$8,000 per year (\$4,000 per semester), \$32,000 four year total

Vision Scholarship \$6,000 per year (\$3,000 per semester), \$24,000 four year total

Students m ust meet Mount Mar y C ollege adm ission require ments in or der to receive a scholarship . Qualification for a scholarship does not guarantee admission. Scholarships are awarded at the point of acceptance to Mount Mary College. No separate scholarship application is required.

## **Transfer Academic Scholarship**

This renewable scholarship ranging from \$3,500-\$5,000 per year is awarded based on academic ability in postsecondary work to eligible first degree transfer students who enroll full time.

## **Institutional Grants**

## **Residential Grant**

The Residential Grant is awarded in varying amounts to first-year and transfer students who reside in Mo unt Mary College student housing during the academic year and who demonstrate financial need. The Financial Aid Office determines eligibility and amount of the grant based on the results of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).

Note: Institutional grants and scholarships are not awarded t o students who receive discounted tuition (accelerated and other special programs).

## **Federal Work Study**

Federal Work Study opportunities are available on c ampus for students that de monstrate financial need. Work study awards are made as part of the student's financial aid award; however, award amounts are not applied to the student's account. Student s must work to receive a pay check for the amount earned. Students who do not wor k enough hours to earn their entire work study award do not receive the remaining funds.

## Loans

Federal Parent Loan for Undergraduate Students (PLUS) Federal Perkins Loan Federal Stafford Loan Federal Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Nursing Student Loan Program Wisconsin Minority Teacher Loan

# Tuition and Fees 2010/2011

Please refer to our website, http://www.mtmary.edu/pdfs/admissions/tuition-ug.pdf, for current tuition and fee information.

# **Student Information**

This section of the Bulletin is intended to provi de in formation about students' rights and responsibi lities, campus life and related College policies, and the variety of services and activities that are available to Mount Mar y College students.

## **Student Government**

All students who are dul y registered at Mount Mary College are members of the Stu dent Government and retain membership during their attendance. Student Government meets on a regular basis throughout the year.

The Student Government provides and encourages an ope n forum for informed student dialogue on College policies and other matters of importance to students and serves as a liaison to Mount Mary College administration, faculty and staff. The Student Government also h as the power to disb urse allocat ed monies to student clubs/organizations in accordance with the purpose of the Student Government.

Executive and legislative power of the Student Government is vested in the Student Board, which consists of the Executive Officers (president, vice president, secr etary, treasurer and public relations director) and elected and appointed constituency representatives. These include a Colu mbia College of Nursing representative, a Residence Hall Students representative and two General Student Body representatives.

## **Student Rights and Responsibilities**

Mount Mar y College offi cially recognizes student rights and re sponsibilities in the Stude nt Handbook. B y virtue of enrollm ent in the College, the student accepts these st atements of principles, rights and obligations. According to policies outlined in the Handbook, College officials may initiate disciplinary action against a student whose conduct or academic performance is judged incompatible with the expectations of the College community. A student who believes that her rights have been violated may use the appropriate grievan ce procedures outlined below, depending upon whether the situation relates to academic or nonacademic matters.

#### **Grievance Procedures**

Procedures for academic grievances are outlined in the Student Handbook. The Associate Dean for Academic Affairs office can provide more detailed information. Such procedures must begin no later than the first two weeks of the following semester.

Procedures for settling nonacademic gri evances are outlined in the Student Handbook. The Associate Dean for Student Affairs office can provide more detailed information. Such procedures must begin within ten working days of the incident.

#### Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA)

Mount Mary College is in compliance with this act which has as its purpose the protection of the rights of a student to know what educational records are kept by the school; to inspect such records and, if necessary, to as k for the correction of such records; and to control the release of such information to those who are not involved in the educational process. Detailed information can be found in the Student Handbook.

#### The Jeanne Cleary Student Right-to-Know and Campus Security Act

In compliance with Public Law 101-54 2, the Colleg e publishes annually a Saf ety and Security broch ure and website update, which provides updated information on cam pus security and crim e statistics. The completion/graduation rate for degree-seeking, full-time, under graduate students can be found in the Student Handbook.

#### Americans with Disabilities Act

Mount Mary College complies with all aspects of the Americans with Disabilities Act and state disability laws. The College, therefore, will provide rea sonable ac commodations to qualified a pplicants, employees, and students with known documented disabilities, unless the accommoda tions would cause undue hardship to Mount Mar y College. We co mply with ADA for employ ees and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Ac t for Students. Detailed information can be found in the Student Handbook.

Mount Mar y College is committed to provi ding equal opportunities in hi gher education to academically qualified students with disabilities. Mount Mary College does not offer a specialized curriculum for persons with disabilities. Students at Mount Mary have access to tools and resources that will enable them to manage day-to-day life in the College. The services that are available will vary depending on the nature of the disability.

#### **Student Complaints**

To comply with federal regulations, Mount Mary Colle ge maintains records of the for mal, written student complaints filed with the O ffices of the President and the Vice President for Acade mic and Student Affairs. These records include information about the disposition of the complaints. These records will be made available to Higher Learning Commission com prehensive evaluation teams for review. Students seeking more information should contact the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs.

#### **Student Handbook**

The Student Handbook is available on the Mount Mary website. Hard copies are available in the Office of the Associate Dean for Student Affairs. It describes all policies, regulations, services and activities pertinent to student life at Mount Mary College. It supplements the information in this academ ic bulletin. Each student is responsible for reviewing the Handbook and becoming familiar with its contents. Registration at the College implies a student's consent to provisions in the Handbook.

#### **Accelerated Program Student Handbook**

In addition to the general student handbook, there is a handbook for students in the Accelerated Program, which

23

is to be used in conjuncti on with the general stude nt handbo ok. The Accelerated Program Student Handbo ok includes sect ions on advising, place ment testing a nd regi stration, orientations, the program att endance policy, obtaining class syllability for accelerated courses, financial aid and tuition payment plans for accelerated students and the weather cancellation policy.

## **Campus Life**

### **Registration and Orientation**

Orientation for a Mount Mary College student is a multistep process which begins during the application stage and carries t hrough to the end of the student's first acad emic year. During this process, the College welco mes students and helps them find their places. Through Orientation, each student will build community and individual relationships while engaging in the life of the community. Each new student will be introduced to the mission of Mount Mary College and the implication(s) of that mission on an individual's life. Through Orientation, each new student will start the process of becoming a successful scholar and healthy person. Or ientation may take various forms, depending on the nature of the student's program, from an evening program to a one- or two- day-long seminar prior to the start of classes. R egistration for class es is al ways a part of this m ulti-step process, as is the chance to meet current students, administrators and faculty members.

#### **Residence Life**

Living on cam pus is an i mportant part of the college experience. All full-ti me, traditional first-y ear, female students who are not living at home with parents or inmediate relatives must reside in College hous ing. The residence halls are staffed with a live-in professional specifically trained to build community and respond to student needs.

Caroline Hall, the women's residence hall, provides accommodations for private occupancy with or without a private bathroom, double occupancy with or without a private bathroom, and suite singles in which two residents share an adjoining bathroom. Rooms without private bathrooms have a sink in each room and residents share common bathrooms on the floor. Rooms are furnished with a standard single bed, desk, chair and dresser for each resident. Each room is provided with ceiling lights. All residence hall rooms are wired for telephone and Internet connections.

Whether students dine in the "all you care to eat" Alumnae Dining Room, or in another facility on campus, they will find fresh food, a wide array of choices and fast, fri endly service. Special dining treats are offer ed including exciting monthly specials with themes relating to holidays or special events.

All students residing in the residence hall are required to be on a meal plan, as stated in the housing cont ract that each resident student signs. The student I.D. is used as verification for meal service. The student is responsible for purchasing a replacement student I.D. if it is lost or st olen. A variety of meal plan options exist for students to meet their needs and schedules. Student s with specific dietary restrictions or medical needs should see the Dining Services.

The Caroline Hall Handbook provides additional information regarding residence living. Additional questions can be directed to the Coordinator of Residence Life and Student Engagement.

#### **Health Insurance**

The College requires every resident and international student to have health insurance. All students living in the residence hall must present proof of insurance to the Coordinator of Residence Life and Student Engagement.

Note: Health insurance company name and policy number also must be indicated on the Mount Mary College Health Record form distributed by the Student Affairs Office.

#### **Parking and Security**

Mount Mary College employs Public Safety officers to patrol the campus and assist students and staff. These officers have the authority to protect the Mount Mary College community by enforcing campus regulations. Public Safety officers are certified in CPR and basic first aid and are on duty 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.

All vehicles parked on Mount Mary College property require a parking permit. All vehicles driven by students must be registered with the security department. Spaces for handicapped drivers are available in all parking areas . Permits are available in the Student Affairs Office, Caroline Hall 147

#### Bookstore

The College Bookstore, located on the ground level of Gertrude Sensenbrenner Bergstrom Hall, is operated for the convenience of students and faculty. The store stocks books and supplies needed for College courses as well as stationery, personal items and gifts. Bo oks may be charged to st udent accounts for the first two weeks of each semester; Visa and MasterCard are also honored.

#### **Religious Life**

A major goal of Mount M ary as a Cath olic college is the total human development of the student. A vib rant faith in God, a need for community to help in the growth of this faith, and a d esire to give service to all of God's people are neces sary for the Christian vision of the mature person. These c an be fostere d by friendly personal encounters, group and private prayer, social justice projects and the celebration of the liturgy.

All students are welcome to participate in the various religious activities and services on campus. Whatever the students' religious tradition, they are encouraged to learn more about their faith, to discover what it means to them and to share it. Such participation provides enrichment for all.

## **International Student Affairs**

The Office of the Associat e Dean for Student Affairs offe rs international students orientation, educational and social experiences that facilitate their adjustment to and integration into a new culture. The Associate Dean serves as a support person to international students, and also seeks to promote the value of their presence on campus to the general college community.

## **Student Services**

Mount Mary College provides a variety of academic, personal, spiritual and other support services, which are available to all students.

#### **Academic Counseling**

The Academ ic Counseling Coordi nator offers indi vidual academ ic counseling for students r egarding a w ide range of issues. Students may self see k services, w hile others are referred. Students work in partnership with the Coordinator to problem solve, plan and establish realistic academic goals. The Coordinator serves as an advocate for all students and assists in working with the College's academic and administrative departments.

#### **Academic Resource Center**

The Academic Resource Center (ARC) located in the lower level of the Haggerty Library provides professional assistance to all members of the Mount Mary College community who wish to enhance their academic skills. In addition to specializing in content areas such as writing, reading, math and science, ARC tutors work with students to teach strat egies for study skills such as time management, test t aking and act ive reading. Professional tutoring may take pl ace in an individual or group setting, a nd ARC tutors present academ ic workshops t o various populations. Students can request peer tutoring through the ARC and are welco me to use a variety of computer resources to develop grammar, math and other skills. Student s who have special circu mstances may be eligible for test taking in the ARC.

ARC assistance is free of charge and available by appointment; dro p-in appointments are dependent upon availability. The ARC is open Monday thr ough Friday during regular business hours. Additional evening and weekend hours are offered each semester. Check the ARC for details regarding hours and tutor availability.

## **Accelerated and Evening Program Services**

Services for students in the Acc elerated and Evenin g Programs and students ta king classes on Saturda ys are available through the Center for Educat ional and Professional Advancement (CEPA), located in Room 152, Notre Dame Hall. CEPA offers assistance with adds and drops, course withdrawals, school withdrawals, reinstatement for returning students, and permission to take courses off campus when the direct service office is not available. The CEPA office is open Mo nday through Thursday evenings until 8:00 p.m., Friday until 3:30 p.m., and Saturday s 9:00 a.m. – 1:00 p .m., during t he academ ic y ear. The telephon e num ber is 414-256-1252. The Office of the Associate De an for Acade mic Affairs and the Coordina tor for the Accel erated Program provide permission for students to take accelerated courses and orientation to the College for new accelerated students. Contact the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs for information: 414-443-3608.

## **Advising and Career Development**

The Advising and Career Develop ment Center provides assist ance to all st udents in ma king career-r elated decisions and in choosing and changi ng their academ ic programs. Students receive assistance in all stages of academic and career planning (self-ass essment, information gathering, gaining experience, and job search) via individual counseling, workshops, classes and activities available throughout their college y ears and within a y ear

after graduation.

In their first y ear, many students find vocational invent ories helpful in reflecting information about their personal skills, interests, values and personality preferences. Students receive information about courses required in each of the academic majors and minors and about the academic advising process, as well as information on how to contact their acade mic advisor. In following years, students use the Career Li brary to research care ers in specific majors, part-time, full-time, and summer jobs and internships available in local, national and international locations. As students approach graduation, the y find help in form ulating their resume's and may participate in job fairs and on-campus interviews. Wo rkshops on topics such as interviewing, resume' preparation and j ob search t echniques are offered each semester.

Advising and Career Development st aff tea ch cla sses on care er issue s and assist stude nts and faculty in developing personalized internships that enhance skills and provide valuable related experience. In the ir role of liaison between em ployers and the College, they collect current marketplace information and disseminate it to faculty, staff and students. In addition, Mount Mary College collaborates with other private colleges in Wisconsin to co-sponsor job fairs for seniors and alumnae.

#### **Health Services**

Mount Mary College regards a positive approach to wellness as necessary in the develop ment of students. All incoming students are req uired to complete a Mount Mary Health Record\*. In order to be ad mitted to some academic majors with professional affiliations, a doctor's physical examination is required.

The College relies on the services of off-cam pus physicians, area hospitals and clinics. All health records are kept on file in the Student Affairs Office.

\*Caroline Hall residents must provide the dates of two doses of measles vaccine or provide evidence of measles immunity by a titer (blood test) from a physician. In addition, health insurance company name and policy num ber must be indicated on the Health Record form.

#### **Counseling Services**

The Counseling Center offers individual short-term counseling for students regarding a wide range of personal problems. Support and information concerning adjustment to college and life skills are offered through workshops and educational program s. Counselors will provide referral to community resources for those students requiring specialized and/or l ong-term treat ment. Counseling ser vices are confidential and free to Mount Mar y College students.

#### **Child Care Center**

Licensed, staffed, and equipped to care for children from one year through kindergarten, the Child Care Center provides short-term care for preschool children of m others enrolled in Mount Mary College classes. The Center is in operation from August through Ma y when classes are in session. It is not open for the summer session or for evening classes. More specific inform ation, including hours and rates, is available from the Director of the Child

Care Center. Children are enrolled on a "first come" basis until all spots are filled.

## **Student Activities**

## **Honor Societies**

#### Scholastic

Delta Epsilon Sigma is a national scholastic honor society for colleges and universities in the Catholic tradition. To be eligible, undergraduates shall have completed at least 50% of their credit requirements at a level equivalent to graduating cum laude (3.6 GPA). For graduate students, eligibility means that they must have completed one-half of their program with above average performance, continuing toward the graduate degree.

Kappa Gamma Pi is a national Catho lic college h onor society. The candi dates for membership m ust have completed four semesters of college or the equivalent and they must have attained a grade point average sufficient for graduation with honors (3.6). Membership becomes effective upon graduation.

#### Professional

Students ma y qualify for election to professional soci eties. G eneral requir ements are high scholarship, demonstrated interest in t he field and satisf actory completion of minimal course work, although each society establishes it s own criteri a. The societ ies are Alpha Delta Mu (Alpha Tau Chapter), social work; Alph a Kappa Delta (Epsilon Chapter), sociology; Alpha Mu Gamma (Al pha Omega Chapter); world languages; Beta Beta Beta (Theta Alpha Chapter), biological sciences; K appa Mu Epsilon (Wisconsin Alpha Chapter), mathe matics; Lambda Pi Eta (Tau Iota Chapter), communication and public relations; Phi Alpha Theta (Delta Omega Chapter), history; Pi Theta Epsilon (Zeta Chapter), occupational therapy ; Psi Chi, psychology; Sig ma Tau Delta, English; a nd, Theta Alpha Kappa, theology.

#### **Campus Ministry**

Campus Ministry at Mount Mary College serves the spiritual needs of the campus community. With a Christian vision rooted in the Roman Catholic tradition, cam pus ministry offers the invitation to rituals of faith and worship, sacred times of retreat and reflection and the awareness of social justice through opportunities of outreach be youd the college community.

All students are welcome to participate in the various religious activities and services on campus. As a Catholic College, we celebrate Mass at various times in the week, holy days and for special celebrations such as graduation. Students of other denominations are encouraged to attend area churches and places of worship of their chosen faith. Whatever stu dents' religious tradition, they are encouraged to learn more about their faith, to discover what it means to them and to share it. Such participation provides enrichment for all.

Campus Min istry works with a student ministry group which offers students an environm ent to d evelop leadership, build relationships, and gr ow in faith th rough community-building activities and service to others. Annual spring break trips to national locations such as Louisiana and West Virginia offer students an opportunity to learn more about community issues and religious diversity, while also engaging in new relationships.

The Director of Cam pus Ministry is also available for individual guidance or support a nd offers spiritual direction.

#### **Social Activities**

Mount Mary College sponsors many social and recrea tional activities, including perform ances by musicians, comedians, dances, parties, and all-campus picnics. These are coordinated by Student Engagement, Caroline Hall Council, St udent Govern ment Association (SGA), and other campus student groups. Other events on campus include films, concerts, and lectures. Students from other colleges are welcome to attend campus events, and Mount Mary stu dents also attend social functions at area coordinated universities. Other annual events plan ned and enjoyed by students include Christmas on the Mount, the Gospel Extravaganza and the Spring Formal.

The College campus is very close to cinem as, shopping centers, and both i ndoor and outdoor activity areas. Downtown Milwaukee, less than 15 minutes away by freeway, offers a multitude of varied and diverse entertainment options. A wide variety of professional a nd college sports com petitions, in addition to those participated in by Mount Mary athletes, are also near by, including the Milwaukee Bucks, Brewers, W ave, and Admirals. Widely recognized for their excellence are the Milwaukee County Zoo, the Milwaukee Public Museum, and the Milwaukee Art Museum. The Milwaukee County Park System offers a broad spectrum of seasonal outdoor activities and enjoys a national reputation. Menomonee River Parkway, a part of the Park Sy stem and on which the College is located, is a popular spot for running, walking, biking, and inline skating. Wisconsin's other well-known recreational attractions include water s ports, golf, tennis, soccer, s kiing and hi king trails, jogging, biking, skating and horseback riding.

## **Cultural Activities and Opportunities**

On-campus opportunities for cultural enrich ment include va ried programs in the arts and sciences, as wel 1 as lecturers, films, and entertainers. Cross-cultural shar ing am ong students and f aculty occurs in class and in cocurricular activities using the strengths of Mount Mary College's multi-ethnic student body. Exhibits of the works of regional artists are continually on display in the Marian Art Gallery in Caroline Hall.

Students may also develop culturally through individual participation in College musical, artistic and literary projects. An annual fash ion show, concerts, recitals and student art exhibits give further opportunities to demonstrate student artistic skills.

The Greater Milwaukee area is a rich cultural center. The Milwaukee S ymphony and Ballet, the Performing Arts Center, the Bradley Center, US Cellular Arena, a nd numerous live theater facilities and groups offer a wide variety of entertain ment choices, and many nationally recognized entertainers make Milwaukee a stop on their tours. Milwaukee is also widely renowned as the City of Festivals due to the large number of m usic and ethnic festivals held each y ear, exam ples of which include Su mmerfest, Asian Moon Festival, Festa Italian a, Indian Summer, Mexican Fiesta, Irish Fest, Cajun Fest, Milwaukee Highland Games, Polish Fest, African World Festival, German Fest, and Bastille Days.

## **Organizations and Clubs**

Students at Mount Mary College have the opportunity to participate in numerous organizations and clubs with different purposes and goals. These include professional and pre-professional groups, as well as those with social and/or volunteer emphases. These clubs and groups incl ude: Student Government Association (SGA), American Society of Interior Designers (ASID), the ARTS Organization, B ehavioral Science Club, Caroline Hall Council, (CHC), Columbia/Mount Mary Nursing Students Association, Communication Club, Environmental Collegians of Sustainability (ECOS), Fashion Club, Graphic Design Club, History Club, International Student Club, Mathematics and Computer Club (MACC), Music Club, Philosophy Club, Social Work Club, Student Art Therapy Association, Student Dance Association, Student Education Association, Students Achieving Leadership throug h Spanish Activities (SALSA)) and Student Oc cupational T herapy Association. A current listing of all clubs and organizations on cam pus is maintained by the Stu dent Engagement Office, and students are welco me to organize and incorporate new clubs and organizations addressing their own particular area s of interest if no c lub or organization in that area currently exists. In addition, Arches, the student n ewspaper, is managed, edited, and written by students.

## **Intercollegiate Athletics**

As members of National Collegiate Athletic Asso ciation (NCAA) Division III, Mount Mary College offers participation in six sports: volleyball, soccer, tennis, cross country, basketball and softball. Teams and student-athletes compete against comparable schools across the Midwest. For volleyball and bas ketball, practices and home contest s are conducted in the beautiful, new Bloechl Cent er on cam pus. The soccer team practices and competes on the vast, grassy space and the soccer field on campus. Tennis, softball, and cross country teams utilize county parks for competition, while training on campus.

The Mount Mary school colors are royal blue, white, and gray and the team nickname is the Blue Angels.

The mission of the Athletic Department parallels the mission of Mount Mary College. Just as the College seeks to provide an environment to develop the whole person, intercollegiate athletics, while focusing on the development of active women, seeks t o provide an environment for l earning and healthy living through sports. Intercollegiate athletics encourages leadership, risk taking, critical thinking, and teamwork. Athletics provide a unique opportunity to collaborate with teammates while competing against opponents. While participating in intercollegiate athletics, we expect st udent-athletes to make a commitment to their teammates for the success of the team. Success is not measured by wins and losses, but by growth and maturity through group experiences and competition.

Mount Mar y College Ath letics are based on the principles of fair play and s portsmanship. Student-athlete welfare plays a prim ary role in decisions and the direction of intercollegiate athletics. Teaching life skill s, good decision making opportunities, recognizing and respecting individual differences and celebrating diversity are key components in the student-athletes' experience.

## **Recreation and Fitness**

Recreational and fitness activities are open to all stude nts and are sponsored and coordi nated through the

30

Athletics Department, the Office of Student Engagement, and the Phy sical Education/Dance Department. Students are encouraged to participate in these activities that provide opportunities to meet new friends and improve healthy lifestyles. The Bloechl Fitness Center is located on the upper level of the Bloechl Center and is open to all students. The Fitness Center contains tread mills, stationary bikes, rowing machines, weight machines and free weights. Recreational equipment may be checked out for use by students with a valid student ID through Outdoor Connection. Equipment includes inli ne skates, cross country skis, boots, and poles, tents and sleeping bags, bicycles, and snow shoes. There is am ple outdoor space for walking, joggi ng, and thr owing frisbees. As we embrace the development of t he whole person – mind, b ody, and spirit - students are encouraged to become involved in these student activities.

# **Academic Information**

## **Academic Honesty and Integrity**

Mount Mary College is an academic community dedicated to the intellectual, social and ethical development of each of its members. As members of this community we all are responsible for maintaining an atm osphere of mutual respect and honesty.

Standards for acade mic integrity provide a structur e for the cre ation of an acade mic environment consistent with the values of the School Sisters of Notre Dame and the mission of the College. In keeping with these goals, all students are expected to strive for integrity, in academic and non-academic pursuits. Acts that involve any attempt to deceive, to present another's ideas as one's own, or to enhance one's grade through dishonest means violate the integrity of both the student and College.

Academic dishonesty in any form has a negative impact on the essential principles of the Mo unt Mary College Community. Therefore, such acts are treated as a serious breach of trust. Given the nature of these a ctions it is important to clearly define the terms that constitute academic dishonesty.

#### Cheating

- Students shall be responsible for their own research, preparation, and final production of all portions of an assignment.
- Students enrolled in a course may not ask another individual to substitute for them during examinations.
- Students shall not use any means of assistance for assignments or exa minations that are prohibited or considered inappropriate to the nature of the task (for example: telephones, calculators, microcomputers, notes, etc.)

• Students shall not su bmit the sam e work for more than one course without the permission of b oth instructors.

#### Plagiarism

• Students shall respect the contributions of others by documenting the sourc e of ideas, c harts, figures, graphs, images, quotations, etc. in all assignments, whether written, oral or graphic.

#### Interference

• Students shall never intentionall y cause har m to another individua 1's schola stic accomplishments (via. damage, theft, or monopolizing reference materials or computer sources).

### Misrepresentation

• Students shall not fabricate or falsify any information in relation to acade mic coursework or acade mic responsibilities (i.e. falsification of internship hours or internship supervisor's signature or remarks).

## Abetting

• Students shall not intentionally aid another student in any form of dishonest act.

## **Academic Program**

The academ ic program of Mount Mary College serves the educational needs of conte mporary women. It encourages students to develop their abilities and respond to society's challenges from an educated perspective.

Students divide their studies among three areas: a core curriculum which provides a liberal arts framework for understanding human knowledge; a major which integrates more intensive study in a field of special interest to the students and which often leads to a career; and elective courses. Students complete at least 128 credits for graduation: 48 core credits, an approve d major with a minimum of 24 credits, and elective credits to complete the requirements. Students in continu ous enrollm ent can nor mally expect to graduate by com pleting the core curriculum a nd m ajor requirements in effect when th ey m atriculated. Note, however, that som e of these requirements are determined by external accr editation agen cies, and this may affect courses, especially within certain majors.

## **Student Advising**

Academic advising at Mount Mary College is based on a developmental advising model. Incoming students are assigned an advisor in their major department, with double majors assigned advisors in both departments. Students who are exploring and have not y et declared a major, or students in transition netween majors, will be provided with an advisor with expertise in advising students in transition. To change majors, students should fill out a new Declaration of Major form in the Advising and Career Development office and an advisor in the new major will be assigned.

All students, especially first-year students, are encouraged to meet frequently with their advisors to discuss the progress of their college studies, to seek solutions to problems they may encounter and to form ulate goals for themselves which will help direct their experience i n college. All students are free to seek academic and career advice from the Director of Advising and Career Development.

## **Core Curriculum**

Mount Mary builds its academ ic program around a core curriculum based on the hum an search for meaning. Through this search, students explore their own responses to the questions, "What does it mean to be a hum an?" and "What can a person become?"

The core curriculum consists of studies in five re alms: Humanistics, Philosophy/Theology, Science, Communication/Math, and Fine Arts. E ach realm investigates the meaning of life from a different perspective and with different methods. The core courses provide breadth within the liberal arts by allowing students to construct an understanding of the perspectives that each of the disciplines offers in each person's lifelong search for meaning. A minimum of 48 credits is required to meet the core re quirements. There is n o limit on the maximum number of credits that may be earned in each realm; however, there is a minimum requirement. Certain departments designate specific courses to fulfill core requirements.

The **Philosophy/Theology** (**phi/thy**) realm presents an overall definition of the meaning of life. Through study of theology and philosophy, students reflect on their own identity, their purpose in life and their relationship with God. Students are required to earn 10 or more credits in the philosophy/theology realm. These credits must include the introductory course entitled "Search for Meaning," three or more credits in theology and three or more credits in philosophy.

The **Communication/Math** (**cm**) realm develops a student's ability to express herself and translate others' selfexpression. Through the communication arts of composition, speech, linguistics, foreign language, mathematics and computers, students learn to communicate the meanings they discover in other realms. Students are required to earn six or m ore credits in the Communication/Math realm. These credits must include "Com position II" and three or more credits in an optional Communication/Math area. The fulfillment of the mathematics competency is required for graduation.

The Literature/Fine Arts (fa/lit) realm emphasizes the human relationship to beauty. Students study literature, music, art, drama and dan ce to unders tand and appreciate this re lationship. Students are required to earn nine or more credits in the Fine Arts realm. These credits must include three or more credits in fine arts and three or more credits in literature.

The **Humanistics** (hum/bes/his) r ealm focuses on the relationships am ong people. Through the study of history, political science, sociology, psychology, anthropology, cultural geography and economics, students explore past and pres ent societies. Students are required to earn nine or m ore credits in the Huma nistics real m. These credits must include three or more credits in history and three or more credits in the behavioral or social science area.

The **Science** (sci) real m examines the relationship between people and their physical environment. Students study earth science, biology, chemistry or physics. Students are required to earn three or more credits in the Science realm.

All traditional age, first year students **with fewer than 15 credits** are required to take **SYM110 Leadership Seminar for Social Justice**. This course may count toward the 48-credit core requirement, but does not satisfy a requirement in any specific realm.

In addition t o the requirements within the real ms, all students are required to meet both global and math competency requirements.

**Math Competency:** Math competency is achieved by earning a grade of at least "C" in a math course (except for MAT052) or by demonstrating competency on the math placement assessment. Math competency should be completed in a student's first 60 credits (or first 16 credits if she/he is a transfer student.)

**Global Competency:** All Mount Mary students are required to take one course (3-4 credits) designated as a "global studies" course, designated with a "**g**."

## **Requirements for Undergraduate Degrees**

The College confers upon those who have met its scholastic and other requirements the degrees:

- B.A. Bachelor of Arts, emphasizing the humanities;
- B.S. Bachelor of Science, emphasizing the sciences;
- B.S.N. Bachelor of Science in Nursing (jointly with Columbia College of Nursing).

For graduation a student must:

- complete satisfactorily a minimum of 128 credits;
- fulfill all core curriculum requirements, including SYM 110;
- fulfill the mathematics competency requirement;
- fulfill the global competency requirement; maintain a cumulative grade point average of 2.0;
- have been accepted into at least one recognized major area of study, and have fulfilled all requirements of that major;
- participate in the required assessment (core and major);
- complete, at minimum, her senior year or the last 32 semester credit hours at Mount Mary College.

• Nursing students must complete at least 16 credits of non-nursing coursework at Mount Mary College to fulfill Mount Mary's graduation requirements. For additional B.S.N requirements see the "Nursing section of this Bulletin and the Columbia College of Nursing Bulletin at www.ccon.edu(See the "Nursing" section of this Bulletin and the Columbia College of Nursing Bulletin for additional B.S.N requirements.

## **Major Studies**

A major is generally understood as a well-organized sequence of courses, progressively more challenging, in a single department of study which constitutes the student's field of concentration. A minimum of 24 semester hours is required in the field of a major sequence. Unless otherwise specified, transfer students are required to c omplete a minimum of 12 semester hours within the major at Mount Mary.

It is the general policy of the College that a student must have been accepted by her m ajor department prior to registering for her Juni or year. Departmental advisors will not approve course selections beyond 60 credits if the student is not a member of that department. (Note department-specific timelines for transfer students.)

Requirements for each of t he major fields of study are given in the Progra m of Study section of this Bulletin. Degrees are offered in the following fields:

Art	
Art Tł	erapy*
Behav	ioral Science Interdisciplinary*: Anthropology, Psychology and Sociolog
Business	Administration**
Busine	ess/Professional Communication (accelerated only)
Co mm	nunication
	Communication Arts Concentration*
	Public Relations Concentration
English*	
	Literature Concentration
	Professional Writing Concentration
Fashion	
	Apparel Product Development
	Merchandise Management
Graphic	Design
History	
Interior	Design
Internatio	nal Studies
	English as a Second Language Concentration
	Spanish Concentration
Justice*	
Libera	l Studies*, **
Mathem	atics
Philosoph	у
Psy ch	ology/Behavioral Science*
Social	Work*

Spanish

Professional Concentration Culture/Literature Concentration Native or Heritage Speakers of Spanish Concentration

Student Designed Major

## Teacher Education

Early Childhood through Middle Childhood (EC/MC)

Middle Childhood through Early Adolescence (MC/EA)

Early Childhood through Adolescence (EC/A)

Early Adolescence through Adolescence (EA/A)

•Art (EC/A)

•Broadfield Language Arts (EA/A) (with options for Journalism or Speech Communication certificates)

•Broadfield Social Studies (EA/A)

```
•Busine ss (EC/A)
```

• English (EA/A)

•History (EA/A)

•M athematics (EA/A)

Religious Education\*\*\*
 Spanish (EC/A)

Th eology\*

Bachelor of Science Degrees

Accounting\*

Biolog y

Chem istry

Diagnostic Medical Sonography (in affiliation with local hospitals)

Dietetic s

Occupational Therapy

Radiologic Technology (in affiliation with local hospitals)

Teacher Education

```
Early Adolescence through Adolescence (EA/A)
```

```
• Biology (EA/A)
```

```
•B roadfield Science (EA/A)
```

Chemistry (EA/A)

\* also available in the evening

\*\* also available in the accelerated program

\*\*\* The Wi sconsin Dep artment of P ublic Instruction nol onger certifies religious education teachers; however, Mount Mary College still provides preparation for teaching religious studies in grades 6-12. This preparation is a cooperative effort of the Theology and Education Departments. See the Theology

section of this Bulletin.

#### **Bachelor of Science in Nursing**

A joint program with Columbia College of Nursing

### **Pre-Professional Programs**

Pre-Professional Programs are available in the area s listed below. Students major in an appropriate related discipline and complete the requirements for admission to the professional program.

Chiropractic Medicine Dentistry Law Medicine Optometry Osteopathic Medicine Veterinary Medicine

### **Post-baccalaureate Certificates**

Accounting Adaptive Art Education Art Biolog У Administration Business Business/Prof essional Communication Chem istry Dietetic S English Fashion Apparel Product Development Fashion Merchandise Management Graphic Design International Studies Public Relations Spanish Theology **Teacher Education Certificates** Early Childhood/Middle Childhood Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Adolescence/Adolescence Early Early Childhood/Adolescence

Teacher education certificates can be pursued in any of the majors listed under teacher e ducation in the da y degree listing.

#### **Graduate Programs (see Graduate Bulletin)**

#### **Interdepartmental Majors**

Certain majors such as merchandise management and, in ternational studies require course concentrations in several departments. These majors are administered by a coordinator who also serves as a student advisor. A special premedical curriculum also has been developed in the Sciences Division.

#### **Student-Designed Majors**

Students may design their own majors by seeking the s ponsorship of two facult y members and preparing a rationale and prop osal for the m ajor to be approved by the dep artments involved and the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs. The Director of Advising and Career Development assists students in preparing the rationale and proposal.

#### **Double Majors**

Any female student may complete a double major, provided that she earns a separate set of 24 credits for each major, It is important for a student pursuing a double major to consult regularly with both department chairs. Male students are limited to the option of completing a minor, in addition to their major in nursing.

#### **Minor Studies**

A minor is generally understood to be a planned seque nce of courses requiring a minimum of 18 credits in a field different from a stud ent's major course of stud y. Departments which offer m inors indicate this as a part of their departmental information. For a transfer student, the minimum number of credits taken toward the minor at Mount Mary College is nine.

38

```
Students may choose a minor in one of the following fields:
Anthropol
             ogy/Sociology
Art
             Education*
Bilingual
Biolog
         y *
Business
            Administration
Chem
         istry *
Co
      mmunication
English
           Literature*
   English Education *
   English Professional Writing
```

ental Studies Environm Graphic Design History Journalism \* matics \* Mathe Philosophy Political Science \* Education Religious Science \* Social Studies \* Spanish Theology

\*Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction Certifia ble Minor available. Refer to specifics described by Education and other academic departments for instructional level of certification.

#### Concentration

A concentrat ion is an area of specia lization within a major. Depart ments specify where a choic e of concentration is necessary or available.

#### **Elective Courses**

Any course not taken as a core course or included in the selected major or minor but taken to com plete the requirement of 128 semester hours of academic credit, is considered an elective.

### **Professional Fieldwork**

Mount Mary College students involved in an y course of study that requires su pervised fieldwork prior t o or beyond graduation, for which Mount Mary College makes ar rangements, may be considered enrolled during such affiliation. Such students must complete the appropriate enrollment forms for the semester through the Registrar's Office in order to be considered enrolled. State law requires that background checks be conducted prior to beginning fieldwork experience. A fee is charged; see the appropriate academic department for more information.

#### **Graduate Courses**

Courses numbered 500 or above are graduate courses. Unless a student meets the criteria for Reserved Credit (see R eserved Credit sect ion in this Bulletin), the general pr erequisite is that registration is restrict ed to those students who already hold an earned baccalaureate degree from a recognized institution of higher education.

Mount Mary College offers both the Master of Science de gree and the Master of Arts degree in selected fields. See the Graduate Bulletin for more information. Graduate courses are offered in other areas. They are intended as opportunities for professional growth, which do not require a commitment to an entire program of study.

#### **Pre-baccalaureate Certificate Programs**

A variety of credit pre-baccal aureate certificate programs are a vailable. These are listed in the section on academic programs. A credit certificate is awarded at the end of a course of study in a particular specializ ation to recognize that the student has gained expertise in that ar ea. Typically credit certificates ran ge between 1 2 and 24 credits. A cer tificate is outside of a formal degree program such as a B.A. or an M.A. but can be combined with formal degrees to indicate an area of additional specialization. Students enrolling to pursue a credit certificate must meet all the admission requirements of the college.

### College in the High School — ConnectEd Program

Connect*Ed* offers the opportunity for a cademically motivated students to earn college credits for college level courses taught at the high school. Courses ar e taught by qualified high school teachers and approved by Mount Mary College faculty members. Students must fulfill requirements of the program to earn college credit. T uition is offered at a reduced rate. Through the program, students are issued a college ID which entit les them access to the library and campus events. For more information, please contact the Admission Office.

### **Youth Options**

The Youth Options prog ram is an opportunit y for j uniors and seniors, who attend publi c high schoo ls in Wisconsin, to take college level courses and receive high school and college credit. The course content must reflect something that is not offered at the hig h school and it must be p reapproved through the st udent's school district. Tuition and f ees are covered by the local school district. Students attend classes at the College. Students need to initiate the process through their high school guidance counselor by submitting a Youth Options Program Plan and Report. For more information, please contact the Admission Office.

### **Continuing Education**

Various depa rtments and programs within the College aw ard a cademic cr edit, certificate s of co mpletion, continuing education units, archdiocesan clock hours, Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction clock hours or other crediting s ystems appropriate to the course exp ectations and to the profession. Information regarding continuing education opportunities is av ailable through the Center for Educational and Professional Advancem ent (CEPA).

## **Academic Policies**

#### **Changes in Regulations and Programs**

While the provisions of this bulletin will ordinarily be applied as stated, Mount Mary College reserves the right to change any provisions listed in this bulletin, including but not limited to academic requirements for graduation and schedules for course offerings, without written notice to individual students. Every effort will be made to keep students advised of any such changes. Information on changes will be available in the Offices of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs, Registrar and Admissions. It is especially important that students not e that it is

their responsibility to kee p themselves apprised of curre nt graduation requir ements for their particular degree program.

Students are subject to changes in regulations or progr ams made after their first registration unless, in the judgment of the Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs, undue hardship can be substantiated.

#### Registration

Selection of courses for current students for the following semester begins in the current fall or spring semester. Registration information can be found in the schedule of classes published e ach semester by the Office of the Registrar and online at My Mount Mary (my.mtmary.edu).

Students are responsible for observing the regulations regarding requirements for sequence of courses and for the degree. Registration clearance must be granted after meeting with an academic advisor.

The last day to withdraw from a course is ordinarily when approximately 60% of the class meetings have been held. The exact date can be found in the official A cademic Calendar, published onlin e at My Mount Mary (my.mtmary.edu). A student may not drop a course merely by nonattendance; such actio n will result in an "F" grade for the course. Students who receive federal financia l aid funding shoul d check with the Office of Fi nancial Aid when any changes are made in course registratio n for the semester. A description of the procedure for course withdrawal is provided in the Student Handbook, online at My Mount Mary (my.mtmary.edu).

A student may not receive credit for an y course in which she is not officially registered with the Office of the Registrar.

Note: Because of the nature of accel erated learning, there is a separate change of course registration policy and course withdrawal deadline for accelerated classes. Please refer to the Accelerated Program Student Handbook.

Mount Mary College has authorized the <u>National Student Clearinghouse</u> to provide transcript ordering via the Web. You can order transcripts using any major credit card. Your card will o nly be charged after y our order has been completed. To order an official transcript(s), login to the <u>Clearinghouse secure site</u>. The site will walk you through placing your order, including delivery options and fees. You can order as many transcripts as you like in a single session. A processing fee will be charged per recipient. Order updates will be emailed to you. You can also track your order online. If you need help or have questions about the National Student Clearinghouse's transcript ordering service, see their convenient <u>FAQ sheet</u> or contact them via <u>e-mail</u> or phone, 703.742.7791.

#### Attendance

Students are expected to attend all scheduled classes in the courses for which they are registered. This policy is based on the belief that all members of the class, students as well as faculty, are integral to the learning process and that absence will have a detrimental effect on the student's academic achievement. Individual faculty members announce during the first week of classes each semester the extent to which class attendance and participation are

required in the course. Students are responsible for meeting the requirements as specified by the course instructor. Student absences from required coursework, quizzes and exa minations for sickness or othe r justifiable cause may occur; however, this is st ill consider ed an absence and may have an i mpact on the final grade for the course. Arrangements for making up work missed are determined by the instructor and the student.

In the case of prolonged illness when a student is unable to attend classes, it is strongly recommended that the student contact the instructor or the Co ordinator of A cademic Counseling so that advice can be provided about the most appropriate course of action.

Note: Because of the nature of accelerated learning, there is a separate attendance policy for accelerated classes. Please refer to the Accelerated Program Student Handbook.

#### **Declaring a Major**

During the first year, Mount Mary students take courses in several disciplines and plan their program of study under the direction of their academic advisors. At the time specified by the department within which they will complete their major, but no later than the end of their r sopho more y ear, the students consult the chair of the department and apply for admission to the department. This includes completing a Declar ation of Major/Minor form and filing it in the Office of Advising and Career Development. Students are not officially accepted into the department until the formal process has been completed and they have been accepted by the department. Students transferring to Mount Mary College at sophom ore level or above must apply for admission to the department of their choice as well as to the College. Further inform ation regarding the requirements for acceptance into the major can be found in the listings of the various academic departments.

#### **Declaring a Minor**

Students who wish to declare a minor should discuss the propose d minor with the chair of the appropri ate academic department. Students must declare a minor prior to their final semester at Mount Mary. A Declaration of Major/Minor form must be completed and filed in the Office of Advising and Career Development.

#### **Residency Requirement**

The last 32 sem ester hours of students' degree progr ams must be completed at Mount Mary College. Students who have attained senior standing after completion of three years of residence and who have then been accepted by a school of advanced professional study may secure a Mount Mary College degree as follows: In addition to Mount Mary College graduation requirements, candidates will be required to validat e successful completion of the first year's work in the professional school in which they have enrolled. A Mount Mary College degree will be granted only after submission of a professional school transcript.

#### Writing Requirement

Students are expected to com plete SYM 102 Com position II prior to their junior year. Transfer students with more than 60 credits must begin coursework to complete this requirement within their first 16 credits of enrollment and must complete the requirement within their first 24 credits of enrollment.

42

Students whose assessment test scores indicate that they must take SYM 090, Foundations of College Writing, must receive a grade of "C" in order to enroll in Composition 1 and then to move on to Composition 2.

Individual departments may require earlier completion of the College Composition requirement.

#### **Mathematics Competency Requirement**

Students are expected to fulfill the m athematics competency requirement prior to their junior year. This can be done by achieving a passing score on the assessment test or by completing an appropriate mathematics course with a grade of "C" or higher. Transfer stud ents with more than 60 credits must complete this requirement within their first 16 credits of enrollment.

Individual departments may require earlier completion of the mathematics competency requirement.

#### **Final Examinations**

Final exa minations are sc heduled at the end of each te rm. Students are expected to take all exa ms at the scheduled time. Absence fro m examinations, except for r easons satisfactory to the instructor, will constitute a failure.

If students have more than three exa minations sc heduled on the sa me day, they m ay request that one examination be changed to another day. In the event of an emergency that could prevent a student from taking an examination at the posted time, the student must contact the instructor or the As sociate Dean for Academic Affairs and individual arrangements will be made.

#### **Advanced Placement**

Students who have taken advanced or college-level courses in high school and who score 3, 4, or 5 on the Advanced Placement Tests of the Coll ege Entrance Examination Board m ay receive colle ge credit of up to four credits for each examination. There is no fee for accepting advanced placement credits.

Students who present higher-level examinations through the International Baccalaureate may receive subject credit for satisfactory work.

#### Nontraditional Means of Obtaining Credit

Mount Mary College recognizes that learning occurs out side the traditional college classr oom and provides means for students to ob tain credit for that learn ing. A maximum of 24 credits may be earned the rough a combination of the follow ing: Credit by Examination, Credit for Life Experience, and Directed and Ind ependent Study.

#### **Credits by Examination**

Mount Mary College will grant academic credit an d/or exemption from some courses to registered students

43

who have passed one or more of the five General Examinations of the College Level Examination Program (CLEP) administered by the College Entrance E xamination Board with scores specified by Mount Mary College. Students interested in taking any of the Subject Exam inations offered by CLEP should contact the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement before registering for the examination.

A maximum of four semester hours on each of the General Examinations and three or four sem ester hours on each of the Subject Examinations may be granted on a Pass/No Credit basis. Students are limited to a maximum of 20 credits by CLEP examination. A list of examinations recognized, as well as scoring requirements (typically the 50th percentile on the national sophomore norms) and other regulations, are available through the CEPA office.

Also accepted for credit are sele cted subject exams administered through the ACT Proficiency Examination Program. For details contact the CEPA office.

Students taking courses at Mount Mary College are eligible to receive credit for any course in the College bulletin by special examination if the department involved believes it to be justified and is willing and able to make up the examination. Arrangements to take special examinations must be made by the student prior to enrolling in the course for which the student wishes to earn credit. (No tutoring or instruction on the part of the faculty involved is permitted.) There are special fees for the examinations and recording of credits. CLEP testing is available at the University of Wisconsin Milwaukee testing center (414 -229-4689).

#### **Credit for Prior Learning (Life Experience)**

Mount Mary College evaluates and awards credit when appropriate for what a person kno ws and can do as a result of non-college experience. Nontraditional students who have completed 12 credits at the College with a grade of C or above may apply for life experience credit in an area of competence. The following criteria are used: The students must be able to articulate what they have lear ned, relate it to a program at Mount Mary College and document it in writing. Students interested in applying for credit for life experience initiate the process within the context of the course, S YM 230 Portf olio Preparation Sem inar. See the Inter disciplinary Courses section of this Bulletin for description. Contact the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement for more information.

#### **Directed and Independent Study**

Opportunities for student growth in self-motivation and self-education in areas not covered by available courses by means of directed study or i ndependent study are available in m ost departments. Students shoul d contact the department chair for furth er information. All independent studies must be approved in advance by the appropriate department chair. Independent studies cannot be offered for core credit, unless by specific exception.

#### **Retroactive Credit for Foreign Language Proficiency**

Mount Mary College stu dents who have attained certain levels of ability in a language other than English (which can be assessed according to college-level proficiency) may be granted credits for that proficiency.

Any student presenting high school background in a world language who completes a course in that same world language above the 101 level at Mount Mary College with a gr ade of B or better may receive four retroactive

44

credits for each Mount Mary College world language course that she tests out of, up to a limit of 16 credits.

#### **Study at Other Institutions**

Before a course may be t aken from another institution of postsecondary education, an Of f-Campus Course Approval Form signed by the student's advisor and the Asso ciate Dean for A cademic Affairs must be filed in the Office of the Registrar. M ount Mary College will grant cr edit for courses taken at other institutions in which the student has earned a grade of C or above. Once a student has achieved Junior status (60 credits), she may no longer transfer in an y credits from a two-y ear institution. A student's last 32 credits must be completed at M ount Mary. See the Transfer Credit section of this Bulletin for more information.

#### **Articulation Agreements**

To ensure ease of transf er credits, Mount Mar y Co llege has num erous articulation agreements with the Wisconsin Technical Coll eges, including degree co mpletion and program-to-program agreements with Waukesha County Technical College, Milwaukee Area Technical Colle ge, and Gateway Technical College. In addition, Mount Mar y has a comprehensive articulation agreement with the University of Wisconsin System Colleges. Further information about these agreements is available from the respective program directors at Mount Mar y College, the UW Colleges, WCTC, MATC, and GTC. A current list of agreements is available on the Mount Mary College Web site.

#### **Correspondence Course Credits**

Correspondence course credits through an accredited university or college are accepted on the recommendation of the student's acade mic advisor and with the prior a pproval of the Assoc iate De an for Acade mic Affairs. A maximum of nine credits may be earned by correspondence. All correspondence courses must be completed, the transcripts received at Mount Mar y College, and the grad e p osted to the student's file one month prior to graduation.

### **Study Abroad**

Mount Mary College students who study abroad in Mount Mary College programs or in programs organized by other accredited educational institutions may receive major, core or elective credit for that study, provided that prior approval has been granted by the appropriate acade mic department, the student's advisor, and the Director of International Studies. Reso urces and advising concerning study abroad opportunities and pr ocedures are available from the Director of International Studies in the International Center.

Mount Mary College offers regularly scheduled short-term programs in the following countries:

- Rome, Italy offered for three weeks in January of even numbered years
- Ireland offered for three weeks in January of odd numbered years
- Paris, France offered for three weeks in January of odd numbered years
- El Salvador offered in January of even numbered years
- Peru Spanish program offered annually during summer school
- Spain offered in summer of even numbered years

Faculty offer additional opportunities for short-term study abroad in conjunction with on-campus course work. These opportunities are announced in the course schedule, on the Web, and in campus announcements.

Additionally, Mount Mary College st udents may chose to participate in programs through Mo unt Mary College's partner institutions. Mount Mary College has affiliations with colleges and universities in Ireland, London, Spain, Peru, and Japan.

Finally, if a student has an interest in a country where Mount Mary College does not h ave a program or relationship, the Director of International Studies will work with the student to find an accredited program that fits the student's needs and interests.

#### **Exchange Semester**

Students may arrange for an exchange semester at Mount Mary College's sister institution, the College of Notre Dame of Mary land in Baltimore. Students can take advant age of the College's proximity to Washington, D.C. and Philadelphia. Interested students should contact the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs.

#### **Reserved Credit**

An option for high-achieving undergraduate students with Senior standing is to earn graduate credit in specified courses. The credits ear ned must be in excess of the 128 credits required for the undergraduate degree. A maximum of 12 reserved graduate credits may be taken. Reserved graduate credits may not be applied to m eet undergraduate requirements. Credits are "reserved" for the appropriate master's degree at Mount Mary College. The student is assessed graduate tuition for such courses, and is expected to perform at the graduate level.

#### **Academic Standing**

Academic standing in college and the requirements for graduation are determined by the quality and quantity of work completed. *Quantity of work* is measured by the number of credits in courses successfully completed. *Quality of work* is registered by the number of quality points earned for that work. The relationship between quality and quantity of work yields the cumulative grade point average (GPA).

The cumulative grade point average is based on all the graded credits earned at Mount Mary College. Each student is expected to maintain a minimum 2.0 grade point average. A student whose cumulative average falls below the minimum requirement of 2.0 will be placed on academic probation. After two consecutive semesters on probation a student may be dismissed from the College (see below).

If a student's grade point average drops below 2.0 in her final semester, she will not be permitted to graduate until she raises her GPA to the required minimum.

Additional information about academ ic requirements of departments and majors is contained in the Courses of Instruction section of this bulletin.

### **Semester Credit Hour**

Student coursework is measured by the credit hour. A cr edit hour means one hour per week of class together with necessary preparation, or two hours of laboratory work per week, or three hours per week of practicum or fieldwork for approximately 15 weeks. Credit toward a degree is stated in credit hours.

### **Classification of Students**

A full-time s tudent must carry at least 12 credit hours a semester. Students who have earned fewer than 30 credits are classified as first-year students. Minim um requirement for sophom ore status is 30 hours of credit; for junior status, 60 credits; and for senior status, 90 credits.

### **Course Load**

Although a typical course load is 16 credit hours each semest er, full-time students may vary this by enrolling for 12 to 18 credit hours.

### **Course Overload**

Only students earning an overall grade point average (GP A) of 3.5 or a 3.5 for the preceding sem ester will be permitted to take more than 18 credits. Perm ission of the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs is required before enrolling for an overload. An extra tuition fee is charged for each credit over 18.

### Withdrawal From and Re-Entry to the College

Any student whose circumstances require withdrawal from the College must complete a withdrawal form from the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, for general notification and recording purposes. A student r ecciving financial aid must check with the Financial Aid Office to understand the impact of withdrawal on her financial aid situation before withdrawing.

Any student in good standing whose en rollment lapses for a full semester or more will be r e-admitted to the College through the Admission Office. Accelerated Program students will be re-admitted through CEPA.

### Academic Probation and Dismissal from the College

A full-time degree-seeking student will be placed on acad emic probation for failure to maintain a minimum cumulative 2.0 GPA.

- A student whose cumulative GPA stays the same or decreases in the probationary semester will be subject to dismissal.
- If the cumulative GPA increases but is still below 2.0, the student may be granted a second probationary semester to achieve the required 2.0 GPA
- Although su mmer coursework counts in the GPA, students receive a full fall or spring probationa ry semester to raise their GPA.

A part-time degree-seeking student placed on probation for failure to maintain a 2.0 cu mulative GPA must

47

achieve a 2.0 cum ulative GPA within 12 additional attempted credits or work ; to extend the probationary period, the student must demonstrate steady progress toward a cumulative GPA of 2.0.

A student who is placed on probation or dism issed from the College may appeal the decision if there are extenuating circumstances. Decisions regarding appeals of ac ademic dismissal and re-entry or probation are determined by the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs whose office can provide more information about the appeal process.

#### **Application for Graduation**

Prior to their last semester before graduation, students must consult with the Office of the Registrar for a credit evaluation. The credit evaluation consists of a review of the degree requirements other than those of d epartment major and minor requirements.

At the begin ning of their final semester, students are re quired to file a form al application for a degree in the Office of the Registrar and to ascertain with the Business Office that they have met all their financial obligations to the College. The deadline for submitting the application is the end of the third week of the semester in which the y expect to gra duate. The specific date is publicated as mester in the academic calendar. Failure to submit this application by the deadline incurs a late fee and may result in postponement of the conferring of degree until the next graduation period.

Students must have completed all graduation requirements in order to participate in commencement exercises.

#### **Graduation with Honors**

To graduate with honors s tudents must have earned at least 60 graded credits at Mount Mary College; have a cumulative grade point of 3.60 for cum laude, 3.80 for magna cum laude, 3.90 for summa cum laude; and have fulfilled any special departmental requirements. Second degree recipients are eligible for graduation with honors only if they meet the above criteria and the cumulative grade point of their entire first undergraduate degree credits and the courses taken at Mount Mary College are sufficient to meet the criteria above.

To be eligible for election to Kappa Gamma Pi, national Catholic college honor society, or to Delta Epsilon Sigma, national scholastic honor society for colleges and universities with a Catholic tradition, students must qualify for graduation with honors and demonstrate qualities of leadership and service.

#### **Honors Program**

The purpose of the Mo unt Mary Colleg e Honors Pro gram is to reward superior scholarly achievem ent and to provide special challenges to serious students who wish to achieve maximum benefit from their college education. Students completing the program receive the diploma citation, "Graduation in the Honors Program."

The Honors Program is administered by a director who chairs the Honors Program Committee. The Committee is composed of faculty representatives as well as appointed student representatives.

Incoming first-y ear students fulfilling at least two of the following criteria are invited to join the Honors Program:

•High school grade point average of 3.5 or higher;

•Rank in the upper 10 percent of their high school class;

•Scores of 25 or above in the ACT or 600 in one area of the SAT.

First-year students achieving a 3.5 GPA upon completion of the first semester also may apply for admission to the program. Transfer students who c ome to Mount Mary with a 3.5 grade point average from their previous college may join the program. Returning students need to complete 12 credits with a 3.5 G PA before applying for admission to the program.

The Honors Program offers seminars, often interdisciplinary, which explore various aspects of a central theme. It also includes a co-curricular component that encourages and recognizes such activities as participating in a local, regional or national convention, organizing an extra-classroom event on campus or successful office-holding.

The honors student m ust achieve a cu mulative GPA of 3.5 at the tim e of graduation to receive the diploma citation "Graduation in the Honors Program."

#### **Dean's List of Undergraduate Honor Students**

After the completion of each semester, the Vice Presid ent for Academ ic and Student Affairs will compile the Dean's List. To be eligible for this dist inction, full-time students must have attained a grade point average in that semester of 3.6 or higher while completing at least 12 graded credits, and have no incomplete or failing grades. Part-time students are eligible for the Dean's List when they have earned a 3.6 GPA in that semester while completing at least eight graded credits and have no incomplete or failing grades. The Dean's List is based only on graded credits earned at Mount Mary College.

#### **Grading Policies**

#### **Grade and Quality Points**

The grades given for academic achievement are interpreted as follows:

	Grade	Quality Poin	its	Numerical Equivalent
А		Superior	4.00	95-100
	AB	Between A and B	3.50	91-94
В		Above Average	3.00	87-90
	BC	Between B and C	2.50	83-86
С		Average	2.00	79-82
CD		Below Average	1.50	75-78
D		Unsatisfactory, but	1.00	70-74
		passing		

F		Failing	0	69 or below
	Р	Pass		70 or above
Ι		Incomplete		
AU		Audit		
W		Withdrawn		
NR		Not Recorded		

The numerical equivalents listed for grades are to be used as guidelines.

#### Incompletes

Ordinarily the grade of Incomplete may be given for reasons of health or other serious emergency that occurs at the end of a course. If stu dents have not com pleted all requirements of a course by the time of the fin al grading period, do n ot have a serious reason, and/or have not made arrangements with the instructor to receive an Incomplete, they will be graded on the basis of work completed by the end of the grading period.

When an Incomplete grade is granted, outstanding work for the course in question must be completed no later than the end of the semester following that in which the Incomplete is granted. At that time students will receive the grade that their work merits. If no work is sub mitted, the Incomplete grade will be chan ged to an F. A Course Completion Agreement Form, signed by the student and faculty member involved, must be filed in the Registrar's Office as a formal record of the details of the incom plete work and the stude nt's awareness of the obligation to complete the remaining coursework successfully.

#### Pass/Fail

To encourage students to explore areas and to broaden their interests, juniors and seniors are per mitted to take elective courses outside their major(s) on a Pass/Fail basis. Core curriculum courses may not be taken P/F. In two years a stude nt may take 16 credits on the Pa ss/Fail system. A grade of Pa ss or Fail rather than a l etter grade i s given for each course. T he credits for such courses apply tow ard graduation, but the Pa ss/Fail grade s are not included in the student's curriculum average.

Students wishing to take a course for Pass/Fail must indicate this on their final registration form at the time of registration. If they decide to change to a Pass/Fail status after final registration, they must obtain an authorization from the Registrar's Office and present this authorization to the course instructor. This must be done before the end of the first half of the semester.

A Pass grade at the time of grade closing cannot be c onverted to a letter grade at a later date. Any student who originally registered for Pass/Fail status but who wants instead to obtain a letter grade must make an official change of status in writing in the Registrar's Office and with the course instructor before mid-term.

#### Auditing

Auditing allows students to attend classes without being required to take examinations or complete projects. With the instructor's permission, students may audit regularly scheduled classes in which space is available; audits

50

are not available for independent stud y, private lessons, internships and many studio/laboratory and/or com puterbased courses.

The minimum requirement to receive an audit (AU) designation is regular attendance, but individual instructors may have higher requirements, including a written contract. There are no restrictions for taking the same course for credit at a 1 ater date. However, after auditing a cour se, stude nts may not receive cre dit through "credit by examination." Audit courses do not count toward graduati on or the completion of a program, nor do the y count as part of academic load for purposes of financial aid.

The decision to audit is made at the time of registration, but a change to credit status may be made up to the end of the first w eek of class. A student m ay change from credit to audit, but this must be done by the last day for withdrawal from classes, as listed in the academic calendar. See also Tuition and Fees.

#### **Cumulative Grade Point Average**

The cumulative grade point average (GPA) is computed by dividing the total number of quality points earned by the total number of graded credit hours completed at Mount Mary College.

The manner in which the grade point average is computed is illustrated in the following example of a student's first semester grades:

Course	Grade	Quality Pts.
College Composition	AB =	3.5 x 3 credit hours = $10.5$
Drawing	В =	3 x 4 credit hours = $12$
Basic Sociology	A =	4 x 4 credit hours $= 16$
Introductory Algebra	C =	2 x 4 credit hours = $8$
		15 credit hours = $46.5$ total quality pts.
		Grade point average = $46.5/15 = 3.1$

#### Grade Point Average for a Returning Mount Mary College Student

An undergraduate student who withdraws from Mount Mary College for a minimum of ten (10) years and then returns to com plete a degree may request that the grade point average (GPA) from the earlier coursework be excluded, so that only the coursework com pleted after readmission would be counted for the cumulative GPA. To qualify for this request, the GPA computed at graduation m ust be based on a t least sixty (60) credits of cour se work.

The request m ust be made in writing to the Associate De an for Acade mic A ffairs, prior to the start of the semester in which the student will graduate. If the r equest is granted, a copy of this policy would be included with the official transcript.

#### **Transfer Credit**

Mount Mary College will grant credit for courses taken at other institutions in which the student has earned a

51

grade of C or higher. In accepting transfer cr edit from other inst itutions, Mount Mary College will record these grades on the Mount Mary College transcript and will not re flect the grades in the Colle ge grade point average (GPA). Transfer credit hours accepted will be included in credit hours earned for graduation. Courses taken prior to enrolling at Mount Mary College m ust be presented for eval uation no later than the end of the first quarter of enrollment.

#### **Repeating a Course**

A course repeated in an attempt to improve a grade counts only once for credit. The grade for that course is the last grade earned, even if that grade is lower than that received upon a previous attempt. Both grades will appear on the transcript but only the last grade earned will be used in the calculation of the GPA.

#### **Transcripts**

Requests for transcripts must be made in writing to the Office of the Registrar. Fees charged for this service are indicated in the Tuition and Fees Section of this bulletin. All indebtedness to the College must be discharged before transcripts will be issued by the Office of the Registrar.

#### **Appeal of a Grade**

Students who are dissatisfied with, or have a question about, a grade assigned for a course should speak first with the instructor. The instructor's decision may be a ppealed to the department chair. If students are still dissatisfied with their grade, they may appeal to the Associate Dean for Academic Affairs. (Appeals must be made no later than the first two weeks of the following semester.) Please refer to the Student Handbook for details on the Academic Appeal process.

### **Arts and Design Division**

Mount Mary College fosters a unique learning environment for women artists and designers while educating them for successful creative lives and professional employment. The Arts and Design Division offers exciting and creative programs that prepare women for full participation in the world of professional artists, designers, educators, and therapists; their lives are shaped by their artistic sensibilities and talents. Graduates are employed in careers ranging from art directors, art teachers, art therapists, fine artists, performers, and photographers to interior designers, apparel product developers, merchandisers, graphic designers, and production specialists to name a few. The division is dedicated to a curriculum that develops awareness, appreciation, and responsiveness to traditional as well as emerging art forms. The development of a unique style of creative expression reflects the student's individual experience, perceptions, and concepts; creative and critical judgment; and ability to use the language of art and design as a means of communication.

The Arts and Design Division, in addition to offering opportunities for art, design and music study, enhances the quality of campus life and is dedicated to the promotion of experiences to meet the needs and interests of the

52

individual today and in future years. The division structure promotes a cooperative organizational relationship among the Fine Art, Art Education, Art Therapy, Fashion (Apparel Product Development, Merchandise Management), Graphic Design, and Interior Design Departments and the Music Department. The faculty are practicing artists, designers, educators, and therapists. For the non-major, there are opportunities to cultivate an interest in music study or art through courses which meet the core liberal arts and beyond. Minors in Art, Art Therapy, and Graphic Design, and post-graduate certificates in Fine Art, Apparel Product Development, and Merchandise Management are also available.

Arts and Design students begin their studies with the liberal arts core and foundation courses in the Division to strengthen their skills, imagination, discipline and design sense. Foundation courses provide a broad shared base from which to pursue all majors (except Music) in the Division.

#### Foundation Courses in the Division

All division majors follow a common sequence of foundation courses beginning with the first semester of the first year. The foundation courses introduce the beginning art and design student to the demands, expectations, and formal fundamentals of art making and design, as well as provide an historical basis for understanding art.

Upon com pletion, students will be prepared for the sp ecific theories and applications of art and design associated with their m ajors. Required foundation com petencies include all or most of the following (check with individual department requirements):

ART 101 Basic Drawing ART 105 Two-Dimensional Design ART 207 Color Theory ART 220 Three-Dimensional Design ART 231 Art History I OR ART 232 Art History II

In addition to the foundation competencies, students in most Arts and Design majors are required to complete a portfolio assessment based on the specific requirements of their major.

### **Fine Art Major**

The Fine Art major offers students opportunities to explore many art forms, from traditional to emerging media, in order to develop their own unique aesthetic vision and expression. Professional art knowledge and skills establish a solid foundation for successful c areers as a rt director s, gallery directors, commu nity arts organizers, photographers, craftsperson 's, design ers and production sp ecialists. The fine art program is ded icated to a curriculum that develops awareness, ap preciation, and responsiveness to all art forms. Students engage in a variety of visual art activities designed to strengthen art m aking and communication skills, to encourage creative problem solving, and to develop a personal sense of self-discip line. Student centered learning in hands-on studio class settings and faculty m embers who are pr acticing professional artists enrich the student's individual path to artistic development. Students complete their studies with a senior art exhibition in the Marian Gallery.

53

Fine art students are involved in m any activities including field trips to area arts museums, community arts involvement, personal ex hibitions, and the Student Arts Organ ization that affords opport unities to prom ote art interest among students, to recognize and promote scholarship, and to foster the students' campus art community.

Formal admission to the fine art major usually takes place at the time of course selection and registration for the sophomore year. The student will make an appointment to meet with a representative from the fine art department and the art depart ment chairperson to review the student's current portfolio of work. A 2.0 grade point average is required for acceptance in the major. Students may meet with the department to present portfolio evidence that may waive the ART 101 class to gain admission into the next level drawing class.

**Fine Art Major Requirements**: 63 credits, 2.5 GPA in art major course s and 2.0 in general courses. Fina 1 assessment is through senior portfolio/exhibit. A minimum of 16 art credits must be taken at Mount Mary College.

**Fine Art Major Course Requirements:** ART 101, 105, 205, 207, 211, 2 20, 225, 226, 231, 232, 3 13, 320, 333, 337, 356 or GRD 358, 455, 475; and 9 additional credits from studio art, graphics, or art history courses.

**Fine Art Minor Requirements**: 24 credits, 2.5 GPA in art cours es and 2.0 in general courses; ART 101, 105, 207, 220, 231 or 232; and 9 credits additional credits in studio art or art history.

#### **Art Education Major (K-12)**

The undergraduate art education program provides a foundation in the historical, critical, aesthetic, and production aspects of art as it applies to elementary and secondary classrooms. This program provides a study of the developmental stages of children's art expression, formulates objectives consonant with them, gives practical art experiences, and demonstrates a well-balanced sequential art program, thus preparing the student for her professional career.

Art Education (K-12) Major Requirements: Final Assessment through student teaching; education portfolio and senior exhibit; education department standards.

Art Education (K-12) Major Course Requirements: Education sequence + 50 credits of ART. ART 101, 105, 205, 207, 220, 225, 226, 231, 232, 320, 337, 356 or GRD 358, 359, 455, 475, GRD 333 and ATH 445. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

#### **Adaptive Education in Art**

A teaching major combining Art Therapy and Art Education leading to certification to teach art in grades K-12, and certification in adaptive arts.

Adaptive Education in Art Major Requirements: Art Education sequence including the following courses: PSY 325, EDU 405, ATH 445 or 745; certification in art education; and successful completion of a practicum in

54

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

November 15, 2010

November 15, 2010

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

adaptive education in art.

#### Supporting Course Requirements for Adaptive Education in Art Major (7-8 credits): PSY 325 and EDU 405.

Adaptive Education in Art Major Course Requirements: ATH 445 or 745. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

#### **Fine Art**

#### **ART 101 fa Drawing**

Introduction to the basic skills of drawing through line, va lue, texture, posit ive-negative space, perspective, and figure drawing from the model. Various media. Foundation course. Fee.

#### **ART 105 fa Two-Dimensional Design**

Develops a working knowledge of the use of the basic el ements and principles of two-dimensional design throug h the exploration of creative problem so lving, skill buildin g and c ritical thinking projects in a variety of media. Foundation course. Fee.

#### **ART 111 fa Experiencing Art**

Exploration, for the non-art major, of the basic principles of design and their practical application in a variety of two-dimensional and three-dimensional media. Fee.

#### **ART 205 fa Ceramics**

Exploration and application of cer amic techniques including h and building techniques and wheel throwing, preparation of clay, use of ceramic equipment, mixing of glazes, and firing of kilns. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111. Fee.

#### **ART 207 fa Color Theory**

Provides a st udy of t he complexity and diversity of color. Co lor theory and term inology are put into practice. Emphasis is on experimentation using a variety of media. Prerequisite: ART 111. Foundation course. Fee.

#### **ART 211 fa Advanced Drawing**

Further development of drawing and observation skills using the figure and v aried subjects. Emphasis is on the student's unique method of working, t hinking and feeling. The student will be guided in the development of a personal image that builds on previous drawing and art experiences. Prerequisite: ART 101. Fee.

#### **ART 220 fa Three-Dimensional Design**

Problems and theory approach to three-dimensional design. Exploration of methods and materials in the articulation of form and space. Foundation course. Fee.

55

#### **ART 225 fa Sculpture**

### 3 credits

3 credits

# **3 credits**

### 3 credits

### 3 credits

3 credits

## 3 credits

## 2-4 credits

Introduction to basic sculptural methods and techniques. Theoretical concepts applied to critical analysis of threedimensional form. Prerequisite: ART 220. Fee.

### ART 226 fa Painting

Introduction to painting. Experiments in color, form , su rface treatments and a variety of techniques such as drybrush, wet-in-wet, glazing, scum bling, and un derpainting. E mphasis is on the development of the student's personal style. Prerequisite: ART 101, ART 105 and ART 207. Fee.

### ART 227 fa Advanced Painting

Advanced use of painting methods. Continuation of the exploration of color, form, surface treat ments and techniques, such as drybrush, wet-in-wet, glazing, sc umbling, and underpainting. Emphasis is on the development of the student's personal style. Prerequisite: ART 101, ART 105, ART 207 and ART 226. Fee.

### ART 231 fa History of Art I

Ancient and medieval architecture, painting, and sculpture . Emphasis is on the cultural context in which the great art of Egypt, Greece, Rome and the Christian West developed, as well as non-Western art perspectives. Foundation course.

### ART 232 fa History of Art II

Representative masters from the R enaissance to 20th Centur y. Emphasis is on the development of European and non-Western painting, architecture and sculpture within the c ontext of the historical and cultural ideas of the times. Foundation Course.

### ART 235 fa History of Non-Western Art

A survey of non-Western art from the Orient, Africa, Asia, and the Americas. Emphasis is on the aesthetic qualities, functions and meanings of the art.

### ART/ATH 275 fa Art for the Helping Professions

The healing nature of art is explored through art materials and processes. C ommunity-based artist-activists and therapists explore the purpose and function of art as an instrument of in dividual and social transformation. Foundation for applied practice in art, art therapy and other helping professions. Open to all arts and design majors, and non-art majors.

### ART 310 fa History of Art in America

Survey of the sources and traditions of American art from colonial times to the present.

### ART 313 fa Figure Drawing

Drawing from direct observation of the human form using a variety of materials and tech niques. Emphasis is on proportion, anatomy, volume, structure and dynamic expression. Prerequisite: ART 101. Fee.

56

### ART 320 fa History of Contemporary Art

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 3 credits

### 3 credits

## 3 credits

3 credits

2 credits

## 3 credits

# 3 credits esent.

## 3 credits

3 credits

November 15, 2010

Modern painting, sculpture, and archit ecture from the early 20th century to the present. E mphasis is on major movements and significant artists in Europe and Am erica, with an exploration of histo rical and intellectual foundations of contemporary expression.

#### ART 323 fa Art for Early Childhood, Elementary and Middle Education 3 credits

Focuses on the importance of, and planning for art as an integral part of the general curric ulum in the classroom. Art objectives and develo pmental stages of children's growth in art, as well as exploring various are used in the expression of creative ideas. Required for Elementary/Middle Education majors. Fee.

#### **ART 328 fa Enameling**

Introduction to basic enameling techniques: stencil, sgraffito, champleve, cloisonne, basse taille, etc. Exploration of newer techniques including striking, torch-firing, liquid enamel methods, surface alterations. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, and ART 207. Fee.

#### ART 337 fa Art Metal

Basic principles of metalwork and jewelry introduced through fabrication and casting processes. E mphasis is on creative design and crafts manship. Advanced work in centrifugal casting and metal fabrication including forging, raising, stone setting, etc. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, and ART 220. Fee.

#### ART 348 fa Fiber Manipulation

Introduction to basic off-loom and on-loom weaving experiments with a variety of fibers for the creation of fabric structures. Prerequisites: ART 105 or 111 and ART 220. Fee.

#### ART 356 fa Photography

Introduction to the use o f phot ography as a fine art. Explorati on of picture making concepts and d arkroom techniques including composition, ex posure control, film processing, enlarging and print mounting. Students provide their own camera; a limited number of cameras are available for rent. Fee.

#### ART 359 fa Fiber/Fabric Design

Application of design principles and creative concepts to two- and three-dimensional problems utilizing fibers and/or fabrics. Exploration of such techniques as fabric manipulation, stitchery, fabric painting, batik, pl angi and dye processes. Fee. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, and ART 207.

#### ART 367 fa Watercolor

Introduction to watercolor painting concepts and techniques with special concern for manipulating watercolors as a transparent medium. Emphasis is on the developm ent of the student's personal style. Prerequisite: ART 101, ART 105 and ART 207. Fee.

#### ART 375 fa Special Topics in Art

Opportunity to study a significant topic from a fine arts perspective. Course title and subject matter vary from semester to semester, according to student need and interest. May be repeated for credit with a different topic.

57

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits of fibers

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 1-3 credits

November 15, 2010

#### 3 credits

3 credits

### 3 credits

#### ART 400 fa Update in Art for Teachers of Children

A course designed to enhance the teaching of art by in education. Fee.

#### **ART 404 fa Ceramics II**

An expansion of ART 205 with an increased emphasis on the development of personal statements through problemsolving in ceramic design. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, ART 220 and ART 205. Fee.

#### **ART 414 fa Functional Ceramics**

Exploration of concerns related to the production of utilitarian objects in clay. Principles of design for utility are emphasized. Areas of discussion and research include appropriate uses of stoneware, porcelain, earthenware, glazes and firing schedules. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, ART 220 and ART 205. Fee.

#### ART 424 fa Ceramic Sculpture

An investigation of ceram ic materials and technique s relating to the production of sculpture. Em phasis is on the synthesis of appropriate construction, s urface and fir ing techniques in expressive form. Prerequisite: ART 105 or 111, ART 220 and ART 205. Fee.

#### ART 455 fa Printmaking

Introduction to the basic fine art printmaking media with an emphasis on relief and monoprint processes. Prerequisite: ART 101, ART 105 and ART 207. Fee.

#### ART 457 fa Advanced Photography

Intensive and personal investigation of the black and white photographic techniques experienced in ART 356 and/or a personalized concentration on digital imaging in GRD 358, with the student producing a more serious and directed portfolio of exhibition ready prints. Prerequisite: ART 356 or GRD 358. Fee.

#### **ART 475 Senior Seminar**

Final comprehensive experience to prepare students for a career in art. Engages the student in integrating their art making with an analy sis of current tren ds through read ings, discussions, critiques, guest presentations, exhibition attendance, and preparation for the sen ior exhibition. Includes an examination of diverse theories of art with various methods of artistic criticism. Required for all fine art and art education majors in the spring semester prior to graduation. Prerequisite: ART 231, 232 and ART 320.

#### ART 490-495 Advanced Art Problems

Advanced work in media selected by the student. Prer equisites: Co mpletion of all foundation cour ses in the student's art or design major and written permission of department chair and instructor. May be repeated for up to nine credits. Fee.

58

490–Ceramics

491–Sculpture

### Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 1-3 credits

troducing new mat erials and current concepts in art

3 credits

3 credits

# 3 credits

### 3 credits

3 credits

#### 2 credits

#### 2-9 credits

492–Printmaking493–Photography494–Painting495–Art Metal

#### **ART 496 Independent Study**

Student-initiated project under the direction of an inst ructor. Completion of all foundation courses in the major and written permission of di vision chair, depart ment chair, and instructor required. May be repeated for up to nine credits. Fee.

#### **ART 498 Internship**

Supervised, work-oriented experience, individually designed to a chieve and in tegrate academic and career goals. The nature of the assignment, type of experience, number of credits and evaluation procedure are to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the field supervisor and the academic advisor. Written approval of the department chair is required.

#### Art Therapy with Emphasis in Community Arts

Art therapy is a hu man service profession that uses the therapeutic tools of art, imagination and the healing relationship to help people connect with their inner resources, resolve problems, and revitalize their lives. Through the creative process of art making, a rt therapists help people learn about themselves, express feelings and communicate with one another. In order to practice professionally, a master's degree in art therapy is required; thus, the undergraduate program is intended to prepare students for graduate studies.

The undergraduate art therapy program places emphasis on the emerging field of community arts and is open to students in a rt therapy, fine arts, and other helping pr ofessions who are interested in art as a healing agent and instrument of individual and social transformation. Our definition of community arts includes art for social change (activist art that intends to cure social ills), public ar t (art installed out doors that intersects with daily community life) and public arts policy (from arts funding t o political involvement). Grounded in re lationships developed with art, the self, and the community, the student develops her creativity in service of therapeutic and compassionate action. By working together with artist-activists and ther apists, students learn what it means to participate in our multicultural, global world through such opportunities as community-based field experiences, study abroad, and self-directed senior capstone projects.

The art therapy major wit h an em phasis in community arts fulfills all of the prer equisite requirements for graduate study of professional art therapy. In the senior year students may be eligible for early entry into the graduate art therapy program. Mount Mary's Art Therapy Programs are nationally recognized for their quality and leadership in art-based art therapy education.

Art Therapy Major With an Emphasis in Community Arts Requirements: 15 credits; GPA 2.75 in the major; 2.0 in general courses; fi eldwork in the community; capstone senior project. Graduate courses available after 128

59

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 1-9 credits

2-3 credits

credits (optional): ATH 532 and ATH 540.

Supporting Course Requirements (43 credits): ART 101, AR T 105, ART 205, ART 2 07, ART 220, ART 231, and ART 232; ART 225 or ART 226; ANT 324 or SOC 220; PSY103, PSY 214 and PSY 325; COM 231or 235.

Art Therapy Major Course Requirements (15 credits): ART /ATH 275, A TH 332, ATH 333, ATH 350, ATH 397, ATH 398, and ATH 498.

Art Therapy Minor Course Requirements (15 credits): Added as a service dime instant major; includes all of the above listed ATH courses.

#### **Art Therapy Courses**

#### **ART/ATH 275 fa Art for the Helping Professions**

The healing nature of art is experienced through exploring art materials and process es. Community-based artistart's purpose and function as an inst rument of i ndividual and social activists and therapists contribute to transformation. This understanding becomes a foundation for practical applications in art therapy and other helping professions.

#### **ATH 332 Multicultural Arts**

Understanding of various cultural frameworks that effect relationships between individuals and groups explored through the arts across cultures including story, song, movement and imagery.

#### **ATH 333 Multicultural Field Experience**

Structured field experience led by faculty in a community setting allows the student to integrate classroom learning with practical experience using various expressive m odalities. Prerequisite: ATH 332 (or concurrent r egistration with ATH 332).

#### **ATH 350 Art and Spirituality**

The connection of art to the creative sp irit is explored through a cross-cultu ral survey of spiritual beliefs and practices. Art made in a contemplative manner, the influence of artists in creating together in community, and class discussion expands understanding of the spiritual connection of art and wisdom.

#### **ATH 397 Creative Community Development**

The participatory nature of art is examined as a one-to-many activity and via collaboration between artists and the community. How artists work to effect positive social change, to create art that intersects with community life, and involve themselves in public arts policy and political action, are studied.

#### **ATH 398 Community Arts Field Experience**

Structured field experience working with a community-based expressive arts team. Project theme is explored and translated into a culm inating public performance. Prerequisite: ATH 397 (o r concurrent r egistration with AT H 397).

60

#### Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### **3 credits**

3 credits

### 1 credit

#### November 15, 2010

### credits

### 3 credits

### 1 credit

#### **ATH 445/745 Adaptations and Applications**

Focus on the adaptation of art materials for the use of special n eeds students or clients from early childhood to geriatric. Application of c reative alternatives that address the needs of individuals and groups. Workshop form at. Open to ATH, ART, AED majors; 3 credit option is required for certification in adaptive education.

#### ATH 496 Independent Study

Student-initiated project with art therapy faculty advisor. Prerequisite: Permission of program director.

#### **ATH 498 Senior Capstone Project**

Senior project that culminates learning and takes the form of traditional or art-based rese arch, a service project, or art exhibition to demonstrate an understanding of art's purpose and functions as an instrum ent of transformation. Prerequisite: Consent of art therapy major advisor.

#### Fashion

The Fashion Depart ment offers two distinct majors, which integrate professional course work with a strong liberal arts background. The Apparel Product Development major appeals to students who have a passion for art and/or apparel construction and receive energy from the process of creating. The Merchandis e Management major appeals to students whose love for fashi on is derived from an instinctive understanding of trends and the ability to put clothes together; they are more analytical and numbers oriented.

To support these majors the fashion department has developed a unique collaborative relationship with regional retailers and apparel product developers, offering students the opportunity to observe, consult and work in the field. These professionals regularly participate in the curricu lum th rough guest lectures, fi eld trips, criti ques and cooperative projects. Co mputer labs off er access to Adobe Illustrator and Phot oshop; Lectra Kaledo; and Optitex patternmaking software. The College's historic costu me collect ion includes 10,000 garments and acces sories ranging from the eighteenth century to recent designer garments. Internships are required of all majors. Students are very com petitive in regio nal and nati onal com petitions. Fashio n graduates mentor students throu gh an active alumnae network.

The Apparel Product Development major is designed to bu ild a student's skills in drawing, computer aided design, patternmaking, apparel construct ion and fitting leading to a mastery of the design process. It allo ws for a concentration in either creative design or technical design. Graduates secure positions in t extile design, garm ent design, technical design, patternmaking, quality assurance, or sourcing a swell as the skills to work as entrepreneurs.

The Merchandise Management major is designed to build a stude nt's skill in and understanding of distribution options, merchandising, buying and assor tment planning trend analy sis, and da ta analysis; it includes a business administration minor. Merchandise management prepares graduates for careers in retail management, buying and assortment planning, merchandising, visual merchandising, and events planning.

61

### 1-3 credits

1-2 credits

1 credit

November 15, 2010

Application to fashion depart ment majors is based upon academ ic preparation, and interpersonal and professional skills appropriate to the demands of the profession. Students must maintain a 2.5 cumulative GPA and a 2.5 major GPA to continue in the program. In addition to majors in either A parel Product Development or Merchandise Management, postgraduate certific ates are available in both areas. Contracts are developed with the chair of the department.

**Apparel Product Development Major Requirements**: 62-63 credits, 2.5 GPA overall and 2.5 major GPA; internship.

**Supporting Course Requirements for Apparel Product Development Major** (15credits): ART 101 or 313, 105, 207, and 231 or 232; and one BUS course.

Apparel Product Development Major Course Requirements (63-64 credits): FSH 107, 110, 150, 210, 212, 215, 217, 220, 223, 235/235B, 321, 322, 342, 344, 352, 398, 436; choice of concentration, below (A single course may not be counted in more than one concentration).

**Creative Design Concentration**: FSH 363 and five to six additional credits selected from the following: FSH216, 297, 305, 325, 350, 372, 375, 397, 463, 464, or 497.

**Technical Design Concentration:** FSH 355, 421 and one additional course selected from the following: FSH 297, 325, 350, 360, 372, 397, 441, or 497.

**Merchandise Management Major Requirements**: 60 credits, 2.5 overall and major GPA; students who earn a Merchandise Management Major also earn a Business Administration Minor.

Supporting Course Requirements for Merchandise Management Major (9-10credits): ART 105; COM 104, 205, 231, 232, 235, 310 or 320; and MAT 111.

**Merchandise Management Major Requirements** (50 credits): BUS 211, 301, 309, 331, 340, 360 and 362; FSH107, 235/235B, 321, 322, 331, 365, 370, 375, 398, 418, 419, 425, 430 and 436.

**Post-baccalaureate Certificates** in Apparel Product Development and Merchandise Management; minimum 24 credits. Individually designed in consultation with the chair.

#### **Fashion Courses**

#### FSH 107 Introduction to Fashion Careers

Introduction to the field of fashion with an emphasis on the professional development and personal qualities necessary for specific careers. Fieldtrips and presentations by professionals in the field.

#### FSH 110 Fashion Experience

Introduces fresh men to the key aspects of the f ashion industry: design, pattern making and construction. These fundamentals are the basis for a career in fashion, and the building blocks every student must acquire in order to progress in the Fashion program.

62

#### 3 credits

2 credits

#### FSH 150 Pattern Construction I

Skill-building related to the pattern development and construction techniques required for skirts and pants. Students will make a personal fit pattern for a sk irt and pants, and learn the pattern manipulations for styling variations as well as construction techniques for assembly. Prerequisite: FSH 110 Fashion Experience.

#### FSH 210 Pattern Construction II

Skill-building related to the pattern development and construction tec hniques required for bodices and sleeves. Student knowledge is developed through problem solving. Students will develop individual personal fit patterns for the bodice, sleeve and torso and learn pattern manipulations for styling variations as well as construction techniques for assembly. Prerequisite: FSH 150 Pattern Construction I.

#### FSH 212 Pattern Construction III

The art of draping is introduced as an alternative patte rnmaking techniq ue to flat pattern developm ent. The emphasis of the course is on the dress. Advanced sewing and fitting skills focus on those used in the construction of dresses. Prerequisite: FSH 210 Pattern Construction II.

#### FSH 215 Computer Graphics I

Introduction to the functionality of Adobe Photoshop and Adobe Illustrator; students will use these tools to develop story boards, marketing images, and a ccurate technical drawings that can be integrated into professional design presentations. Evaluation is based on CAD proficiency as well as design and lay out effectiveness. Prere quisite: FSH 220 Fashion Drawing, ART 101 fa Basic Drawing

#### FSH 216 Fabric Embellishment

Study of embroidery, beading, and fabric manipulation techniques within the context of basic design principles and color theory.

#### FSH 217 Computer Graphics II

Introduction to the functionality of an industry-specific computer aided design suite and exposure to design applications used in textile, trim, and garment design within the apparel product development process. Applications include print, woven, an d knit design; coloring and re-coloring; silho uette developm ent; and board la yout. Suggested Prerequisite: ART 105 fa Design I.

#### FSH 220 Fashion Drawing

Students will learn fashion figure proportions and poses through the developm ent of a basic fashion body or croquis. Introduction to drawing garment details and flats. Prerequisite: ART 101fa Drawing.

#### FSH 223 Design Development and Rendering

Further experience sketching garm ent silhouettes and deta ils as well as rendering fabrics. Students will begin to develop original designs throug h sketching taking inspiration from current fashion tr ends. Prerequisite: FSH 220 Fashion Drawing.

#### 4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

### **3 credits**

#### 2 credits

**3 credits** 

### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### FSH 235/FSH 235B Textiles

An analysis of the basic ele ments of fabric: fibers; y arns; construction methods; and d yes, prints, and finishes. Study of the interrelationships am ong these components and their impact on performance as related to consumer and professional decision making. Class includes 1-credit lab component. Class counts toward the environm ental studies minor. Suggested prerequisite: SYM 102 cm Composition II or equivalent.

#### FSH 297 Introduction to Machine Knitting

Introduction to machine knitting. Mastery of single bed knitting, including shaping, hem treatments, blocking, and joining through a beginning level project knit from a stitch and row gauge.

#### FSH 305 Advanced Fashion Illustration

Individual drawing and rendering assi gnments based on fashion themes an d fabric rendering; introduction to computer illustration. Prerequisite: FSH 223 Design Development and Rendering.

#### FSH 312 Tailoring

Introduction to the techni ques involved in developing a pattern for a tailor edjacket. Analy sis of the unique problems encountered in the design, fabric selection, fit, and construction of a tailored garment. A study of a variety of tailoring methods with individual application through construction of a coat or suit. Prerequisite: FSH212 Pattern Construction III.

#### FSH 321 (g) History of Costume

The study of costume history, the evolution of the apparel and textile industry, and the history of textile technology and apparel distribution as they reflect past cultures and influence present day fashions. Extensive use of the Mount Mary Historic Costume Collection to explore 19th and 20th century costume. Writing intensive. Prerequisites: FSH 235 Textiles, SYM 102cm Composition II. Suggested prerequisite: ART 231fa or 232efa History of Art I or II.

#### FSH 322 Product Analysis

Principles used to evaluate ready-to-wear based on target market needs; identification of physical and performance features that indicate quality; and perceived value attributes. Analysis of ready-to-wear construction techniques and manufacturer's specification packages. Prerequisite: FSH 235 Textiles.

#### FSH 325 Advanced Pattern Construction

Advanced work in patter nmaking and construction techniques. Co mbination of sam ples and projects tailored to individual student's skill level. Prerequisite: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III.

#### FSH 331 Trend Analysis

A discussion of current political, social and cultural events in relation to their effect on fashion trends. Research on target market de mographics and psy cho-graphics as they affect the fashion cy cle. E mphasis on professional presentations that project color, fabrication, and silhoue tte direction and aware ness of current designer influences. Prerequisite: ART 105 fa Two Dimensional Design. (3 credits when offered in Paris)

64

#### 4 credits

2 credits

2 credits

#### 4 credits

credits

#### 3 credits

## 3 credits

#### 2-3 credits

#### FSH 342 Fashion Design I

Study of the design process through cr eative responses to design problems. Students will develop skills in trend research, color m anagement, fabrication, custom er an alysis, design development, and gar ment speci fications. Design presentations will be critiqued by peers, instructor, and professionals in the field. Prerequisites: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III, FSH 215 Com puter Graphics I, FSH 217 Com puter Graphics II, FSH 223 Design Development and Rendering, FSH 235 Textiles.

#### FSH 344 Fashion Portfolios and Presentation Techniques

Develop a pr ofessional portfolio for use in se curing fashion internships and e mployment. Students re vise and develop projects that illustrate their mastery of techniqu es and understanding of specific apparel markets, target customers and current trends. Includes the creation of a logo and leave behind and digital formatting. Prerequisites: FSH 215, 217, 223.

#### FSH 350 Designing with Leather

A study of the special considerations involved in sourcing leather and notions and the design, pattern development and construction of leather garments. Prerequisites: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III, FSH 220 Fashion Drawing.

#### FSH 352 Fashion Collections I

Analysis and application of the techniques used in read y-to-wear manufacturing. Design, pattern development, and construction of a coordinated coll ection using ready -to-wear techniques. Prerequisites: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III, FSH 322 Product Analysis, FSH 342 Fashion Design I.

#### FSH 355 Computer Aided Patternmaking

Application of acquired pattern making skills using a computerized pattern making system. Prerequisite: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III.

#### FSH 360 Historic Pattern Reproduction

Examination of pattern making techni ques throug h the stud y of clothing in the Historic Costu me Collection. Students learn a conservation-friendly measuring technique for taking pattern s from existing garments. The final project is to create an updated version of an historic garment. Prerequisites: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III, FSH 221 History of Western Costume, FSH 342 Fashion Design I.

#### FSH 363 Fashion Design II

Continued study of the design process and additional experience using com puter-aided-design tools. Focus on market research, resource procurement, creative problem solving and visual presentations. Field trips and critiques are integral to the class. Prerequisite: FSH 342 Fashion Design I.

#### FSH 365 Retail Management

Contemporary retailing concepts including consumer behavior, marketing research, store positioning, retail strategy mix, retail 1 ocations, operations management, merchandise assortment and pricing. Integrated co mputer-based exercises. Prerequisite: Computer competency and math proficiency.

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

# 2 credits

4 credits

2 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 2 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### FSH 370 Training, Supervision, and Customer Service for Retailers 2 credits

Study of the management of human resources in the retail environment. A focus on recruiting, training, motivation, supervision, evaluation and customer service skills through a comparative examination of individual store policies and procedures. Prerequisite: BUS 309 Human Resource Management.

### FSH 372 Paris Design Seminar

Development of a design journal and a portfolio-ready collection inspired by shared experiences in Paris. Experiences will vary from y ear to y ear but may include studio work with couture artisans, a present ation by a trend service, an opport unity to study designer garments through exhi bitions or in a museum archives, a trip to Antwerp, structured shopping research, and attending or dressing for a runw ay show. Sophom ore standing in Apparel Product Development major.

### FSH 375 Fashion Show Coordination

Experience in the process of fashion show production. Members of this class form the steering committee for the annual student designer fashion show. Opportunit y to work side by side wi th professional resources in show production. Junior or senior status.

### FSH 396 Independent Study

Study at an advanced level, with approval of faculty member, in specialized fashion area. Fashion majors only. This class may be repeated to a total of 6 credits.

### FSH 397 Knitting Machine Techniques

Study of advanced machine knitting techniques requiring single and double bed sam ple work. Development of a designer original gar ment that incorporates s everal of the techniques covered in class. Prerequisite: FSH 297 Introduction to Machine Knitting.

### FSH 398 Internship: Fashion Careers

An industry/retail work experience in an approved position to better understand the challenges and responsibilities of various fashion career s. The supervised work experience is individually designed to integrate a cademic and career goals. Assignments require interns to reflect on their work experience; performance evaluations by employer and faculty advisor. This course may be repeated for a to tal of four credits. Offered either semester or summer. Prerequisites: Junior or senior status and good standing in the Fashion Department.

### FSH 418 Buying and Assortment Planning

Merchandising principles applied to the planning, bu ying, controlling and selling of retail goods. Mastery of Microsoft Excel functionality, analysis of a six-m onth merchandise plan, preparation of an open-to-b uy, and analysis of stock-to-sales ratios through com puter si mulations, retail math calculations, and guest speakers. Prerequisites: MAT 111, FSH 365 Retail Management.

### FSH 419 Visual Presentation

66

### 2-4 credits

#### 3 credits

3 credits

# 3 credits

1-2 credits

### 3 credits

**3 credits** 

November 15, 2010

Exploration of the fashion prom otion function thro ugh applied marketing activities such a s special events, visual merchandising, merchandise presentation, and publicity. Application of princip les through supervised experiences with retail stores. Prerequisites: BUS 331 Principles of Marketing and FSH 365 Retail Management.

### FSH 421 Pattern Grading and Marker Making

Introduction to the principles of manual and computer pattern grading and marker-making. Prerequisite: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III.

### FSH 425 Inventory Management

Implementation of m erchandising principles, at the store le vel according to assortment plan guidelines. Management of physical inventories based on sales goals. Prerequisite: FSH 418 Buying and Assortment Planning.

### FSH 430 Retail Strategies

Exploration of current challenges facing the retail industry including the future of retail malls, internet retailing, and retail consolidation. Development of analytical decision-making skills using the case study method and a sem ester long business plan project. Prerequisite: FSH 365 Retail Management.

### FSH 436 Apparel Industry Seminar

A study of the apparel supply pipeline with emphasis on current issues and trends in production and distribution in a global marketplace. Multi-dimensional approach t hrough lecture, group discussion, current readings, individual research, field trips, and guest speakers. (Junior or Senior standing)

### FSH 441 Patternmaking for Special Markets

Advanced problems in the developm ent of patterns with a focus on children' s' wear and menswear. Emphasis on problem solving and fitting techniques. Prerequisite: FSH 212 Pattern Construction III.

### FSH 463 Fashion Collections II

Individual exploration of a selected design category, resulting in the development of patterns and completed product prototypes. Prerequisite: FSH 352 Fashion Collections I.

### FSH 464 Special Occasion Apparel

Development of a selected design through the stages of muslin pattern to finished garment using couture workroom techniques. Designer critique. Prerequ isites: FSH 352 Fashion Collections I, FSH 312 T ailoring, and FSH 36 3 Fashion Design II.

### FSH 497 Advanced Machine Knitting

Individualized research and development of an original d esign concept. This class may be repeated for a t otal of 8 credits. Prerequisite: FSH 397 Knitting Machine Techniques.

67

## **Graphic Design**

### 4 credits

2 credits

2 credits

## 3 credits

4 credits

# 3 credits ment of pa

# 4 credits

### 2-4 credits

The Graphic Design major has a diverse and encom passing curriculum that promotes knowledge of the design and printing industry and assist s students in form ulating personal knowledge and care eer aspiration s. With a foundation in the liberal arts, graduates of the program gain a depth of knowledge and l eadership skills in order to succeed in the global design market.

Learning from the first year to progra m completion extends bey ond the classroo m with interaction with professionals in the field and with client-based projects. Working with a variety of non-profit client organizations in the metro M ilwaukee area, students build skills, confid ence and the ability to network within the profession. Students exp lore the vast glo bal diver sity of design while learning the fundamentals of applied iconic artistry, design, and technology. Building a solid foundation from these elements, students apply problem-solving strategies, research techniques, impeccable technical skills and idea refinement. Through y early portfolio reviews, students expand their knowledge and skills in communication, presentation, and digital formats as well as traditional design techniques.

A 2.3 overall grade point average and a 2.5 in courses for the major, minor or certificat e are r equired for acceptance and retention in the Graphic Design program. Progress and retention in the program will be monitored through an annual portfolio review in which the student presents graphic design work completed in courses during the year to a panel of industry professionals. All students in the major are required to participate in a senior gallery exhibition.

Graphic Design Major Requirements: 51-57 credits; 2.5 GPA; annual portfolio review and senior exhibition.

Supporting Course Requirements for the Graphic Design Major: 12 credits; ART 101, 207, 220, and ART 231; 232 or 320.

**Graphic Design Major Course Requirements** (51-57 credits): GRD 225, 232, 248, 258, 310, 325, 330, 335, 345, 356, 380, 450, 451, 454, 460, 461, 495, and 498.

**Graphic Design Minor Course Requirements**: 27 credits; GRD 225, 248, 257, 330, 332, 333, 450; and GRD elective see chair for class choices.

**Post-Baccalaureate Certificate**: Undergraduate degree and co mpletion of the Graphic Design Program of course work.

### **Graphic Design Courses**

#### GRD 225 History of Design

Historical overview with a focus on cultural iconography and the expansion of individualism in design. Students examine symbols of communication and the elements of design across scultures and centuries to gain an understanding of the effects of history on present t rends in advertising from a global per spective. Prerequisites: None; Fee.

#### 3 credits

### GRD 232 Technology Principles: Adobe Photoshop and Adobe Illustrator 3 credits

Techniques in photo manipulation and retouching along with the techniques of illustration are the prim ary focus of this class. St udents will create photogr aphic and/or illu strations, dynam ic collages and raster and vector-based images. Exploring photographic editing techniques, scanning, color form atting, and exporting for print or multimedia. By working through a logical progression of exercises, students gain a strong foundational knowledge of both Adobe Photoshop and Adobe Illustrator. Prerequisites: ART 207; Fee.

### GRD 248 Lettering & Typography

Students learn the hands-on artistry of the letterform. The process of developing fonts, artistic and technical formation and its relationship to page layout will be discussed. Historical formatting of major typography families, terminology and professional standards are a primary focus. Prerequisites: ART101 207; GRD 225; Fee.

### **GRD 258 Design Principles**

Continued applied design using Adobe InDesign incorporat es technical skills in relationship to t ypography, color theory, ill ustration and photography t o create exciting, co hesive layouts. Problem identification, a nalysis, brainstorming and idea refinement are primary focuses. Prerequisite: GRD 232; Art 101, 207; Fee.

### **GRD 310 Introduction to Web Design**

This course explores the basics of web graphic design and technology. Introduction to current web based programs, HTML, CSS, and image processing for the web. Students will achieve an understanding of interactive design using professional level software tools for content creation. Prerequisites: GRD 258, 232; Fee

### GRD 325 Advanced Methods in Digital Imaging

This course explores advanced methods in vector and raster art through interpretation and analysis of complex techniques. Students further their understanding of digital manipulation, production and motion graphic direction. Working with digital editing software, students complete a variety of multi media projects. Prerequisites: GRD 232; Fee.

### **GRD 330 Fundamentals of Illustration**

Focus on effectively capturing the vis ual ideas of product for a client. Skills developm ent in a variety of media; beginning understanding of concept development as well as st yles in relation t o content. This course familiarizes students with the philosophy of illustration and related illu stration techniques. Prerequisites: ART 101, 207; GRD 225. 248; Fee.

### GRD 335 Ethics & Criticism in Graphic Design

Art and design developments as they affect critical analysis and ethical issues in the graphics design industry. Readings, discussion, and aesthetic projects are used to explore the perspective of history, psychology, and artistic interpretations of societal trends. Focusing on 21st century design and art as it relates to the graphic industry in global markets. Prerequisite: 232; Fee

### 3 credits

**3 credits** 

## 3 credits

**3 credits** 

**3 credits** 

### 2 credits

#### **GRD 345 Fundamentals of Motion Graphics**

Basic motion graphics and production. Areas of study include artistic issues of video development, story boarding, and story development. Technical issues such as lighting, digital photos, audio and a variety of software and hardware are explored. Prerequisites: GRD 454, 325; Fee.

#### **GRD 356 Digital Photography**

Introduction to the use of digital photography as a fine and applied art. Exploration of picture making concepts and darkroom techniques including composition, exposure control, film processing, enlarging and print mounting. Students provide their own camera; a limited number of cameras are available for rent. Fee. Prerequisite for GRD majors: GRD 232; Fee.

#### **GRD 380 Portfolio and Presentation**

An overview of preparing a professional portfolio for use in securing internships and employ ment in an art or design field is the main focus of this class. Students prep are artwork and related artifacts within their own major to achieve a completed portfolio for presentation. Prerequisites for graphic design students: GRD 232,258. Other art and design majors should have one course in GRD or computer experience. Offered annually. Fee.

#### **GRD 450 Advanced Graphic Design I**

Introduces classroo m and client-based projects to advance the student's understanding of the design process. Projects are based on specific requirements of technology and printing. Combines fieldwork, client based projects and advanced technical ski ll to prepare the student with essential visual vocabulary. Technical and prese ntational skills, and working with a team are addressed. Prerequisite: GRD 258; Fee.

#### **GRD 451 Advanced Graphic Design II**

Advanced concept development and m arketing are addressed with a f ocus on professionalis m and the client/designer relationship. Supp ort for independent project dev elopment with specific attention t o pr oblemsolving strategies, research techniques, analysis, brainstorming, and idea refinement. Prerequisite: GRD 450; Fee.

#### **GRD 454 Advanced Web Design**

Furthers exploration of the expanding uses of interactive design principles following GRD 310. Students will create extensive and detailed interactive projects. Projects may include creating storyboards, animation and mobile device challenges. Prerequisite: GRD 310; Fee.

#### **GRD 460 Advanced Methodology in Digital Motion**

Methods of digital motion, digital photography with video usage. Students apply motion graphic and multi dimension formatting to explore an advanced depth of study. Prerequisite: GRD 345; Fee.

#### **GRD 461 Senior Seminar**

Seniors develop and pres ent a gallery exhibition of wo rk to the public. Drawing from portfolio development, students will curate the show as a team and design the format and promotional pieces. Prerequisite: GRD 450; Fee.

70

3 credits

2 credits

3 credits

3 credits

### 3 credits

### **3 credits**

## **3 credits**

#### 1 credit

#### **GRD 495 Special Topics in Graphic Design**

Opportunity to study a significant topic in design and visual communication from a graphic design perspective. Course title and subject matter vary from semester to sem ester, according to student need and interest. May be repeated for credit with a different topic.

#### **GRD 498 Internship in Graphic Design**

Supervised work-oriented experience, individually designed to ac hieve and integrate a cademic and care er goals. Approval of the program director is required. Offered fall, spring, and summer. Prerequisite: GRD 450; Fee.

#### **Interior Design**

The Interior Design major provides students with professi onal interior design s kills enabling them to identify, research and creatively solve interior design challe nges. This knowledge and skill base est ablishes a solid foundation for successful interior desi gn careers from hospitals and hospitality to corporate offices, spas, and residential environm ents. The Interior r Design Depart ment, a ccredited by the Council for Interior Design Accreditation Council, focuses on academ ic, per sonal, and social development and provides exceptional opportunities in networking, community involvement, and practical experience. Students i nteract with practicing interior designers and related practitioners to establish rea listic parameters and goals for projects. Student centered learning in small class s ettings and quality liberal arts studies educate students for suc cessful and r ewarding employment before and after graduation. Internship is mandatory.

Faculty m embers are involved in t heir fields of e xpertise through professional practice and continuing education. The National Council for I nterior Design Qua lification (NCIDQ) exam, licensing, and Lead ership for Energy and Environm ental Design (LEED) are emphasized. The student AS ID/IIDA chapter is active and award winning.

Students wishing t o m ajor in the dep artment must complete a Declaration of Major and Interior D esign Department Application. Courses for the Interior Design Depa rtment begin in the first semest er of the first y ear at the College. A 2.0 overall College grade point average and a 2.5 GPA in major courses are required for retention by the department. Once a student matriculates, all remaining INT credits must be completed at Mount Mary College unless permission is granted by the department chairperson.

#### Interior Design Major Requirements: 75 credits, 2.5 GPA.

**Supporting Course Requirements for Interior Design Major** (18 credits): 2.5 GPA. ART 101, 105, 207, 220, 231 or 232 and one course from ART 205, 212, 225, 226, 313, 328, 337, 348, 356, 359, 367, 455.

**Interior Design Major Course Requirements** 57 credits): INT 100, 103, 120, 135, 201, 204, 215, 225, 226, 230, 235, 301, 302, 318, 320, 333, 342, 401, 402, 420, 421 and 496 (optional).

71

### **Interior Design Courses**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 3-9 credits

#### 3 credits

#### **INT 100 Interior Design Orientation**

Introduces students to the interior design profession. Work styles, employment options, and classroom expectations are explored. Council for Interior Design Accreditation (CIDA), National Council for Interior Design Qualification (NCIDQ), American Society of Interior Designers (ASID), International Institute of Interior Designers (IIDA), and Interior Design (LEED) is introduced. Numerous practicing int erior design alum na speakers. No prerequisites. Open to all students

#### **INT 103 Architectural Drafting**

Presents elements, tools, and techniques of archi tectural dra wing through basic exer cises. E mphasis i s on development of drafting skills includes topics such as draf ting principles and lettering. Professionally drawn prints are presented. Prerequisite: ART 101 or same semester.

#### INT 120 (g) Sustainable Design

Addresses en vironmental and sustainable issue s with emphasis on interior des ign terminology, case studies, and product. Historical, ethical, and global perspectives e xplored. Certifications, Leadersh ip in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) discussed. Establishes sust ainable design foundation for rem ainder of courses. Guest speakers, field trips. Prerequisite: INT major.

#### **INT 135 Textiles**

Analyzes basic elements of fabric, fibers, y arns, fabrication methods, and finishes. Explores the interrelation on ship among these components and their i mpact on performance as related to consumer and professional decision making. Speakers.

#### INT 201 Studio I-Residential Interior Design

Incorporates basic principles and elements of interior design. Emphasis is on conceptual problem solving. Explores spatial relationships. Incl udes progra mming, space planning, color usage, materi al and product identification. Projects en courage independent thinki ng and creativ ity while adhering to specific client needs. Field tr ips and speakers. Prerequisites: INT 103, 135, 204, 215, and 226.

#### **INT 204 Building Construction**

Examines construction and finish materials in architecture and interior design as they relate to construction methods. Includes introduction to mechanical systems and their relationship to interior spaces through an overview of electrical, plumbing, and HVAC systems. Building codes are introduced. Prerequisite: INT 103.

#### **INT 215 Design and Communication**

Translates the elements and principles of design into interior space. Hands-on instruction develops student ability to communicate design thr ough use of multiple media techni ques including basic model building, and computer programs. Prerequisite: INT 100.

72

#### **INT 225 Lighting**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 2 credits

#### 2 credits asic exer

**3 credits** 

# 2 credits

#### 4 credits

### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 2 credits

November 15, 2010

Provides vocabulary in lighting. Includes description of lamps, fixtures, uses, and simple lay-outs. Illustrates use of photometric and manufacturers' catalogues. Provides students with an ability to communicate lighting and to satisfy basic client needs. Speakers. Prerequisite: INT 204.

#### **INT 226 Sketching and Rendering Techniques**

Examines graphic communication as it relates to interior design. Emphasis is on techniques, formats and materials most common to professional practice. Includes grid perspectives, media techniques, and application. Prerequisites: INT 103; ART 105.

### INT 230 Computer Aided Drafting I

Introduces use of computer-aided drafting for interior d esign application. Emphasizes features, limitations, and considerations in the use of CAD. Hands-on AutoCAD (current release) for Windows based PCs, digitizer, and various printing devices are utilized. Prerequisite: INT 103. Knowledge of Microsoft operating system. Fee.

## INT 235 Computer Aided Drafting II

Develops ad ditional CAD skills as a continuation of INT 230. Course cov ers advanced editing and drawing techniques, including creation and display of attributes, b ill of material generation, and advanced di mensioning. Introduction to the use of isometrics and other techniques of three dimensional drawing. Prerequisite: INT 230. Fee.

### INT 301 Studio II-Commercial Interior Design

Emphasizes personal and public spaces within offices. Trai ning in office s ystems using manufacturers' s ystem catalogues. I neludes codes, user saf ety, and barrier-fr ee design. Practical application fr om programming and schematics through presentation. Creative solutions are encour aged. Projects may consist of real life projects with client interaction. Prerequisites: INT 201 and 230. Field trips and speakers. Fee.

### INT 302 Studio III-Special Topics

Incorporates skills and knowledge acquired in past classes. Projects consist of commercial space. Team projects. Creative solutions with practical application are emphasized. Multiple lay ers, contract documents (drawings and specifications), schedules, codes, u ser safety, and professional presentation are included. Prerequisite: INT 301. Field trips and speakers. Fee.

## INT 318 History of Architecture & Interiors I

Surveys major styles of architecture and interiors from the ancient world to the 18th century. Attention is given to European foundations of modern architecture and interiors. Prerequisite: Open to non majors.

## **INT 320 Interior Public Spaces**

Explores the principles and techniques of designing interiors for public use in various contexts from small to large spaces. Areas of public space may include hospitality, entertainment, exhibition, retail, and other environments. Includes lectures, discussions, presentations, and observation. Public space design project included. Prerequisite: INT 301.

73

## 2 credits

4 credits

**3 credits** 

2 credits

# 4 credits

### 3 credits

#### INT 333 History of Architecture & Interiors II

Presents sty les and chara cteristics of architecture and interiors from 18th century to present. E mphasis is on language of ornament, new materials and forms, and how they relate to the artistic period. Prerequisite: Open to non majors.

#### **INT 342 Interior Design Business Procedures**

Introduces contracts and business forms for interior desi gn. Financial compensation and computation of profit margins disc ussed. Commonly used office vocabulary is incorporated. Discussion of c ontract documents and project/construction m anagement docum entation needed for pr oject completion. P ost o ccupancy ev aluation. Speakers. Prerequisites: INT 201 and 301.

#### **INT 401 Career Seminar**

Creates a bridge between academia and employment. Class interaction is encouraged. Winning techniques in career search from cover letters and resume s to intervie ws. Pe rsonal m ission, vision, goals are explored. Firms are researched. The importance of networking and appropriate protocol is emphasized. Speakers and f ield trips. Prerequisite: INT 201.

#### **INT 402 Interior Design Internship**

Students are placed in fieldwork during student's third or fourth year of study in the Interior Design Depart ment. The Interior Design Department super visor selects aids, or approves place ment. So me factors considered are interests, skills, dem ographics, and appropriateness. The student is supervised by a fir m representative. Prerequisite: INT 301 or supervisor permission.

#### INT 420 Studio IV-Senior Project I –Research

Focuses on selection of senior level project, which emphasizes individual interior design interests. Project research phase simulates design practitioner responsibilities prior to project programming. Project and content are subject to instructor approval. Prerequisite: INT 302 or permission.

#### INT 421 Studio IV-Senior Project II - Design

Requires student to de monstrate proficiency in project process/de velopment and communication. Project includes programming, design criteria/process, presentation techniques/format, materials/product specification, code review, mechanical systems integration. Project presentation to jury required. Prerequisite: INT 420.

#### INT 496 Independent Study

Optional. Special project or area of study developed by student and advising faculty member. Designed to provide time for additional resear ch in or exposure to specialized areas within interior design. This course exists independently of classroom work and is not required for majors. Prerequisite: Permission of instructor.

## **Music Department**

In keeping with Mo unt Mary College's mission, the Music Department provides the music component of the

74

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

2 credits

#### 2 credits

## 4 credits

2 credits

## 2 credits

#### 1-4 credits

Fine Arts core by contributing to the framework of the lib eral arts education and career preparation of the students. The department offers a wide-ranging variety of courses in music, many of which fulfill core fine arts requirements. Students may explore t opics in music through introductory, historical and global esthetics courses, and through participation in vocal and instrumental ensembles.

The Department's music ensembles, Mount Mary College Chorus, Handbell Choir, Piano Ensemble, Chamber Orchestra, and Cham ber Singers, provide m usic for many major events on campus and prom ote the College throughout the community. Participation in these ensembles is open to all Mo unt Mary College students, faculty, staff, and administrators as well as community members.

Private lessons in piano, voice, strings, woodwinds, and guitar are part of the college curriculum (fee), as well as class (group) instruction in piano, voice and guitar. Enrollment for credit or noncredit is possible in ensembles and private lessons. The Department piano lab is equipped with nine KORG digital pianos with headphones, and is available to all students who may wish to practice on campus.

**Special Fees**: In addition to tuition ther e is a per credit charge for private instruction. There is no additional lesson fee for class instruction in piano, voice or guita r. Fees ar e subject to change. Tuiti on discounts are no t applicable.

## **Music Group and Private Instruction**

### MUS 101 fa Piano Class I

An introductory course in piano for students with no keyboard or minimal music experience. Students develop reading and keyboard skills through engaging repertoire and basic technical studies, and are introduced to music theory concepts and general music history in a group lesson setting. Daily practice necessary for success. Readings and concert attendance required.

### MUS 102 fa Piano Class II

Continuation of MUS 101. Further development of keyboard skills, music reading, and theory while learning original melodies and arrangements of folk and classical literature in a group setting. Emphasis on improving basic technical skills, and learning scales, chords and chord progressions. Daily practice necessary for success. Readings and concert attendance required. Prerequisite: MUS 101 or equivalent.

#### MUS 107 Voice Class I

Group instruction in vocal techniques, breath control and beginning repertoire, classical, musical theater, and popular. Group and individual performance encouraged. Optional recital participation.

### MUS 205 fa Guitar Class

Introductory course includes basic chords and progressions, strums, bass runs, picking patterns, and the natural notes in position. Readings and concert attendance required. No previous instruction necessary.

75

### 2 credits

# 1 credit

2 credits

The following courses for private study are offered every semester and may be repeated. They do not have to be taken in sequence. One credit signifies a half hour private lesson; two credits an hour lesson. Lesson fee in addition to tuition for private instruction. Fees are subject to change. Tuition discounts are not applicable.

#### **MUS 111 Private Instruction: Guitar MUS 211 Private Instruction: Guitar**

Basic classical guitar playing skills, chord progressions, note reading, finger picking technique, and transposition. Repertoire includes representative selections from Renaissance to contemporary in increasing difficulty. Fee.

#### **MUS 113 Private Instruction: Piano MUS 213 Private Instruction: Piano**

Baroque to contemporary repertoire through solo and ensemble performance. Scales, arpeggios, and technique according to individual needs. Material may be chosen for classroom use. Fee.

MUS 114 Private Instruction: Violin/Viola, Cello	1 credit
MUS 214 Private Instruction: Violin/Viola, Cello	2 credits
Study scales, double stops, etudes, position work, bowing studies, and solos from Baroque through the present in	
increasing difficulty. Fee.	

#### **MUS 115 Private Instruction: Voice** 1 credit **MUS 215 Private Instruction: Voice** 2 credits

Study technique, breath control, tone production, through works in English, Italian, Spanish, German, and French art songs; also musical theater, folk music, opera, and oratorio. Baroque to Contemporary. Fee.

## **Music Ensembles**

The following ensemble courses are offered every semester and may be repeated. They do not have to be taken in sequence.

### MUS 204 Piano Ensemble (Piano Duet/Duo)

Perform literature for piano duets, duos and larger ensemble experience. Sight-reading improves, and ensemble playing adds enjoyment and builds confidence. Permission of instructor required.

### **MUS 208 Chamber Orchestra**

For performers in strings, woodwinds and brass. Repertoire selected from music of Renaissance, Baroque, Classical, Romantic and contemporary periods, classical and popular music. Performances on and off campus. Includes a string quartet. Permission of instructor required. Open to all students, staff and faculty. May be taken for non-credit.

### **MUS 209 Handbell Choir**

Perform sacred and secular selections in many styles and perform the College Spring Concert. Ability to read music is an asset, but assistance is available. Open to all students, staff, and faculty. May be taken for non-credit.

76

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 1 credit

1 credit

1 credit

2 credits

1 credit

2 credits

## 1 credit

## November 15, 2010

### **MUS 250 Mount Mary College Chorus**

Choral repertoire for women's chorus from various periods, Baroque to present. Performances at Music at the Mount, Christmas and Spring concerts. Open to all students, faculty, staff and community. No audition required. May be taken for non-credit.

## MUS 350/550 Chamber Singers

Select vocal ensemble of mixed voices which specializes in *a cappella* music of the sixteenth century. Repertoire also includes sacred and secular choral music from Renaissance to the present. Required audition includes sight-reading.

## Academic Courses in Music

## MUS 228 fa Women in Music

An overview of music from ancient times to the 21<sup>st</sup> century with an emphasis on the important roles women have played in music throughout history and the contributions of notable women composers, arrangers, performing artists, authors of books about music, and music industry leaders.

## MUS 230 fa The American Musical

Follows the history of America's original art form to the present. Shows the effect of social and political environment on musical theater. Attendance at one musical required.

## MUS 240 fa Masterworks of Western Music

For the non-musician who would like to know more about music and become an informed listener. This course is a broad, general overview of masterworks by the world's great composers, past and present, from Bach to Babbitt. Using these masterworks as a basis for the course, students will also be introduced to music theory basics, melody and form, and musical instruments and their use in solo, orchestral and ensemble music. Listening assignments, readings, and concert attendance required. No prior musical experience is required.

## MUS 323 fa Music for Early Childhood/Elementary/Middle School

Assists education majors to understand the musical characteristics and needs of children in early childhood/elementary and elementary/middle school programs. Emphasis on practical teaching experiences and development of music skills and strategies that can be used in the general classroom by all teachers. Prerequisite: MUS 101 or equivalent.

## MUS 328 fa/528 fa (g) Music Cultures of the World

Survey of non-Western musical traditions selected from the Pacific, Asia, the Near East and Africa, plus American Indian and Jazz. Esthetic approach with emphasis on acculturation, musical comprehension and the role of women and music in society. Hands-on experience with instruments and folk dances from selected areas of the world.

77

## MUS 400/500 American Popular Music

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## 1 credit

1 credit

## 2 credits

## 3 credits

2 credits

## 3 credits

**3 credits** 

A survey of music and musical trends that can claim a uniquely American origin - including ragtime, spirituals, Gospel, Dixieland bands, swing, jazz, the blues, rock 'n roll, salsa, hip-hop and rap - whose roots reach back to Europe and Africa, and Latin and South America. Listen to music of Scott Joplin, Benny Goodman, Louis Armstrong, Ella Fitzgerald, Charlie Parker, Wynton Marsalis and other greats.

## **Business Administration Division**

The Business Ad ministration Division prepares undergra duate women, and graduate women and men to be responsible and skilled professional l eaders by helping them to acquire specialized business and computer knowledge, to affirm the values and ethics basic to their profession, and to develop enthusiasm to pursue, evaluate, and accept new knowledge for a professional lifetime.

Upon completion of any major in the B usiness Administration Division, a student will have an understanding of an open market econom y, be able to utilize technol ogy appropriatel y, have improved her oral and written communication skills, be able to use quantitative and qualitative information in decision making, understand ethical dilemmas and value s ystems appropriate for business deci sions, understand diversit y issues in the business environment, have developed leader ship skills, have developed a fundame ntal understanding of international business issues, and be able to use quantitative models in decision making.

The division offers majors in Accounting, Business Administration, Business/Professional Communication, and Business Ed ucation, as well as a minor in Business Ad ministration. (The division also offers a Business Administration minor within the merchandise management major administered through the Fashion Department.)

The Accounting Major provides students with t he sk ills to prepare, communicate, and interpret an organization's financial data. Mount Mary College requires a minimum of 128 credits to graduate. The Accounting Examining B oard of t he State of Wisconsin requir es 150 colle ge credit ho urs to take t he CPA Exam . These additional credits can be o btained through various undergradua te course offerings, as well as graduate courses in the Master of Business Adm inistration program at Mount Mary College. Contact the division chair for further information.

The Busines s Ad ministration Major prepares stu dents for managerial positions and graduate studies by developing skills in effective communication, logical problem solving, and responsible decision making

The Business Education Major prepares students f or teaching grades K-12 (License 250). Methods and field experience are required to teach Key boarding K-6. The 281 license may be obtained upon completion of 2,000 hours of occupational experience plus EDU 448 and 450. See the Education Department section of this Bulletin for required education courses and for specific core c ourse requirements to me et Wisconsin Depart ment of Public Instruction regulations.

78

The Business Administration Minor provides a core of business knowledge for the nonbusiness major.

To m eet the needs of non-traditional students, the division offers the majors of business ad ministration, business/professional communication, and the minor in business administration in an evening accelerated format. The Accelerated Business Administration Major prepares students for managerial positions and graduate studies by developing skills in effective communication, logic all problem solving, and r esponsible decision making. The Accelerated Business/Pr of communication Major r pr epares students to be responsible business professionals by helping them to develop their s kills in leadership, decision making, writing, and personal interaction. This interdisciplinary major incorporates course s in Business Administration, Communication and English. Eligibility requirements for accelerated majors are described in the Admission section of this Bulletin.

Post-graduate students can earn certificates in accounting, business ad ministration, business education, and business/professional communication by completing all the requirements listed for a major

See the graduate bulletin for information on the Masters of Business Administration (MBA) Program.

To be admitted to the department, a student must have:

- sophomore standing (30 credits);
- completed four Mount Ma ry College business cour ses with the minimum grade point aver age for the chosen major, and have an overall grade point av erage of 2.0, e xcept for business educati on which requires a 2.75 overall grade point average;
- completed S YM 102 Com position II with a grade of C or better, except f or business/professional communication which requires a grade of BC or better;
- completed the math requirement for the chosen major with a grade of C or better; and
- completed CSC 205 Computers and Their Uses with a grade of C or better.

Once ad mitted, students must maintain a 2.0 overall gr ade point average (business education 2.75), with an average 2.5 in business administration and business/prof essional communication major courses; 3.0 in accounting major courses; 2.75 in business education major courses; and 2.5 in business administration minor courses.

Coursework in the Business Ad ministration Division assumes knowledge a nd competency i n computer applications. It is strongly recommended that students l acking in word processing, sp readsheet, presentation, and database skills take steps to improve these skills as soon as possible.

## **Traditional Programs**

Accounting Major Requirements: 82 credits; 3.0 major GPA.

Accounting Major Prerequisite Course Requirements: (8 credits) MAT 111 and CSC 205 with a grade of C or better.

79

November 15, 2010

Accounting Major Course Requirements (74 credits): BUS 211, 212, 250, 301, 302, 313, 314, 335, 355, 362, 375, 376, 401, 402, 411, 451, 452, 462, 465, 470, 476, 490; MAT 216 and CSC 211

Business Administration Major Requirements: 62 credits; 2.5 major GPA.

**Business Administration Major Prerequisite Course Requirements** (8 credits): MAT 111 and CSC 205 with a grade of C or better.

**Business Administration Major Course Requirements** (54 Credits): MAT 216, BUS 211, 212, 250, 301, 302, 303, 331, 335, 362, 375, 462, 465, 470, 476, 485;CSC 211; one 3 or 4 credit elective chosen from BUS or CSC courses numbered 200 or above.

**Business Education Major-Early Childhood/Adolescence Requirements:** 37 credits + Education sequence, 2.75 major GPA.

Business Education Major-EC/A Prerequisite Course Requirement: (4 credits) MAT 111.

**Business Education Major Course Requirements**: BUS 102, 211, 212, 250, 301, 302, 303, 331, 362, 375, 414; CSC 205, 211 See the Education Department section of this Bulletin for required education courses and for specific core course requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction regulations.

**Merchandise Management Major:** See the Arts and Design Division, Fashion Department section of this Bulletin.

Business Administration Minor: 19-22 credits; 2.5 major GPA.

Business Administration Minor Prerequisite Course Requirement: (4 credits) MAT 111.

**Business Administration Minor Course Requirements**: (19-22 credits) BUS 211, 250, 301 or 302, 362; two 3 or 4 credit elective courses chosen from BUS courses numbered 200 or above.

## **Accelerated Programs**

Consist of five eight-week terms per year. Accelerated courses meet one night a week for the eight-week term. Saturday courses are also available. Eligibility requirements are described in the Admission section of this Bulletin.

Accelerated Business Administration Major Requirements: 62 credits 2.5 major GPA.

Accelerated Business Administration Major Prerequisite Course Requirements: (8 credits) MAT 111; CSC 205.

80

Accelerated Business Administration Major Course Requirements: (54 credits) MAT 216, BUS 211, 212, 250, 301, 302, 303, 331, 335, 362, 375, 462, 465, 470, 476, 485; CSC 211; and one 3 or 4 credit elective chosen from BUS or CSC courses numbered 200 or above.

Accelerated Business/Professional Communication Major Requirements: 64 credits; 2.5 major GPA.

Accelerated Business/Professional Communication Major Prerequisite Course Requirements: (8 credits) MAT 105 and CSC 205.

Accelerated Business/Professional Communication Major Course Requirements: (56 credits) MAT 208; COM 205, 231, 232, 320; EPW 309a, 309b, 331, 370; BUS 210, 301, 331, 335, 362, 476; CSC 211; one 3 or 4 credit elective chosen from BUS or CSC courses numbered 200 or higher.

Accelerated Business Administration Minor: 19-22 credits; 2.5 major GPA.

Accelerated Business Administration Minor Prerequisite Course Requirement: (4 credits) MAT 111.

Accelerated Business Administration Minor Course Requirements: (19-22 credits) BUS 211, 250, 301 or 302, 362; two 3/4 credit elective courses chosen from BUS courses numbered 200 or above.

## **Business Administration Courses**

### **BUS 102 Advanced Word Processing**

Using Windows Word Processing software, speed and accuracy are improved. Advanced formatting skills are used to create business correspondence; international, medical, legal, and employment documents; formal reports; and design office forms and publications. Communication skills are reinforced. A document portfolio is produced. Open to all majors. Prerequisite: 30 wpm keyboarding skill.

### **BUS 210** Accounting and Finance for Professionals

Introduction to the language of accounting and finance, including techniques for analy zing financial statements. Emphasizes understanding and interpretation of company results. Prerequisite: MAT 105.

### **BUS 211 Financial Accounting**

Introduction to fundam ental financia l accounting principles and concepts. Analy sis of corporate accounting information for preparation and interpretation of financial statements for external and internal decision making. Prerequisite: MAT 111.

## **BUS 212 Managerial Accounting**

Analysis and interpretation of managerial accounting concepts for an effective internal planning and control system. Focuses on product costing, budgeting, and other decision-making models. Prerequisite: BUS 211.

81

### 4 credits

4 credits

2-3 credits

#### **BUS 250 Business Communication**

Focus is on communication as an essen tial management tool. Includes work on clear, conci se written skills and effective oral communication. Prerequisite: SYM 102.

## **BUS 301 hum Microeconomics**

Basic course in microeconomics with prim ary emphasis on how demand, supply, and the price mechanism direct economic activities in a market economy. Topics include consumer behavior, production, market analysis, general resource allocation, income distribution, taxation, government activities, and unions.

## **BUS 302 hum Macroeconomics**

Basic course in macroeconomics, involving analysis of national income accounting, the determination of national income and employment, money and banking, and the international monetary system.

## **BUS 303 International Business and Economics**

Introduction to economic trade theory and practice. Topics in clude gains from trade, international finance, balance of payments, marketing, organizational strategies, cultural challenges, and human resource development. World events and case studies are emphasized. Recommended: BUS 301, 302.

## **BUS 309/509 Human Resource Management**

Introduction to fundam entals of hu man resource management emphasizing organiza tional and personal goals. Topics include basic human resource management functions, how they are performed, and the relationship between human resource managers and operating executives in public, private, and nonprofit organizations.

## **BUS 313 Intermediate Accounting I**

Continues discussion of financial accounting theory and functions. In-depth presentation of current and long term assets, current liabilities, statement presentation, and the use of present value analysis. Prerequisite: BUS 211

## **BUS 314 Intermediate Accounting II**

Study of financial accounting theory relative to long-term debt, st ockholders' equity, securities, and investments. Prerequisite: BUS 313.

## **BUS 331/531 Principles of Marketing**

An introduction to the m arketing function including target marketing, product development, pricing, pro motion, and distribution. Current topics and company case studies are reviewed. A marketing plan is developed.

## **BUS 335 Management Information Systems**

An introduction to the managerial aspects of information systems in business organizations, emphasizing planning, budgeting, implementing, and evaluating. Emerging technological trends are explored. Recommended: CSC 205.

## **BUS 340 Consumer Behavior**

An in-depth study of the consumer purchase decision process, and the individual and environm ental factors that 82

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## 3 credits

## 4 credits

3 credits

3 credits

## 3 credits

## 4 credits

## 3 credits

## **3 credits**

## 3 credits

## **3 credits**

November 15, 2010

**BUS 355 Cost Accounting** 

influence it. Current market strategies and company case studies are applied. Prerequisite: BUS 331.

Design, implementation, and use of optim al accounting systems for product and service costing, internal and external financial reporting, managerial decision support and organizational control. Prerequisite: BUS 212.

#### **BUS 360 Advertising and Promotion**

Presents comprehensive overview of advertising theory and practice, including ethical analysis and interpretation of social responsibility issues in advertising. Student te ams prepare a major advertising plan, i neluding advertising objectives, media plan, creative elements, and pre-testing research. Prerequisite: BUS 331.

#### **BUS 362/563 Principles of Management**

The principles and practice of organizational m anagement with emphasis on the relation of theor y to practice in a variety of decision-making situations. Recommended: BUS 250.

#### **BUS 375 Business Law I**

Law as it applies to busine ss; history of law including current civil and criminal lawsuit pro cedures, small claims procedure, contracts, tort law, personal and real property law, creditors' rights, and bankruptcy.

#### **BUS 376 Business Law II**

Law as it applies to business; commercial transactions and the Uniform Commercial Code, negotiable instruments, secured transactions, agency, business organizations, corporations, and partnerships. Prerequisite: BUS 375.

#### **BUS 395 Special Topics in Business**

Consideration of a special topic relevant to the theory or practice of business organizations, according to the needs or interests of students. May be repeated for credit with a different topic.

#### **BUS 401 Income Tax Accounting I**

In-depth study of the federal individual income tax as it applies to the determination of filing status, gross income, adjusted gross income, itemized deductions, losses and credits, determination of basis, depreciation, and the rules for recognizing gain or loss from property transactions. Prerequisite: BUS 211.

#### **BUS 402 Income Tax Accounting II**

Federal tax laws as they apply to corporations, S corporations, partnerships, gifts, estates, and income taxation of trusts and estates. Prerequisite: BUS 401.

#### **BUS 411 Auditing**

An introduction to the audit process from an internal and external perspective with an emphasis on practical applications and technological innovations. Prerequisite: BUS 314.

#### **BUS 414/514 Small Business Management**

83

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

# 3 credits

# **3 credits**

3 credits

## 1-4 credits

#### **3 credits**

## 3 credits

#### 3 credits

3 credits

November 15, 2010

A guide through the process of entrep reneurship, including the development, organization and management of a small business. A complete business plan is developed.

## **BUS 451 Advanced Accounting I**

Accounting for consolidations, merger s and acquisit ions; preparation of consolidated state ments; accounting for interim reporting and segment reporting. Prerequisite: BUS 314.

## BUS 452 Advanced Accounting II

Accounting for partnerships, governmental and fi duciary accounting, bankruptcy accounting, estates and trusts. Prerequisite: BUS 314.

## **BUS 462 Principles of Finance**

Study of the financial environment, the fundamental trade-off between risk and return, the time value of money, and the principles of security valuation. Analy sis of financial statements is presented, using current annual reports. Prerequisite: BUS 211.

## **BUS 465 Managerial Finance**

A continuation of basic finance principles, concentrating on strategic long-term financing decisions, capital structure, leverage, dividend policy, and the cost of capital. Prerequisite: BUS 462.

## **BUS 470 Strategic Management**

A capstone course using case studies to integrat e c oncepts and skills fr om all busi ness content courses. Environmental scanning, strategy formulation, strategy implementation, and evaluation and control are studied for the global environment of businesses. Prerequisites: BUS 462 and senior status.

## **BUS 476 Business Ethics**

An introduction to ethical concepts that are relevant to moral issues in business, including developing the analytical skills needed to apply these ethical concepts to business situations.

## **BUS 485 Quantitative Decision-Making**

Involves decision-making within a mathematical model format. Topics may include probabilit y theory, decision analysis, line ar programming, PERT models, and inventory management models. Fo cus on preparing and interpreting data. Prerequisites: MAT 111; MAT 216.

## **BUS 490 Selected Topics in Accounting**

Selected topics in accounting such as pensions, international accounting, quantitative model building, income tax allocation, and additional topics not available in other courses. Prerequisites: BUS 451; MAT 216.

84

## **BUS 496 Independent Study**

Student-initiated topic or project under the direction of an instructor. Approval of chair required.

## 2 credits

3 credits

## 3 credits

## 1-4 credits

November 15, 2010

#### 3 credits

## 3 credits

3 credits

# 3 credits

## Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## **BUS 498 Internship**

Supervised work experience off campus in a business setting. Approval of chair required.

## **Computer Studies Courses**

## CSC 205 cm Computers and Their Uses

Introduction to computers and microcomputers. Topics include history of computers, physical parts of the computer and their operation, the operating s ystem and other software, the repr esentation and processing of data by computers, uses of computers, impact of computers on society, kinds of software most useful on microcomputers, buying computers and computer software.

## CSC 211 Application Software

Instruction and practice leading to pr oficiency in the use of application software including electronic spre adsheets and word processing. Introduction to presentation and database management software. Recommended CSC 205.

## CSC 395 Special Topic in Computer Studies

Consideration of a special topic relevant to the theory or practice of Computer Studies according to the needs or interests of students. May be repeated for credit with a different topic.

## **Graduate Program in Business Administration**

A Mast er of Business Administration (MBA) is offered through the Business Ad ministration Division. Emphasizing leadership, et hics, and communication skills within a global environm ent, the MBA program flows from and supports the M ount Mary College mission and the Graduate Education mission. The MBA is a 3 6 credit graduate degree program that stresses the importance of the critical qualitative aspects of a strong tradit ional MBA program while also emphasizing the requisite quantitative skills.

Course work is presented in an acceler ated format (five eight-week terms in a calendar y ear) and is offered in the evenings and weekends.

Appropriate undergraduate coursework in management, marketing, financial accounting, finance, statistics, and economics is required. The prerequisite requirement must be fulfilled before enrolling in the corresponding graduate course.

Specific program requirements and course descriptions are in the Graduate Bulletin available from the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement (CEPA) or online at <u>www.mtmary.edu.</u>

For more information, contact CEPA at 414-258-4810, or email: gradinfo@mtmary.edu.

# **Education and Mathematics Division**

85

## 2 credits

## 3 credits

## 1-4 credits

In keeping with Mount Mary Colleg e's m ission, the mission of the Education Department is to provide programs that prepare teachers to be visionary decision-makers in elementary, middle and secondary schools; these programs are designed for both pre-service and in-service te achers. To achieve the mission, the depart ment has developed a set of program standards based on the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction's Ten Standards for Teacher D evelopment and Licensure and indicators that are organized according to specific domains. These domains, in addition to those of Mount Mary College's core upon which the professional sequence is based, are as follows:

PERSONAL:	Communication, Interpersonal Skills, Responsibility, Reflective Practice and Integrity-Commitment
PROFESSIONAL:	Learner and Learning Theory, Curriculum and Instruction, Management, Assessment and Foundations

The beliefs that form a basis for the programs, standards and indicators are delineated in the Guide for Students, which can be obtained from the Education Department.

The sequence of courses f or each program, as described below, provides the knowledge base and the cli nical experiences for students to achieve the goals and objectives.

The teacher education programs of the College are approved by the Wisconsin Depart ment of Public Instruction (WDPI) and accredited by the Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association. A student who satisfactorily completes one of the programs can be recommended for certification in Wisconsin at the level for which she or he has prepared. Students planning to teach in s tates other than Wisconsin should write to the department of education of the state involved, requesting a copy of that state's certification requirements.

Programs are offered in the following categories: ea rly childh ood/middle childhood (This program prepares students to teach pupils from birth to age 11--approximate pre-kindergarten, kindergarten and grades 1-6); middle childhood/early adolescence (This teacher education program leads to general certification for ages 6 to 12 or 13--approximate grades 1-8); early adolescence/adolescence, including biol ogy, chem istry, English, langua ge arts, history, social studies, mathematics; and early childhood /adolescence, including art, French, business, music and Spanish. Certification in adaptive education (art) and in vocational education (business) is also available through the Education Department.

Many of t he education c ourses are taught i n a Smart Cl assroom designed with teaching stations in which students can practice usi ng the latest presentation and r esearch technologi es. The Education Department also maintains the Teacher Education Center, which al so serves as the Archdioce se of Milw aukee Resource Center. These materials are for the use of our students as well as teachers in the community.

#### Advising

Students in e arly chil dhood/middle childhood educat ion and m iddle childhood/early adolescence education programs will be assigne d an advisor in the Educ ation Department. Students in all other programs (e.g. Art Education, etc) will have an advisor in their major and minor areas of study and in the Education Department.

## **Clinical Experiences**

Prior to student teaching, all students must complete approximately 100 hours of approved clinical experience. Mount Mary College courses which require clinical experiences are: MAT (EDU) 211/212, EDU 200, 245, 300, 303, 312, 321, 322, 365, 403 and 411. Fieldwork in EDU 405 is optional. As part of, or in addition to education department course fieldwork, students need to demonstrate knowledge and understanding of minority group relations through direct involvement with various racial, cultural, language and economic groups in the United States to fulfill the WDPI licensure requirements.

Several of the programs require more than 128 cre dits for completion. With careful planning and su mmer school courses, it is possible for a student to complete a program in four years. However, a student may be required to student teach in the fifth year.

All students are charged a fee for a criminal background check, which is required by the Milwaukee Public Schools. Other school dist ricts in which students ar e placed may have additional fees. Students enrolled in EDU 321 and EDU 312 will be charged a \$12.00 criminal background check fee.

### **Admission to Teacher Education**

In order to pursue any of the department's certification programs, a student must make formal application to the department and be admitted by action of the Teacher Education Committee. For admission to any program, students are required to: 1) have a cumulative grade point average of not less than 2.5 on a 4.0 scale computed on at least 40 semester credits of collegiate level course work; 2) achieve acceptable performance on the Pre-Professional Skills Test (PPST) as deter mined by the Wis consin Department of Public Instruction (see the *Guide for Students* for exceptions to these conditions). Students are not per mitted to begin 300 level courses unless they have met the PPST requirements or in special circu mstances can give eviden ce that the y have registered to take the PPST. 3) have a cumulative grade point of 2.5 or better in one's teaching major and minor. NOTE: The education department does not count courses with a CD or D grade to meet the course requirement in the professional education sequence. Courses with these grades must be repeated. Failure to complete courses with the appropriate grades may affect a student's admission to the department; 4) demonstrate proficiency in writing, speaking and listening skills; 5) complete departmental form s including the Application for Ad mission to the Department, the Backgroun d Verification form, and the Criminal Background Check; 6) have personal qualities essential to successful teaching; 7) have developed an ac ceptable initial portfoli o; and to m eet additional criteria specifi ed by the E ducation Department.

87

These criteria, as well as those for retention in a program, are found in the Guide for Students.

#### **Admission to Student Teaching**

In order to student teach, a student m ust make formal application to the department and be ad mitted by action of the Teacher Education Committee. To be admitted to Student Teaching, in addition to being fully admitted to the education department, students are req uired to: 1) s ubmit a completed Application for Student Teaching form ; 2) earn a C or better in each course within the professional education sequence; 3) c ontinue dem onstration of appropriate personal and professional qualities ess ential for teaching; 4) success sfully complete approximately100 hours of fiel dwork; 5) maintain a cum ulative grade point of 2.75 overall, a nd in one' s teaching major, teaching minor and professional co urses; 6) satisfactorily complete required courses in the major and minor as o utlined in the Education Department Guide for Students; 7) satisfactorily complete Portfolio II (Application Level); 8) earn a satisfactory score on the appropriate Praxis II Content nt Test. No e xceptions are granted to these requirements. To student teach during a fall semester, students must take and pass the Praxis II Content test no later than the January test date prior to the fall s emester. To student teach during a spring semester, the test must be taken and passed no later than the August test date prior to the spring semester.

### **General Studies**

Students in all teacher education program s must meet gener al studies requirem ents in written and oral communication, m athematics, fine art s, social studies, biological and phy sical s cience, humanities including literature, W estern history or contemporar y cultur e, a nd non-Western histor y or contem porary culture. These requirements are met in somewhat different w ays in different programs; h owever, the following courses are recommended for most programs: SYM 102, COM 210, HIS 153 or 154, POS 214 and POS 215, ART 235 or MUS 328. The students should consult their Education Department advisor, and t heir academ ic depart ments or other advisors, for the specific courses to meet the r emaining requirements, so me of which also meet C ollege core requirements and som e o f which also meet requirem ents in the student' s major. These requirements are also included in the *Guide for Students*.

As outlined in Wisconsin Statues 118.19 and PI 34, a ll students in teacher education a re required to be competent in the use of c omputers and technology, to meet human relations requirem ents, to be k nowledgeable about Wisconsin's Native Am erican tribes, to unde rstand environmental issues and conservation (for 1 icenses in early childhood, m iddle childhood, early adolescence, science and social studies), to be ins tructed in the use of phonics to teach reading (for licenses t o teach in the age range of birth to age 11), and to m eet the WDPI conflict resolution requirements.

#### **Program Completion**

To be certified, all student s must satisfactorily complete an approved major/minor. All students need to attain an acceptable score on the Praxis II Content Test. At the time of program completion, a minimum grade point average of 2.75 on a 4.0 scale, overall, as well as in the major, minor, and in professional education courses i s required for a student to be recommended for licensure. A student also needs to receive a Pass in student teaching, and submit an acceptable Portfolio III.

Students who transfer into the College and wish to be recommended for initial teacher certification by the

88

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

College need to earn a minimum of 16 credits at Mount Ma ry College and be observed by college personnel in at least two field placements before they may apply to student teach.

The degree of Bachelor of Arts is granted to an undergraduate student completing the early childhood/middle childhood program or the middle childhood/earl y adolescence education program. The degree of Bachel or of Arts or Bachelor of Science is granted to an undergraduat e student completing other teacher education programs, according to the major field pursued.

Note: Since the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction may revise its r equirements for teacher education programs at any time, the College's teacher education programs, as described in this Bulletin, are subject to change.

## **Early Childhood/Middle Childhood (EC/MC) Teacher Education (Undergraduate):**

89-92 Credits; 2.75 GPA overall and major/minor GPA; Praxis Exams; Student Teaching; Portfolio

**EC/MC Teacher Education (UG) Major Course Requirements** (54-55 credits): EDU 200, 204, 211, 245 or 246, 300, 300P, 311, 312, 312P, 356, 357, 365, 401, 402, 405, 410, 411, 456, 490 and 493.

**EC/MC Teacher Education (UG) Supporting Course Requirements** (35-37 credits): ART 235 or M US 328; ART 323; COM 210; GEO 310; HIS 153 or HIS 154; MAT 201, 202; MUS 323; PED 480, 481; and POS 214, 215. T he following cour ses ar e suggested to fulfill th e bi ological, phy sical, and environm ental science requirements. Students meet with their advisor to determine appropriate options: SCI 204, 205, 206, 2 16; and SCI 207 or GEO 210.

**Early Childhood/Middle Childhood Teacher Education (UG) Minor 24-30 credits:** A minor (24-30 credits, some of which may be part of the basic program ) is an optional feature of our program . Minors are available in : bilingual education (Spanish), English, mathematics, science, social studies and Spanish. Each minor is composed of a set of c ourses described in m aterials available from the Education Depa rtment. No WDPI certification is available for minors taken by EC/MC Teacher Education Majors. Minors will be indicated on transcripts.

**Early Childhood/Middle Childhood (EC/MC) Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Requirements:** The following are as of general studies: written communication, oral communication, m ath, fine arts, social studies, biological science, phy sical science e, hum anities, w estern history /contemporary culture, and non-Western history/contemporary culture. Com petence can be shown through portfolio, courses, transcript evaluation, and standardized testing.

**EC/MC Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Course Requirements:** EDU 200, 204, 212, 212P, 700 or 245, 701 or 311, 703 or 405/505, 470/570, 300, 300P, 312, 356, 357, 365, 401, 522, 715, 411/511, 456/556, 490 and 493. Courses especially designed for post-baccalaureate students are:

EDU 701 Child and Adolescent Development in a Diverse Society. *Graduate version of EDU 311*. EDU 703 The Exceptional Learner. *Graduate version of EDU 405*.

89

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

EDU 470/570 Fine Arts Methods. *Combines art, music, drama methods with the study of non-Western cultures.* 

EDU 212 Teaching Early Childhood and Elementary Mathematics. Combines scope and sequence of curriculum with methods for teaching Pre K–Grade 6 and fieldwork with math teachers, (concurrent enrollment with EDU 212P Practicum in Teaching Mathematics).

**EC/MC Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Supporting Course Requirements**: GEO 210, PED 480 and PED 481 or equivalent courses.

## Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence (MC/EA) Teacher Education (Undergraduate):

85-88 credits; a minor; 2.75 GPA overall and major/minor GPA; Praxis Exams; Student Teaching; Portfolio

**MC/EA Teacher Education (UG) Course Requirements** (50-51 Credits): EDU 200, 2 04, 211, 245 or 246, 300, 300P, 302, 311, 312, 312P, 356, 3 57, 401, 402, 405, 410, 456, 493 and 4 94. A minor (24 to 30 credits, so me of which may be part of t he basic pro gram). Minors are available in: bilingual education (Spanish) , English, mathematics, science, soc ial studies, and Spanish. Each minor is co mposed of courses described in materials available from the Educat ion Department. Each of these minors leads to additional specific certification. English, mathematics, science, and social studies minors are certified if the candidate gets a pass score on the Praxis II middle school content test (test code 20146). Studen ts who wish to be certified in Spanish h must pass the Praxis II test in Spanish (test code 10191) in addition to the middle school test.

**MC/EA Teacher Education (UG) Supporting Course Requirements (35-37 Credits):** ART 235 or MUS 328; ART 323; GEO 310; HIS 153 or HIS 154; MAT 201, 202; MUS 323; PED 480, 481; POS 214 and 215. The following courses are suggested to fulfill the biological, physical, and environmental science requirements. Students meet with their advisor to determine appropriate options. SCI 204, 205, 206, 216; and SCI 207 or GEO 210.

**Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence (MC/EA) Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Requirements:** The following are as of general studies: written communication, oral communication, m ath, fine arts, social studies, biological science, phy sical science e, hum anities, w estern history /contemporary culture, and non-Western history/contemporary culture. Com petence can be shown through portfolio, courses, transcript evaluation, and standardized testing.

**MC/EA Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Course Requirements:** EDU 200, 204, 212, 212P, 300, 300P, 302, 312, 356, 357, 401, 522 or 402, 703 or 405/505, 715 or 410, 456/556, 470/570, 493, 494, 700 or 245, 701 or 311; a minor (24 to 30 credits, some of which may be part of the basic program). Minors are available in: bilingual education (Spanish), English, mathematics, science, social studies, and Spanish. Each minor is composed of courses described in materials available from the Education Department. Each of these m inors leads to additional specific certification for ages 6-12 or 13. English, mathematics, s cience, and social studies minors are certified if the candidate gets a passing score on the specified Praxis II middle school test content test (test code 20146). Students

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

who wish to be certified in French or Spanish must pass the Praxis II test in Spanish (test code 10191) in addition to the middle school test. Courses especially designed for post-baccalaureate students are:

EDU 701 Child and Adolescent Development in a Diverse Society. Graduate version of EDU 311.

EDU 703 The Exceptional Learner. Graduate version of EDU 405.

EDU 470/570 Fine Arts Methods. *Combines art, music, drama methods with the study of non-Western cultures.* 

EDU 212 Teaching Early Childhood and Elementary Mathematics. *Combines scope and sequence of curriculum with methods for teaching Pre K–Grade 6 and fieldwork with math teachers, (concurrent enrollment with EDU 212P Practicum in Teaching Mathematics).* 

MC/EA Teacher Education (Post-baccalaureate) Supporting Course Requirements: GEO 210; PED 480 and 481 (or equivalent course).

## Early Adolescence/Adolescence Education (EA/A)

The early adolescence/a dolescence t eacher educa tion progr am prepares st udents to teach in middle and secondary schools. Teaching majors and minors are offered in the following areas: biology, chemistry, English and history. A teaching major is offered in broad field science, broad field language arts, mathematics and broad field social studies. A teaching minor is offered in bilingual education (Spanish), journalism, speech communication and political science. A methods course and student teaching are a part of each minor.

An early adolescence education student may pursue one of the following plans: one teaching major, one teaching major with a teaching minor, or two teaching majors. In selecting major or major/minor combinations, a student should confer with appropriate department advisors.

Students electing a major in social studies or a major or minor in a social studies area must fulfill the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction's requirements in environmental education and cooperatives. Students electing a major in broad field science or an area of science must fulfill the requirement in environmental education.

The professional education sequence for undergradua te students is EDU 200, 204, 245 or 246, 303, 311, 321, 321P, 322, 324, 401, 403, 405, 410, 482, and 489. The professional e ducation sequence for post-baccalaureat e students is EDU 200, 502 (or 303), 321, 321P, 322, 324, 401, 503 (or 403), 482, 489 (specific student teaching courses vary by major), 701 (or 245 and 311), 703 (or 405/505), and 715 (or 410). See major areas for sequence of courses in specific fields.

## Early Childhood/Adolescence Education (EC/A)

Students interested in teaching art, busi ness, or Sp anish follow the Early Childhood/Adole scence Education Program, preparing them to teach their specialty Grades Pre K through 12. See the professional education sequence listed above for graduate course equivalents for post-baccal aureate students. See Depart ment descriptions for information about required content courses.

91

#### Art Teacher Education (EC/A)

A teaching major in art leading to certification to teach art in grades PreK- 12. The professional educ ation sequence is EDU 200, 204, 245 or 246, 303, 311, 321, 321P, 322, 324, 325, 401, 405, 410, 485, 497, GRD 258 and GRD 380.

#### **Business Teacher Education (EC/A)**

A teaching major leading to certification in business education for grades Pre K-12. The professional education sequence is: EDU 200, 204, 245 or 246, 303, 311, 320, 321, 321P, 322, 324, 401, 403, 405, 410 and 487. The 281 license may be obtained upon completion of 2,000 hours of occupational experience and EDU 448 and 450.

#### Spanish Education (EC/A)

Students working for certification in language need to follow the EC/A Program. The professional education sequence is EDU 200, 204, 245 or 246, 303, 311, 321, 321P, 322, 324, 401, 403, 405, 410, and 476.

#### Adaptive Education in Art (EC/A)

A teaching major combining art therapy and art education leading to certification to teach art in grades PreK-12 and certification i n adaptive arts. Re quirements are: certification in art; PSY 3 25, 3 credits of ATH 445 /745 and successful completion of a practicum in adaptive education in art (ATH 498).

#### **Vocational Education (minor with Business Education)**

Requirements are: fulfilling requirements in business education, EDU 448, 450 and 2,000 hours of related occupational experience.

### **Post-baccalaureate Certification Program**

A person who holds a bachelor's degree from an ac credited college or university wishing to work for teacher certification in any of our post-baccal aureate programs is eligible to apply to the Mount Mary College Post-baccalaureate Certification to Masters Program . Although the student needs to fulfill the same professional requirements for certification as the und ergraduate, some of these requirements may be fulfilled through graduate courses which can be applied toward Mount Mary's Master of Arts in Education: Professional Development.

These courses include E DU 715 Issu es and Problem s Af fecting Education which fulfills the Foundations requirement, EDU 700 Diversity Among Learners, EDU 701 Child and Adol escent Development and EDU 703 Exceptional Learner.

#### **Education Courses**

#### EDU 200 Orientation to Teaching

Introduction to phil osophy, goals, objectives and require ments of the Ed ucation Department; decision-m aking process; observation skills; library resources; portfolio deve lopment. Students are introduced to the formal lesson planning process. Initial Fieldwork is required. Prerequisite: Comp I.

#### **EDU 211 Mathematical Perspectives**

Study of strategies for teaching m athematics from a developmental perspective as well as continuing development of m athematics content knowledge; i nstructional strategies include assessment, questioning techni ques, task selection and integrated approaches to instruction; scope and sequence of early childh ood, middle childhood, and early adolescence mathematics curriculum, and national standards are included. Off campus fieldwork is included. Undergraduate students only. Prerequisite: MAT 202 and completion of PPST, or departmental approval.

#### EDU 212 Mathematics for Early Childhood/Middle Childhood/ Early Adolescence Teacher Education 3 credits

Study of strategies for teaching m athematics from a developmental perspective as well as continuing development of m athematics content knowledge; i nstructional strategies include assessment, questioning techni ques. task selection and integrated approaches to instruction; scope and sequence of early childh ood, middle childhood, and early adolescence mathe matics curriculum, and national standards are included. Concurrent enroll ment in EDU 212P Practicum in Teaching Mathematics required. Prerequisite: Completion of PPST, or depart mental approval. Post baccalaureate students only.

#### **EDU 212P Practicum in Teaching Mathematics**

Generally taken in conjunction with MAT 212 (EDU 212). Involves 30 hours of observation and participation in area schools. Placements occur in grad e levels corresponding to the students' major (early childhood and middle childhood, or middle childhood and e arly adolescence). St udents are placed in a school through the E ducation Department and are formally observed at least once in their placement setting by Education Department personnel.

#### EDU 245 Teaching in a Multicultural Society

Study of the history, culture, values, life style, and contributions of minority groups, including Wisconsin Native Americans; exam ination of attitudes of racism, sexi sm, and prejudice; hum an relations s kills and techniques; models for multicultural education; laboratory experiences including direct involvement with members of minority groups. Fieldwork is required.

#### EDU 246 Multicultural Leadership for Social Justice

Combines Multicultural Education and Leadership for Social Justice. Introduction to the depth of thinking called for in the college environment and orients students to the mission and values of the College. This interactive and reflective course focuses on issues of social justice relating in particular to gender, race, and class. Includes study of the history, culture, values, lifestyle, and contributions of minority groups, including Wisconsin Native Americans; examination of attitudes of racism, sexism and prejudi ce; human relations skills a nd techniques; m odels for multicultural education; laborator y experiences including direct involvement with m embers of m inority groups. Oral, written and small group communication skills are emphasized. This course satisfies the College's leadership course requirement. Fieldwork is required.

#### EDU 300 Teaching Reading and Language Arts in the Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early **3 credits** AdolescencePrograms-I

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## 3 credits

#### 2 credits

1 credit

## **3 credits**

November 15, 2010

93

Knowledge of the nature and process of reading includi ng phonics. Includes objectives, methods, m aterials and strategies for the teaching of reading at the early childhood, elementary, and middle school levels. Techniques and tests for evaluating progress in reading and relationships between reading and other language processes. Concurrent enrollment in EDU 300P Practicum in Reading and Language Arts is required.

#### **EDU 300P Practicum in Reading and Language Arts**

Generally taken in conjunction with EDU 300. Invol ves 30 hours of observation and partic ipation in area schools. Placements occur in two settings in grade levels corres ponding to the students' major (early childhood and middle childhood, or middle childhood and e arly adolescence). St udents are placed in a school through the E ducation Department and are formally observed at least once in their placement setting by Education Department personnel.

#### EDU 302 Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Programs – II **3 credits**

Techniques for using authentic assessment instruments. Designed to help students become aware of and develop the interrelationships am ong writing, reading, speaking, lis tening, grammar, spelling and handwriting. Includes handwriting instruction de signed to develop writing competencies needed by prospective teachers. Prer equisite: EDU 300 or permission of the instructor.

#### EDU 303/502 Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Early Adolescence/Adolescence – I 3 credits

Study of the reading process; strategies for increasing basi c reading skills; the interrelationship of reading, writing, speaking and listening across the various content areas of the middle/secondary schools; literature for children and adolescents (art and music students). Includes weekly observations in middle school settings. Fieldwork is required. Prerequisite: EDU 321 or permission of Director.

#### **EDU 311 Child and Adolescent Development**

Introduction to the study of children and adolescents. Considers various aspect s of development in infancy, early childhood, middle childhood and adolescence. Includes developm ent of artifacts for Portfolio II. This course is a prerequisite for EDU 312.

#### EDU 312 The Psychology of Teaching and Learning

Study of learning factors and conditions, of the ingredients for effective instruction, and of the principles and strategies for evaluation of learning. Management theories, including conflict resolution, are studied and reinforced through classroom observation and participation in area schools. Includes development of 4 standards for Portfolio II including Standards 5 and 7. Prerequisite: EDU 3 11, or 701, or permission of Director. Undergraduate students also must concurrently enroll in EDU 312P Practicum in Educational Psychology (EC/MC/EA).

#### EDU 312P Practicum in Educational Psychology (EC/MC/EA)

Generally taken in conjunction with EDU 312. Invol ves 30 hours of observation and partic ipation in area schools. Placements occur in two settings in grade levels corres ponding to the students' major (early childhood and middle childhood, or middle childhood and e arly adolescence). St udents are placed in a school through the E ducation

94

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

1 credit

**3 credits** 

Department and are formally observed at least once in their placement setting by Education Department personnel.

## EDU 315 Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence Mathematics Curriculum and Methods **3 credits**

Study of rese arch-based knowledge of children's learning of mathematics and of the te aching of mathematics in Pre-K through nine, mathematics teaching methods, methods of evaluation, and the school mathematics curriculum. Designed for mathematics m inors in elem entary/middle education. Prerequisite: MAT 211/212 or con sent of instructor.

#### EDU 320 Keyboarding: Instructional Methodology EC/MC for Business Teachers

Specifically for business education students and certi fied secondary teachers of business (EA/A) who ar e seeking keyboarding certification at the elem entary level. I ntroductory and closing seminars are held at Mo unt Mar y College and field experience is completed in area school s. Observation and student teaching are required in an elementary/middle school setting under the direction of an experienced teach er. A college supervisor visits the student.

#### EDU 321 Psychology Applied to Teaching

Study of lear ning theories and processes; conditions for effective teaching and learning; motivation; individual differences; r esearch; assessment. Micr oteaching is included. Students must concurrently enroll in EDU 321P Practicum in Educational Psychology (EA/A). Prerequisite: EDU 311, or 701, or permission of Director.

#### EDU 321P Practicum in Educational Psychology (EA/A)

Generally taken in conjunction with EDU 321. Involves 30 hours of observation and participation in area secondary schools. Students are placed in a school through the Education Department and are formally observed at least once in their placement setting by Education Department personnel.

#### EDU 322 Instructional Methods for Early Adolescence/Adolescence: General

Study of instructional planning, general methods of instruction, materials, technolog y, the use of instructional media, scho ol organizati on, classroom management a nd classroom assessment. Fieldwork in m iddle school classrooms is included. Prerequisite: EDU 321, or permission of Director.

### EDU 324 Instructional Methods: (Subject)

Special consideration of methods, materials and curriculum planning for a specific subject area. Prerequisite: EDU 321.

### EDU 325 Teaching Art in Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence Education

Study of the relationship of art expression to child development at the early childhood/elementary/middle level. Formation of objectives and their implementation is based on state standards in this sequential art program.

95

### Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

**3 credits** 

# 3 credits

2 credits

1 credit

# **3 credits**

## 2-6 credits

November 15, 2010

## EDU 326 Teaching Music in Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence Education

3 credits

Study of the relationship of music expression to child development at the early childhood/elementary/middle level. Formation of objectives a nd their im plementation in a well-balanced consecutive m usic program. Pr erequisite: EDU 311.

#### EDU 331 Teaching in a Bilingual-Bicultural Program (Spanish-English) 3 credits

Focusing on Spanish-English education, a consideration of the history and rationale o f bilingual education, linguistic concepts necessary for bil ingual teaching, curricular models, and m aterials and m ethods for bilingual/bicultural learning. Examination of the various issues in volved in assessment of bilingual education and educational development of ELL students. Offered as needed in the following format:

#### EDU 331A Bilingual Education

A consideration of t he history and current status of t he education of ELLs and bilingual education along with the pertinent linguistic and educational theories that provide a rationale for bilingual education. A survey of the various models for the organization of bilingual education and the impact those models have on the assessment of bilingual education programs. Examination of the legal rights, educational policies and political and social issues involved in the education of ELLs along with the relevant federal and state laws and court decisions.

#### EDU 331B Teaching in a Bilingual/Bicultural Program

Examination of the various models for organization of the bilingual classr oom and the management of language choice along with m eans to evaluate these m odels. Me thods for using multicultural t hemes/students' pri or experience/teacher aides and volunteers in the classr oom. Methods for making necessary adaptations to meet the needs of Exceptional Learners in the bilingual setting. Evaluation of bilingual teaching materials.

#### EDU 331C Assessment of the Bilingual Student

Development of a variety of linguistically and cult urally appropriate ways to assess 1 anguage, academic content development and cognitive/academic learning of ELLs. Familiarization with the issues surrounding valid assessment in L1 and L2 and exploration of means for planning for ongoing/meaningful and authentic assessment to improve learning, instruction and curriculum as necessary.

# EDU 356 Curriculum and Methods for Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence Social Studies 3 credits

Based on the premise that social studies is the study of people and their environm ents, this course incorporates instructional methods, scope and sequence, and curricular designs that enhance social studies education. The course includes the development of materials and media used in the social studies.

#### EDU 357 Curriculum and Methods for Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence Science 3 credits

Science is a process of solving problems using a variety of procedures. This course offers a wide range of practical

96

November 15, 2010

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 1 credit

1 credit

methods, classroom organizational skills, and curriculum in formation and res ources which are applicable to the academic levels indicated in the course title. The course in cludes the development of a resource unit using a variety of methods, materials, and media.

#### 3 or 4 credits EDU 365 Prekindergarten and Kindergarten Education (Fieldwork)

Philosophy, organization, curricula and environments of contemporary preschool settings and kindergartens. Major emphasis on current resear ch and appropriate instructional practices with the three to five-year-old child. Includes assessment of 4 standard s for Portfolio II including Standards 2 and 9. C lassroom obs ervation included for undergraduate students. Online section offered for post-baccalaureate students.

#### **EDU 401 Student Teaching Seminar**

teaching experiences, of human rela tions concerns deriving from those Weekly group discussions of student experiences, and of certification and place ment information, with particular e mphasis on the development of Portfolio III and a professional development plan. Offered in conjunction with student teaching.

#### EDU 402 Using Children's Literature to Teach Reading

A study of children's literature as an integral part of learning and the developing of reading and language skills. Students consider genres, them es, authors, illustrators, and writing st yles, as well as strategies for selecting and presenting literature. Prerequisite: EDU 300.

# EDU 403/503 Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Early Adolescence/Adolescence II

Young adult literature across the curriculum; reading and writing assessment procedures appropriate to the content areas; interdisciplinary team approach related to reading and the language arts; critical thinking skills. Fieldwork is required. Prerequisite: EDU 303.

#### EDU 405/505 Introduction to Exceptional Learners

Historical perspectives of exceptionality, legal ram ifications, state and federal laws pertain ing to except ionality; consideration of the causes and classi fication of various types of exceptionality, and characteristics and needs of learners with particular exceptionalities, and instructional procedures and educational programming for exceptional learners including the use of assistive t echnology. Prerequisite: EDU 311. Education students are encour aged to take the course concurrently with EDU 405P/505P Practicum in Special Education.

#### EDU 405P/505P Practicum in Special Education

Optional experience taken in conjunction with EDU 405/505. Involves 30 hours of observation and participation in area schools.

#### **EDU 410 Foundations of Education**

Consideration of the historical, philo sophical and so cial foundations unde rlying e ducational goals; and the organization, political and economic aspects of public schools. Prerequisite: student teaching or permission of chair.

97

## 2 credits

### November 15, 2010

### **3 credits**

## **3 credits**

#### 1 credit

# **3 credits**

# Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## 98

Student teaching in the m iddle/secondary level stude nt's major or minor, under the direction of an experienced classroom teacher. College supervisors visit the student at least four times and guide and evaluate his/her progress

### EDU 478 Student Teaching of Music in the Middle/Secondary School

Student teaching under the direction of an experienced music teacher at the middle or secondar y level. College supervisors visit the student at least four times a nd gui de a nd evaluate his/her progr ess through individual conferences.

EDU 482 Student Teaching in Secondary School: (Subject)

12 credits

The structure of cooperat ive education programs and the role s, responsibilities and duties of participants in

the nation are studied with special emphasis on the current Wisconsin program and its future.

#### EDU 456/556 Building Relationships Between Teachers and Parents in Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, **Early Adolescence Education** 2 credits

Students will study research related to the influence of the family unit on the educative process. Consideration will be given to making parents effective r esources, involving parents in the school community, understanding diverse family units, and building communication between home and school.

# **EDU 465 Readings in Education**

through individual conferences.

Content to be arranged by instructor in consideration of student's professional needs. Permission of chair required.

## **EDU 475 Directed Work in Education**

Pursuit of a special topic or project under the direction of an instructor. Permission of chair required.

## EDU 476 Student Teaching in World Languages (EC/A)

Student teaching under the direction of one or more experienced foreign language teachers at the appropriate levels. College supervisors visit the student at least eight ti mes and guide and evaluate his/her progress through individual conferences.

## cooperative education.

#### EDU 450 Organization and Administration of Cooperative Education 2 credits

1-2 credits

## 1-2 credits

# 6 credits

6 credits

November 15, 2010

#### EDU 411/511 Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Pre K-3 3 credits

Philosophy, research, methods connected with understanding and implementing an emergent literacy reading and language arts program in grades Pre K-3. Emphasis is placed on the developmental stages of children's writing, and on language experience activities to teach the young child how to read and write. Introduction to the study and use of authentic assessment tools and procedures, working wi th the children ha ving special needs, and sti mulating parent involvement in the reading program. 15 hours of fieldwork required.

national, state and local levels. Past development and present status of vocational, technical and adult education in

## **EDU 448 Philosophy of Vocational Education**

2 credits

The philosophy, history, organization and administration of vocational, technical and a dult education on the

## EDU 485 Student Teaching of Art in Middle/Secondary School

Student teaching under the direction of an experienced art teacher at the middle or secondar y level. College supervisors visit the student at least four times a nd gui de a nd evaluate his/her progr ess through individual conferences.

## EDU 487 Student Teaching in Business Education (EA/A)

Student teaching under the direction of one or more experienced business education teachers at the secondary level. College supervisors visit the student at least eight ti mes and guide and evaluate his/her progress through individual conferences.

## EDU 489 Student Teaching in Middle School: (Subject)

Student teaching in the m iddle/secondary level stude nt's major or minor, under the direction of an experienced classroom teacher. College supervisors visit the student at least four times and guide and evaluate his/her progress through individual conferences.

## EDU 490 Student Teaching in Prekindergarten and Kindergarten

Student teaching under the direction of an experienced classroom teacher in four-and-five-y ear old kindergarten classes. A college supervisor visits the student at least four times and guides and evaluates his/her progress through individual conferences.

## EDU 493 Student Teaching in Elementary School

Student teaching under the direction of one or more experienced classroom teachers. A college supervisor visits the student at least four times and guides and evaluates his/her progress through individual conferences.

## EDU 494 Student Teaching in Middle School

Student teaching in the elementary/middle level st udent's certifiable m inor, as well as in other m iddle school subjects, under the direction of one or more experienced classroom teachers. A college supervisor visits the student at least four times and guides and evaluates his/her progress through individual conferences.

## EDU 497 Student Teaching of Art in Elementary School

Student teaching under the direction of an experience d art teacher at the elementary level. College supervisors visit the student at least four times and guide and evaluate his/her progress through individual conferences.

## **Geography Courses**

## GEO 112 sci Introductory Geoscience

The physical environment including weather, climate, composition and structure of the earth ; landforms and their development; maps and globes.

## GEO 210 Understanding the Environment

99

#### 6 credits

12 credits

6 credits

6 credits

6 credits

6 credits

# 6 credits

## 3 credits

Study of t he environment exploring natural resources and their conservation, energy transformations, ecological relationships, the impact of technological change, present and future problems, and attitudes and values inherent in environmental issues.

#### **GEO 310 World Regional Geography**

Examination of cultural factors and cha racteristics of the physical environment that determine the nature of life in major regions of the world. Em phasizes non-Western cultures, toda y's inte rconnected world, and d ifferences between developed and less developed regions. Also includes geography's role in understanding global issues.

#### **Post-baccalaureate Courses**

#### EDU 522 Celebrate Children's Literature

Overview of literature for y oung people (K-8) ad dressing historical perspectives, contem porary issues, recent publications, selection helps, resources, and the joy of reading. Hands-on acquaintance with new and recommenced children's books provides a foundation for literature-based learning. Projects focus on creative ideas for applying children's literature in educational settings.

#### EDU 470/570 Fine Arts Methods

Students apply content knowledge of the arts in de signing effective teaching and assessment strategies. Students deepen their understanding of the rela tionships am ong the arts and between the arts and other disciplines by developing integrative le arning experiences based on appropriate concept ual frameworks, applying current technology in meaningful ways, considering various populations and cultures and their values, collaborating with arts specialists, articulating connections to daily life, and designing appropriate assessments. Coursework requires the use of Livetext and formal lesson planning format.

#### **EDU 700 Diversity Among Learners**

Knowledge of the diverse student population of to day's schools. Study of the cultural, societal, economic and structural differences among families, and study of the consequences of those differences for learning and schooling of the children and yout hof such families. Consideration of instructional and motivational ad aptations for diverse learners.

#### EDU 701 Child & Adolescent Development

Introduction to the study of children a nd adolescents. Considers various aspect s of development in infancy, early childhood, middle childhood and adolescence. Study of the hist ory, culture, values, lifestyle, and contributions of minority groups, including Wisconsin Native Americans; examination of attitudes of racism, sexism, and prejudice; human relations skills and techniques; models for multicultural education.

#### EDU 703 The Exceptional Learner

Focus on the exceptional needs stude nts in the K -12 enviro nment. Exa mination of his torical event s, societal expectations, legal issues, individual i solation and curre nt activism, and in clusion regarding the education of exceptional learners. Presentation of c haracteristics and l earning needs of individuals with disabilities. Strategies

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

**3 credits** 

#### 3 credits

## 3 credits

for creating the Least Restrictive Environment including the use of assistive technology are an integral part of the course.

#### EDU 715 Seminar: Issues and Problems Affecting Education

3 credits

An exam ination of the social, moral, political, familial, economic, historic al and cultural issues influencing educational policies and practices. School reform, controversial issues, and community concerns affecting classroom decision-making and school policies Periodically offered online.

## **316 Reading Teacher License Program**

Mount Mar y College offers the 316 Reading Teach er Li cense pr ogram. To b e eligible for the 316 license, Wisconsin Departm ent of Public Instruction requir es that "y ou must hold or be eligible to hold a Wisconsin Teaching license and have two y ears of successful t eaching experience." This license involves the 18 graduate credits as described in the Mount Mary College Graduate Bulletin. The courses are: EDU 502: Teaching Reading and Language Arts in the Middle/Se condary School; EDU 5 22: Celebrat e Children's Literature; EDU 510 : Developmental Reading for Middle Childho od (Grade 3- Grade 5); EDU 511: Develop mental Reading for Early Childhood (Pre K-Grade 2); EDU 523: Reading and Learning Disabilities; EDU 559: Assessment and Instruction of Literacy Difficulties. Six undergraduat e credits may be substituted for six of the 18 graduate credits required. Students need to be admitted to the program if they wish to be licensed through Mount Mary College. Students may obtain an application and course descriptions for this pr ogram from the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement, (414) 256-1252.

## **Graduate Program in Education**

The College offers a program leading to the degree Master of Arts in Education: Professional Development. The program is open to women and men and is intended to strengthen and enrich the work of teachers at any of the following instructional levels: early childhood, elementary school, middle school, high school or technical college.

Courses within the gradua te program are open to persons enrolled in the M. A. degree program as well as to others holding a bachelor's degree. The typical graduate student is a certified teacher actively engaged in teaching.

Courses are offered during the acade mic year and during the summer. Those offered during the fall and spring terms, starting in Aug ust and January, are scheduled during the late afternoon, evening or weekend hours. Those offered in the summer make use of regular, extended or intensive summer sessions.

Program requirements and course descriptions are include d in the Education section of the Graduate Bulletin available from the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement (CEPA) or online at www.mtmary.edu.

For more information, contact the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement, (414) 256-1252.

## **Title II Reporting**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Teachers certified by the State of Wis consin may be required to pass a content test of the subjects for which

101

they are certified to teach. Wisconsin has identified specifi c Prax is II content tests for most of the certification categories in which licenses are granted in the state. Each college is required to report pass r ates on these tests to the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction each year. WDPI, in turn, reports the College 's program completer pass rates to the U.S. Dep artment of E ducation. The pass rate for all Mount Mary College program completers is 100%. Mount Mary College does not grant any waivers for r the required Praxis II test scores. The policy for exceptions to the Praxis I (PPST) requirements may be found in the Education Department's *Guide for Students*.

Approximately 93% of our program completers gained employment in education over the past five years.

## **Mathematics Major**

The mission of the Mathe matics Department reflects the Mount Mary College mission in its commitment to excellence in teaching and learning with an em phasis on critical thinking. The department promotes analytical and quantitative thinking through courses offered in its curricula and in support of other programs. The major programs are designed to prepare stu dents for successful careers requiring a strong foundation in mathematics, mathematics teaching at the secondary level, or for graduate study.

The department offers majors in mathematics and early adolescence/adolescence mathematics teaching. Minors in m athematics, mathematics for early childhood/mi ddle childh ood education and for m iddle childh ood/early adolescence education are also offered.

Students intending to major or m inor in mathematics should contact the department chair d uring the second semester of the first y ear. In order to pursue a progra m, a student must make formal application to the de partment and be approved by the department chair. Requirements for ad mission and retention are a cu mulative grade point average of 2.0 and a grade point average of 2.5 in m ajor or minor courses. Transfer students declaring a major in mathematics must complete at l east three courses at the 300 level or above in the depart ment. Transfer students declaring a minor in mathematics must complete at least two c ourses in the depart ment. A student majoring in mathematics must satisfy the assessment program of the department.

Mathematics Major Requirements: 32-36 credits; 2.0 overall GPA; 2.5 major GPA.

**Mathematics Major Course Requirements** (32-36 credits): MAT 251, 252, 261 or 325 and at least five electives selected from MAT 261, 301, 321, 325, 328, 331, 333, 343, 346, 347, 495, 496, 498.

**Mathematics Education Major (Early Adolescence/Adolescence) Requirements:** 36-38 credits; Praxis II Content Exam in mathematics; Education Department Requirements. (See the early adolescence/adolescence teacher education section for education courses and for specific core course requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction rules.)

**Mathematics Education Major (EA/A) Course Requirements** (36-48 credits): MAT 251, 252, 301, 325, 331, 333, 343, 346;; and one elective selected from MAT 203, 261, 321, 347, 495, 496 and EDU 324.

102

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

November 15, 2010

Mathematics Minor Requirements: 16-20 credits; 2.0 overall GPA; 2.5 minor GPA.

**Mathematics Minor Course Requirements** (16-20 credits): MAT 251, 252, 301 and at least two electives selected from courses beyond MAT 252.

**Mathematics Minor for Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Teacher Education Requirements:** 27 credits; Education Department Requirement (See the teacher education section for education courses and for specific cor e course requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction rules.)

Mathematics Minor for MC/EA Teacher Education Course Requirements (27 Credits): MAT 111, MAT 190, MAT 203, MAT 204, MAT 216, MAT 251, and EDU 315.

## **Mathematics Courses**

### MAT 052 Basic Math Skills

Review of basic arithmetic operations involving whole numbers, integers, fractions, decimals, percent; introduction to ratio and proportion. This course does not meet the college mathematics competency requirement.

### MAT 101 Prealgebra

Topics include review of basic skills; solving equations and practical applications involving whole numbers, integers, fractions, decimals, percents, ratio, proportion, and measurement; graphing linear equations. May not be counted towards a major. Enrollment in this course is determined by the mathematics placement test or a "P" in MAT 052. A grade of "C" or better is required to meet the college mathematics competency requirement.

### MAT 103 cm Quantitative Reasoning

This surve y course combines critical thinking and mathematical skills applic able to pe rsonal and social issues. Topics include logic and problem solving; number sense and estimation; statistical interpretation and basic probability; interpreting mathematical models; and further applications to the use of mathematics in politics and business. Enrollment in this course is determined by the mathematics placement test. A grade of "C" or better is required to meet the college mathematics competency requirement.

## MAT 105 cm Introductory Algebra

Study of line ar and quadratic equations , linear ineq ualities, abso lute value equations; sy stems of equations and inequalities; factoring techniques; introduction to linear, qua dratic, polynomial, rational, and radical funct ions and their graphs. A graphing calculator is required. Prerequi site: "C" or better in MAT 101, MAT 103, or a qualif ying score on the mathematics placement test.

### MAT 111 cm College Algebra

Topics include a review of fundam ental concepts of al gebra; algebraic equations and inequalities; sy stem of equations and inequalities; functions and their graphs, pol ynomial, rationa l, exponential, and logarith mic;

103

### 3 credits

**3 credits** 

1 credit

## 4 credits

composition, inverses and combinations of functions; and conic sections. A graphing calculator is required. Prerequisite: MAT105 or a qualifying score on the mathematics placement test.

#### MAT 190 cm Pre-Calculus Mathematics

Relations and functions; sy stems of linear and nonli near equations and inequalities, pol ynomial, rational, exponential, logarithmic and trigonom etric functions a nd their graphs, trigonom etric id entities and equations, complex numbers and conic sections. A graphin g calculator is required. Pr erequisite: MAT 111 or d epartment approval.

#### MAT 201 cm Mathematics for Early Childhood, Elementary and Middle School I 4 credits

Study of problem solving, basic concepts of sets, numeration systems, number theory, and the basic oper ations of whole numbers and rational numbers and their properties. Laboratory work and research-based methods of teaching course topics are included. Prerequisite: MAT105, and early childhood/elementary or elementary/middle education major, or departmental approval.

#### MAT 202 cm Mathematics for Early Childhood, Elementary and Middle School II

## 4 credits

4 credits

Study of ratio and pr oportion, statistics, probabilit y, geometry and m easurement. Laboratory work and researchbased methods of teaching course topics are included. Prerequisite: MAT 201 or departmental approval.

#### MAT 203 cm Concepts of Geometry

Intuitive and informal stu dy of Euclidean geo metry; historical and panoramic intr oduction to geom etric ideas involving both the plane and space incl uding symmetry and re lationships in pol ygons and pol yhedra, topics in motion geo metry, similarity and measu rement; technology is used to enhance the inv estigative approach in the course. Prerequisite: MAT 190 or departmental approval.

### MAT 204 cm Concepts of Mathematics

Problem solving and the historical evolution of m athematical thinking u nderlie the entire course. Topics explore mathematics as patterns in num ber theory, mathematical infinity in set theory, mathematical symmetry in groups and rings, and counting processes in probability. Prerequisite: MAT 190 or departmental approval.

### MAT 208 cm Statistical Literacy

Emphasizes statistical literacy and stat istical thinking. From the *Guidelines for Assessment and Instruction in Statistics Education* (GAISE) *College Report*, statistical literacy has been defined as knowing what statistical terms and sy mbols mean, being able to read statistical gr aphs, and understanding fundam ental ideas of statistics. Statistical thinking has be en described as understanding the need for data, the i mportance of data production, and the concept of variability (ASA, 2005). The course serv es Business Co mmunications, Dietetics, and any ot her major seeking a basic understanding of statistics. Prerequisite MAT105 or departmental approval. Formerly MAT 207.

104

## 3 credits

4 credits

## 4 credits

November 15, 2010

## **MAT 216 cm Elementary Statistics**

Elementary statistical topics: descriptive measures, probability and probability distributions, testing hypotheses, estimation, sampling, correlation and regression, chi-square. Prerequisite: MAT 111 or department approval.

## MAT 251 cm Calculus I

Review of precalculus concepts; study of limits and continuity of functions, the derivative and its applications, the indefinite integral. A graphing calculator is required. Prerequisite: MAT 190 or department approval.

## MAT 252 Calculus II

Continuation of MAT 251. Stud y of t he definite integral a nd its applications; infinite series; an introdu ction to differential equations. A graphing calculator is required. Prerequisite: MAT 251.

## **MAT 261 Calculus III**

Continuation of MAT 252. Study of vectors, functions of many variables, partial differentiation, m ultiple integration, topics in vector calculus. Prerequisite: MAT 252.

## **MAT 301 Fundamental Concepts of Higher Mathematics**

Definitions and nature of mathematics, mathematical logic and nature of proof, evolution of mathematical thought, role of m athematics in intellectual development, set theory, num ber sy stems of mathematics, countable and uncountable sets and relations. Prerequisite: MAT 251 or departmental approval.

## **MAT 321 Differential Equations**

Study of m ethods for solv ing first and sim ple higher order differential equations, linear equations with constant coefficients, solution of linear systems, introduction of the Laplace transform, approximation methods, applications of differential equations, partial differential equations. Prerequisite: MAT 251.

## **MAT 325 Discrete Mathematics**

A survey of discrete mathematics will be studied. T opics may include graph t heory, cryptology, combinatorics, enumeration, and coding theory. Prerequisite: MAT 301.

## **MAT 328 Numerical Analysis**

Study of the development and evaluation of m ethods for computing required numerical data. Topics include numerical solution of equations, finite differences, sums and series, interpolation and approximations, numerical differentiation and integration. Prerequisite: MAT 252 and 301 or department approval.

## MAT 331 Abstract Algebra

Properties of sets, relations, mappings; introduction and postulational approach to certain basic structures: groups, rings, integr al domains, fields, fi eld extensions; equivalence relati ons, iso morphisms and hom omorphisms. Prerequisite: MAT 252 and 301 or departmental approval.

105

## MAT 333 Linear Algebra

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

# 4 credits

4 credits

# 4 credits

4 credits

## 4 credits

4 credits

### 4 credits

### 4 credits

November 15, 2010

## 4 credits

Systems of equations and m atrices, determinants, fin ite dim ensional vector spaces, linear transformations, eigenvalues and eigenvectors, num erical aspects an d appli cations of linear algebra. Prerequisite: MAT 252 or departmental approval.

## MAT 343 Modern Geometry

An axiomati c and transf ormational study of Euclidean ge ometry and its relation to ot her geo metries: finite, projective, and non-Euclidean. Prerequisite: MAT 252 or departmental approval.

## MAT 346 Introduction to Probability and Statistics

Study of the organization and analysis of data, elemen tary probability, permutations and combinations, random variables, expectation, probability distributions, sampling, testing hypotheses. Prerequisite: MAT 252 or departmental approval.

## MAT 347 Elementary Number Theory

Properties of integers, divisibility, Euclidean algorithm and its consequences, primes, arithmetic functions, theory of congruences, numbers in other bases, primitive roots. Prerequisite: MAT 252 or departmental approval.

## **MAT 495 Topics in Mathematics**

Subjects such as topolo gy, history of mathematics, philoso phy of mathematics, applications, m odeling, discrete mathematics, or selected topics in mathematics not available in other courses. Prer equisite: MAT 261 or departmental approval.

## MAT 496 Independent Study

Individual investigations of topics or problems in mathematics not previously encountered. Prerequisite: MAT 261 or departmental approval.

## MAT 498 Internship

Enhancement of the educational experi ence through placem ent with a cooperating agenc y, business, or i ndustry. The nature of the assign ment, type of experience, num ber of credits and evaluation procedure to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the supervis or and the academic adviser. Prer equisite: departmental approval.

# Health and Sciences Division

The Health and Sciences Division unites the departments of Dietetics, Occupational Therapy, Physical Education and Dance, and the Sciences. In addition, the division supports the interdisciplinary Environmental Studies Minor as well as the Radiologic Technology Major and the Diagnostic Medical Sonography Major that are offered in partnership between Mount Mary College and area hospitals.

106

### 4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

## 4 credits

2-4 credits

2-4 credits

## Name la de 004

The Health and Sciences Division is committed to student-centered learning which is realized through its three core student experiences: collaborating, exploring and putting principles into practice.

### **Dietetics**

The Dietetics Department provides a Coordinated Program in Dietetics (CP) that is currently granted accreditation by the Commission on Accreditation for Dietetic Education of the American Dietetic Association. This is a specialized accrediting body recognized by the Council on Higher Education and the United States Department of Education. Dietetic courses combine classroom theory with supervised practice in the more than 50 hospitals, extended care facilities, health care agencies and businesses participating in the program. No fifth year internship is required. Students must maintain a grade point average of 2.75 in those courses required for the major with a minimum grade of "C" in all major courses. No more than two courses required for the major may be retaken to obtain a "C" grade.

Students apply for admission to the program in the first semester of the sophomore year and are required to provide proof of a physical examination during the junior and senior years. Students are also required to complete 160 hours of dietetic related work experience prior to beginning the junior year of the program. A maximum of 18 students are admitted for each of the junior and senior years. Supervised practice affiliation fees are assessed.

The Coordinated Program is also open to those students with previous bachelor's degrees. The student can obtain a second degree or complete the program for certification. A minimum of 44 credits is required to complete the program.

Upon satisfactory completion of the academic requirements including a comprehensive exam, the student obtains a verification statement making her eligible to take the national examination to become a Registered Dietitian and for active membership in The American Dietetic Association. Registered dietitians are eligible for certification in the State of Wisconsin.

Pre-college competencies include high school chemistry, basic computer usage skills and three units high school preparatory math including algebra and plane geometry.

**Dietetics Major Requirements:** 94 credits; 2.75 GPA in the major; minimum grade of "C" in courses for the major; proof of physical exam in junior and senior years; fieldwork.

**Dietetics Major Course Requirements** (91Credits): SOC 101; PSY 103; BIO 103, 212, 325; CHE 113, 206; MAT 208; BUS 301 and 362; DTS 152, 190, 201, 202, 250, 340, 354, 362, 364, 463, 464, 465, 469, 470, and 475.

## **Dietetics Courses**

#### **DTS 152 The Profession of Dietetics**

Overview of the professional practice of registered dietitians in community nutrition, medical nutrition therapy, food and nutrition management, business, consultation, education, research and private practice. Focus on education through the Coordinated Program in Dietetics. Lectures, discussions and many guest speakers. Required of all dietetics majors. No prerequisites.

#### **DTS 190 Food Preparation and Management**

Introduction to food preparation for the home setting stressing use of recipes, measurements, standard techniques, skills, safety and aesthetics. Course culminates in a festive class event. Lecture and laboratory. Some off campus travel. No prerequisites. Fee.

107

### 1 credit

#### **DTS 201 Food Science**

Fundamental principles and practices of food preparation are approached through the study of food composition, physical and chemical interactions and treatment in preparations. Comprehensive studies of food selection and preparation: evaluation of prepared products. Recipe modification; food demonstrations. Lecture and Laboratory. Fee. Prerequisites: DTS 190, CHE 206.

#### **DTS 202 Foodservice Sanitation and Safety**

Completion of the National Restaurant Association SERVSAFE Certification Program. Prerequisite DTS 190.

### **DTS 250 Nutrition Principles**

The scientific basis of a healthy diet emphasizing personalized application of theory through discussion, case studies and use of nutrient analysis software. Content includes the most recent dietary guidelines, the energyyielding nutrients, regulation of digestion and absorption, metabolism, energy balance, vitamins and minerals. New research is highlighted throughout the course. Prerequisites: DTS 190; CHE 206; BIO 212. Fee.

### **DTS 340 Dietetic Education & Counseling Strategies**

The study of the theory and skills in communication, education and counseling needed by all dietetics practitioners. Observational and teaching experience in multicultural settings is included as well as opportunities for learning about other cultures. (Fieldwork takes place outside of class hours, TBA) Prerequisites: DTS 201; 250; PSY 103.

## **DTS 354 Applied Nutrition**

Application of normal nutrition concepts to life cycle stages, emphasizing disease prevention and health promotion. Introduction of nutrition screening and assessment techniques. (Fieldwork outside of class time TBA). Prerequisite: DTS 250.

### **DTS 362 Quantity Food Procurement and Production**

Theory and application in quantity food preparation and procurement; food merchandising; the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) system and use of the menu as the "hub" of quantity food procurement and production. Prerequisites: DTS 201, 250; BUS 362. Fee.

## **DTS 364 Medical Nutrition Therapy I**

Introduction to the study of the relationship of medical nutrition therapy to pathophysiological states; clinical application of educational techniques in individual counseling and group interaction in an acute care setting. Prerequisites: Completion of self directed medical terminology unit with passage of exam prior to course entry. DTS 340, 354; CHE 206; BIO 212. Fee.

## **DTS 463 Food and Nutrition Systems Management**

Management of foodservice operations and nutrition services including leadership, finance, quality control, human resources, negotiation, factors affecting foodservice design and equipment selection, and disaster preparedness. Inservice education programs and field experiences are conducted by student dietitians at local institutions. Extended hours outside of scheduled class hours are required at times to gain managerial experience in catering and group feeding. Prerequisites: DTS 340 and 362.

## **DTS 464 Medical Nutrition Therapy II**

Continuation of the in-depth study of the relationship of medical nutrition therapy to increasingly complex pathophysiological states; self-direction and prioritizing of time is stressed. Introduction to outcomes research. Prerequisites: DTS 364. Fee.

## DTS 465 (g) Community Nutrition

108

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

## 3 credits

1 credit

4 credits

## 3 credits

# 4 credits

**3 credits** 

## 4 credits

# 4 credits

## 5 credits

**Graduate Program in Dietetics** 

The Graduate Program in Dietetics, which is open to men and women, is an extension of an area in which the College has experience and credibility. The mission of the Graduate Program in Dietetics is to strengthen the

109

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Exercise physiology courses integrate basic concepts and relevant scientific information for understanding nutrition, energy transfer, and exercise training over two semesters. Classes cover exercise physiology, uniting the topics of physical conditioning, sports nutrition, body composition, weight control, and more. A laboratory component provides a hands-on practical aspect to the information. Note: students who complete: (a) Exercise Physiology I may apply one of the credits, and (b) both exercise physiology courses may apply three of the credits toward the required eight nutritional sciences credits.

# DTS 330/530 Exercise Physiology I

Includes nutrition as the base for human performance, energy for physical activity, and systems of energy delivery and utilization. Prerequisite: BIO 212 or equivalent, DTS 250 strongly recommended.

# DTS 430/630 Exercise Physiology II

**3 credits** Includes enhancement of energy capacity, exercise performance and environmental stress, body composition, energy balance and weight control, and exercise for successful aging and disease prevention. Prerequisite: DTS 330/530 or equivalent.

# **DTS 469 Seminar in Dietetic Practice**

Prerequisite: DTS 340, DTS 354.

The issues of practicum placements and evaluation, conferences and sharing of supervised practice experiences will be included. Preparation for the Dietetic Competency Examination and the Registration Examination; also included are professional development, the interviewing and employment process, and career directions for the profession. Professional portfolio preparation. Didactic complement to DTS 475. Prerequisites: DTS 463, 464 and 465.

Introduction to community nutrition assessment, program planning, implementation and evaluation from an epidemiologic approach. Impact of policy, legislation and advocacy on availability of programs, services and resources addressing food security, disease prevention, health promotion and nutritional status. Application of skills

in relating to diverse populations through participation in education and other activities in the community.

# **DTS 470 Community Nutrition Research**

Interpret and evaluate current nutrition research using basic principles of epidemiology and statistics. Design and conduct a research project. Analyze data and report results. Prerequisites: DTS 465.

# **DTS 475 Supervised Practice in Dietetics**

Refinement of skills and demonstration of self-directed independence while assuming the role of a dietetic professional in medical nutrition therapy, foodservice management and community/consumer nutrition. Supervised practice sites may include: hospitals, nursing homes, schools, clinics, and a wide variety of community and alternative opportunities for dietitians. Four forty-hour weeks are required throughout the semester. Additional costs may be incurred for transportation, parking and housing. Prerequisites: DTS 463, 464, 465.

# **Exercise Physiology**

# DTS 450/650 Nutrition for Fitness & Sport

2 credits Addresses sports nutrition, specifically the role of nutrition as it relates to a person's current physical state, and goals for fitness and health and/or exercise performance. Prerequisites: DTS 354 or equivalent, and DTS 430/630 or equivalent.

### 2 credits

# 3 credits

12 credits

academic and professional background of dietetic practitioners so that they may excel as leaders and educators. Courses are designed to meet varying needs and interests.

Courses are offered during evening and weekend hours to permit employed students to attend. Classes are scheduled for the College's regular terms starting in August and January, and for an extended summer term.

Program requirements and course descriptions are included in the Graduate Bulletin, available from the Mount Mary College Graduate Admission Office. For more information, contact the Center for Educational and Professional Advancement, (414-256-1252) Mount Mary College, 2900 N. Menomonee River Parkway, Milwaukee, WI 53222-4597.

#### **Occupational Therapy**

Occupational therapy is a health profession that focuses on redesigning daily occupations to maximize independence in living. Its practitioners provide services to individuals and populations of all ages who have physical, developmental and psychosocial deficits. The occupational therapy curriculum provides professional preparation integrated with the liberal arts. The program emphasizes the biological, behavioral and social sciences. Occupational therapy students engage in experiential learning in laboratory settings both on campus and in the professional practice environment.

Occupational therapy is a combined BS/MS program. Students complete a four-year undergraduate program that focuses on individual treatment and then participate in a college arranged fieldwork experience for six months, putting their knowledge into practice. Concurrent with fieldwork, students complete one year of graduate study online that focuses on using theoretical and clinical knowledge as the basis for higher levels of inquiry and critical thinking about occupational therapy, health care systems, and the development of new roles and practice for occupational therapy. After five years, students who graduate in the combined BS/MS program are eligible for the National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy (NBCOT) examination.

The mission of the occupational therapy program is to provide a professional education in occupational therapy resulting in skilled hands-on practitioners who are client-centered and occupation-centered in their approach to the profession. The department is committed to educate students who can grow in reflective clinical reasoning, evidence-based practice and lifelong learning. The department strives to offer a foundation in ethical and moral principles that will enable students to be advocates for clients within health and social systems. The department faculty guide students in graduate studies to deepen the use of theoretical and clinical knowledge as the basis for higher levels of inquiry and critical thinking about their practice.

The occupational therapy curriculum is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Occupational Therapy Education (ACOTE), located at the American Occupational Therapy Association (AOTA), 4720 Montgomery Lane, P.O. Box 31220, Bethesda, Maryland 20824-1220, (301) 652-2682 (www.aota.org). The program has maintained full accreditation since its inception in 1941.

Admission to the Occupational Therapy Department is based upon academic preparation and personal skills appropriate to the demands of the occupational therapy profession. The admission policy specifies minimum criteria and procedures used to determine the eligibility of a candidate. The cumulative grade point for admission is no less than 3.0. The department does not discriminate against any applicant because of race, religion, age, ethnic origin or disability. Reasonable accommodations will be used for admission of students with health issues that may affect performance of essential job functions in occupational therapy. Additional admission, retention and graduation criteria are stated in the Occupational Therapy Program Handbook.

110 Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Occupational Therapy Major Requirements: 53 Credits; 3.0 GPA Overall; Fieldwork.

Occupational Therapy Major Course Requirements (BS component of the BS/MS program: (53 Credits) OCT 101, 201, 330, 332, 334, 336, 338 or PSY 325, 340, 345, 351, 353, 355, 450, 455, 462, 463, 464, 465, 475, 476, 477; BIO 103, 211, 212; PSY 103, 214; SYM 102.

# **Occupational Therapy Courses**

**OCT 101 Orientation to Occupational Therapy** 

Introduction to the theoretical and philosophical origins, practice areas, and client populations of occupational therapy.

### **OCT 201 Medical Terminology**

Overview of medical terminology used in health care.

### **OCT 330 Therapeutic Occupations**

An approach to intervention through meaningful occupation as the foundation of occupational therapy. Emphasis on activity analysis and adaptation. Exposure to diversified activities of work, play and self-care for intervention. Prerequisites: admission to the Occupational Therapy Department.

#### **OCT 332 Theoretical Principles**

Overview of core theoretical approaches in occupational therapy. Introduction to basic principles of evaluation, intervention planning and documentation with emphasis on normal lifespan development, occupation, and clientcentered reasoning. Prerequisites: PSY 214; admission to the Occupational Therapy Department. Laboratory fee required.

#### **OCT 334 Applied Kinesiology**

Analysis of the structure and function of bones, nerves, muscles, and joints. Introduction to arthrokinematics, biomechanics, and manual palpation skills. Includes common injuries to various anatomical structures. Prerequisites: BIO 211, OCT 332, 336.

# **OCT 336 Neuroscience for Rehabilitation**

Exploration of neurological foundations including neuroanatomy and neurophysiology of the human nervous system as related to occupational therapy practice. Focus on problem-based learning methods to explore neurological pathologies encountered in occupational therapy. Prerequisites: admission to the Occupational Therapy Department, BIO 211, 212.

# **OCT 338 Psychosocial Conditions**

Examination of the psychosocial conditions prevalent in occupational therapy practice, with an emphasis on the impact of conditions on occupational performance. Prerequisites: admission to the Occupational Therapy Department, PSY 103.

#### **OCT 340 Therapeutic Skills**

Experiential study of interpersonal and professional theory and skills. Emphasis on development of therapeutic use of self with individuals and groups as part of the therapy process, multicultural awareness, and professional identity and behaviors. Prerequisite: admission to the Occupational Therapy Department.

111

#### **OCT 345 Clinical Reasoning Level I Fieldwork**

# 2 credits

# 1 credit

# 1 credit

November 15, 2010

1 credit

4 credits

4 credits

1 credit

# 2 credits

Application of theory, evaluation, intervention planning and clinical reasoning skills. Emphasis on therapeutic use of self and meaningful occupation with clients in a psychosocial and cognitive context. Includes 19 hours in a clinic. Prerequisites: OCT 332, 340.

#### **OCT 351 Clinical Specialties Psychosocial Practice**

Examination of current theory and evidenced-based practice of psychosocial occupational therapy within a holistic context. Focus on psychosocial evaluation, treatment techniques and approaches across the lifespan. Includes cognitive, affective, anxiety, personality, substance use and thought disorders. Prerequisites: OCT 332, 338.

#### **OCT 353 Clinical Specialties: Pediatrics**

Application of occupational therapy intervention with a pediatric population. Includes working with families and schools to address engagement and participation in activities of daily living, play and education. Prerequisite: OCT 332

#### **OCT 355 Clinical Specialties: Gerontology**

Application of occupational therapy intervention with a geriatric population. Includes impact of aging and chronic illness on areas of occupation, emphasizing adaptations to prevent injury, enhance participation and promote quality of life. Prerequisite: OCT 332.

#### **OCT 450 Rehabilitation Skills**

Focus on functional problem solving skills related to occupational therapy intervention of persons with physical disabilities. Includes techniques in activities of daily living, body mechanics, analysis of assistive equipment, transfers and wheelchair positioning. Includes consideration of biological, psychological and socio-cultural aspects and one's occupational profile. Prerequisite: OCT 463.

#### **OCT 455 Clinical Problem Solving Level I Fieldwork**

Application of evaluation, treatment planning, and clinical problem solving skills. Emphasis on assisting the client to engage in occupations to support participation in daily life activities within rehabilitative and habilitative contexts. Includes 40 hours in a clinic. Prerequisites: OCT 463, 464.

#### **OCT 462 Clinical Specialties: Physical Medicine**

Examination of current theory and practice of occupational therapy in general medicine. Includes pathophysiology of the major body systems. Evaluation and intervention skills for various general medicine diagnoses, including burns, cardiac, cancer, pulmonary disorders and HIV. Universal precautions and blood-borne pathogens training fulfills clinic requirements. Application of theory reinforced through clinical lectures. Prerequisites: OCT 332, 334.

#### **OCT 463 Clinical Specialties: Orthopedics**

Examination of current theory and evidence-based practice of occupational therapy in orthopedic settings. Evaluation and intervention techniques including arthritis, fractures, joint replacement, and nerve injuries. Includes range of motion and manual muscle testing skills. Laboratory sessions on hand therapy and splinting skills. Prerequisites: OCT 334. Laboratory fee required.

#### **OCT 464 Clinical Specialties: Neuroconcepts**

Examination of current theory and evidence-based practice in occupational therapy for neurological conditions. Emphasis on neuropathology and its effect on occupational performance. Introduction to occupational therapy evaluation and treatment for conditions including Parkinson's, cerebrovascular accident, multiple sclerosis, and spinal cord injury. Focus on beginning neurorehabilitation techniques. Prerequisite: OCT 334.

112

#### **OCT 465 Clinical Specialties: Neurorehabilitation**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 4 credits

# 2 credits

#### 2 credits

November 15, 2010

### 2 credits

4 credits

2 credits

2 credits

# 2 credits

Examination of current occupational therapy neurorehabilitation theories and techniques. Emphasis on applying evaluation and intervention skills. Laboratory sessions with hands-on application of advanced treatment techniques including neurodevelopmental treatment, proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation, neurophysiological and Brunnstrom theories. Prerequisite: OCT 464.

#### OCT 475 (g) Professional Ethics and Practice

Examination of occupational therapy ethical guidelines and aspects of professional practice with application to clinical experiences, ethical dilemmas, professional responsibilities and regulation. Includes development of professional identity, awareness of a world view and its effect on practice, advocacy, consultation and collaboration with health care providers. Prerequisite: OCT 345.

#### **OCT 476 Community Practice**

Examination of occupational therapy community practice. Includes bio-medical and socio-political service delivery models. Focus on needs assessment including health priorities, development of intervention programs, sources of funding and legal and ethical issues. Prerequisites: OCT 345, 351.

#### **OCT 477 Health Care Management and Research**

Overview of management of occupational therapy services including current health care trends, departmental planning, supervision, reimbursement, regulatory issues and program evaluation. Analysis of evidenced based practice including research methodology, evaluation of professional literature and exposure to statistics. Prerequisites: OCT 332, 345.

### **OCT 480 Advanced Treatment: Gerontology**

Analysis of occupational therapy theory and intervention related to services for a geriatric population. Focus on differentiating services by contexts and settings, emphasizing consultation with families and caregivers. Prerequisite: OCT 355.

# **OCT 482 Advanced Treatment: Pediatrics**

Analysis of occupational therapy theory and intervention addressing current pediatric problems. Focus on engagement in occupation to support participation in a variety of performance skills and patterns. Includes family, early childhood, hospital, outpatient, early intervention, school intervention and consultation. Prerequisite: OCT 353.

# **OCT 484 Advanced Treatment: Work Rehabilitation**

Analysis of occupational therapy theory and techniques specific to clients in work-injury rehabilitation. Includes work performance and work site assessments, work conditioning, and ergonomics. Prerequisites: 334, 463.

# **OCT 486 Advanced Treatment: Hand Rehabilitation**

Analysis of occupational therapy theory and treatment of upper extremity dysfunctions. Focus on nerve, bone, muscle, vascular, and tissue injuries and the occupational therapist's role in evaluation and intervention. Includes fabrication of upper extremity splints and advanced splinting techniques. Prerequisite: OCT 463. Laboratory fee required.

# **OCT 496 Independent Study**

Opportunity to pursue independent study of special interest to student under direction of a faculty advisor. Prerequisites: OCT 332, 345 and consent of chairperson. May be repeated for credit.

# **Fieldwork for Occupational Therapy Majors**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

# 2 credits

# 2 credits

# 2 credits

### 1-3 credits

# 113

# 2 credits

# 4 credits

# 2 credits

Fieldwork experiences provide an opportunity for the student to apply educational background to clinical practice. The department agrees to recommend for placement in the clinical education program, only those students who have completed all necessary requirements for field experience prior to assignment. Students will be assigned fieldwork with their knowledge and consent.

The department and affiliated centers do not discriminate against any students because of race, religion, age, ethnic origin or disability. Reasonable accommodation will be used for students with health issues that may affect performance of essential job functions in occupational therapy. Clinical facilities require that students provide evidence of their health status in order to protect the health of clients and employees. The student is responsible for obtaining the required tests and immunizations and for providing evidence of health status as requested. Clinical facilities require a criminal background check to determine if there is a potential danger to clients. A felony conviction may prohibit a student from completing required Level I or II fieldwork in some settings. Additional fieldwork guidelines are stated in the Occupational Therapy Department Handbook.

#### Level I Fieldwork

Supervised experiential learning in an approved community or medical facility under professional direction. Designed to provide application of occupational therapy theory and techniques from classroom to clinical setting. Level I fieldwork completed during OCT 345 (1 credit) and OCT 455 (2 credits).

1-2 credits

6 credits

#### Level II Fieldwork

Supervised experiential learning which provides an opportunity for analysis, synthesis, and application of all educational components to the reality of occupational therapy practice. A student is required to complete a minimum of the equivalent of 24 weeks, full time for Level II fieldwork. Fieldwork is completed in an approved setting on a full time or part time basis, but may not be less than half time. Level II fieldwork is completed during OCT 598 and students will be charged graduate tuition. Prerequisites: OCT 345, 455. Additional information regarding Level II fieldwork found in Occupational Therapy Program Handbook.

# Master of Science Component of the BS/MS Program in Occupational Therapy

The Master of Science program component focuses on using theoretical and clinical knowledge as the basis for higher levels of inquiry and critical thinking about occupational therapy. Students are admitted to the master's program during the last semester of their undergraduate program. All applicants who have successfully completed their Bachelor of Science degree in Occupational Therapy at Mount Mary College will be accepted to the Master of Science program. Courses required for the MS portion of the BS/MS program include:

OCT 598 Level II Fieldwork	6 credits
OCT 700 Perspectives on Occupation	3 credits
OCT 710 Research in Occupational Therapy	3 credits
OCT 720 Occupational Therapy Theory & Practice	3 credits
OCT 722 Issues and Problems Affecting Health Care	3 credits
OCT 724 Multicultural Health Care	3 credits
OCT 734 Health Care Leadership	3 credits
OCT 790 Research Seminar	3 credits
OCT 795 Project/Thesis 3	credits

#### **Professional Development via Online Learning**

Courses at the 700 level are offered in eight week terms and are completed online. Students attend two weekend residency experiences during their program, including the residency at which they present their project or

thesis. Additional program information may be found in the Mount Mary College Graduate Bulletin and the Occupational Therapy Program Handbook.

Students submit weekly written reflections and discussions on assigned readings. Students complete work at any time or location. Students need to be self-directed and take initiative to ask questions and collaborate with others. Students who do not have basic keyboarding skills or ability to access the Internet will need to plan additional time to acquire these skills.

#### **Certification Exam**

The National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy (NBCOT), 12 S. Summit Avenue, Suite 100, Gaithersburg, MD 20877-4150, (301) 990-7979, develops the examination to certify the attainment of an entrylevel knowledge base for practice. In order to be eligible to take the National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy exam, the student must graduate with a combined Bachelor of Science/Master of Science degree in Occupational Therapy, meet all the requirements of the college curriculum and successfully complete all fieldwork requirements of the college. The student is responsible for pursuing certification through the National Board for Certification of Occupational Therapy. All fieldwork must be completed within two years of completion of the program. A felony conviction may affect a graduate's ability to sit for the NBCOT certification exam.

#### License to Practice as an Occupational Therapist

Each state has laws describing the process for obtaining a license to practice as an occupational therapist. A student must have either a permanent or temporary license before beginning a job as a therapist. The students are responsible for acquiring their own license to practice. In all existing laws, the primary criterion for obtaining a license is passing the National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy (NBCOT) examination, but the NBCOT certification is not sufficient alone to practice in most states. When a felony or illness is considered a potential danger to the public, an applicant may be reviewed by the State Licensing Board to assure that the applicant is qualified to practice. A felony conviction may affect a graduate's ability to obtain a license to practice.

#### **Physical Education and Dance**

The Physical Education and Dance Department considers physical fitness to be a vital part of college life. Physical activity enhances academic concentration, relieves stress and fatigue, increases physical fitness, and promotes an individual sense of empowerment and total well-being. The Physical Education and Dance Department classes promote balance in the busy college student's life and focus on personal growth, self assessments, and strategies to initiate healthy lifestyle changes, thus, creating harmony for the body, mind, and spirit.

**Dance:** Many dance classes fulfill the fine arts core requirement. The Dance Association is a noncredit organization open to all students, faculty, alumni and staff who would like to participate in movement workshops, choreography, and performance in an all-college dance concert.

**Fitness:** Elective credits may be obtained from health, fitness, and sport classes. Fitness classes offer a variety of personal workouts and individualized programs and provide opportunities to develop a lifetime sport or fitness program. Participation in the Fitness Center is free for current students, faculty, and staff. Alumnae and community women may register to participate for a minimal fee.

**Professional Preparation:** Although there is no major or minor degree program, student preparation leading to job opportunities includes certification training for CPR, First Aid, Lifeguards, Fitness Assistants, and Aerobics Instructors. Methods classes for Teaching Health and Physical Education in Early Childhood, Middle Childhood, and Early Adolescence also help prepare the Elementary Education Teacher.

115

#### Facilities: Bloechl Recreation Center: Gymnasium and Fitness Center. Caroline Hall: Gymnasium/Movement Studios and Swimming Pool. Soccer Fields.

**Athletics:** Elective credits may be obtained for participation on an intercollegiate sports team. Mount Mary College belongs to the National Collegiate Athletic Association Division III Program. Intercollegiate sport teams include soccer, tennis, volleyball, basketball, cross country and softball.

# **Lifetime Sports**

# PED 200 Introduction to Self Defense for Women

Designed specifically for the constructive empowerment of women. Practice mental awareness and physical self defense techniques.

# PED 201 Basic Self Defense for Women

# PED 207 Beginning Golf (One quarter)

Fundamentals of the basic swing and use of various clubs. Golf etiquette, rules, and practical experience on golf course

# PED 209 Beginning Tennis (One quarter)

Fundamentals of tennis, knowledge of rules and mini-tournaments.

# PED 210 Bowling (One quarter)

Instruction, basic techniques, scoring, and bowling; in-class fee: for off- campus bowling lanes.

# PED 211 Beginning Volleyball (One quarter)

Fundamentals of the basic skills of set, pass, spike and serve. Rules interpretation, team play, competition, doubles and triples play.

#### **Competitive Sports Courses** PED 342-352

0-1 credit Meets 4:30-6:00 p.m. daily during sport season. Advanced training in techniques through participation in an intercollegiate competitive sports program. Enrollment by instructor's consent. Sport seasons vary in length. Contact Athletic Director for additional information.

Competitive Volleyball Aug -Oct 342

512	competitive voneyoun	1 Iug. 001.
346	Competitive Softball	JanMay
348	Competitive Tennis	Aug Oct.
350	Competitive Basketball	OctDec.
351	Competitive Basketball	JanMar.
352	Competitive Soccer	AugOct.

# **Strength Training Courses**

# **PED 218 Cross-Training**

Instruction and participation in cross training programs for developing fitness. Concepts explored include learning to select different exercise and sport activities to complement one another in meeting your fitness objectives; varying the mode, intensity, frequency, and duration of exercises to achieve desired results. A variety of aerobic activities, weight training and sport activities. Explore off-season sport conditioning. Three-credit participants will meet a third class period per week (TBA) and/or complete a one credit project with approval of instructor.

116

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 2-3 credits

2 credits

# Continuation of skill development and leadership emphasis. Prerequisite: PED 200 or consent Instructor

1 credit

1 credit

1 credit

# 1 credit

Prerequisite: Previous or current participation on a competitive sports team, or interest in advanced conditioning techniques.

# PED 229 Strength Training for Beginners

A basic weight training class using the Magnum Fitness machines in the Fitness Center. Learn how to use various machines safely and effectively to establish an individual program to tone, slim, and strengthen muscles to accomplish your own personal goals.

# PED 230 Cardio-Aerobic Strength Training I

Features participation and instruction in programs using cardio equipment for weight control, cardiovascularendurance, rehabilitation, strength, and toning. Emphasis is on participating in the Sci-Fit, "Quick Fit" programs using heart-rate monitors and toning with hand-weights.

# PED 231 Cardio-Aerobic Strength Training II

Exploration of various methods and techniques of weight training for toning, conditioning, or weight management. Continuation of individualized programs with leadership emphasis. Prerequisite: PED 230 or equivalent.

# PED 232 Weight Training for Special Needs

Instruction in use of weight room exercise machines for physically challenged students, or individuals continuing injury rehabilitation programs, or for students challenged with an extreme underweight or overweight situation. Basic weight training techniques and principles will be introduced and applied toward specific needs. Individual sessions may be arranged to fit your class schedule.

### PED 330 Wellness and Strength Training

Assessment of body composition, flexibility, cardio-respiratory and muscular endurance. Variety of aerobic activities and the use of aerobic weight machines for toning and monitoring weight loss. Instruction in use of treadmill, EFX, exercise bikes and other equipment, participation in wellness concepts and stress reduction techniques.

# PED 395 Independent Study: Fitness

For students interested in continuing the study of various fitness programs with emphasis on participating and learning to design projects for specialty need areas. The independent study project is formulated by the student and conducted on a topic mutually agreeable to the student and the instructor. Prerequisite: junior or senior status and approval of department chair.

# PED 416 Fieldwork in Physical Education or Dance

Emphasis on student development through practical application of training or teaching techniques in a supervised environment. (Fitness assistants, aerobic instructors, exercise leaders, dance instructors, concert production.) Credit level and fieldwork experience to be decided by student and instructor. Course may be repeated in different emphasis area.

# **Fitness Courses**

#### PED 233 Fitness I (One quarter)

Introduction to fitness activities. Improve various components of fitness using the private facilities of the college. Start a fitness program to fulfill individual needs.

117

# PED 238 Fitness II (One quarter)

Continuation of PED 233.

# 3 credits

# 2 credits

# **0-2 credits**

2 credits

1-2 credits

2-4 credits

2 credits

# 1 credit

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### PED 333 Walk Aerobics

Includes fitness walking / wellness concepts. Analyze personal fitness levels. Monitor programs for weight loss, muscle toning, and cardiovascular conditioning.

#### PED 331 Fit Walk

Participation in a "Walk Off Weight" program. Emphasis on increasing understanding of nutrition, weight loss, and walking, decreasing body fat composition, improving aerobic capacity, and making lasting lifestyle changes.

# **Aerobics Courses**

# PED 234 Basic Aerobics I (One Quarter)

Introduction to various forms of aerobic activities including step aerobics, cycling, Middle Eastern belly dancing, Zumba.

<b>PED 235 Basic Aerobics II (One Quarter)</b> Continuation of PED 234.	1 credit
<b>PED 239 Yoga I (One Quarter)</b> Introduction to Yoga techniques, relaxation, and meditation.	1 credit

# PED 240 Yoga II (One Quarter)

Continuation of PED 239.

# PED 334 Exploring Aerobic Styles

Participation in a variety of low impact styles and techniques with emphasis on learning to teach sequencing movement patterns and choreography within a well structured class format. Also includes step aerobics fundamentals and basic teaching strategies.

# PED 415 Aerobic and Fitness Certification Preparation

Pre-certification course for prospective aerobic instructors or fitness leaders combining activity, plus lecture topics including physiology, kinesiology, anatomy, exercise related injuries, medical considerations, and nutrition. Exploration of the various professions for fitness leaders. (Optional certification exam available at an additional fee.) Fee for National Course Manual.

# PED 418 Field Work for Aerobic Instructor Certification

Designed as an adjunct to the instructor certification preparation course. After learning the basic fundamentals of teaching group exercise, each student will observe and participate in team teaching fitness sessions as an intern instructor. Emphasis on student professional development through practical application of teaching techniques in supervised experiences. Credit level determined by student and instructor dependent upon time involved in teaching and other presentation sessions.

# **Aquatics Courses**

# PED 236 Water Aerobics I (One quarter)

Designed for swimmers or non-swimmers to improve flexibility, strength and the cardiovascular system. Water exercises aid balance, agility, and coordination. Water walking and water aerobics are done to music and participants exercise in shallow water.

# PED 237 Water Aerobics II (One quarter)

118

#### 2 credits

### 2 credits

# 1 credit

2- credits

1 credit

#### 2-3 credits

#### 2-3 credits

# 1 credit

Continuation of PED 236.

#### PED 245 Basic Swimming

For those who have never learned to swim: learn basic swimming skills, safety, and water adjustment. For those who have some swimming skills: learn to improve and strengthen skills and endurance while enjoying the water. Individualized instruction.

# PED 336 Wet Workout

A unique approach to water exercising. A powerful workout designed for the serious student. Water jogging, interval training, toning; analysis of water dynamics and a healthy lifestyle. Introduction to fundamentals of teaching water exercise classes or designing water exercise workouts for various age and ability groups. May also include water workouts for advanced swimmers.

# PED 370 Professional CPR and First Aid for Lifeguards

New requirement for lifeguard certification. Advanced techniques for CPR and first aid. Red Cross Certification upon course completion. Prerequisite: over age 16, strong swimming skills.

# PED 410 Lifeguard Training (Lifesaving)

Instruction in lifesaving techniques, skills, and safety. Red Cross certifications issued for successful completion of course. Prerequisite: Must be over age 16; strong swimming skills.

# **Dance Courses**

# PED 220 fa Beginning Modern Dance

Introduction to the styles, techniques and philosophy of modern dance. Strengthening, conditioning, and releasing the entire body are paired with body/mind interaction.

# PED 221 fa Intermediate Modern Dance

Continued development of the techniques of modern dance with increasing emphasis on projection and performance. Prerequisite: PED 220, or previous dance experience equivalent. Must have approval of dance instructor to enroll.

# PED 222 fa Creative Improvisation

A class in nonverbal communication through movement. Improvisation is used as a tool to help develop physical, intellectual and emotional readiness to respond to creative situations. Skills for creative problem solving are developed for practical usage.

# PED 224 fa Dance Composition

A practical and theoretical class in dance choreography. Explores the creative, technical and expressive elements which contribute to successful dance composition; understanding the creative process will be developed. Open to students with some form of body movement training or consent of instructor.

# PED 226 fa Modern Dance Technique and Theory

Modern Dance technique with emphasis on correct, individualized body alignment, physical fitness, body-mind centering, movement fundamentals and human performance. Contemporary dance theory, improvisation and nonverbal communication.

# PED 250 fa The History of Dance

### 2 credits

2 credits

### 0-2 credits

2 credits

2 credits

0-2 credits

# 2 credits

# 2 credits

2 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### An exploration of the dance of the world, from the early roots of the art form to its current state. Emphasis will be placed on the evolution of dance in World Cultures.

#### PED 255 fa History of Modern Dance

An exploration of Modern Dance from the early roots of the art form-the major innovators, choreographers and dancers—to its current state

#### PED 256 fa Dance in Film

The history of dance as seen through the medium of film. Students will be introduced to film analysis and the major genres of dance on film.

#### PED 257 fa History of Ballet

The history of the Art of Ballet. Students will experience the art form from its early inception to its current format and styles through photos, slides, readings and films.

#### PED 258 Introduction to Ballet, Tap and Jazz Dance

Learn basic steps of ballet, tap, and jazz dancing. Explore related topics of these art forms.

#### PED 320 Expressive Movement: Connecting the Body-Mind-Spirit 2 credits

Exploration of some of the theories and techniques of the therapeutic use of movement for improved psychological and physical well-being.

#### PED 322 fa Dance Performance

Continuing the study of modern dance with emphasis on relating this art form to other areas of life by expressing it in dance performance; applying dance style and techniques to produce and perform choreography in a formal setting. Prerequisite: previous dance experience or by consent of instructor.

#### PED 323 fa Dance Performance and Globalization

Continuing the study of performance dance, emphasizing the ethnic dance of the world community. Students will research and perform movement/dance from a different culture incorporating a world viewpoint into the dance performance experience with emphasis on the exploration of cultural style and technique. Prerequisite: PED 322fa; some previous dance experience; or by consent of instructor.

#### PED 324/524 Teaching Dance in Early Childhood/Middle Childhood, Early Adolescence

2 credits A practical course for teachers in the theoretical approach to learning through movement. Explores the basic elements of dance within the framework of creative rhythmic movement. Emphasis is placed on learning how to use creative dance/movement in the classroom both as a fine art and as a tool in teaching academic learning concepts, critical observation skills and creative problem-solving. Explores the connections between creative movement, cooperative learning, right/left brain synchronization, and growth in positive self-esteem.

#### PED 395 Independent Study: Modern Dance

Student will research and design an individual project relating to Modern Dance on a topic mutually agreeable to the student and the instructor. Prerequisite: junior or senior status and approval of department chair.

# **Health and Wellness Courses**

**PED 216 Relax and Revitalize through Movement** 

# 120

#### 2 credits

#### 1-2 credit

1 credit

# **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

2 credits

### 2 credits

Exploration of a variety of activities and techniques to reduce stress in the everyday life of a college student. Emphasis on developing a personal relaxation program.

#### PED 260 Wellness Concepts

#### 2 credits

This class emphasizes a positive approach to wellness and studies the concepts supporting the development of a wellness lifestyle, personal strategies for stress management, fitness, nutrition & women's health issues.

#### PED 480 Teaching Health in Early Childhood/Middle Childhood/ Early Adolescence

#### 2 credits

Innovative teaching methods to use in teaching health concepts to children. Consideration of nutrition, communicable and other diseases, use and abuse of drugs, emergency and first aid procedures and other topics related to child health. Emphasis on techniques for teaching health lessons. Course emphasizes the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction standards and fulfills elementary education major requirement.

# PED 481 Teaching Physical Education in Early Childhood/Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence (one quarter) 1 credit

Instruction and participation in teaching methods for activities to develop the fitness and motor skills of children. Course emphasizes the state Department of Public Instruction standards and fulfills the elementary education major requirement.

#### **Pre-Radiologic Technology Program**

Mount Mary College offers the radiologic technology major in consortium with the Radiology Alliance which includes Columbia St. Mary's Healthcare System, Froedtert Hospital, and St. Joseph's as part of Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare. This four year program awards graduates a baccalaureate of science in radiologic technology. During the first two years of the program students complete general education courses and prerequisites for the major at Mount Mary's campus.

Students must apply to one of the Radiology Alliance partnership programs. Students accepted into the radiologic technology major continue their final two years of study at one of the three hospitals in the alliance. Transfer students must complete a minimum of 32 credits at Mount Mary College prior to beginning any coursework at a hospital location. Upon successful completion of the program, students are eligible for the American Registry for Radiologic Technologists certification exam in radiography.

**Pre-Radiologic Technology Program Requirements**: 3.0 GPA and successful completion of the program courses at Mount Mary College.

**Pre-Radiologic Technology Program Mount Mary Course Requirements**: (31-32 Credits) MAT 105, 208; COM 104; BIO 103, 211, 212; SYM 102; PSY 100 or 103; PHY 105 and General education requirements

During the fall term of a student's second year at Mount Mary College and upon the completion of specified courses, the student will complete an application to the Radiologic Technology program. Columbia St. Mary's Healthcare System, Froedtert Hospital, and St. Joseph's as part of Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare make the final decision as to which students they select for the program.

A shadow experience can be completed before being accepted into the program.

For more information about this exciting major, please contact Dr. Colleen Conway in the Health and Sciences Division.

# **Radiologic Technology**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Mount Mary College and the consortium of Columbia/St. Mary's Hospital, St. Joseph's Hospital, and Froedtert Hospital offer a major in Radiologic Technology.

Radiologic technologists assist physicians by producing quality medical images of the human body. In this field it is important to know the newest and best technologies. During the first two years, women students complete the liberal arts core and other prerequisites for the Radiologic Technology major at Mount Mary College. Transfer students must take a minimum of 32 core credits at Mount Mary College. Students must apply to one of the Radiologic Technology major partnership programs. The additional 64 credit coursework and training for the Radiologic Technology major is completed in the hospital setting. Upon completion students receive a Bachelor of Science in Radiologic Technology from Mount Mary College.

#### **Pre-Diagnostic Medical Sonography Program**

Sonography is a diagnostic medical procedure using high frequency sound waves to produce dynamic visual images of organs, tissues, or blood flow inside the body. It is used in the detection and treatment of heart disease, heart attack, and vascular disease.

Diagnostic medical sonography is a four-year program. The first two years of the program are spent at the Mount Mary College campus completing general education courses and prerequisites for the major. The last two years of coursework are completed at Columbia St. Mary's or Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare – St. Francis hospitals. Transfer students must complete a minimum of 32 credits at Mount Mary College prior to beginning any coursework at either hospital location. Upon successful completion of coursework, students receive a Baccalaureate of Science in Diagnostic Medical Sonography (B.S., A.R.D.M.S. and/or B.S., R.B.T.). Students can qualify to receive one or both of these degree designations based on which board examinations a student qualifies for and passes.

**Pre-Diagnostic Medical Sonography Program Requirements**: 3.0 GPA and successful completion of the program courses at Mount Mary College. CPR and CNA courses.

**Pre- Diagnostic Medical Sonography Program Mount Mary Course Requirements**: (33-38 Credits) MAT 105, 208; OCT 201; BIO 103, 211, 212; SYM 102; PSY 100 or 103; PHY 105; THY350 and General education requirements. BIO 256 is recommended but not required.

During the fall term of a student's second year at Mount Mary College and upon the completion of specified courses (listed above), the student completes an application to the Diagnostic Medical Sonography program. Columbia St. Mary's Hospital and Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare – St. Francis make the final decision as to which students they select for the program.

For more information, please contact the Mount Mary College Admission Office (414-256-1219 or admiss@mtmary.edu) or Dr. Colleen Conway (414-258-4810, ext. 402 or conwayc@mtmary.edu).

#### **Diagnostic Medical Sonography**

Mount Mary College and the consortium of Columbia/St. Mary's Hospital and Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare - St. Francis offer a major in Diagnostic Medical Sonography.

Sonography technologists assist physicians by producing quality ultrasound images of the human body. In this field it is important to know the newest technologies. During the first two years, women students complete the liberal arts core and other prerequisites for the Diagnostic Medical Sonography. Major at Mount Mary College.

122

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Transfer students must take a minimum of 32 core credits at Mount Mary College. Students must apply to one of the Diagnostic Medical Sonography major partnership programs. The additional 64 credit coursework and training for the Diagnostic Medical Sonography major is completed in the hospital setting. Upon completion students receive a Bachelor of Science in Diagnostic Medical Sonography from Mount Mary College.

#### Sciences

The Sciences Department of Mount Mary College unites the disciplines of Biology, Chemistry and Physics. This cooperative organizational format reflects the integral relationships among these sciences. The Sciences Department offers two majors: the Biology Major and the Chemistry Major. Within each major, a student may choose the General Sequence, the Health Sciences Sequence or the Education Sequence. A student works with a faculty academic advisor to choose a curriculum that prepares her for study and/or work after graduation. Students preparing to teach may select a Broad Field Science Major with a concentration in either Biology or Chemistry. The Sciences Department also offers the Biology Minor, the Chemistry Minor and two interdisciplinary minors: the Environmental Studies Minor and the Science Minor for elementary educators.

The science programs foster a collaborative learning environment that supports discovery-oriented courses. Small class size promotes active student learning through discussion, inquiry based laboratory experiences, problem based learning, and process oriented guided inquiry. The Department seeks to educate life-long learners to realize their potential through scientific literacy, critical and creative thinking, and the expression of ideas in an articulate manner. The science curriculum encourages students to develop leadership capability and integrity as a foundation for professional excellence.

### **Biology**

The Biology Program offers courses designed to develop student appreciation of the various levels of organization and dynamic equilibrium within the individual organism and among living organisms of the biosphere. Biology courses emphasize data analysis and problem solving, along with broad scientific literacy, basic biological laboratory techniques and computer applications. The Biology Program stresses the importance of each student's role in making choices to prepare herself for a competitive future. The program offers the Biology Major, the Biology Minor and the Biology-Broad Field Science Major. Students majoring in Biology are advised to choose courses within the General Sequence, the Health Sciences Sequence or the Education Sequence. In the General Sequence, each student works with a Biology faculty advisor to choose elective courses that best match her post-baccalaureate goal. Students planning on continuing their education at a medical, dental, veterinary or other professional or graduate school should choose the Health Sciences Sequence. The Biology-Broad Field Science Major is a special major designed for students preparing to teach biology, chemistry, earth science or physics. Post-baccalaureate students wishing to pursue a Biology Major Certificate should contact the chair of the Sciences Department.

Application to the Biology Major is usually made during the first semester of the sophomore year or at the time a student enrolls in her second biology course at Mount Mary College. Biology majors must compile a portfolio of their work that demonstrates comprehension of science concepts, proficiency in the scientific method and skill in computer applications. Transfer students must complete at least one half of the credits necessary for the Biology Major or Minor at Mount Mary College. Courses taken more than five years ago may need to be repeated. Courses are offered on a regular rotation but some upper level courses are offered in alternating years.

# **Biology Major**

**Biology Major Requirements**: 58-66 credits; 2.2 GPA in the major and 2.0 GPA overall. Grade point average and other requirements for students in the Biology Major-Education Sequence or the Biology-Broad Field Science Major are described in the Education Department section of this bulletin.

123

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

**Biology Major-General Sequence Course Requirements** (58 Credits): BIO 103, 107, 212, 214, 337, 338, 457, and sixteen elective credits with at least eight credits at the 300-400 level (choose from BIO 211, 215, 216, 220, 256, 325, 340, or 442); MAT 216; CHE 113, 114, and eight elective credits from CHE 206, 216, 222, 333, 334, or 352.

**Biology Major-Health Sciences Sequence Course Requirements** (66 Credits): BIO 103, 107, 212, 214, 256, 325, 337, 338, 442, 457, four elective credits from BIO 211, 215, 216, 220, or 340; MAT 216; CHE 113, 114, 333, 334; PHY 201 and 202.

**Biology Major-Education Sequence Course Requirements:** Students wishing to teach at either the early adolescence or adolescence level must major in a subject area and complete the courses required for teacher certification. Biology majors preparing for middle/secondary teaching must complete the Biology General Sequence but EDU 200 Orientation to Teaching is substituted for BIO 107. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

**Biology Broad Field Science Major for Early Adolescence/Adolescence Teacher Education Course Requirements** (60 credits plus EDU coursework): BIO 103; twelve credits of BIO electives at 200 level or above (BIO 105 and 210 may not be included); eight credits of BIO electives at 300 level or above; CHE 113, 114, eight credits of CHE electives at 200 level or above (CHE 105, 112 and 206 may not be included); PHY 201 and 202; MAT 216 and 6 credits of earth science chosen from GEO 112, PHY 210, 211 or SCI 305. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

Biology Minor Requirements: 19 Credits; 2.2 GPA in the minor and 2.0 GPA overall.

**Biology Minor Course Requirements** (19 credits): BIO 103 plus 15 additional biology credits. (BIO 105 and 210 may not be included).

**Biology Major Post-Baccalaureate Certificate:** Students who have completed an undergraduate degree may choose to complete the requirements for the Biology Major as described above.

# **Biology Courses**

#### **BIO 103 sci Introductory Biology**

This foundational course explores the organization of living things from the molecular level to the level of the biosphere. Topics include biological molecules, cell structure and replication, energy flow, genetics and the ecological relationship of populations. The laboratory emphasizes data collection and analysis using relevant model systems. Prerequisite: high school biology and math competency. Fee.

#### **BIO 105 sci Current Concepts in Biology**

A survey of the principles of biology provides the framework for understanding the problems faced by society. Topics include cellular and organismic reproduction, genetics, systems of the human body and evolution. Does not apply to the Biology Major or Minor.

#### **BIO 107 Introduction to the Biology and Chemistry Majors**

Biology and chemistry majors explore the relevance of their coursework to their career options. Strategies for resume development and portfolio preparation are included.

#### **BIO 210 sci Human Anatomy and Physiology**

124

#### 4 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 1 credit areer opt

This course for nursing majors explores the structure and function of the tissues, organs and systems of the human body and emphasizes the integration and regulation of human body systems in sustaining life. The laboratory combines the study of models and virtual body parts with dissection as well as the acquisition and analysis of physiological data. Prerequisite: a grade of C or better in BIO 103. Fee. Does not apply to the Biology Major or Minor.

### **BIO 211 Human Anatomy**

This course explores the relationship between anatomical form and function in the major body systems from the tissue level to the organization of the body plan. The laboratory combines the study of models and virtual body parts with dissection. Prerequisite: BIO 103. Fee.

# **BIO 212 sci Human Physiology**

This course explores how the function, regulation and integration of the major organ systems of the human body operate to maintain homeostasis and sustain life. The laboratory focuses on acquisition and analysis of physiological data. Prerequisite: BIO 103. Fee.

# **BIO 214 sci Zoology**

This course surveys the major phyla of invertebrate and vertebrate animals and provides an introduction to animal anatomy, physiology, ecology and evolution. The laboratory explores the diversity of animal forms. Prerequisite: BIO 103. Fee.

# **BIO 215 sci Botanv**

This survey of the plant kingdom emphasizes the structure, function, development, heredity and evolution of seed plants. The laboratory explores the diversity of plant forms. Prerequisite: BIO 103. Fee.

# **BIO 216 sci (g) Environmental Science**

The course is a survey of environmental science that includes the relationship and responsibility of society and the individual to the natural world. This is the foundation course for the Environmental Studies Minor. The course is taught using student centered learning and includes a laboratory. Fee. Crosslisted with CHE 216 and SCI 216.

# **BIO 220 sci Contemporary Environmental Issues**

Through the study of cutting edge global environmental problems, students learn information and develop the analytical skills necessary to make informed personal and societal decisions about the environment.

# **BIO 256 sci Developmental Biology**

The creation of cellular diversity and form is explored through the processes and control of cellular differentiation. The emergence of living order is revealed in the patterns of orderly change from fertilization to organ formation. The laboratory emphasizes the development of model organisms. Prerequisite: BIO 103. Fee.

# **BIO 325 sci Microbiology**

Course themes include microbial cell biology, genetics, and the impact of microorganisms on humans. Emphasis is placed on epidemiology, emerging infections, and a global perspective of public health. Incorporates student centered active learning in classroom and laboratory settings. Prerequisite: BIO 103, CHE 113. Fee.

# **BIO 337 sci Genetics**

The organization, inheritance and function of genetic information are explored from the molecular to the organismic and population levels. Topics include Mendelian principles, molecular genetics and the techniques used in modern molecular biology. Prerequisite: BIO 103, CHE 114.

125

# 4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

### 4 credits

4 credits

# 2 credits

4 credits

# 4 credits

#### **3 credits**

#### **BIO 338 sci Molecular Techniques**

This laboratory course is designed to accompany either BIO 337 Genetics or CHE 352 Biochemistry. Students must be enrolled concurrently in either BIO 337 or CHE 352. The laboratory focuses on techniques relevant to molecular genetics and biochemistry. Fee.

#### **BIO 340 sci Immunology**

This course examines the body's immune system and its response to health and disease. Emphasizes student centered learning activities. Prerequisites: BIO 103, CHE 114.

#### **BIO 442 Advanced Microbiology**

Selected public health issues are considered. Course involves detection, identification, and quantification of pathogenic microorganisms, including food borne pathogens and microorganisms affecting water quality. Emphasizes student centered active learning with laboratory work and a student research project. Prerequisites: BIO 103, 325, CHE 114. Fee.

#### **BIO 457 Ecology**

This course examines modern concepts of ecology and explores ecosystem structure and function. It includes laboratory experience, off campus field work, and computer applications for data acquisition and statistical analysis. This is a Biology Major capstone course that culminates in a student research project. Student centered active learning experiences are emphasized. Prerequisites: BIO 103 and a second biology course, CHE 114. Recommended: MAT 216. Fee.

#### **BIO 484 Special Topics in Biology**

The content of this course varies to allow study in specialized areas of biology. This course may be repeated for credit with a change in topic.

#### **BIO 296-496 Independent Study**

An individual student explores some topic in biology, as either a readings course or as an undergraduate research project, according to the discretion of the instructor and the needs and interest of the student. Prerequisite: BIO 103 and sufficient background in biology. Permission of instructor and department chair required. Fee may be assessed.

or institution that provides work-oriented experience in biology. Internships are individually designed to achieve and integrate academic and career goals. The nature of the assignment, type of experience, number of credits and evaluation procedure are to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the on-site supervisor and the Mount Mary College academic adviser. Permission of department chair and faculty advisor required.

#### **BIO 498 Internship**

An individual student enhances the educational experience through placement with a cooperating agency, business,

### 2 credits

2 credits

#### 4 credits

4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

1-4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

Chemistry

The Chemistry Program offers courses in the five main branches of the science: inorganic, organic, analytical, biochemical and physical. Chemistry courses emphasize data analysis and problem solving along with broad scientific literacy, basic chemical laboratory techniques and relevant computer applications. Laboratory experience with emphasis on instrumental methods is an integral part of chemistry courses. The program offers the Chemistry Major, the Chemistry Minor and the Chemistry-Broad Field Science Major. Students majoring in Chemistry are advised to choose courses within the General Sequence, the Health Sciences Sequence or the Education Sequence. Students interested in graduate school are encouraged to follow the General Sequence. Students planning on continuing their education at a medical, dental, veterinary or other professional school should choose the Health

126

Sciences Sequence. Post-baccalaureate students wishing to pursue a Chemistry Major Certificate should contact the chair of the Sciences Department.

Application to the Chemistry Major may be made after completion of CHE 114. Chemistry majors must compile a portfolio of their work that demonstrates comprehension of science concepts, proficiency in the scientific method and skill in computer applications. Transfer students must complete at least one half of the credits necessary for the Chemistry Major or Minor at Mount Mary College. Courses taken more than five years ago may need to be repeated. Courses are offered on a regular rotation but some courses are offered in alternating years or as needed.

**Chemistry Major Requirements:** 54-56 credits; 2.5 GPA in the major and 2.0 GPA overall. Grade point average and other requirements for students in the Chemistry Major-Education Sequence or the Chemistry-Broad Field Science Major are described in the Education Department section of this bulletin.

**Chemistry Major-General Sequence Course Requirements** (56 credits): CHE 107, 113, 114, 222, 333, 334, 338, 352, 441, 442; two to four credits of independent work (CHE 396, 398, 496, or 498); BIO 103; MAT 251; 252; PHY 201 and 202.

**Chemistry Major–Health Sciences Sequence Course Requirements** (54-56 credits): CHE 107, 113, 114, 222, 333, 334, 338, 352, 435 and two credits from CHE 216, 296, 396, 398, 496, or 498; BIO 103, 212, 325, 337; PHY 201 and 202. Pre-veterinary students also take BIO 214.

**Chemistry Major–Education Sequence Course Requirements**: Students wishing to teach at either the early adolescence or adolescence level must major in a subject area and complete the courses required for teacher certification. Chemistry majors preparing for middle/secondary teaching must complete the courses (54-56 credits) for the Chemistry Health Sciences Sequence, with the substitution of EDU 200 Orientation to Teaching in place of CHE 107. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

**Chemistry - Broad Field Science Major for Early Adolescence/Adolescence Teacher Education:** This special major is designed for students preparing to teach biology, chemistry, earth science or physics. Students complete 60 credits of required courses: 24 credits of chemistry (CHE 113, 114, 333, 334, 338 and 352 plus either CHE 216 or 222; CHE 105, 112 and 206 may not be included); 16 credits of biology (BIO 103 and 12 more credits, with at least four credits above the 200 level in biology courses that apply to the Biology Major; BIO 105 and 210 may not be included); 8 credits of physics (PHY 201 and 202); 6 credits of earth science chosen from GEO 112, PHY 210, 211 or SCI 305; and a statistics course (MAT 216). Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

Chemistry Minor Requirements: 19 credits; 2.5 GPA in the minor and 2.0 GPA overall.

**Chemistry Minor Course Requirements**: CHE 113, 114, 333, 334, plus one of the following: CHE 216, 222 or 352.

**Chemistry Major Post-Baccalaureate Certificate:** Students who have completed an undergraduate degree may choose to complete the requirements for the Chemistry Major as described above.

127

# **Chemistry Courses**

CHE 105 sci Chemistry and Society

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

November 15, 2010

This course for non-science majors uses lecture and student centered learning to increase awareness and appreciation of how chemistry affects everyday life. Does not apply to the Chemistry Major or Minor.

# **CHE 107 Introduction to the Biology and Chemistry Majors**

Biology and chemistry majors explore the relevance of their coursework to their career options. Strategies for resume development and portfolio preparation are included.

# **CHE 112 Introduction to Chemistry**

This course in the fundamentals of chemistry is designed for students who have not completed high school chemistry or its equivalent. Students must be enrolled concurrently in CHE 113. Prerequisite: MAT 101. Does not apply to the Chemistry Major or Minor.

# **CHE 113 sci Chemical Principles I**

This course includes dimensional analysis, atomic structure, chemical bonding, stoichiometry, physical states of matter, energy relationships, periodic table, atomic and molecular structure and solutions. The laboratory complements the course topics. Prerequisites: (1) high school chemistry or concurrent enrollment in CHE 112 and (2) MAT 101. Fee.

# **CHE 114 sci Chemical Principles II**

The chemistry of metals and nonmetals, kinetics, chemical and aqueous equilibria, free energy relationships, electrochemistry, nuclear chemistry and chemistry of the transition metals are included in the course. Qualitative analysis included as part of the laboratory work. Prerequisite: CHE 113. Fee.

# CHE 206 sci Essentials of Organic and Biological Chemistry

This course studies major organic functional groups by analyzing their structures, properties, and reactions. It also includes important biochemical molecules and analyzes their structures, properties, reactions, and metabolism in humans. The course is taught using student centered learning and includes a laboratory. Prerequisites: CHE 113 and BIO 103. Fee.

# CHE 216 sci (g) Environmental Science

The course is a survey of environmental science that includes the relationship and responsibility of society and the individual to the natural world. This is the foundation course for the Environmental Studies Minor. The course is taught using student centered learning and includes a laboratory. Fee. Crosslisted with BIO 216 and SCI 216

# **CHE 222 sci Instrumental Quantitative Analysis**

The fundamental theory of analytical chemistry is covered through the exploration of the methods with an introduction to electrochemical and spectrophotometric techniques and separations. The laboratory complements the course topics. Prerequisite: CHE 114. Fee.

# CHE 333 sci Organic Chemistry I

Modern theories of bonding, stereochemistry, synthesis and reaction mechanisms are included. Organic synthesis is described from a mechanistic perspective. The chemistry of aliphatic hydrocarbons and their functional group derivatives are included. The laboratory covers basic organic manipulations such as distillation, recrystallization, IR spectroscopy and some simple synthesis. Prerequisite: CHE 114. Fee.

# CHE 334 sci Organic Chemistry II

This course is a continuation of CHE 333. An extension of the chemistry of the remaining aromatic, mono- and poly-functional compounds, bonding, stereochemistry, mechanisms, synthesis, applied spectroscopy, heterocycles

128

# 4 credits

#### 4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

# 4 credits

#### 4 credits

# November 15, 2010

# 1 credit

4 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

must be enrolled concurrently in either BIO 337 or CHE 352. The laboratory experiences involve techniques related to molecular genetics and biochemistry. Fee.

**CHE 338 sci Molecular Techniques** 

analysis and a student research project. Prerequisite: CHE 333. Fee.

### **CHE 352 sci Biochemistry**

This course is an introduction to the chemistry of carbohydrates, lipids, and proteins and includes the metabolism and synthesis of these biological molecules. Some non-human biochemistry, e.g., photosynthesis, is also covered. Student centered learning is used throughout the course. CHE 338 Molecular Techniques must have been completed previously or be taken concurrently. Prerequisites: CHE 333 and BIO 103.

and natural products are included. The laboratory includes synthesis, instrumental application, organic qualitative

This is a laboratory course designed to accompany either BIO 337 Genetics or CHE 352 Biochemistry. Students

#### **CHE 435 Inorganic Chemistry**

This course includes atomic structure, covalent molecular substances, main group elements, organometallic chemistry, solid state materials, transition elements and coordination chemistry. Prerequisites: CHE 222 and 333.

#### **CHE 441 Physical Chemistry I**

This semester focuses on thermodynamics and kinetics with the treatment of equilibrium in chemical systems. Topics include kinetic theory of gases, classical and statistical thermodynamics, phase equilibria, reaction rates and mechanisms. Laboratory experiments illustrating the principles of physical chemistry are included. Prerequisites: CHE 222; MAT 251 and 252; PHY 201 and 202. Fee.

#### **CHE 442 Physical Chemistry II**

This course is a continuation of CHE 441 and focuses on quantum chemistry and spectroscopy. Laboratory experiments illustrating the principles of physical chemistry are included. Prerequisite: CHE 441. Fee.

#### **CHE 484 Special Topics**

The content in this course varies to allow study in specialized areas of chemistry. This course may be repeated for credit with a change in topic.

#### **CHE 296-496 Independent Study**

An individual student explores some topic in chemistry, either as a readings course or as an individual research project, according to the discretion of the instructor and the needs and interests of the student. Prerequisites: CHE 113 and 114 and sufficient background in chemistry. Permission of instructor and department chair required. Fee may be assessed.

#### CHE 398-498 Internship

An individual student enhances the educational experience through placement with a cooperating agency, business or institution that provides work-oriented experience in chemistry. Internships are individually designed to achieve and integrate academic and career goals. The nature of the assignment, type of experience, number of credits and evaluation procedure are to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the on-site supervisor and the Mount Mary College faculty advisor. Permission of the instructor and department chair required.

# **Physics**

The physics program provides courses that serve the needs of various majors and minors. As a basic science, Physics fulfills the sciences core requirement.

129

# 4 credits

**3 credits** 

# 2-4 credits

4 credits

# 1-4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

# 3 credits

# **Physics Courses**

# PHY 105 sci Physics Today

This course explores the physical world from the perspectives of motion, matter, energy, light, sound, electricity and more in a teaching and experiential setting.

# PHY 201 sci General Physics I

This course considers measurement, forces, equilibrium, statics and dynamics, properties of matter, heat and thermodynamics in both teaching and laboratory settings. Prerequisite: MAT 111. Fee.

# PHY 202 sci General Physics II

This course considers wave motion, sound, light, optics, electricity, magnetism, and nuclear concepts in both teaching and laboratory settings. Prerequisite: MAT 111. Fee.

# PHY 210 sci Astronomy

This course uses historical and contemporary models to investigate the laws of the universe, the solar system, stellar evolution, galaxies, cosmology and more in a teaching and experiential setting.

# PHY 211 sci Meteorology

This course explores the interaction of land, water, and atmosphere including heat, fluid dynamics, global motions, climate forecasting and other atmospheric phenomena such as the greenhouse effect, storms and more in a teaching and experiential setting.

# PHY 296-496 Independent Study

An individual student explores some topic in physics, either as a readings course or as an individual research project, according to the discretion of the instructor and the needs and interest of the student. Prerequisite: sufficient background in physics. Permission of instructor and department chair required. Fee may be assessed.

# **Interdisciplinary Science**

**Environmental Studies Minor:** This interdisciplinary minor includes 18 credits with a foundation in environmental science. Required courses are BIO/CHE/SCI 216 Environmental Studies (4 cr.), BIO 220 Contemporary Environmental Issues (2 cr.) and the capstone seminar course, SCI 316 (2 cr.). The remaining ten elective credits are chosen from designated courses offered in other disciplines. These electives must include one course in the area of communications and values, and one course related to society. Students must maintain a cumulative grade point average of 2.0; complete an environmentally related internship; and compile a portfolio of their work related to an environmental issue from each course included in the minor.

# Science Minor for Early Childhood/Middle Childhood or Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Teacher

**Education:** This is a certifiable minor for students in the Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Teacher Education Program. Required courses for this 20 credit minor include: SCI 204, 205 206, and 207, and a minimum of 3 credits in each of the following areas: biology (BIO 103 or 214), chemistry (CHE 105 or 113), physics (PHY 105, 201 or 202) and earth science (GEO 112, PHY 210, 211, or SCI 305).

# **Interdisciplinary Science Courses**

# SCI 100 sci Search for Solutions

This laboratory course integrates the natural sciences of biology, chemistry and physics in the process of problem solving. It is designed to strengthen understanding and skills in a laboratory setting. Fee.

130

# 4 credits

**3 credits** 

### 4 credits

2 credits

2 credits

# 1-4 credits

3 credits

### **SCI 204 sci Basic Physics**

This course explores the fundamentals of physics including matter and energy, wave motion, sound, light, electricity, and magnetism in a teaching and experiential setting.

# SCI 205 sci Basic Chemistry

This course explores the fundamentals of chemistry including the periodic table, matter and its properties, atomic and molecular structure, chemical reactions and their equations, acid-base concepts, and organic and biomolecules in a teaching and experiential setting.

# SCI 206 sci Basic Biology

The scientific process and the fundamental principles of biology are explored through a survey of the plant and animal kingdoms, the principles of inheritance and selected human systems.

# SCI 207 sci Environmental Basics

This course covers basic environmental principals including natural resources, conservation and the impact of technology on the environment. Attitudes and values on environmental issues are explored along with possible solutions.

# SCI 216 sci (g) Environmental Science

The course is a survey of environmental science that includes the relationship and responsibility of society and the individual to the natural world. This is the foundation course for the Environmental Studies Minor. The course is taught using student centered learning and includes a laboratory. Fee. Crosslisted with BIO 216 and CHE 216.

# SCI 305 sci Natural Sciences Field Studies

Students learn about science and scientific processes in a field situation. The focus of the course varies with the location for the field studies Fee

# **SCI 316 Environmental Studies Seminar**

This is the capstone course for the Environmental Studies Minor. The student reflects on the roles played by individuals and society in the stewardship of natural resources. Prerequisite: completion of, or concurrent, internship experience.

# **Interdisciplinary Courses**

# SYM 110 Leadership Seminar for Social Justice

This course introduces students to the depth of thinking called for in the college environment and orients students to the mission and values of the College. This interaction a nd reflective course focuses on issued of social justice relating particularly to ra ce, class, an d gender. Or al, written, and small group comm unication skills are also emphasized. First year students are expected to take this course.

# SYM 120 Career Planning

This course is designed for students who are undecided about a major or careers related to their m ajor. Students follow a developmental process of val ues clarification, skills assessment, infor mation gathering, and discussion. Utilizes Vocational Inventories, informational interviewing, and speakers when necessary.

131

#### 2 credits

2 credits

2 credits

2 credits

# 4 credits

2 credits

**3-4 credits** 

# **3 credits**

# 1 credit

### SYM 170 Critical Reading and Thinking

This course is designed to develop students' reading a nd thinking skills, empowering the engaged learner to work with a wide variety of information. Students will learn active reading strategies, vocabulary building tools, critical thinking strat egies and self assessment skills. A va riety of indi vidual and group activitie s encourage active, multimodal engagement.

#### SYM 230 Portfolio Preparation Seminar

The course, mandatory for students who with to apply for credit for prior learning, provide an un derstanding of knowledge and learning expected for credit, explores the application of experiential learning to Mo unt Ma ry College courses, and assist students in understanding the process involved in portfolio preparation, when applicable. Prerequisite: 12 Mount Mary credits and consent of Instructor.

HUM 332 Leadership I Required for and open to Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 333 Leadership II Continuation of HUM 332. For Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 334 Leadership III Continuation of HUM 333. For Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 335 Leadership IV Continuation of HUM 334. For Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 336 Leadership V Continuation of HUM 335. For Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 337 Leadership VI Continuation of HUM 336. For Caroline Scholars only.	2 credits
HUM 386 (g) United Nations Some travel and conference attendance required.	3 credits

# Language, Literature, and Communication Division

The Language, Literature, and Comm unication Division unites the disciplines of Comm unication, English, World Languages, and International Studies. At its core, the Division rotates around the concept of language, as it manifests in the professions and as it is expressed in literature, writing, oral communication, world languages, and the fine arts. The Division's majors build on the values expressed in the College's mission and liberal arts core: the need to promote social justice both locally and globally, the development of skills and knowledge that will enable

132 Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

November 15, 2010

#### 4 credits

students to become leaders of integrity, the importance of communication in all its facet s, an appreciation for the beauty and power of language, and the desire to make learning life-long.

The Division offers an array of versatile majors; for a complete listing of minors, please look under the individual programs presented below. The Communication Department offers one major with two concentrations: a communication arts concentration and a public relations concentration. Communication off ers a communication minor, a communication education minor and a post-baccalaur eate certification in public relations. The English Department provides one major with four concentrati ons: English: Literature, E nglish: Professional Writing, English: Ed ucation (7-12), and Englis h: Broad Fiel d Language Arts Education as well as six minors. World Languages has two majors: Spanish (with concentrations in K-12 Spanish Education, S panish Literature and Culture, Spanish for Professionals, and Spanish for Native/Heritage Speakers) and International Studies (with two different language concentra tions: International Studies Spanish, and In ternational Studi es English as a Second Language for international students). There are also minors in Spanish, Spanish teaching and Bilingual Education.

Most of the faculty hold terminal degrees and are published, active mem bers in their dis cipline. Talented professionals with advanced degrees t each several of the more specialized courses. Many of the majors require internships that prepare students to work in their profession. In addition, the Division's majors and minors serve as valuable double majors or minors, by enhancing students' abilities to express themselves in written and oral communication, to think both critically and creatively, to speak other languages, and to und erstand other cultures. Employment opportunities include careers in teaching, communication, writing, editing, journalis m, public relations, nonprofit organizations, govern ment service, international business, international law, and diplom atic service to name just a few. In addition, all the majors are excellent preparation for graduate studies.

#### **Communication and Public Relations**

The Communication Department offers one major with two concentrations: a communication arts concentration and a public relations concentration. In addition, the department offers a communication minor, a communication education minor, and a post-baccalaureate certification in public relations.

Professionally, the communication arts concentration offers a liberal arts base and skills for students preparing for careers requiring conta ct with people. This contact varies from speaking before audiences, giving small group presentations, interacting with clients and co-workers, working on teams or task forces, and conducting task group meetings, to training, teaching or selling. As a second major or minor, communication enriches any other major that concerns human interaction.

Recent graduates have combined or integrated communication with other majors and minors such as behavioral science, busi ness ad ministration and theology. Other stude the nts have developed a cluster of courses outside the department targeted to a specific career objective. Graduates have found positions classified as Human Resources Specialist, Communication Outreach Coordinator, Director of Communication, and Account Director.

The public relations concentration com bines courses from the English, communication, art, and business

133

administration departments; this provides students with fundamental skills, knowledge and experience needed for an understanding of public relations and its role in societ y. The public relations professional is a strat egic thinker who evaluates current trends and attitudes that affect an organization. This individual then develops plans of action that benefit the organization by helping it relate positively with its many publics.

The PR professional writes press releases, deals with the news media, plans special events a nd writes annual reports. Careers in public relations are found in business, consulting, advertising and public relations agencies, health care organizations, education, government and many cultural and social welfare organizations.

Majors/minors must demonstrate proficiency in writing and in the use of the computer. A student may be advised to eliminate deficiencies in written or computer skills by taking credits in courses beyond those listed under the major. Students m ust maintain a 2.0 overall gra de point with an average of 2.5 in m ajor or m inor courses. Transfer students must take at least 15 credits in communication courses at Mount Mary College.

Students with junior status who have completed 12 Mount Mary credits toward a communication major may be eligible to be members of the National Co mmunication Asso ciation's honor society -La mbda Pi Eta. The department's chapter, Tau Iota, requires a cu mulative GPA of 3.0, a cum ulative GPA of 3.25 i n the major, and service to the department/College.

**Communication Major: Communication Arts Concentration Requirements:** 37-38 credits, 2.5 GPA for courses in the major, internship.

**Communication Major: Communication Arts Concentration Course Requirements:** (37-38 credits): COM 104, 107, 220, 231, 235, 255, 365, 494 and 498, EPW 331; and at least six credits selected from the following: COM 232, 285, 310, 320, 343, 365, 385, 386, PRP 301, 333, 334, 335, 336, 490, ENG 422.

**Communication Major: Public Relations Concentration Requirements:** 39-40 credits, 2.5 GPA for courses in the major, internship.

**Communication Major: Public Relations Concentration** (39-40 credits): COM 107, 220, 255, 494; PRP 301, 490, 498, EPW 331, BUS 331; Four credits from: PRP 333, 334, 335, 336; Four credits from COM 235, 320, 343; Three credits from COM 285, 385, GRD 232, GRD 356

Communication Minor Requirements: 20 credits, 2.5 GPA in minor courses.

**Communication Minor Course Requirements:** COM 104, 220, and 365; and eleven credits from COM 205, 231, 232, 235, 255, 285, 310, 320, 343, 365, 385, 386, PRP 301, 333, 334, 335, 336, 490, ENG 422.

**Communication Education Minor (Early Adolescence/Adolescence) Course Requirements:** COM 104, 231, 232, 255, 343; EPW 201. Students must pass the Praxis II (English content) test. All students seeking this minor must complete (or have completed) an education major in a secondary content area.

134

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Public Relations Certificate Requirements: 17-21 credits, 2.0 in courses, internship if necessary.

**Public Relations Certificate Course Requirements:** PRP 301, 333, 334, 490, 498 (if necessary, to be determined by chair of the department); EPW 331; BUS 331.

#### **Business/Professional Communication Major**

The Business /Professional Communication major is an interdisciplinary major that incorporates courses from the bus iness ad ministration, English, and communication departments. See the Business Administration section of this bulletin.

#### **Journalism Minor**

A Journalism minor is offered through the English Department.

#### **Theater Arts**

Courses may be taken to fulfill esthetics realm core requirements.

# **Communication Courses**

#### COM 104 cm Public Speaking

Offers students an opportunit y to m aster the skills require d for effective plan ning, preparation, and deli very of informative, persuasive and comme morative speec hes. E mphasis placed on content, organization and audience adaptation.

#### COM 107 Introduction to Communication Careers

Introduction to the fields of comm unication and public relations with em phasis on exploration of career opportunities and the knowledge and skills necessary for success in specific careers.

#### **COM 205 Professional Business Presentations**

Provides students with knowledge and pr actice necessary to present appropriate and effective, informative, and persuasive business presentations. Emphasis on audience anal ysis, planning, preparation, delivery and computer generated materials to enhance presentations. Offered as an accelerated course.

#### COM 210 cm Speech Communication for the Classroom Teacher 2 cr

Provides teachers and prospective teachers with the means to analy ze, develop and facilitat e their own and their students' communication behaviors. Em phasis on cl assroom co mmunication, interpersonal a nd group communication, listening, nonverbal communication, and sharing information.

#### COM 220 cm Communication Theory and Research

In-depth examination of t he communication field th rough the stu dy of major communication theories a nd their application to various contexts, and a review of major research methods common to the communication and public

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

# 2 credits

#### 4 credits

# 2 credits

# 4 credits

#### November 15, 2010

135

relations practitioner.

#### **COM 231 cm Interpersonal Communication**

Examines the social dimensions of hum an communication, by study ing aspects such as perception, language and meaning, listening, and relationship development. Offered as a traditional and as an accelerated course.

#### **COM 232 cm Small Group Communication**

Through part icipation in an ongoing task group, st udents learn to understan d how small groups function and develop. Specific ar eas c overed incl ude: roles, norm s, leadersh ip, problem solving, conf lict management, and public discussion formats. Offered periodically, as a regular and as an accelerated course.

#### COM 235 cm (g) Intercultural Communication

Explores the communication patterns and perceptions the at affect cross- cultural communication in business, community, and international settings. Topics include differences in world-view, perception, verbal and nonverbal communication, and conflict management. This course satisfies the global studies requirement.

#### COM 255 cm Introduction to Mass Media

Survey course designed to provide working knowledge of the radio, television, film, sound recording and print and electronic media industries. Course aimed at equipping stude nts with the critical tools for more closely examining the mass media process.

#### **COM 285 Video Production I**

This course t eaches preproduction planning and pr oduction techniques involving digital camcorder, digital still camera, lighting, audio, digital graphics, and editing s oftware. Students also learn basic script formatting, directing and working with talent. Students produce public servi ce announcements, interviews, and features. Fee may be assessed.

#### COM 310 cm /510 cm Gender Communication

Explores the relationship between ge nder and communication and how gender differe nces ar e manifested in personal relationships, education, and the workforce.

# **COM 320 Organizational Communication**

Examination of communication models and processes in various types of organizations. Techniques to analyze and improve internal and external communication in the work environment. Offered periodically, as a regular and as an accelerated course.

# COM 343 cm /543 cm Persuasive Communication

Explores major theories a nd resear ch i n rhetoric an d persuasive communication. The course focuse s on the function of persuasion in a variety of written and oral c ontexts such as advert ising, political discourse, and war propaganda; current and historical public communication events will be examined. Cross-listed with EPW 493.

136

# **3 credits**

3 credits

# 4 credits

4 credits

# 4 credits

November 15, 2010

# 4 credits

# 4 credits

#### **COM 365 Selected Topics in Communication**

Allow studen ts the op portunity to de lve in-depth into a specific comm unication issue or problem. Topics may include: women's rhetoric, relational, health, crisis, nonverbal, and family communication. May be repeated up to eight credits.

#### COM 385 cm/ 585 cm TV and Media Criticism

Examination of the stru cture and i mpact of mass media products and messages from a variety of critical perspectives. Analysis of media issues from historical, political, cultural, and ethical perspectives.

#### COM 386 Video Production II

This course further enhances the stu dent's techni cal and aesthetic skills as a video producer and director. Significant work with digi tal cameras, camcorders and current di gital editing software. Prerequisite: COM 285 or consent of instructor. Fee may be assessed.

#### **COM 494 Capstone Experiences**

Designed for upper level co mmunication majors, t his c ourse f ocuses on portfolio preparation, job searching, networking, resumes, graduate school exploration, and culmination of the social justice project. Shoul d be taken within one or two semesters of graduation.

#### COM 496 Independent Study

Opportunity to pursue research, a creative project or a video production of special interest to the student, under direction of faculty advisor. Prerequisite: junior standing and consent of program director. May be repeated up to four credits.

#### **COM 498 Internship**

Enhancement of the educational experience through placement of the student with a cooperating agency, b usiness, or institution. The nature of the assign ment, type of experience, number of credits and evaluation procedure to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the supervisor and the academic advisor. No more than four credits may be earned in one se mester. Consent of program director req uired. May be repeated up to eight credits.

# **Public Relations Courses**

#### **PRP 301 Introduction to Public Relations**

Provides students with an introduction to and overview of the field of public relations, including: strategic thinking process; social responsibility in public relations; corporate image management; PR planning process; news media relations and crisis communication; internal co mmunications; product publicity, sp ecial event publicit y; government relations; PR and the law, and financial relations.

#### **PRP 325** Selected Topics in Public Relations

Course offered periodically to address current issues facing public relations pro fessionals or to develop new skills.

# 2-4 credits

# 3 credits

3 credits

# 1-4 credits

2 credits

#### 3-4 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 2-4 credits

November 15, 2010

137

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Offered as needed.

#### **PRP 333 Script Writing**

Provides practice in analyzing, writing, and organizing material in script formats for video productions and for TV and radio announcements and commercials. Process moves from story-boarding to editing. Cross-listed with EPW 333.

#### **PRP 334 Writing for Social Media**

Focuses on promotional writing using blogging and social media such as FaceBook, Twitter, Reddit and MySpace. Audience, conventions, and opportunities/limitations of using social media will be discussed. Cross-listed with EPW 334.

#### PRP 335 Creating Print and Web Materials for Small Business 2 credits

Provides practice in writing for newsletters, fliers, brochures, and websites. Focus on the needs of small businesses and creative ways to meet their writing needs. Cross-listed with EPW 335.

#### **PRP 336** Creating Professional Presentation and Training Materials 2 credits

Focuses on creating professional business presentations and writing effective training materials. Use of appropriate software and collaborative work emphasized. Cross-listed with EPW 336.

#### **PRP 490 Strategic Public Relations Management**

Addresses ad vanced skills required for the public r elations professional incl uding: issues management; investor relations; advanced practice in financial PR; advanced PR and the law; campaign analysis; public relations research and evaluation technique s and application; strategic communication planning; and adv anced special events management techniques.

#### **PRP 498 Internship**

Enhancement of the education experience through placement of the student with a cooperating agency, business, or institution. Nature of the assign ments, type of experience, num ber of credits per placem ent and evaluation procedures to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the field supervisor and the academic advisor. Permission of program director required.

# **Theater Arts Courses**

#### **THA 205 fa Creative Dramatics**

In this course you will lear n how "informal drama that is created by the participants" encourages a myriad of life skills. Whether y ou approach it as a future educator or as one interested in personal growth, this course wil 1 challenge your understanding of dram a and its role in nurturing creative, fulfilled adults. Creation of lesson plans and teaching for your classmates will be central to the course load.

#### THA 265 fa & 365 fa Special Topics

138

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

# 3 credits

2 credits

2 credits

# 3-4 credits

1-4 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

\_ \_\_ \_ .

acting, directing, and dramatic readings.

### **College Writing Proficiency Requirement**

Mount Mary College offers a two-semester sequence for college writing proficiency: Composition I and Composition II. Students are placed in either SYM 101 or SYM 102 based on their high school records or based on the results of a placement exam. Entering students who need to develop competence in writing skills may be required to take SYM 090 (Foundations of College Writing) and earn a grade of C before taking SYM 101 and SYM 102. Students who pass SYM 101 continue on to SYM 102. All students must pass SYM 102 to meet core requirements. Students who earn a qualifying score on the CLEP examination in English composition with essay may receive credit for SYM 101. Students with scores of 4-5 on the English Composition Advanced Placement exam may receive credit for SYM 102.

Allows students the opport unity to explore theater topics, issues, and skills or develop skills. Topics may include:

#### ESL 080 English as a Second Language

Course open to both international students and students whose first language is not English. Helps students to communicate accurat ely and effectively in college cour ses and in every day situations. Students will practice informal conversation and do short written assign ments in class in order to beco me comfortable and confident in their use of oral and written English. Credits count as electives. Course may be repeated for additional credits.

#### SYM 090 Foundations of College Writing

Course focuses on paragraph form ation and basic essay writing. Grammar and punctuat ion rules reviewed and practiced. Computer work incorporated into grammar, writing, and editing exercises. Journal and impromptu writing stressed to increase fluency. Reading skills strengt hened through reading and an alyzing a chosen work of fiction. Credits count as electives.

#### SYM 101 Composition I

Course focuses on writing and revising essays in various rhetorical modes (personal narrative, comparison/contrast, classification/division, definition). Reading and analy zing short essays, incorporating sources into papers, and strategies for writing essa y exams are also explored. Gr ammar work focused on assuring competency for future college-level writing. Credits count as electives. Prerequisite: grade of C or better in SYM 090 or placement.

#### SYM 102 cm Composition II

Course includes persuasion, synthesis, analysis, and a research essay. Extensive work done on reading, analyzing, and gathering material from a variety of so urces with an emphasis on correct, accurate, and responsible documentation. Group work, conferences, and revising strategies used to ensure coherence, clarity, and creativity in writing. Students submit a portfolio of polished writing at end of course. Cred its count toward core. Prerequisite: passing grade in SYM 101 or placement.

SYM 103 cm Grammar, Writing, a	nd Editing: I	Boot Cam	p 2 cre	dits	
Principles of grammar, punctuatio	n, usage, s	entence	structure, paragraphing,	essay	co nstruction, an d

139

#### 3 credits

1-3 credits

**3 credits** 

documentation. Individualized instruction based on student assessment. Prerequisite: passing grade in SYM 102 or equivalent.

# **English Major**

The English Department offers one English major with four concentrations:

- Literature
- Professional Writing
- Education
- Broad Field Language Arts Education

In addition, the English department offers 6 minors and 4 post-baccalaureate certificates (English, English Professional Writing, English Education, and English Broad Field Language Arts.) We offer classes during the day, evening, and on Saturdays. We occasionally offer online or hybrid courses.

English majors sharpen their skills in analyzing, interpreting, and writing. They think critically about texts and develop their own responses to them. Students in all concentrations prepare for success in the business world and develop specific writing skills for use in the workplace through their course work, internships, and extra-curricular activities. English majors can enhance their professional development by working on the student newspaper (*Arches*), joining Sigma Tau Delta (the international English honors society), speaking at our student conference, and attending special lectures and author events. Students may have their work published in *Paper Clips, Arches*, and *Fortnightly News*.

English Department majors must maintain an overall grad e point average of 2.0 with a grade point average of 2.5 in major courses; they are expected to prepare a graduation portfolio according to guidelines est ablished by the department. Students should apply for admission to the de partment as soon as they have determ ined an interest. Transfer students must complete at least 20 credits at M ount Mary for concentrations in lit erature or professional writing; 12 credits for a minor. Students concentrating in English Education or English Broad Field Language Arts Education must also be accepted into the Education Depart ment, and pass Prax is I (the PPST test of basic skills) and Praxis II (a test of co ntent knowledge in English Language and Literature) prior to acceptance into student teaching.

**English: Literature Concentration Requirements:** 49 credits, 2.5 in major courses, graduation portfolio, internship.

**English Literature Concentration Course Requirements** (49 credits): EPW 202, EPW 210, EPW 331, EPW 493 (2 credits), EPW 498; ENG 200, ENG 205, ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 307 (4 credits); ENG 346 or 347; ENG 422, ENG 485, ENG 492.

**English: Professional Writing Concentration Requirements:** 49 credits, 2.5 in m ajor courses, graduation portfolio, internship.

140

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

**English Professional Writing Concentration Course Requirements** (49 credits): EPW 201, EPW 202, EPW 210, EPW 211, EPW 296, EPW 301, EPW 317, EPW 331; 2 of the following: EPW 333, 334, 335, 336; EPW 493 (2 credits), EPW 498; ENG 200, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 307 (4 credits), ENG 485.

**English: Education Concentration Requirements:** 37 credits of English course work plus Education course work, 2.5 in major courses, portfolio, Praxis II English content test.

**English Education Concentration Course Requirements** (37 credits): EPW 202, EPW 210, EPW 493 (2 credits); ENG 205, ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 307 (2 credits); ENG 346 or 347; ENG 422, ENG 492. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin.

**English: Broad Field Language Arts Education Concentration Requirements:** 47-59 credits of English course work plus Education course work; credits vary depending upon option (see below), 2.5 in major courses, portfolio, Praxis II English content test.

**English Broad Field Language Arts Education Concentration:** The English and Broad Field Language Arts licenses allow graduates to teach English in grades 6-12 and journalism and speech communication in grades 7-10. The option to earn a license in Journalism and/or Speech Communication is required to teach those content areas in upper high school (grades 11-12), in addition to grades 7-10. Praxis II (English Content Test) is required for all four options. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin. Students completing the English Broad Field Language Arts concentration have four licensing options:

- English and Broad Field Language Arts (2 licenses 47 credits)
- English, Broad Field Language Arts, and Journalism (3 licenses 53 credits)
- English, Broad Field Language Arts, and Speech Communication (3 licenses 53 credits)
- English, Broad Field Language Arts, Journalism, and Speech Communication (4 licenses 59 credits)
- 1. **Option One: English and Broad Field Language Arts Concentration** (2 licenses): EPW 201, EPW 202, EPW 210, EPW 493 (2 credits); ENG 205, ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 307 (2 credits); ENG 346 or 347; ENG 422, ENG 492; COM 210, COM 255.
- 2. **Option Two: English and Broad Field Language Arts Concentration plus Journalism** (3 licenses): All courses required for Option One (above), plus EPW 211 and EPW 296 (3 credits).
- 3. **Option Three: English and Broad Field Language Arts Concentration plus Speech Communication** (3 licenses): All courses required for Option One (above), plus COM 231 and COM 232.
- 4. **Option Four: English and Broad Field Language Arts Concentration plus Journalism and Speech Communication** (4 licenses): All courses required for Option One (above), pl us EPW 211, EPW 296 (3 credits); COM 231, COM 232.

**English Literature Minor** (19 credits): EPW 202 or 210; ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 205 or 307 (4 credits).

**English Professional Writing Minor** (18 credits): Any combination of EPW major course requirements (excluding ENG 200, ENG 485, and EPW 498) for a total of 18 credits. English Literature concentration majors may apply no more than 8 credits from their English courses toward the English Professional Writing minor.

**Journalism Minor** (18 credits): EPW 201, EPW 211, EPW 296, EPW 396; COM 255; and one photography or videography course taken from Art, Graphic Design, or Public Relations.

**English Education Minor** (23 credits): EPW 202 or 210; EPW 493 (2 credits); ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 254, ENG 422; ENG 205 or 307 (2 credits).

English Education Minor MC/EA (Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence) (18 credits): EPW 202 or 210; ENG 203, ENG 223, ENG 233, ENG 422.

**Journalism Education Minor** (18 credits): EPW 201, EPW 211, EPW 296 (reporter), EPW 396 (designer); COM 255; and one photography or videography course taken from Art, Graphic Design, or Public Relations.

English Literature and Professional Writing Courses Literature Courses ENG 200 Introduction to Careers and Studies in English

Introduction to the field of English studies, especially its discipline specific research. Focus on career exploration and preparation. Should be taken during the first or second semester at the College.

#### ENG 203 lit Introduction to Literature: Fiction, Drama, and Poetry 3 credits

Study of fiction, drama, and poetry as genres with the terms and literary conventions that belong to each. Valuable preparation for any other literature course.

#### ENG 205 lit Literature of the Western World

Introduces the student to great world literature in its various genres using discussion and writing to deepen appreciation and understanding. Selections represent the classic tradition from the Greeks to the Renaissance.

#### **ENG 211 lit Women Writers**

Readings span several hundred y ears of literature by women, including nonfiction, fiction, poetr y, and dram a. Students respond to the readings in reflective and analytical essays.

#### ENG 213 lit Literature Across Cultures

Provides an introduction to multicultural global lite ratures. This course ai ms to increase students' cultural and global awareness through the study of literature across ethnic, cultural, and national boundaries. Content and focus will vary.

142

# Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 3 credits

#### November 15, 2010

#### 2 credits earch Foo

4 credits

#### ENG 223 lit Survey of British Literature

An overview of British literature from Anglo-Saxon to 20th-century literature. Students read representative works from each major period t o become acquainted with the major writers and the predom inant literary and cultural features of that period.

#### ENG 233 lit Survey of American Literature

Study in the development of a national literature includi ng selections from the Puritans, Romantics, Naturalists, Realists, and Modernists. Examination of how various texts reflect the social, cultural, and moral development of the United States from 1600 to the late 20th century.

# **ENG 235 lit Development of American Fiction**

Survey of major works of American fiction in 19<sup>th</sup> and 20<sup>th</sup> centuries. Selections may be novels, short stories, or a combination of both.

# ENG 254 lit Shakespeare

Introductory course using selections from the histories, co medies, tragedies, and sonnets to study William Shakespeare as a dramatist, poet, and theatrical craftsman.

### **ENG 285 lit Special Studies in Literature**

Variable content for specialized study. Past topics in clude: Women's Voices, Literature of Healing, Mothers and Daughters in Literature, Literature and Gender. May be repeated for credit with change in topic.

# ENG 307 lit (g) World Literature

Students read major works from countries around the world and explore author s' representations of human life in its personal, social, political, and spirit ual dimensions. Selections challenge literary and cultural bounda ries and encourage global understanding.

# **ENG 346 lit Studies in the American Novel**

Selections may be based on a historical perspective, the works of a particular writer or group of writers, a particular theme, or a literary type. Prerequisite: prior literature course.

# ENG 347 lit Studies in the British Novel

Selections may be based on a historical perspective, the works of a particular writer or group of writers, a particular theme, or literary type. Prerequisite: prior literature course.

# **ENG 349 lit Studies in Contemporary Literature**

Focus on recent literary works. Course may be constructed on the basis of genre, themes, or authors. May be repeated for credit with change in topic.

143

# **ENG 381 lit World Drama**

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

# 4 credits

# 4 credits

# 3 credits

4 credits

2 or 4 credits

2-4 credits

3-4 credits

3-4 credits

# 3 credits

#### 3 credits

# Wide reading and critical evaluation of representative world drama from classical Greece to the 20th century.

# **ENG 385 lit Special Studies in Literature**

Variable content for specialized or interdisciplinary coursework. Past topics include: The Art of Reading, Literature and Small Towns, From Text to Film, American Women Writers, Wo men Writers of Latin America. May be repeated for credit with change in topic.

# **ENG 390 lit Creative Nonfiction**

Readings and independent research focused on autobi ography, essay s, letters, memoirs, and other creati ve nonfiction writing.

# **ENG 422/522 Linguistics**

Overview of linguistics: language teaching and acquisition, language and culture, dial ects and standard English, problems of usage. Special attention to linguistic theory as applied to American English.

# **ENG 485 Capstone Experiences**

Focuses on final portfolio preparation and career search. Should be taken senior year or first semester, junior year. Ideally, the internship(s) should be completed prior to taking Capstone. Half semester class.

# ENG 492/592 Literary Criticism

Review of classical Greek origins of issues concerning the nature of literature and criticism. Study of m ajor 20thcentury theories and applications.

# **Professional Writing Courses**

# **EPW 201 cm Reporting and Feature Writing**

Practice in newsgathering, hard news and feature re porting, headline writing, general assign ment and beat reporting, and interviewing. Som e attention to broadcast news writing. Students in class ar e reporters for Arches, the college newspaper.

# EPW 202 cm Introduction to Creative Writing

Writing and reading of narratives, fictional scenes, and poetry, moving from the factual to the imaginative. Students learn the forms, sty les, and conventi ons used by other creative writers while exercising their own voices and creativity.

# **EPW 210 cm Intermediate Composition**

Intensive practice in prose writing that presents information and ideas and is intended to inform and/or persuade. Emphasis placed on writing acade mic prose, relating cont ent to appropriate for m, doing pertinent resear ch, and documenting sources appropriately. Elements of style emphasized.

# **EPW 211 Editing and Publishing**

Practice and application of basic journalistic principles of news style, copy-editing, and design layout. Work with 144

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

# 2-4 credits

3 credits

# 4 credits

# 4 credits

# **3 credits**

# **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

2 credits

typography, illustrations, and printing processes. Students edit copy and assist in the production of the college newspaper. Prerequisite: EPW 201.

**EPW 296 Arches** 

Independent writing that offers practical experiences working on Arches newspaper. Students develop and design news, feature, and editorial pages, and photo essays. Prerequisite for reporters: EPW 201.

#### **EPW 301 Promotional Writing for the Media**

Theory and practice in writing for print media, radio, and TV: press releases, public service announcements, ad copy, profiles, features. Computer word processing techniques required for the course. Cross-listed with PRP 301.

#### EPW 309 cm The Professional as Writer I & II

Focus on the elements of effective written communication: analyzing pur pose, audience, or ganization, to ne, and style as well as developing resear ch skills and revision techniques. Course emphasizes writing projects in students' intended professions. Prer equisite: SYM 102 or equivalent transfer cr edit. Offered periodically; should be taken prior to EPW 331 and EPW 370.

#### **EPW 317 Advanced Creative Writing**

Course may focus on poetry, fiction, screenwriting, children's literature, or creative aspects of professional writing. Instruction in techniques, study of professional samples, analysis, and critique of student writing. May be repeated for credit with new topic. Prerequisite: EPW 202.

#### EPW 331 cm Technical Writing

Provides experience in writing form all reports and proposal s, in creating and placing graphics, and in creating electronic presentations. Introduces writing instructional materials, designing websites, and technical editing.

#### **EPW 333 Script Writing**

Provides practice in analyzing, writing, and organizing material in script formats for video productions and for TV and radio announcements and commercials. Process moves from story-boarding to editing. Cross-listed with PRP 333.

#### **EPW 334 Writing for Social Media**

Course focuses on promotional writing using blogging and social media such as Facebook, Twitter, Reddit, and MySpace. Audience, conventions, and opportunities/limitations of using social media will be discussed. Crosslisted with PRP 334.

#### EPW 335 Creating Print and Web Materials for Small Businesses

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Provides practice in writing for newsletters, fly ers, br ochures, and website s. Focuses on the needs of s mall businesses and creative ways to meet their writing needs. Cross-listed with PRP 335.

#### **EPW 336 Creating Professional Presentations and Training Materials** 2 credits

145

## 2-4 credits

4 credits

## 2 credits

## 2 credits

#### 2 credits

## 3 credits

## 3 credits

2-4 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

brochures, and advertising copy. Prerequisites: EPW 309 and one of these: BUS 248, EPW 331.

#### EPW 396 Arches

**EPW 370 Media Writing** 

In-depth study and hands-on work in journalism and the production of the college newspaper, *Arches*. Prerequisite: EPW 296.

Focuses on creating professional business presentations and writing effective training materials. Use of appropriate

Provides students with experiences i n writing copy and designing print materi als for internal and external audiences. C overs basic news writing sty le and press rel eases; introduction to desi gning newsletters, fly ers,

#### EPW 493/593 Persuasive Communication and Rhetorical Theory2 or 4 credits

software and collaborative work emphasized. Cross-listed with PRP 336.

Explores m ajor theories and research in rhetoric and persuasive communication. Focus es on the function of persuasion in a variety of written and oral contexts su ch as advertising, political discourse, and war propa ganda; current and historical public communication events will be examined. Cross-listed with COM 343.

#### EPW 498 Internship

Field placement of a student with a publisher, newspaper, agency, business, or other organization. The nature of the assignment, types of writing experience, num ber of credits, and evaluation procedure to be stipulated in a written contract involving the student, the supervisor, and the acade mic advisor. Ideally, students s hould complete one or more internships prior to taking ENG 485: Capstone Experiences.

#### **World Languages and International Studies**

The World Languages Program is designed to develop the student's ability to understand, speak, read and write the target lan guage, as well as to understand and appreciate its culture and literature. The program also prepares prospective teachers and leads to a mastery of the l anguage sufficient for graduate study. The department offers courses in American Sign Language, French, Ger man, Italian, and Spanish, each conducted in the target language, with a m ajor and m inor in Spanish and Internati onal Studies/S panish or International St udies/ESL. S tudents majoring in Spanish or International Studies/Spanish (and Education majors with a teaching minor) must attain the high interm ediate level o n the ACTF L (American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages) proficiency examination before their s enior year. The low-advanced level is preferred for Spanish Education majors and th e advanced level for Bilingual Education minors. Majors (and all in the Teacher Education program with a Spanish emphasis) must also prepare a senior portfolio and present it formally to the department during their final semester. Language teaching majors and minors must also fulfill the requirements of the education department. See the Education section of this Bulletin for co mplete information. Stu dy abroad (o r equivalent immersion experience, such as work, service learning or internship), with residence among native speakers, is required of all majors (and teaching minors) in Spanish. A minimum of four weeks is required; alternative arrangements may be considered in extreme cases.

146

#### 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

Some world language courses may fulfill core requirements in communication/math, others in literature or fine arts. These are coded "cm", "lit" and "fa", respectively.

Any student presenting high school background in a world language who com pletes a language course above the Elem entary I level at Mount Mary College w ith a grade of B or better may receive retroactive credit . Retroactive credits may be received for only one course and count only as electives toward graduation. They do not count toward the Spanish major or minor or in the core curriculum . A student may not receive retroactive credits along with AP or CLEP credits; the st udent must choose one of these options. Retroactive credits may not be transferred in or out of the College. Please see the retroactive credit and CLEP exam sections of this Bulletin for more information. (Note: CLEP exams are only given off-campus, a fee is charged and st udents do not earn as many credits as they can through the retroactive credit option.)

#### **Spanish**

Qualified students may apply to major or minor in Spanish, Spanish Education or International Studies/Spanish at any time. Students in the Education program must maintain an overall grade point average of 2.5 and a 2.5 grade point average in Spanish courses. Students in the general program (Spanish major or minor or International Studies/Spanish) must maintain an overall grade point av erage of 2.0 and a 2.5 grade point average in Spanish courses for the major.

The major/minor in Spanis h consists of a group of c ourses required of all students in the major/minor and a concentration of courses from either education, the pr of sisten concentration, culture and literature or the concentration for Native/Heritage Spanish-speakers.

**Spanish Major Requirements:** (29 credits): All students majoring in Spanish are required to take the following courses:

Spanish Major "Core" Requirements (8 of the 29 credits): SPA 201, SPA 227g/fa, and FLA 460.

**Spanish Major Course Requirements** (29 credits): SPA 201, SPA 227, FLA 460; and one of the following 21 credit concentrations:

Professional Concentration (21 credits): SPA 203, 204, 222, 223, 333, 334, and FLA 300.

OR

Culture/Literature Concentration (21 credits): SPA 222, 223, 228, 333, 334, 375, and 485.

OR

Spanish Education Concentration (21 credits) (EC/A licens e or Spanish teaching m inor in EC/MC or

147

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

MC/EA — see Education section): SPA 222, 223, 228, 333, 334, 375, 485 and EDU 324. (Excludes SP A 201 from Spanish Major Core Requirements.)

#### OR

Native or Heritage Speakers of Spanish Concentration (21 credits): SPA 228, 375, 396, 485, 496, 498, and FLA 300.

**Note:** All Spanish majors, except those in the Native/Heritage Speakers concentration are also required to study abroad in a Spanish-speaking country for at least one month. Native and heritage speakers are encouraged to do so or to experience another culture through one of the College's other sites for study abroad.

#### Spanish Minor: Spanish Minor Course Requirements (24 credits):

**Professional concentration**: SPA 203, 204, 222, 223, 227, 333, 334 and FLA 300.

Culture/literature concentration: SPA 222, 223, 227, 228, 333, 334, 375 and 485.

**Concentration for Native or Heritage Speakers of Spanish:** SPA 227, 228, 375, 396, 485, 496, 498 and FLA 300.

**Spanish for Professionals Certificate (15 credits):** This certificate is available for Mount Mary undergraduates, post-baccalaureates, and non-degree seeking students with or without a Bachelor's degree. The following courses are required: SPA 203, 204, 222, 223, and 227.

Note: There is no special certificate in SPA for Professionals for Native/Heritage speakers of Spanish.

**Bilingual (English/Spanish) Education Minor: Early Childhood/Elementary, Elementary/Middle School or Middle/Secondary School (a minimum of 19 credits):** SPA 326, 333, 334, 382/582, 486/586, EDU 331/535, FLA 332/586. See the teacher education section of this bulletin for education courses and requirements. Middle School/ Secondary School majors must have a second teaching major (not Spanish). Study abroad beyond the minimum of 4 weeks is recommended for non-native speakers to insure adequate fluency. Non-native speakers may also need extra Spanish courses in order to acquire adequate fluency in the language.

#### **Spanish Courses**

#### SPA 101 cm Elementary Spanish I

For students who offer no credits in Spanish at entrance. Introduces students to the four basic language skills of speaking, listening, reading and writing and to the culture of the Spanish-speaking worl d. No prerequisite or retroactive credits.

148

#### SPA 102 cm Elementary Spanish II

Continuation of Spanish 101. Prerequisite: SPA 101 or one year of high school Spanish. (Retroactive cred its upon successful completion of course = 3.)

#### SPA 201 cm Introduction to the Spanish Major

Introduction to the field of Hispanic Studies with emphasis on exploration of career options and the knowledge and skills necessary for success in specific careers. Guidelines for portfolio preparation and concentrations within the major are included. Should be taken during the first year once the major is declared.

#### SPA 203 cm (g) Intermediate Spanish for Professionals I 3 credits

Grammar review and specialized vocabulary and structures oriented to the various professions (Business; Medical; Social Services and Education) to allow communication with patients and clients at a basic level. Active participation in discussion and/or role-play ing to de velop the skills necess ary to function in everyda y situations with Spanish-speaking patients and clients. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 6.)

#### SPA 204 cm (g) Intermediate Spanish for Professionals II

Continuation of SPA 203. Prerequisite: SPA 203 or three years of high school Spanish. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 9.)

#### **SPA 211 Retroactive Credit**

Please see the retroactive credit section of this bulletin for the College's retroactive credit policy.

#### SPA 222 cm (g) Spanish Composition

Grammar review and practice of individual and group e xpression in written form, designed to assist the st udent in improving skills in Spanish. Prerequisite: SPA 204 or four y ears of high school Spanish. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 12.)

#### SPA 223 cm (g) Conversation in Spanish

Individual and group expression in ora 1 form, designed to assist the student in improving speaking skills and fluency in S panish. Prerequisite: SPA 204 or fou r years of high school S panish. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 12.)

#### SPA 227 fa (g) Introduction to Hispanic Civilization and Culture

Introduction to the civilization and culture of the various Spanish-speaking peoples, including those in S pain, Latin America, and the United States. Prerequisite: SPA 222 and/or 223 or f ive y ears of high school Spanish. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 15.)

#### SPA 228 lit (g) Introduction to Hispanic Literature

Introduction to literature written in Span ish, including prose, poetry and dram a. Texts by both Spanish and Latin American au thors. Prerequisite: SPA 222 and/or 2 23 (recommended: SPA 227) or five y ears of high school

149

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

2 credits

#### 3-15 credits

**3 credits** 

3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

Spanish. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 15.)

#### SPA 326 The Hispanic-American Experience

An exploration of the internal and external historical, cultural and political experiences which form the life of the present day Hispanic-American. E mphasis will be on the Mexican-American, Puerto Rican and Cuban American experiences. Hispanic American literat ure and arts will be included. Conducted in Englis h, with all readings in English. However, students with no knowledge of Spanish must be willing to learn some Spanish vocabulary items. No prerequisites or retroactive credits.

#### SPA 333/533 cm Spanish Phonetics

Introduction to the basic term inology and concepts of li nguistics and phonology, with more detailed study of the sound system of the Spanish language and a comparison of Spanish and English phonetic structures. Includes study at an introductory level of applied linguistics and second language acquisition. Prerequisite: SPA 222 and 223; open only to students with previous college-level Spanish.

#### SPA 334/534 cm Syntax

Introduction to basic terminolog y and concepts of syntax and morphol ogy, with m ore detailed study of Spanish grammar and a comparison of Spanish and English morphemes and syntactic structures. I neludes study at an introductory level of second language acquisition and applied linguistics. Prerequisite: SPA 222 and 223; open only to students with previous college-level Spanish.

#### SPA 373/573 lit Survey of Latin American Literature

Survey of the best work in prose and poetry of Latin American authors and a study of the influence of their work. Prerequisite: SPA 228. Offered as needed.

#### SPA 375/575 fa (g) Latin American Civilization

Manifestations of the histo ry, arts, religion, geo graphy, and sociology of Latin American countries. Prerequisite: SPA 227.

#### SPA 382/582 Teaching Reading, Writing, and Content Areas in Spanish 2 credits

An introduction to the theoretical reasons for using a phonics approach to teaching beginning reading skills and writing skills in Spanish as well as appropriate methods to use. An exploration and practice of the many methods of moving bey ond the phonics approach in teaching reading and writing skills in Spanish. The development of integrated units that incorporate cognitive learning strategies in a total language arts program and in the teaching of content areas in Spanish. Practical applications of this information will be made in class through lesson plans and microteaching. Prerequisite: Attainment of the advanced proficiency level of ACTFL in all four language skills.

#### SPA 475 Current Issues in Latin America

Intensive consideration of selected cu rrent issues in Latin Am erica. Through readings and discussion students will come to a better understanding of the historical and c ontemporary forces which are im pacting some of the developments in Latin America. Permission of instructor required.

150

### 3 credits

3 credits

#### 3 credits

#### 3 credits

**3 credits** 

#### 3 credits

#### SPA 483/583 lit Survey of Spanish Literature

Survey of the best work in prose and poetry of S panish authors and a study of the development of Spanish literature. Prerequisite: SPA 228.

#### SPA 485/585 fa (g) Civilization of Spain

Influences and tendencies prevalent in Spanish history, arts, philosophy, sociology, and religion. Prerequisite: SPA 227.

#### SPA 486/586 Bilingualism/Biculturalism

An introduction to first and second la nguage acquisition t heories, with fo cus on the acquisition of Spanish and English. Methods of appr opriate ass essment for bilingual students in both language and content areas will be examined. Strategies for accelerating the acquisition of ESL or SSL will be explored. Cognitive, cultural, and social implications of bilingualism/biculturalism will be addressed. Prerequisite: SPA 334 or permission of instructor.

#### SPA 487/587 Studies in Literature

Specialized focus course to allow students to explore in more depth one or several Spanish or Latin American authors or the development of one particular genre. Prerequisite: SPA 228.

#### **SPA 495 Special Topics in Spanish**

Course title and subject matter vary according to student need and interest. Specific topic (in language, literature, or civilization) announced before semester registration. Advanced standing in Spanish required. May be repeated with a different topic.

#### SPA 396-496 Independent Study in Spanish

For the advanced student of Spanish: offered by the instructor as a readings course or individual research project according to the discretion of the instructor and/or the needs and interests of the student.

#### **SPA 498 Internship**

For the Spanish major, an enhancem ent of the edu cational experience through placem ent with a co operating agency, busi ness, institution, or industry. Nature of the assignment, type of experience, number of credits, and evaluation procedure to be stipulated in a statement of agreement involving the student, the supervisor, and the academic ad visor. Required for the Spanish m ajor with the professional concentration and the Spanish for Native/Heritage Speakers concentration. May be repeated for credit.

## **Other Courses in World Languages**

### **American Sign Language Courses**

### ASL 101 cm Elementary American Sign Language I

Introduction to the nat ural acquisition of Am erican Si gn Language through practice in signing on everyda y communication topics. Aspects of deaf culture incorporated int o class activities as appropriate to con tent. No

151

### 2 credits

3 credits

3 credits

3 credits

1-4 credits

2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

## 3 credits

prerequisite.

#### ASL 102 cm Elementary Sign Language II

Continuation of ASL 101. Prerequisite: ASL 101 or permission of instructor.

## **German Courses**

**GER 101 cm Elementary German I** 

Intensive practice of basic patterns to enable the student to understand, speak, read and write sim ple contemporary German. No prerequisite or retroactive credits.

#### **GER 102 cm Elementary German II**

Continuation of German 101. Prerequisite: GER 101 or one y ear high school German. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 3.)

#### GER 203 cm Intermediate German I

Extends the student's control of the lan guage through oral practice, reading and writing. Prerequisite: GER 102 or two years high school German. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 6.)

#### **GER 204 cm Intermediate German II**

Continuation of German 203. Prerequisite: German 203 or three years of high school German. Germ an 204 or the equivalent is a prerequisite for an y subsequent course in Ger man. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 9.)

#### **GER 211 Retroactive Credit**

Please see the retroactive credit section in this bulletin for the College policy on retroactive credit in German.

#### **GER 224 cm German Composition**

Active control of structures through guided and fr ee compositions, to devel op skill in using correct, idiomatic years of high school Ger man. (Retroactive cr edits upon successful German. Prerequisite: GER 204 or four completion of course = 12.)

#### **GER 225 cm German Conversation**

The use of correct, idiomatic German with good pr onunciation in short reports and c onversations. Prerequisite: GER 204 or four years high school German. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 12.)

#### **GER 235 lit Introduction to Types of Literature**

Reading and discussion of modern German fiction, drama, poetry, and essays. Prerequisite: GER 224 or 225 or five years of high school German. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 15.)

#### **GER 295 Special Topics**

152

#### **3 credits**

## **3 credits**

#### 2-4 credits

November 15, 2010

## 3 credits

3 credits

3 credits

3 credits

### 3 credits

#### 3-15 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### **French Courses**

# Although the College does not currently offer a major or minor in French, students are encouraged to enroll in French courses to fulfill core requirements or to satisfy personal interests.

Specialized study in area of interest to the student. Prerequisite: GER 204.

#### FRE 101 cm Elementary French I

Introduction to French and francophone cultur e. Aural-or al practice, g rammar, writing and reading. No prerequisites or retroactive credits.

#### FRE 102 cm Elementary French II

Continuation of French 101. Prerequisite: FRE 101 or one y ear high school French. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 3.)

#### FRE 203 cm Intermediate French I

Thorough grammar review a nd continued development of oral and wr itten proficiency through vocabular y and cultural information. Acti ve participation in discussion and/or role-play ing to develop the skills necessary to function in everyday situations with French-spea king peoples. Reading an d short compositions are required. Prerequisite: FRE 102 or two years high school French. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 6.)

#### FRE 204 cm Intermediate French II

Continuation of French 2 03. Prerequisite: FRE 203 or three years high school French. (Retroactive cre dits upon successful completion of course = 9)

#### FRE 211 Retroactive Credit

Please see the retroactive credit section of this bulletin for the College's retroactive credit policy.

#### FRE 222 cm French Composition Plus

Grammar review and basic composition in French, with ongoing development of appropriate oral skills. Prerequisite: FRE 204 or four years high school French. Offered fall semester. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 12.)

#### FRE 223 cm French Conversation Plus

Practice in oral expression and presentation, both formal and informal. Grammar review and composition as needed to support oral skill development. Prerequisite: FRE 204 or four years of high school French. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 12.)

### FRE 227 fa Introduction to Francophone Civilization and Culture

Introduction to the geography, civilization, and culture of the French-speaking peoples, including t hose in Africa, Europe and North America. Prerequisite: FRE 222 and/or 223 or fiv e years of high school French. (Retroactive

153

## 3 credits

3-15 credits

#### 3 credits

3 credits

## **3 credits**

## 3 credits

**3 credits** 

credits upon successful completion of course = 15.)

#### FRE 253 lit Introduction to Francophone Literature

Development of reading skills, interpretation and sty listic analysis (oral and written) on the elementary level. Selections range from classical to modern from various francophone areas. Prerequisite: FRE 222 and/or 223 or five years of high school French. (Retroactive credits upon successful completion of course = 15.)

#### **FRE 276 lit French Literature in Translation**

Representative readings in French literature (read in English) revolving around a central theme to be chosen by the instructor or upon the request of i nterested students. Texts, films and/or speakers depend on the the me. No prerequisites or retroactive credits.

#### **FRE 305 cm French Phonetics**

Study of the French sound system, with intensive practice on pronunciation, patterns of intonation and stress and phonetic transcription. Prerequisite: FRE 222 and 223.

#### **FRE 306 cm French Linguistics**

Study of basic linguistic t heory (morphology and syntax) as ap plied to French and of the history of the French language. Comparison of French and English syntactic structures. Prerequisite: FRE 222 and 223.

#### **FRE 333 lit Great Writers**

Major works in French literature from the Middle Ages to the 20<sup>th</sup> century. Emphasis on the social, philosophical and historical background as necessary to understand the period, author and work. Prerequisite: FRE 253.

#### **FRE 350 French for Business**

Overview of the current economic and political situation in France and study of the practical vocabulary, concepts, and communication skills necessary for survival and success in the francophone world of business. Oral and written reports are required. Prerequisite: FRE 222 and 223.

### FRE 366 fa French Civilization and Culture

Study and di scussion of significant aspects of francophone culture, past and present. Newspaper subscription required. Prerequisite: FRE 227.

### **FRE 405** Contemporary Writers

Study of the work of contemporary French authors in various genres. For the advanced student of French.

### FRE 396-496 Independent Study

For the advanced student of French. Offered by the instructor either as a r eadings course or individual rese arch project, according to the needs and interest of the students. Requires approval of instructor and depart ment chair. May be repeated for credit.

154

### 3 credits

3 credits

**3 credits** 

3 credits

## **3 credits**

#### **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

## 2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

#### **FRE 495 Special Topics**

For the advanced student of French, a seminar on a topic of literary or cultural interest, as dictated by the needs and interests of the students. May be repeated for credit with a different topic. Offered as needed.

#### FRE 498 Internship

For the French major, an enhancement of the educational experience through placement with a cooperating agency, business, industry or institution. Nature of the assignment, type of experience, number of credits and evaluation procedure to be stipulated in a statement of agreem ent involving the student, the super visor and the academic advisor. May be an elective in the French program. May be repeated for credit.

### **Italian Courses**

#### ITA 101 cm Elementary Italian I

Introduces the student to the four basic language skills of speaking, listening, reading and writing. No prerequisites and no retroactive credits.

#### ITA 102 cm Elementary Italian II

Continuation of ITA 101. Prerequisite: Four credits of ITA 101 or equivalent.

### **International Studies**

The International Studies major is designed to help students develop the skills required to compete in an increasingly global society. In addition to world language study and a study abroad experience, the major requires courses in business and the social sciences. Minors frequently associated with the International Studies major include business, history, political science, or a second foreign language depending on the student's career interest. This interdisciplinary major in International Studies requires a concentration in Spanish or English as a Second Language (the latter for in ternational students on ly). The concentration in Spanish includes the complete major in the language and all of the same requirements of the Span ish major (number of credits, proficiency level and study abroad) also apply.

The International Studies major creates a broad range of career opportunities including: government service, international business, international law, diplomatic service, international education, travel i ndustry, intercultural communication, translating/interpreting, and graduate study in a variety of fields.

Required courses for all International Studies majors include: ANT 102; BUS 3 01, 302, 303; COM 235; GEO 310; four credits chosen from HIS 260, 270, 275, OR 280; HUM 386; IST 200, 400; MAT 105; and any political science course. Basic computer competency in word processing, email and internet usage are also required.

**International Studies Major Requirements:** 56-68 credits; World Language study; Study Abroad, computer competency and a concentration in Spanish or English as a Second Language (ESL).

#### 2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

#### 3 credits

Course Requirements for International Studies Major (35 credits): ANT102; BUS 301, 302, 303; COM 235; GEO 310; three credits from HIS 260, 270, 275, or 280; HUM 386, MAT 105 and any Political Science Course; and one of the following concentrations:

International Studies: Spanish Concentration (33 credits): IST 200, 400; SPA 222, 223, 227, 228, 333, 334, 375, 485 and FLA 460.

International Studies: English as a Second Language Concentration (21 credits): IST 200, 400, COM 104; COM 231; 232; ENG 100; and one 200 level literature course from the English Department.

#### **International Studies Courses**

#### **IST 100 Study Abroad Orientation**

Required of students participating in Mount Mar y Colle ge's Januar y "winterim" or su mmer programs abroad . Orientation to the culture of the country of study, along with preparations for successful study abroad experiences. May be repeated with a change of topic. Offered the semester before a study program.

#### **IST 200 Introduction to International Studies**

An examination of relationships am ong the world's cultures and nations. The role of the United States in its relationships with other cultures and nations will provide the focal point for this course.

#### **IST 400 Senior Seminar: Contemporary International Issues**

Study of relationships among the worl d's cultures and nations and how the y interact with one another in times o f cooperation and conflict. This course relies on the disciplines of history, political science, and behavioral sciences. Among issues examined are: globalization, security, development, the environment, and social justice.

#### FLA 200 fa Global Cultures

Examination of behavioral norms and values of non-U.S. cultures through representative films, along with reading, etc. Courses taught in En glish, films in a world language (French, German, Italian, Mandarin or Spanish) with English subtitles. May be repeated with change of topic.

#### FLA 300 (g) Introduction to Translation Interpretation

For the advanced student of French or Spanish. Intr oduction to the principles of written translation and oral interpretation. Includes instruction and practice in written translation of both literary and technical/commercial texts and oral interpretation in professional situations and dubbing of film or other audiovisual material. Prerequisite: FRE 305 AND 306 or SPA 333 AND 334 or the equivalent.

#### FLA 332/532 Teaching English as a Second Language

Study of methods, practice and materials for the teaching of English as a second language. Emphasis will be placed on the teaching of ESL in the K-12 school system. This course is open to any student who has studied a foreign language at least one year in college and who is interested in teaching ESL or EFL. This is a required course for Bilingual Education majors. However, students planning to teach adults or to teach EFL abroad should have further

156

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

### 3 credits

## 3 credits

3 credits

1 credit

#### **3 credits**

### 3 credits

training, since this course will serve only as an introduction.

#### FLA 460 Senior Project

#### 3 credits

The senior sem inar for Spanish majors. Independent re search project on some aspect of Spanish language or Hispanic literature/culture. Portfolio of all studies in the major due at midterm. Culminates in a written and an oral exposé\_ of the student's portfolio, research project and essay on culture before the department faculty. May include a proficiency exam with an outside examiner.

#### FLA 495/595 Special Topics in Teaching ESL/ Bilingual Students 1-4 credits

Course title and subject matter vary according to advanced students needs and interest. Specific topic announced before semester registration, however, the topics are chosen from the following:

#### Parent and Community Involvement in Bilingual Education

Development of means to involve parents effectively in students' educational program. Exploration of the variety of community agencies, services, values, and social structures in the students' home experience and reflection. Development of m eans to foster open communication with fam ilies of diverse cultural and linguistic backgrounds.

#### Adolescent and Children's Literature and Information Sources in Spanish and English

Examination of a variety of books, media, and internet resources that would be of interest to the bilingual child. Devel opment of means of de termining appropriateness of material ac cording to the student's cognitive and developmental stage and the cultural standards of the community. Means of assisting students to the value and the benefits of maintaining good bilingual/bicultural skills in their current and future life.

#### **Professional Development in ESL/Bilingual Education**

Preparation of a professional portf olio with reflective commentary that demonstrates the knowledge, performance proficiencies, and dispositions of the sev en standards. Explain the resource s available and appropriate for ongoing professional development. Develop the ability to use research tools and findings to improve classroom practices and to find and develop partnerships for enhanced professional development. Development of ways in which to serve as an active advocate for the rights of ESL students.

### Nursing

# Mount Mary College and Columbia College of Nursing Joint Bachelor of Science in Nursing Program

In 2002, Mo unt Mar y College and Colum bia College of Nursing established an intercollegiate bachelor of science degree in nursing (BSN) program. This innovative e ducational partnership offers the highest caliber of preparation for a career in nursing , com bining Colum bia College of Nursing's m ore than 100- year h istory of excellence in nursing edu cation with Mount Mar y's 90 years of highly respected liberal arts education. Students

157

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

first enter Mount Mary College as pre-nursing stude nts. Students who meet eligibility criteria (including both men and wo men, transfer students, and reg istered nurse BSN completion students) may be adm itted to the Upper Division nursing program at the beginning of the junior year. Within a liberal arts framework, nursing students integrate the latest in nursing education with dynamic and stimulating clinical experiences in a variety of clinical sites, enabling them to meet the challenges of health care today and into the future.

Students complete the Mount Mary College liberal arts core (described elsewhere in this b ulletin) and nursing support courses through Mount Mar y College and nursing courses and clinical experiences (a total of 62 credits) through Colum bia College of Nursing. The nursing s upport courses ar e as f ollows: General Biology, General Chemistry, Organic and Biochem istry, Anatom y and Ph ysiology, Microbiology, In troduction to S ociology, Introduction to Psychology, and Developmental Psychology.

More com plete informati on about the requirem ents of this intercollegiate degree and nursin g course descriptions are available in a separate document that may be obtained from either college.

### **Philosophy and Theology Division**

#### Liberal Studies Major

The Liberal Studies major is designed to provide an opport unity for wo men who hold associate degrees in technical/business fields from an accredited technical college to earn a bachelor of arts degree.

This program promotes the growth of women who would benefit from a wider, more holistic perspective on the world. It is intended for women

- who are seeking a job that requires a bachelor's degree,
- who need a four-year degree for job promotion,
- who desire general skill development in reading, writing and critical thinking,
- who wish to stimulate their minds and grow intellectually, and
- who are interested in lifelong learning.

Students may transfer in up to 64 credits from an as sociate degree program. To obtain the BA students must complete approximately 64 additional credits that include core courses and a concentration in a liberal arts area. Students must have earned a C or higher for a course to transfer. Students also must demonstrate math competency. Courses are offered in day, evening, and accelerated formats with the exception of SYM 110, Leadership Se minar, which is only offered in day and evening formats.

**Liberal Studies Major Requirements**: 64 Credits; Mount Mary College Core Curriculum; SYM 110; Capstone (3 credits); and a ten-credit concentration in one of the core realms:

**Capstone (3 credits)** In a capstone course students will develop a portfolio to provide evidence that they have met the goals and objectives of the core as well as that they have integrated their new learning with their learning in the associate degree programs.

**Concentration in one of the core realms (10 credits)** To gain depth, students will complete a concentration by taking at least 10 additional credits in one of the realms to reach the minimum of 128 total credits. These 10 credits must be at the 200 or above level and at least 6 of the credits must be at the 300 or above level.

#### **Philosophy Major**

The unique character of philosophical questions is that they must be re-answered for every generation. Thus the Philosophy Department seeks to instil 1 in its students an appreciation of the perennial questions as well as the ability to approach them with intelligence and integrity.

**Philosophy Major Requirements**: 30 credits; 2.0 GPA overall and a grade of "C" or better in all PHI courses; at least 16 credits must be taken at Mount Mary College.

**Philosophy Major Course Requirements** (30 Credits): PHI 497 plus 28 credits in philosophy. SEA101 is included among these credits unless the grade is below a "C."

**Philosophy Minor Course Requirements:** 20 credits in philosophy. SEA101 is included among these credits unless the grade is below a "C."

#### **Philosophy Courses**

#### SEA 101 sea Search for Meaning

Course required of all students. Reading and discussion of classical and contemporary authors from a philosophical and theological viewpoint; reflection on such ele mental human concerns as the possible sources of happiness, the role of conscience in personal integrit y, the meaning of suffering and death, and the transcendent dimension of reality - including an exploration of meaning within the Christian tradition.

#### PHI 315 cm Logic and Language

An investigation into the study of language and logic in critical thinking.

#### PHI 316 cm Logic

Introduces informal logic as well as modern symbolic logic. Consideration of the philosophical presuppositions of logic, especially the notions of knowledge, truth and validity.

#### PHI 326 phi Theory of Ethics

An examination of one of the most central questions in philosophy: How ought I live? This course has to do with daily life and the questions that strike us all from time to time: What does it mean to be g ood? Why try to live a good life? How can I be happy?

#### PHI 330 phi Contemporary Issues in Ethics

159

#### 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

2-4 credits

#### 4 credits

2-4 credits

Exploration of some of the leading m oral dilemmas in contem porary life. Using various ethical theories, possible solutions are proposed to these dilemmas and the implications of those solutions are critiqued. Som e issues f or consideration include: capital punish ment, porno graphy, economic justice, affirmative action, environm ental concerns.

(May be repeated for credit with permission of the instructor or department chair.)

#### PHI 332 phi Philosophy of Health

This course enquires into the nature of what human beings deem health and illness. We will consider both historical and contemporary philosophies of health including questions regarding the health of the mind, body, and the bodymind relationship. Readings may include Plato, Ari stotle, Descartes, Nietzsche, Phyllis Chesler, C arol Gilligan, Ivan Illich and Donna Haraway.

#### PHI 334 phi Technology and Human Values

This course explores the intersection of technolog y and human values. It investigates the bearing technolog y has upon the formation of moral identity, moral communities, and the moral habitation of the planet. Among the issues it usually examines are the role of technology in the pace of life and thought, changing identities in the digital age, on-line communities, population management and ethical consumption.

#### PHI 335 phi Social and Political Philosophy

Study of the person's relation to civil society based upon the works of classical and contem porary political philosophers. Involves a consideration of the nature of political authority, freedom and human rights. Cross-listed with POS 335.

#### PHI 337 phi Readings in Philosophy

Presentation of the philos ophical enterprise through in-depth reading of selected texts of the great philosophers. (May be repeated for credit with permission of the instructor or department chair.)

#### PHI 343 phi Philosophy of Religion

A study of the relationship between philosophical questioning and religious beliefs. Analy sis of the philosophical strengths and weaknesses of the central affir mations religion makes about the nature of reality, the exi stence of God, and the nature of the soul.

#### PHI 344 phi Philosophy and Literature

This course explores intersections of philosophy and lite rature, philosophical ideas as the evappear in different literary genres, and the moral importance of literature in shaping social and ethical views.

#### PHI 345 phi Philosophy and Film

This course i neludes an a esthetics of c inematic experience as well as the util ization of specific fil ms to explore philosophical questions. It involves weekly screenings and analysis of films.

160

#### 4 credits

4 credits

# 2-4 credits

4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### PHI 346 phi Philosophy of Art and Beauty

Examination of the question of what differentiates the esthetic experience from other human experiences, with a view toward understanding both the artist's act of creation and the audience's act of appreciation.

#### PHI 351 phi Plato

"Plato is philosoph y and philosophy Plato," said Emerson. Study and discussion at length of those incom parable dialogues which have entertained, fascinated and aroused readers for over 2000 years.

#### PHI 352 phi Aristotle

Designed to introduce the student to that intellectual giant of the ancient world whose genius has so inf luenced Western civilization that for many centuries he was simply known as The Philosopher.

#### PHI 355 phi Women Philosophers

An exam ination of some of the philosophical ideas broug ht forth by wom en historically and presently. Such thinkers might include Sappho, Hildegard of Bingen, Mary Wollstonecraft, Simone de Beauvoir, etc. In particular, discussion will focus on the issue of the nature and vocation of women. (May be repeated for credit with permission of the instructor or department chair.)

#### PHI 360 phi Global Philosophy

A study of a world regions' or cultures' philosophical tradition.

#### PHI 361 phi Christian Philosophy

A consideration of what Christianity has to say philo sophically. An exam ination of fun damental philosophical questions (What is the go od life? W hat can be known with certainty? What is the nature of the transcendent?) through the eyes of several Christian thinkers.

#### PHI 365 phi Modern Philosophy

Introduction to the central issues raised in that rev olutionary period of philosophy's history which began with Descartes and ended with Kant.

#### PHI 367 phi Contemporary Philosophy

Designed to give students a basic understanding of major thinkers who have shaped the way contemporary people view the world and h uman life. Am ong those usual ly considered are Kierkeg aard, Nietzsche, Freud, B eauvoir, Foucault and Baudrillard.

#### PHI 369 phi (g) Philosophy of Contemporary Culture

Contemporary culture has been called: global, digital, informational, consumerist, post-modern, post-colonial, post-historical, post-industrial – and m any other names. Using a collection of r eadings, this course will attem pt to understand contemporary culture and determine how it affects one's personal search for meaning.

161

#### PHI 375 phi (g) Philosophy of Love

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 4 credits

4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

## 4 credits

2-4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 4 credits

November 15, 2010

Love has been called everything from a pathological condition to divinity itself. This course will explore, in various times and cultures, ways humanity has understood this powerful concept.

#### PHI 379 phi Issues in Philosophy

Designed to enable students to engage in concentrated study of a particular issue or figure in the history of philosophy. May be repeated for credit with permission of instructor/department chair.

#### PHI 496 Independent Study

Consent of department chair required. Offered as required by majors.

#### PHI 497 Senior Independent Study

Designed to provide philosophy majors with an in-d epth reading of selected texts from the great philosophers. Permission of chair.

#### **Theology Major**

The Theology Department maintains that a fully human life includes response in faith to God. The department provides opportunities for students to understand and find m eaning in the Judeo-Christian tradition and enter into dialogue with both Christian and non-Christian traditions.

The department offers a major and m inor in theology for those interested in any type of church ministry, in graduate school, in en hancing a career or major in another area, or in personal enrichment. The major or minor in religious education, in conjunction with the teacher education program, provides preparation for teaching in grades 6-12. A Certificate in Theology is available to stude nts who have already earned an undergraduate degree and now wish to obta in a major in theology. The requirements are the same a s for a theology major. Self-designed independent readings courses offer students the opportunity to pursue areas of interest beyond the list ed course options. Internships for majors are encouraged.

Students seeking adm ission to the de partment must receive departmental approval and maintain an overall grade point average of 2.3, with a grade point average of 2.5 in major courses. Transferred theology credits will be evaluated for their applicability toward the major. At least 12 credits of the major or minor, plus the Search for Meaning course, must be earned at Mount Mary College. Application is normally made prior to the junior year. The theology major culminates with a Synthesis Seminar (THY 398-498) and an exit interview.

**Theology Major Requirements**: 36 credits; 2.5 GPA in major and 2.3 GPA overall; SEA 101 Prerequisite; Synthesis Seminar; exit interview; concentration

**Theology Major, Course Requirements:** Two credits selected from THY 398, 498 (Synthesis Seminar); and 10 credits selected from among the following: One or more of the above courses, not previously taken; an additional Synthesis Seminar on a topic not previously taken; an Internship; Special Topics courses; and / or an Independent Readings course and one of the following concentrations:

#### 2-4credits

2 credits

2-4 credits

**Biblical Theology Concentration Requirements:** (8 credits) THY 310 or 312 and four credits from THY 330, 333, 338, 340, 342, 345, or 372.

**Historical Theology Concentration Requirements:** (8credits) THY 326 or 328, and four credits from THY 320, 326, or 328 (whichever is not used to fulfill the other four credits in historical theology), 346 or 373.

**Systematic Theology Concentration Requirements**: (8 credits) THY220 and four credits from THY 230, 317, 318, 346, 348, 350, 355, 360, 370 or 374.

**Religious Education Major Requirements:** 38 credits; SEA 101 Prerequisite; and Education Department Requirements.

**Religious Education Course Requirements:** Four credits in general biblical or Old Testament studies (THY 310, or 333 and 342); four credits in New Testament and related studies (THY 312, 318, 330, 338, 340); four credits in ethics (THY 348, 350, or an ethics course from the philosophy department); THY 317 (World Religions); 348 (Current Moral Issues or an ethics course from the Philosophy Dept.); 355 (Faith and Community); four credits in church history (THY 326, 328, or 373); a church history course; THY 398, 498 (Synthesis Seminar); and 8 credits of theology electives. synthesis seminar; eight credits of theology electives. See the Early Adolescence/Adolescence education section of this bulletin for education courses and admission requirements.

Theology Minor Requirements: 16 credits; SEA101 Prerequisite

**Theology Minor Course Requirements** (16 credits): Four credits in general biblical, Old Testament studies or New Testament studies (THY 310, 312, 330, 333, 338, 340, 342, 345, 372); twelve credits from any of the courses offered in the department.

**Religious Education Minor Requirements:** 28 credits; SEA 101 Prerequisite and Education Department Requirements.

**Religious Education Minor Course Requirements:** Four credits in general biblical or Old Testament studies (THY 310, or 333 and 342); four credits in New Testament and related studies (THY 312, 318, 330, 338, 340); THY 317 (World Religions); four credits in ethics (THY 348, 350, or an ethics course from the philosophy department);348 (Current Moral Issues or an ethics course from the Philosophy Dept.); THY 355 (Faith and Community); and four credits of theology electives. See the Early Adolescence/Adolescence education section of this bulletin for education courses.

Note: Ordinarily, SEA 101 is required before taking any other theology course. Exceptions require department chair's approval.

#### Theology

SEA 101 sea Search for Meaning

163

4 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Course required of all students. Reading and discussion of classical and contemporary authors from a philosophical and theological viewpoint; reflection on such ele mental human concerns as the possible sources of happiness, the role of conscience in personal integrit y, the meaning of suffering and death, and the transcendent dimension of reality — including an exploration of meaning within the Christian tradition.

#### **THY 220 thy Christian Theological Foundations**

Introduction to the basic them es and issues in Christian the eological inquiry. Areas covered may include the nature of faith as the human response to the experience of the transcendent, religion as the context in which the response of faith is lived out, and theology as the process of critical reflection on faith. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 230 thy Essentials of the Catholic Tradition

Overview of the essentials of the Rom an Catholic tradition, including a basic understanding of church, sacraments, spirituality, and the moral life. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 310 thy The Sacred Writings of Israel

Introduction to the world, text, and t heology of t he Hebrew Bible ("Old Testament"). Indivi dual books are examined for their unique faith perspect ives. Historical, geographical, and archaeological information is employed to help deepen understanding of the original contexts of the writings. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 312 thy The New Testament

Introduction to the world, text, and theology of the New Testament. Individual books are examined for their unique faith perspectives. Historical, geographical, and archaeological inform ation is em ployed to help deepen understanding of the original contexts of the writings. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 317 thy World Religions**

Introduction to the world 's living relig ions: Hinduis m, Buddhism, Confucianism, Taoi sm, Islam, Ju daism and Christianity. In order to understand the religious dimension of human life, the foundations of all religion will parallel the study of the individual religions. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 318 thy The Person and Mission of Jesus

Systematic study of the mystery of Jesus Christ. Exam ines biblical, historical and contemporary understandings of Christ in light of modern scholarship and reflects upon their implications for authentic Christian living today. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 320 thy Christian Classics**

Study of the spiritual writings, music and art of Christiani ty from the Patristic period to the present. Readings may include texts by John Chrysostom, Augustine of Hip po, Thomas Aquinas, Dante, Julian of Norwich, Hildegard of Bingen, Mart in Luther, T eresa of Avi la, John Henry Newman, Gerard Manley Hopkins, Flanner y O'Connor, Thomas Merton, Dorothy Day and Martin Luther King, Jr. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 326 thy History of Christian Thought I

164

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 4 credits

## 2-4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

4 credits

## 4 credits

2-4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

November 15, 2010

Introduction to the history of Christian theology from the beginnings of the church to the eve of the Reform ation. Basic themes covered in the course may include the humanity and divinity of Christ, the development of the creeds, reason and revelation, and church and state. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 328 thy History of Christian Thought II

Introduction to the history of Christian theology from the Reformation to the present. The course will focus on the history of religious ideas, especially as it relates to the development of Roman Catholic and Protestant theology in the West. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 330 thy The Gospel and Letters of John

Seminar-style exploration of the Fourth Gospel' s uni que proclamation about Jesus an d of the three lett ers associated with John. Focus on theological ideas, influences, imagery, and the "social location" of these writings in early Jewish and Christian communities. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 333 thy The Wisdom Literature**

Introduction to writings that offer sust ained reflection upon hum an experience. Subject areas include the character of ancient wisdom, the wisdom books of the Old Testament, and the influence of wisdom within the writings of the New Testament.

#### **THY 338 thy The Letters of Paul**

Exploration of the New Testament' s earliest proclamation about Jesus. Modern literary methods are used to gain deeper insight into the the ology of the writings attributed to Paul. Topics include the m ystical Body of Christ, justification by faith, death / resurrection, and redemption. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 340 thy The Synoptic Gospels**

Study of the first three New Testament gospels - Matthew, Mark, and Luke - with an emphasis on the unique faith perspective of each. Subjects include first century Pal estine and the literary distinctiveness of each gospel, including its portrait of Jesus, its fi rst intended audi ence, and its spiritual meaning for the believer. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 342 thy The Psalms**

Survey of various psalm s and psalm types, with attention to the historical cir cumstances of their composition and the ways in which they highlight specific aspects of Israel's ongoing relationship with God. Prerequisite: SEA101.

#### **THY 345 thy Biblical Perspectives on Justice**

An examination of the roots of soci al justice in the Jewish and Christian traditions, as manifested in the Hebrew Bible / Old Testament and in the N ew T estament. Representative readings are drawn primarily from the Pentateuch, the literature of the Prophets, the ethical teachings of Jesus in the Gospels, and the moral exhortation present in the letters of Paul.

#### **THY 346 thy Modern Christian Social Thought**

165

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

2 credits

2 credits

4 credits

### 4 credits

#### 2 credits

#### 2 credits

#### 2 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Approval of the department chair is required.

## Supervised, work-oriented experience, individually designed to a chieve and in tegrate academic and career goals.

development, etc. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

1-4 credits **THY 383 Internship** 

166

#### Prerequisite: SEA 101. THY 374 thy Special Topics in Systematic Theology 2-4 credits

literature, etc. Prerequisite: SEA 101. THY 373 thy Special Topics in Historical Theology

Consideration of special topics such as early Christian writings, women in Church history, Christian mysticism, etc.

## **THY 370 thy Women and Theology**

THY 372 thy Special Topics in Biblical Theology

A course designed for those serious about theology to assess critically images of God, the legacy of Scripture, and Church Tradition from feminist perspectives. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### THY 360 thy God and the New Physics

4 credits Introduction to both the theological and scientific modes of inquiry about the nature of and the wisdom within the universe. Students will be guided through a series of interdisciplinary questions addressing how faith in God relates to the natural sciences and in particular, physics.

4 credits **THY 355 thy Faith and Community** 

e.g. abortion, war, economic justice, sexual behavior, racism, family values and others. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### **THY 348 thy Current Moral Issues**

4 credits Initial presentation of factors involved in responsible moral decision-making. Consideration of current moral issues,

#### THY 350 thy Theological Ethics in Healthcare

and justice-related statements from the World Council of Churches.

Examines bioethical issues – such as beginning of life and end of life issues – through the principles of theological and philosophical ethics. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

Christian thought as it evolves to address questions of social justice, from the late 19<sup>th</sup> century to the present. Readings focus primarily on the documents of C atholic social teaching, the Protestant "s ocial gospel" movement,

The dynamics of Christian faith and the communal context in which it is expressed, nurtured and lived out. Special attention is given to the na ture of the Church and to the various ways in which it is embodied in different cultural contexts. Prerequisite: SEA 101.

#### 2-4 credits

### Consideration of special topics such as the social mission of the Church, theology in film, the dynamics of faith

## 4 credits

## 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits Consideration of special topics such as the prophetic books, biblical orientation to modern social issues, apocalyptic

#### **THY 296-496 Independent Readings**

Independent readings offered in an area of special interest not covered by the regular theology courses in this Bulletin. Permission of department chair is required.

#### **THY 398-498 Synthesis Seminar**

#### 2 credits

1 credit

Designed to provide theology majors and minors with an in-depth discussion course on a pertinent topic. Required of all majors.

#### **Preprofessional Studies**

Preprofessional courses pr epare students to enter schools of dent istry, law, medicine or veterinary science. Since acceptance into pr ofessional schools is ver y competitive, pre-professional students should be m indful of the many factors governing t hese admissions: high undergraduate academic achievement, some study specialization and acceptab le scores on the prospective professional school 's standardized adm issions test. It is strongly recommended that preprofessional stu dents acquire a copy of their prospective ad missions exa mination manual early in their undergraduate career. They will thus be able to apprise them selves of the knowledge and skills required and plan their studies accordingly.

#### Prelaw

Prelaw at M ount Mary College is an advising service based on the recommendations of the American Bar Association and the Law School Adm ission Council. It does not entail a specific set of courses but ra ther is a selective process which encourages a student to engage in broad-based academic studies that are rigorous and well-grounded in the liberal arts as the optimum preparation for law school.

The faculty member designated as prelaw advisor works with students and their major ac ademic advisors to assist in preparing the students for law school. Students are a dvised to take courses that, when reviewed by the law schools, fulfi ll three ke y criteria: create a context i n which law m ay be bett er understoo d, dem onstrate well-developed communication skills, and fi nally, de monstrate analytical skills. Depart ments whose o fferings are recommended as being particularly appropriate for prospective law students in clude: English, History, Philosophy, World Languages, Behavioral Science, Business, Political Science and Justice.

#### Premedical, Predental, Preveterinary

In most cases, medical, dental and veterinary schools select students with a liberal education who have majored and excelled in a field of interest while also dem onstrating ability in several science courses, mathematics and English composition.

Students may major in any area but should have at least one year of each of the following laborator y sciences prior to attem pting their ad mission examination: biolog y, gen eral inorganic chem istry, organic chemistry and

167

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

physics. Some schools recommend additional science courses along with mathematics, particularly calculus. Since these schools evaluate candidates on t he basis of the first three y ears in col lege, students are encouraged to complete the requirements by the end of the junior year.

For information on the preprofessional sequences for biology and che mistry majors, plea se se e the Sci ences section of this bulletin.

### **Social Sciences and Related Disciplines Division**

#### **Behavioral Science Majors**

The Behavioral Science Department offers two i nterdisciplinary m ajors: Behavioral Science (co mbining anthropology, psychology, and sociology), and Psychology/Behavioral Science (an extension and strengthening of the psychology component of the Behavioral Science major. An interdisciplinary minor in Anthropology/Sociology (ANSO) and a certificate in Peacebuilding are also offered.

The interdisciplinary orientation of the Behavioral Science majors provides students with an understandi ng of individuals and the social structures that affect their lives. A cross-cultural analysis encourages students to develop a global perspective. An appreciation of diversity and exploration of social justice issues are an integral part of the curriculum. The study of quantitative and qualitative research methods enables students to develop critical thinking skills which can be used to better observe and evaluate situations encountered in everyday life.

The majors successfully prepare stude nts for graduat e school, careers in hum an services, and for productive lives as citizens of their country and world. Recent Behavioral Science majors have pursu ed graduate degrees in sociology, urban studies, library science, experi mental psychology, counseling psychology, clinical psycholog y, rehabilitation counseling, gerontology, and child developm ent. Graduates with bachelor s' degrees in Behavioral Science ar e employed in a wide vari ety of settings, particularly in hum an services, go vernment, commerce, research, and business. The Anthropology/Sociology (ANSO) minor provides students with a deeper understanding of culture and society. Students acquire the skills and knowledge to better understand global society by focusing on the structures of social systems, the diversity of human experience, and the comparative approach to social science. The Peacebuilding Certificate prepares students to transform conflict from a negative experience into a positive and constructive situation. Students learn the basic skills of how to understand a situation and develop an appropriate strategy that takes into account the values, beliefs, and goals of all those involved in conflict.

Opportunities for enrich ment outside of the classroom include activities sponsored by the Behavioral Science Club, Alpha Kappa Delta (the International Sociology Honor Society) and Psi Chi (the International Honor Society in Psychology). The department sponsors an annual conference on campus as well as atten dance and presentations at conferences off cam pus. Students ar e strongly encouraged to take advantage of opportunities for int ernships, independent studies, directed study, and research assistantships in the majors.

168

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Admission requirements for the Behavioral Science majors include completion of two courses in the major at Mount Mary College with a minimum average grade of BC, and an over-all grade point average of 2.0. A 2.5 grade point average must be maintained in Behavioral Science c ourses in order to remain in the majors and at least 15 credits in the major must be taken at Mount Mary College. A prospective major should contact the department chair as soon as possible. Courses in biolog y are strongly recommended for students pursuing a Psy chology/Behavioral Science major.

**Behavioral Science Major Requirements:** 44-47 credits; 2.5 major GPA; 2.0 overall GPA; optional concentration advised for students planning to pursue graduate work.

**Behavioral Science Major Course Requirements** (44-47 credits): ANT 102; two courses from the following: ANT 248, 252, 305, 324, 340 or 367; PSY 103; two courses from the following: PSY 214, 303, 315, 320, 325, 337, 410, 420, 429, 456, 480 or 490; SOC 101 and 355; two courses from the following: SOC 220, 225, 240, 252, 301, 325, 336, 358, 363, 375 or 430; BES 200, 310 and 494.

**Psychology/Behavioral Science Major Requirements:** 48-51 credits; 2.5 major GPA; 2.0 overall GPA; concentration in psychology.

**Psychology/Behavioral Science Course Requirements** (48-51 credits): PSY 103, 214, 438 ; one course selected from the following: PSY 337, 410, 420, 480 or 490; one course selected from the following: PSY 320, 325, 429 or 456 ; ANT 102; two courses selected from the following: ANT 248, 252, 305, 324, 340, or 367; SOC 101; two courses selected from the following: SOC 201, 220, 225, 240, 252, 301, 325, 336, , 358, 363, 375, or 430; BES 200, 310 and 494.

Anthropology/Sociology Minor: 21-24 credits; students may transfer up to two courses from another college.

**Anthropology/Sociology Minor Course Requirements:** ANT 102, 324 and one additional anthropology course 200 level or above; SOC 101, and two additional sociology courses 200 level or above excluding SOC 356.

**Peacebuilding Certificate Requirements:** 19 credits; 2.5 GPA in Peacebuilding curriculum; 30 hours of community service; and students are strongly encouraged, although not required to pursue study in world languages and participate in a study abroad opportunity.

**Peacebuilding Certificate Course Requirements** (19 credits): SEA101; one course from the following: THY 345, 346 or THY 348; SOC 220 or 240; BES 250. Two additional courses are required; one selected from Area 1: Cultural and Social Understanding (ANT 324, ANT 340, COM 235, GEO 310, HIS 280, IST 200, PSY 337, SOC 336, SYM 110, or THY 317) and one selected from Area 2: Social Issues (ANT/SOC 252, BIO 220, JUS 106, PHI 330, PHI 334, POS 326, PSY 315, SOC 150, SOC 240, THY 345, or THY 346, or THY 348). An additional elective course may be taken from Area 3: Advanced Skills.

#### **Anthropology Courses**

#### ANT 102 bes (g) Cultural Anthropology

Introduction to the anthropolo gical perspective through a cross-cultural analy sis of subsistence techniques, economics, politics, religion, art, language, kinship sy stems and marriage patterns in societies around the world. Discussion of theoretical frameworks, fieldwork methods, and the processes and impact of cultural change.

#### ANT 248 bes Profiles of Cultures

In-depth study of selected so cieties, their traditional cultural patt erns and adaptations to c ontemporary situations. Includes a focus on the rights of indigenous peoples, the processes of globalization, and an analysis of U.S. cultural patterns. Prerequisite: ANT 102.

#### ANT 252 bes Women, Peace and Conflict

Consideration of the contributions of women to peacebuilding and their experiences during times of war or conflict. Exploration of connections between gender and violence as well as opportunities for peaceful change through women's leadership within the context of cultural and structural systems of societies around the world.

#### ANT 305 bes Culture and Aging

Investigation of the proce ss of aging from a cross -cultural perspective with a focus on non-Western traditional societies and on racial/ethnic groups in the United States. Examination of the effects of family organization, social networks, cultural values, modernization and minority status upon the experience and status of older people.

#### ANT 324 bes Comparative Minority Relations

Examination of relations between do minant/subordinate groups i n the U.S. and in selected societies around t he world. Analy sis of attitudes of prejudice and struct ures of discri mination, their causes, maintenance an d consequences. Current controversial issues related to majority/minority relations are explored.

#### ANT 340 bes Border Crossings: Immigrants, Refugees, Tourists

Examination of a variet y of bor der-crossing experiences and their challenge to a traditional understanding of "culture." Includes ethnographic accounts of contemporary immigrant and refugee populations, an analy sis of U.S. immigration policy, and the impact of tourism on selected societies. Prerequisite: ANT 102.

#### ANT 367 bes Anthropology of Women

A cross-cultural approach to understanding gender and its relation to ideol ogical, familial, economic and political systems. Includes an analysis of theoretical orientations u sed to examine the role of gender in society, and focuses on the experiences and strategies of women as identified in selected ethnographic accounts. Prerequisite: ANT 102.

#### ANT 395-495 bes Topics in Anthropology

Opportunity to study a significant topic or a particular geographic area from an anthropological perspective. Course title varies from semester to semester and is announced on the semester schedule. Prerequisite: ANT 102.

170

#### 4 credits

## 3 credits

4 credits

### 4 credits

**3 credits** 

## 4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

#### ANT 396-496 Independent Study

Personally designed course in which the student resear ches, in consultation with a faculty member, a topic in anthropology. Prerequisite: Open to qualified students with permission of the instructor. Priority given to majors.

#### ANT 398-498 Internship

Work experience in an area of applied anthro pology supervised by agency personnel a nd department advisor. Prerequisite: Open to qualified students with permission of the instructor. Priority given to majors.

#### **Behavioral Science Courses**

#### **BES 200 Introduction to Careers in Behavioral Science**

Introduction to the behavioral sciences with an explanation of department requirements, assessment, and portfolio. Sessions focus on self-assessment, res earching car eers, writing resu mes and cover letters, identify ing career opportunities available in anthropology, sociology, and psychology, and the graduate school option.

#### **BES 250 Conflict Resolution Skills: Mediation Training**

Introductory course in practical skills and hands-on training for third-part y intervention in conflict through mediation. Skills covered include listening, facilitation, problem-solving, and conflict intervention. Presented in a workshop for mat with interactive exer cises for skill practice. No previous experience with conflict resolution is necessary.

#### **BES 310/510 Behavioral Science Statistics**

Focus on the use of descriptive and inferential statistics as tools for conducting and interpreting research. Research questions from all areas of behavioral science will be analyzed to promote competence in interpreting data. Includes t-tests, correlations, chi-squares, and ANOVA. Prerequisites: Math competency fulfilled, PSY 103, SOC 101 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **BES 350 Community Organizing**

Students in this class meet with area non-profit leaders to learn about how they can reach community members and gather resources for social transformation. First-hand experience in the community is put in context with theory and analysis from the community-organizing literature. Prerequisite: BES 250.

#### **BES 479 Conflict Mediation for Professionals**

This course provides the student a solid foundation in the theories and practice of conflict resolution using a mediation process. Students practice applying specific skill sets for conflict transformation, including formal mediation, dialogue circles, and problem-solving meetings. Prerequisite: BES 250.

#### **BES 494 Senior Seminar**

Final integrative opportunity during the senior year. Students develop portfolios which reflect their under standing of the organization of the Behavioral Science curriculum and it s interrelation with the College mission and the liberal arts core. Participation in field trips and 12 hours of service learning are required to emphasize awareness of social justice issues. Must have senior level status to enroll.

171

#### Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

1-4 credits

## 1-4 credits

## 1 credit

1 credit

## 4 credits

### 1 credit

## 1 credit

#### 2 credits

### **Psychology Courses**

#### PSY 100 bes Psychology of Human Adjustment

Introduction to strategies used to address challenges in everyday life. Classic and contemporary research is applied to topics such as stress, coping, interpersonal communication, friendship and love, interpersonal communication, social cognition, human development, careers, psychological health, and psychological disorders. Students will gain an awareness of the opportunities they have in their lives and how psychological principles are used to help them understand the world around them. For non-majors only.

#### **PSY 103 bes Introductory Psychology**

Introduction to basic concepts, theories and applications in the areas of learning, development, perception, cognition, intelligence, personality, psychopathology, motivation, psychotherapy, social psychology, the brain and behavior.

#### PSY 214 bes (g) Developmental Psychology

Survey of the theories and research findings regarding lifespan human deve lopment. Cultural and social factors considered. Cognitive de velopment and ps ycho-social influences on various life-cy cle stages emphasized. Prerequisite: PSY 103.

#### PSY 240 bes Psychology and Film

Exploration of feature-length films to discover what they show us about psychological issues and how they can change us. Films will be viewed in class to enhance our common experience in preparation for discussion. Topics will include m otivation, personality psychology, psychopathology, and psychotherapy. Prerequisite: PSY 103 or consent of the instructor.

#### PSY 303 bes Psychology of Aging

Exploration of ps ychological research and theory regarding the aging process with app lication to students' lives. Topics include cognitive and perceptual development, personality development, psychological impact of social and family relations, sexuality, psychobiological changes, retirement, death and bereavement, and counseling in relation to the issues of aging.

#### **PSY 315 bes Psychology of Peace**

Application of ps ychological concepts to an understanding of the cau ses and consequences of aggression and conflict at levels ranging from interpersonal to international. Discussion of topics such as altruism, reconciliation, and peace building provide the foundation for socially responsible action and greater awareness of how t o reduce conflict and bring about positive change.

### PSY 320 bes History and Systems of Psychology

History of psy chology is traced from its origins in phi losophy to the s ystems of contem porary ps ychological thought. Special emphasis is placed on the c ontributions of ps ychologists during the 19<sup>th</sup> and 20<sup>th</sup> centuries. The

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### **3** Credits

4 credits

4 credits

3 credits

#### **3 credits**

#### 3 credits

## 4 credits

#### 172

evolution of various schools of thought, including Structuralism, Functionalism, Behaviorism, Gestalt Psychology, Psychoanalysis, Hu manism, and Cognitive Psy chology, is explored. Prerequisite: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### PSY 325 bes Psychopathology

Application of basic ps ychological theory and re search to the explanation of disordered behavior and its modification. Strong em phasis on developing an a wareness of the continuit y between "norm al" and "abnorm al" experience and ways of living, particularly for students entering one of the helping pr ofessions. Prerequisites: PSY 103; PSY 214 or OCT 225.

#### PSY 337 bes Cognitive Psychology

Exploration of theories and research methods used to st udy human thought processes. Topics include perception, memory, imagery, language, concept form ation, problem solving, reasoning, decision making and cognitive development. Prerequisite: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 394 Research Assistantship**

Opportunity to assist a faculty member with research the faculty member is conducting. Prerequisite: Permission of the instructor.

#### PSY 395-495 Topics in Psychology

Opportunity to study a significant topic from a psy chological perspective. Course title varies from semester to semester and is announced on the semester schedule. Prerequisite: PSY 103.

#### PSY 396-496 Independent Study

Opportunity for students with a general backgroun d in psychology to expl ore a specific area of psy chology in depth. Individual library research and other possibilities are alternatives available to the student. Exact nature and format of the project, tim etable and method of evaluation to be determined in consultation n with t he in structor. Prerequisite: Open to qualified students with permission of instructor. Priority given to majors.

#### **PSY 397 Directed Research**

Opportunity for students with research experience in psy chology to pursue an independent research project under the supervision of a faculty member. Prerequisites: BES 310, PSY 438, and permission of the instructor.

#### PSY 398-498 Internship

Work experience in an area of applied ps ychology su pervised by agency personnel and department advisor. Prerequisites: Open to qualified students with permission of the instructor. Priority given to majors.

#### PSY 410 bes Physiological Psychology

Introduction to the biological bases of behavior. Examination of nervous system structure and function is followed by a surve y of the neuroanatomical and physiological foundations of such to pics as sensory and m otor function, sleep and arousal, learning and memory and other complex behaviors and internal body states. Prerequisites: PSY

173

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 4 credits

4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

#### 4 credits

103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 420 bes Psychology of Emotion**

Exploration of contemporary research that illustrates theori es about the area of emotion. Survey of practical and theoretical topics that address emotions in the context of neuroscience, culture and development. A wide range of topics are covered including fear, anxiety, anger, aggressive behavior, love compassion, empathy, stress physiology and health consequences. Prerequisites: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 429 bes Psychology of Personality**

Study of major theories of personality emphasizing their basic concepts and constructs as t hey attempt to account for individual differences and individual consistencies in human behavior. Pre requisite: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 438 Experimental Psychology**

Emphasis on use of the scientific method applied to psychological theory. Design, execution, and reporting of research. Collection and analy sis of data using descriptive and inferential statistics. Prerequisites: PSY 103; BES 310; and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 456 bes Social Psychology**

Interdisciplinary approach to the f unctioning of t he individual in a social context. Topics include the self, social perception. gender, attitudes, persuasion and attitude change, social influence, interpersonal attraction, prejudice and discrimination, aggression, prosocial behavior, and group behavior. Prerequisite: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 480 bes Sensation and Perception**

Exploration of the pathway s for ea ch of the s enses from t he transduction process t hrough the perceptual mechanisms. Emphasis on tracing the physiological path from external stimuli to the area of the brain responsible for turning a physical occurrence into a mental perception. Examination of com peting theories currently used to uncover mechanisms involved in perception. Prerequisites: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **PSY 490 bes Psychology of Learning**

Introduction to the branch of psychology that deals with how people and animals learn, and how their behaviors are later changed as a result of learning. Covers the general principles of learning applicable to many different species, and many different situations. Descriptions of principles, theories, controversies and experiments. Prere quisites: PSY 103 and one upper level psychology course.

#### **Sociology Courses**

#### SOC 101 bes Introductory Sociology

Overview of the disciplin e. Broad categories include: natu re and histor y of sociology, methods of so ciological research, organizing social life (social interaction and groups), social inequality (race, gender, age), major social

174

### 4 credits

4 credits

4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 4 credits

4 credits

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

**SOC 150 bes Social Problems** 

Analysis of n ational and g lobal systems of econom ic and soci al stratification, and investigati on of the str uctural bases of soci al problems and their potential solutions. Consideration of the i mpact of social inequalities on the emergence and persistence of social problems. Exploration of responses to social problem s, including exemplary programs and the challenges they face. For non-majors only.

#### SOC 220 bes Introduction to Conflict Transformation

Development of a deeper understanding of the ways in which conflict emerg es and the available strategies for addressing conflict am ong individuals and groups. Draws widely on the behavioral and social scien ces a cross disciplines to explore the nature of conflict and its r esolution. Opportunity to explore personal exper iences of conflict and peace processes on the global stage.

#### SOC 225 bes Families in the Social Context

Analysis of the function and history of family structures. Emphasis on families in the United States with selected comparisons to ot her countries. The ories concerning gender roles in relationship t o fam ily are explored. Prerequisite: SOC 101.

#### SOC 240 bes (g) Global Conflicts and Social Transformation

institutions and cultural diversity in a changing world. Offered every semester.

Focus on the development and escalation of conflicts with in and between states and peoples, and the pos sibilities for de-escalation and creative transformation. Covers topics such as conflicts over resources, values, human rights, and cultural beliefs, and the possible role of international, regional and local organizations in peaceful socia l transformations. Prerequisite: SOC 101 OR ANT 102 OR PSY 103.

#### SOC 252 bes Women, Peace and Conflict

Consideration of the contributions of women to peacebuilding and their experiences during times of war or conflict. Exploration of connections between gender and violence as well as opportunities for peaceful change through women's leadership within the context of cultural and structural systems of societies around the world,

#### SOC 301 bes Introduction to Gerontology

Survey study of the process of aging and its im pact on society. Emphasis on physiological, psychological, and sociological aspects of aging and their effects on the family, economy, work and retirement. Discussion of issues including racial/ethnic aging, long-term care, health policies, death and dying.

### SOC 325/525 bes Death and Dying

Basic background on historical and contemporary perspectives on death and dying. Attention is given to current American practices r egarding death, as well as cross-cultural interpretation. Pr actical, philosophical, familial and societal aspects of death and dying are covered.

#### **SOC 336 bes Comparative Societies**

## 3 credits

**3 credits** 

#### 4 credits

4 credits

#### 3 credits

#### **3 credits**

#### **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

175

Comparison of different societies around the world, with a focus on how globalization affects these societies. Social institutions, social inequality, values, and perspectives of three to five societies will be considered, compared to one another and the United States.

#### SOC 355 Research Methodology

Comprehensive introduction to research design using basic quantitative and qualitative approaches. Topics covered include descriptive statistics, survey design, interviewing, unobtrusive measures, and action research. Students develop their own resear ch and learn to locate and critica lly read journal articles in the Behavioral Sciences. Prerequisite: SOC 101, BES 310 and one upper level SOC or ANT course.

#### SOC 358 bes Medical Sociology

Analysis of how humans experience health and illness; political, economic, and environmental circumstances that threaten health; and societal forces that impact on the medical care system and on people's responses to illness. Prerequisite: SOC 101.

#### SOC 363 bes Urban Sociology

Examination of "the city" in the local and global context as well as processes of urbanization, suburbanization, and trends in population shifts. A general introduction to the processes of tracking and using demographic data. Special consideration is given to e nvironmental issues related to urban regions and the possibilities for sustainable urban communities. Prerequisite SOC 101.

#### **SOC 412 Applied Social Research**

Opportunity to creatively design and execute original res earch. Topic may be related to student 's proposal study from the previous m ethods course. O ngoing consultation through the research process. Prerequisites: SOC 101; SOC 355 or SWK 362.

#### SOC 430 bes Social Theory

Interdisciplinary study of the ideas of social theorists from the mid-19th century to the present. E mphasis on reading and interpreting theory as a continuous process of understanding our world and ourselves. In addition to traditional theory, the contributions of women, people of color, and ind igenous peoples to the understanding and analysis of the social world are included. Prerequisite SOC 101 and one other upper-level BES course.

#### SOC 395-495 Topics in Sociology

Opportunity to study a significant topic from a sociological perspective. Thematic focus of the course varies from semester to semester and is announced on the semester schedule. Prerequisite: SOC 101.

#### SOC 396-496 Independent Study

An opportunity for students with a back ground in sociology to explore a specific area of the field in depth. Library research, applied research, or extensive reading in a subfield are among the possibilities. Exact nature and format of the project, tim etable, and method of evaluation to be determined in consultation with the instructor. Open to qualified students with permission of instructor. Preference given to majors.

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 4 credits

3 credits

4 credits

## 2-4 credits

#### 4 credits

#### 2-4 credits

#### 1-4 credits

#### November 15, 2010

#### 176

#### SOC 398-498 Internship

#### 1-4 credits

Work experience in an ar ea of applied sociology. Arrangements made with an agency or organization for work under supervision. Ongoing consultation with designated faculty member. Prerequisite: Open to qualified students with permission of the instructor. Priority given to majors.

#### Master of Science Degree in Counseling

Graduates of Mount Mary's Master of Science in Counseling program will be eligible to apply for licensure as Licensed Professional Counselors (LPC) and will be traine d to provide ther apeutic support to indivi duals and families in many different settings. Three areas of concentration include community, school and pastoral counseling. Additional requirements include com pletion of 3,000 hours of post-master's clinical experience and passing the National Counselor Exam (NCE).

Graduates may be employed in a variety of settings including mental health clinics, community-based human services organizations, career counseling agencies, schools or colleges. Placem ent rates in different settings fluctuate due to economic changes and government funding of mental health programs.

#### **Social Work**

Preparation for entry level generalist social work practi ce is the pri mary goal of the Social Work Department. Curriculum content is selected to provide the student with skills useful in diverse settin gs and in work with individuals, families, small groups, organizations and the wider community. Emphasis is pl aced on learning from practice. Student field place ments are arranged in accordance with students' learning needs and interests. Students spend a total of 500 hours in field instruction developing social work skills through educationally directed practice. Mount Mary College has a long tradit ion of prepar ing students for social work practice. The College has held constituent mem bership in the Council on Social Work Education since 1963. The baccalaureate Soci al Work Department is accredited by the Council on Social Work Education. This accreditation has been continuous since 1974.

Graduates of the Social Work Department have been employed by hospitals and nursing homes, shelters for the homeless, family and children' s services, substance a buse program s, r ehabilitation centers, jails, probation and parole offices, and legislative and advoc acy services; a wide variety of employment opportunities exist for social workers with the bachelor's degree. In addition, many graduates of the department have completed master's degree programs in social work; advanced standing is available to our alumnae in many social work graduate programs.

The Social Work Department has two student or ganizations: the Social Work Club and Alpha Delta Mu. The club promotes a sense of community while providing opportunities for socializing and sharing common interests and concerns through community service, fundrai sers, food and clothing drives, as well as social and political action. Alpha Delta Mu is the Social Work Honor Society. It is open to junior level students who have achieved a cumulative GPA of 3.0 or above, who have completed at least six credits in the Social Work Department, and who have demonstrated leadership ability and dedication to social justice.

177

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Specific information about the two-phase for mal admission procedure for the major may be obtained from the Social Work Department. In part it includes com pletion of a self-study paper, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.3 and a 2.7 grade point average in social work courses.

Students must have completed the formal ad missions procedure and be approved by the Screening Committee before they may enroll in field educa tion courses. To re tain their status as social work majors, students m ust maintain a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.3, and 2.7 in social work courses required by the major; information about additional retention criteria may be obtained from the Social Work Department. Academic credit for prior life or work experience cannot be granted for any SWK course required by the major.

Social Work Major Requirements: 72 Credits; 2.7 GPA in major and 2.3 GPA overall; self-study paper.

**Social Work Major Course Requirements:** (72Credits); SOC 101; PSY 103, 214; POS 214,215; ANT 324; BIO 105; BES 310, SWK 231, 232, 330, 340, 342, 343, 362, 453, 455, 492, and 494.

#### **Social Work Courses**

#### SWK 231 (g) Introduction to Social Work

Study of the social work profession relative to its historical roots, fields of practice, ethical issues, professional organizations, and its relationship to social welfar e policy. Int roduction t o the knowledge, values and skills underpinning social work practice with diverse and at-risk populations.

#### SWK 232 Social Welfare Policies and Services

Philosophical and historical perspectiv es of social welfare are considered. Course provides an overview of the development of policies and services which address a wide variety of human populations and needs. Poli cies and services are considered in light of social and economic justice.

#### SWK 330 Human Behavior and Social Environment

Concepts from psychology, sociology, and biology are linked by means of a systems framework. Course readings, lecture/discussions and projects are designed to increase appreciation and understanding of human need and human diversity. Theoretical lear ning is applied in the assessement of behavior and in the planning of intervention at all social system levels. Prerequisites: SOC 101; PSY 214; BIO 105 or consent of the instructor.

#### SWK 340 Generalist Practice I

Generalist so cial work practice theory with a person- in-environment focus is u sed as a fra mework for the development of interventive skills. Students acquire skills in interviewing, r ecording, and developing client-worker relationships. The generalist practic ce perspective presented utilizes a problem-solving process across social systems. Prerequisites: SWK 231, 232; prerequisite or co-requisite: SWK 330. Open only to SWK majors who have completed Phase I of the Admission Process.

#### 3 credits

#### November 15, 2010

### 3 credits

## 4 credits

#### SWK 342 Field Education I

Students are placed in community social work agencies for 12 hours weekly of closely supervised field learning. Students are given responsibility for work with culturally diverse populations including individuals, families, groups or t he larger community. Field settings include child and f amily services, schools, correctional agencies, shelters, neighbor hood centers, nursi ng hom es, and others. A weekly 2 -hour sem inar increases students' understanding of field work education and helps students integrate theoretical concepts with practice. Prerequisites: SWK 330, 340, 362; pre- or co-requisite: SWK 343. Open only to social work majors who have completed Phase II of the Admission Process.

#### **SWK 343 Generalist Practice II**

The generalist problem-solving process introduced in generalist Practice I is studied through its concluding phases. Added is consideration of research methods appropriate for evaluation of ongoing practice. Work with families and groups em phasized. Populations of special concern incl ude th ose diverse in culture, ethnicit y, age, sexual orientation, ability, and spirituality. Prerequisites: SWK 330, 340, 362. Enrollment limited to social work majors.

#### SWK 348 Child and Family Services

Examination of the historical development of public and private social programs for children and families; policies related to foster care, adoption, rem oval of children, pe rmanency planning, and fam ily support; child and fam ily advocacy.

#### SWK 350 The African American Family

The African American family viewed from a broad perspec tive: historical, desegregation implications, sex roles, family life and child rearing, and so cioeconomic characteristics. Prerequisites: SOC 101, SWK 231 or consent of instructor.

#### SWK 356 Crime and Delinquency

Broad survey of crime and delinquency; review of the criminal justice system (police, courts and jails) at the local and state levels. Discussion of techniques employed in the rehabilitation of offenders. P rerequisite: SOC 101. Cross-listed with SOC 356 and JUS 356.

#### SWK 361 Chemical Dependency

Impact of substance abuse on the person, fam ily, and community. Nature of use and abuse of alcohol, legal and illegal substances. Hi storical perspectives, medical, psychological and behavioral aspect s examined. Treatment approaches and the recovery process are studied. Prerequisite: SOC 101 or PSY 103.

#### SWK 362 Research for Social Work

Introduction to t he research process: hy pothesis for mulation, literatur e review, resear ch design, and operationalization; overview of research analy sis and interpretation. Quantitative and qualitative resear ch methodologies for knowledge building and program and practice evaluation are emphasized. Includes application of computer technology and prepares students to cri tique current social work research. Prerequisites: SWK 231, 232, BES 310 is a preferred prerequisite, or consent of the Social Work Department Chair.

179

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 5 credits

3 credits

2 credits

2 credits

## 2 credits

4 credits

#### **3 credits**

#### SWK 379 Special Topics

Consideration of a special topic relevant to the profession or practice of social work; course may be repeated for a maximum of four credits.

#### SWK 453 Field Education II

A minimum of 12 hours each week is spent providing soci al services in a professional learning capaci ty in a community agency serving diverse populations. A new field setting is assigned for this academic year to strengthen the student's social work practice knowledge and skills. A weekly 2-hour field seminar emphasizes practice with populations at risk and lin kages with theory and practice. Prerequisites: SWK 342, 343; Pre- or co-requisite: SWK 455. Enrollment restricted to social work majors.

#### SWK 455 Social Policy and Generalist Practice

This course focuses on the interaction of community practice, organization practice and polic y practice. The generalist social work model is the underpinning of how students learn to create change in these systems. A social action project and polic y analysis assignment tie together the ory and practice. Prerequisites: SWK 342, 343, 362. Enrollment limited to social work majors.

#### SWK 492 Field Education III

A continuation of Field E ducation II. The weekly seminar encourages group analysis of field learning experiences as well as individual analy sis of one's professional use of self. The course assists in the integration of field and classroom learning experiences. Expected outcome of course: students who are competent to begin generalist social work practice with entry level professional skills. Students are required to complete a practice evaluation research project which is tied to their field setting. Prerequ isites: SWK 453, 455. En rollment r estricted to social work majors.

#### SWK 494 Senior Social Work Seminar

Engages student in a final integrative effort at the conclusion of the senior year. Students develop portfolios which reflect their achievement of the Social Work Depar tment competencies and integration of liberal arts and social work education. Prerequisites: SWK 453 and 455.

#### SWK 296-496 Independent Study

Provides students with an opport unity to design their own course, which may involve a field component, or to pursue content in an area of special interest. Prerequisite: social work major or consent of instructor.

#### History

# The History Depart ment offers majors in history, hi story teaching, and social studies t eaching. Minors ar e offered in history, political sci ence, history teach ing and political scien ce teaching. A Post-Baccalaureat e Certificate in History program is also offered.

#### 180

#### November 15, 2010

#### 1-4 credits

5 credits

## 5 credits

5 credits

#### 1-4 credits

The department offers a number of courses in an online or online/on demand format. The o nline/on demand format permits the student to start the course at any time in the semester. The student then has 15 weeks to complete the course.

# **History and Political Science Majors**

The histor y and political science majors study the people and history of United States, Western and non-Western societies, from political, social and cultural perspectives. From this viewpoint, history and political science are examined within the context of an integrated society, rather than as separate elements unrelated to overall social development. Courses are designed to develop an awareness, understanding and appreciation of the experiences and achievements of men and women from the past and present.

Studies in hi story and pol itical science prepare students for careers in politics, law, government, diplomatic service and education. Combined with courses in business, journalism and public relations, they widen the student's career possibilities.

Students intending to m ajor in histor y should conta ct the department chair as soon as possible. Students must maintain an overall grade point average of 2.2 w ith a 2.5 grade point average in maj or courses. Transfer students or students resu ming their college work after an extended period of time must have their history credits reviewed and evaluated by the chair. Credits earned m ore than six years ago may have to be updated. Transfer students m ust com plete a m inimum of eight semester hour s in histor y at Mount Mar y. Unique to the History Department, are the many courses offered in the **online or online/on demand format**. This allows students to keep moving toward their degree completion requirements at a **convenient time for them**. It is possible to complete an on-line minor in history.

Opportunities for enrichment outside of the classroom include activities sponsored by the History Club and Phi Alpha Theta (the national honor society in History ). The d epartment participates in the Annual Division Conference on campus as well as attendance and presentations at conferences off campus.. Student majoring within the History and Political Science Department complete a **professional experience segment** such as an internship, cooperative study project, or student te aching. This experience is usually scheduled for the junior or senior year. Locations are offered at a variety of settings and are based on your career goals.

History Major Requirements: 32 credits; 2.5 GPA in the major and 2.2 GPA overall.

**History Major Course Requirements** (32 Credits): HIS 106 or 107; 153 or 154; 260, 270 or 275; 355, 485; four history electives of which two must be at the 300-400 level. Additional electives are highly recommended for anyone planning graduate work based on history. 32 credit requirement.

**History Teaching Major (Early Adolescence/Adolescence) Requirements:** 2.5 GPA in the major; Education Department Requirements; passing grade on WI State Social Studies Teaching Exam.

History Teaching Major (EA/A) Course Requirements (57 Credits): HIS 106, 107, 153, 154, 301, 346, 355, 360, 485; 260, 270, or 275; BUS 301, 302; GE0 210, 310; POS 214, 215; ANT 102; SOC 101; PSY 103. Additional courses for teacher certification are listed under the Education Department section of this bulletin. Teaching majors must pass the same state exam required of Social Studies teaching majors.

#### **History Minor Requirements: 18 credits**

History Minor Course Requirements (18 Credits): HIS 106, 107, or 346; 153 or 154; 260, 270 or 275; an elective at the 300-400 level; and additional electives to fulfill the 18 credit requirement.

Post-Baccalaureate Certificate in History: A Person who holds a bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university wishing to work for a Post-Baccalaureate Certificate in History needs to complete the course work for the major.

Social Studies Teaching Major: History Major or Minor; Education Department Requirements. The social studies major includes a history major or minor, as well as courses from geography, economics, political science and the behavioral sciences. Course work in cooperatives and environmental education is also required. See the teacher education section of this bulletin for education courses and for specific core course requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction rules.

Social Studies Minor for Early Childhood/Middle Childhood or Middle Childhood/Early Adolescence Education Majors: Students majoring in middle childhood/early adolescence education must elect a certifiable minor. This minor may be social studies with courses from the behavioral and social sciences and history. A list of courses required for the minor is available from the history department or the education department. See the teacher education section of this bulletin for education courses.

Political Science Minor/Teaching Minor Requirements: 18-24 Credits; POS 214, 215, 323, and at least three political science electives to fulfill the 18 credit requirement. A teaching minor includes a political science minor of 24 credits, as well as course work in cooperatives and environmental education. Teaching minor must pass the same state exam required of broadfield social studies teaching majors. See the teacher education section of this bulletin for education courses and for specific core course requirements to meet Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction rules.

## **History Courses**

#### HIS 106 his (g) World Civilization Part I

The origins of African, As ian, and European civilizati on and its development through the Middle Ages. Usually offered every semester. Offered in online and on-campus formats.

#### HIS 107 his (g) World Civilization Part II

A study of African, Asian, and Europea n civilizations from the 16<sup>th</sup> century to the dawn of the 20<sup>th</sup> century. The

182

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### **3 credits**

course will cover the cultural, social, and polit ical developments of the regions and the interconnection between them.

#### HIS 153 his United States History Part I

The development of America as a nation and as a people from colonization to the Civil War.

#### HIS 154 his United States History Part II

Political, social and economic development of the United States from the beginning of the Civil Wart hrough the end of World War I. Offered in online format (mandatory orientation) and on-campus format.

#### HIS 201 his The Ancient World

Study of the civilization of Egypt, Mesopotamia, Persia, Greece and Rome dating from the Neolithic revolution to the fall of the Roman empire. Prerequisite: one history course at the 100 level or consent of the History Department chair.

#### HIS 260 his Latin America: History and Culture

Broad-based coverage of the origin and developm ent of the count ries labeled Latin America, spanning t he ages from the colonial period to the present with special emphasis on several specific countries and regions. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of the History Department chair.

#### HIS 270 his (g) Modern Asian History and Culture

Topical and chronological study of modern Asia with emphasis on the Far East. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair. Offered in online/on-demand format and on-campus format.

## HIS 275 his African History and Culture

Survey of political, social, economic and intellectual development of the major African civilizations. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of the History Department chair.

## HIS 280 his Middle East History and Culture

Survey of the religious, social and econom ic devel opments from Mohammed to the 20th centur y conflicts. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of the History Department chair.

## HIS 298 his Women in American History

Survey of the religious, social, political, and econom ic facets of the lives of women in the U nited States from the colonial period to the 20th century. Prerequisite: one cour se at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair. Offered in online/on-demand format. Mandatory orientation.

## **HIS 301 Cooperatives**

Survey of the development, growth and structures of cooperatives. Designed for education m ajors and m inors. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair. Offered in onli ne/on-demand format. Mandatory orientation

183

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 2-3 credits

3 credits

3 credits

# 3 credits

# **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

# 1 credit

# 3 credits

# An historical examination of the developments, theories, and institutions of the Justice system in the United States.

HIS 306 his Crime and Justice in America

Prerequisite: one course at the 100 leve 1 or consent of the History Department chair. Offered in onli ne format. Offered in online/on-demand format. Mandatory orientation.

#### HIS 346 his Twentieth Century Europe

Major trends in Europe w ith stress on the two World Wa rs, the social and political i mpact of communism and fascism, the Cold War and post-World War II problems. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of the History Department chair. Offered in online/on-demand. Mandatory orientation.

#### HIS 347-348 his Studies in European History

In-depth study of m ajor developments or areas such as the Renaissance and R eformation, the French Revolution, modern Russia, the British Em pire. Prer equisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair.

#### HIS 355 his Twentieth Century United States

Emphasis on the social, econom ic, political, and diplom atic developments from the Treaty of Versailles to the present. Prerequisite: one course at the 1 00 level or consent of the History Department chair. Offered in online/ondemand. Mandatory orientation.

#### HIS 357-358 his Studies in American History

Intensive consideration of a particular aspect of A merican history such a s Jacksonian dem ocracy, women in American his tory, African A merican history, the A merican West, Secession and the Civil War, immig rants in American history. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair.

#### HIS 360 his History of Wisconsin

Intensive consideration of Wisconsin from pre-history and settlement by Native Americans to Wisconsin's role in the political and economic life of the United States and world. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair. Offered in online/on-demand. Mandatory orientation.

#### **HIS 361 his Native Americans of Wisconsin**

Study of Native American communities in Wisconsin from pre-history to the 20<sup>th</sup> century. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair Offered in online/on demand. Mandatory orientation.

#### HIS 377 his Studies in Asian, African, Latin American, Middle Eastern History

In-depth study of a particular people, culture or area s uch as the Middle East, South Africa, Central America, Asia. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair.

#### **HIS 386 his American Foreign Relations**

184

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

#### 3 credits

#### **3 credits**

3 credits

#### 3 credits

# 3 credits

#### **3 credits**

#### 2 credits

#### **3 credits**

**3 credits** 

Formation and implementation of American foreign policy with emphasis on the 20<sup>th</sup> century. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair.

# HIS 485 Historiography and Historical Method

Examination of the ai ms, problems and techniques of historical w riting; practice in the use of research tools and procedures, and experience in the writing of h istory. Prerequisite: one course at the 100 level or consent of History Department chair.

# HIS 296-496 Independent Study

Built around topic(s) mutually agreeable to student and faculty for which the student has adequate background. Prerequisite: consent of History Department chair.

# **HIS 498 Internship**

Work experience with a cooperating i nstitution, or ganization or agency. The nature of the assign ment, means of supervision, number of credits and procedures for evalua tion will be stipulated in a st atement of agreem ent involving student, supervisor and academic advisor.

# **HIS 499 Senior Thesis**

Provides a major with the ability to develop an in de pth re search paper thus dem onstrating mast ery of the foundational research issues within the discipline. The st udent presents and defends the paper in an academic setting with faculty and peers.

# **Political Science Courses**

# POS 214 American Government: State Local Tribal

The governmental system, its development, constitution, structure and operation with emphasis on fundamental principles and their application in the institutions and political processes of the state of Wisconsin and the Native American tribes in Wisconsin.

# **POS 215 hum American Government: Federal**

The American governmental system, its development, constitution, structure and operation with em phasis on fundamental principles and their application in the institu tions and political processes. Off ered spring semester on campus and online/on demand every semester.

# **POS 323 hum Comparative Modern Governments**

Study of the constitutional form and political party structures of representative governments of Europe, Africa, Middle East, Asia and American (excludes United States) governments.

185

# **POS 326 hum Modern Political Issues**

Examination of current issues affecting both contemporary international relations and American political life.

# **3 credits**

1-3 credits

2-4 credits

# **3 credits**

1 credit

# 2 credits

# **3 credits**

# POS 327-328 hum Studies in Political Science

Studies in areas of curren t interest, e.g. parties and politi cs, or needs and interests of the history and political science majors/minors.

# POS 335 hum Political Philosophy

Study of the person's relation to civil society based upon the works of classical and contem porary political philosophers. Involves a consideration of the nature of political authority, freedom and human rights.

# POS 386 hum American Foreign Relations

Formulation and implementation of American foreign policy with emphasis on the 20th century.

# POS 296-496 Independent Study

Developed around an area of interest for which Department chair required.

# POS 497 Seminar

Small group study, research and discussion of selected problems in political science.

# POS 498 Internship

Work experience with a cooperating i nstitution, organization or agency. The nature of the assign ment, means of supervision, number of credits and procedures for evalua tion will be stipulated in a st atement of agreem ent involving student, supervisor and academic advisor.

# **Justice Major**

The justice major merges Mount Mary's liberal arts core with an academic program that is designed to prepare women for entry into graduate school, law school, government service, nonprofit agencies or career involvement in the justice field. The major provides a multi-disciplinary study of the structure, administration and dynamics of the justice system. Courses in the Justice curriculum also include an understanding of the relevance of the disciplines of history, political science, psychology, and sociology to the issues of justice, criminal behavior, and the law. The required courses provide an understanding of the nature of crime and societies' reactions to crime, as well as the various components within justice systems. This degree incorporates pre-law coursework that helps prepare students planning on attending law school.

Students intending to major in justice should contact the chair as soon as possible. Students must maintain an overall grade point average of 2.2 with a 2.5 grade point average in major courses. Transfer students or students resuming their college work after an extended period of time must have their justice credits reviewed and evaluated by the chair.

Justice Major Requirements: 55-56 credits; 2.5 GPA in major; 2.2 GPA overall

**Justice Major Course Requirements** (55-56 credits): JUS 101, 106, 201, 301, 405, 498; COM 104 or 231, HIS 153, 154; POS 214, 215; PSY 103, 214, 325; SOC 101; PHI 326 or 330; and two of the following courses: JUS 356, JUS 401, JUS 306, JUS 406, or JUS 495.

186

# 3 credits

#### 3 credits

3 credits

1-3 credits

the st udent has adequate background. Consent of History

#### 3 credits

2-3 credits

# **Justice Courses**

#### **JUS 101 Introduction to Justice**

Introduction to the three branches of the adult and juvenile justice systems. Survey of the goals and requirements of the program. Topics include: crime, criminal law/procedure, law enforcement, courts, corrections, juvenile justice, and employment opportunities.

# **JUS 106 History of American Justice**

An historical examination of the developments, theories, and institutions of law and justice in the United States. Subtopics include: classical and contemporary approaches to the administration of justice and understanding of the nature of the law. Emphasis on problem areas where law has been ineffective in providing equal justice to all people, especially women, children, and people of culturally diverse backgrounds.

# JUS 201 Organization and Administration of Justice

A critical review of the actors, structures, processes, and philosophies present in the federal, state, and local judicial systems. Particular emphasis is placed on how these factors influence the enforcement of law and the distribution of justice to persons of diverse backgrounds.

# JUS 301 (g) Comparative Justice

Examination of organizations, structures and processes in justice systems in other nations and in the international arena. Emphasis on understanding the historical, political, social, economic and other factors that influence legal trends and justice systems around the world. Comparative analysis of contending approaches to common issues. Note: This course satisfies the College's (g) global curriculum requirement.

# JUS 306 Abuse and the Justice System

A survey of the response by the justice system to physical and sexual abuse, with an emphasis on abuse perpetrated against children, women, and the elderly. Includes analysis of the law, law enforcement, prosecution, courts and corrections.

# **JUS 356 Crime and Delinguency**

This course will examine delinquent behaviors of children, including theories for such behaviors and society's diverse responses to them. Examination of the historical development, current organization, and functioning of the juvenile justice system. Emphasis on prevention and rehabilitation programs. Cross-listed with SOC 356 and SWK 356.

# JUS 401 Women, Crime, and Justice

Presentation of the nature of female crime and societal response as reflected in the treatment of female victims and offenders within the justice systems. Discussions incorporate the classical context of female criminality as well as contemporary issues such as sexual exploitation, incarcerated mothers, and rehabilitation.

# JUS 405 Women as Professionals in the Justice System

The focus of this course is on women and their ethical and legal role and responsibilities as professionals in the justice system. Includes discussion regarding employment opportunities in the justice system and preparation for entry into the field.

# **JUS 406 Correctional Alternatives and Therapies**

Examination of alternatives to incarceration (probation, fines, house arrest, electronic surveillance, restitution programs, sentencing to service, community residential facilities, parole and supervised release) and the major

187

#### **3 credits**

## November 15, 2010

# 4 credits

3 credits

2 credits

**3 credits** 

4 credits

3 credits

# 3 credits

Nov

188

rehabilitation therapies used by correctional treatment practitioners who work with offenders and their families. Special attention is given to the needs of women and juveniles.

#### **JUS 495 Special Topics**

A research and discussion course devoted to the study of select issues and problems within the context of the justice systems. May be repeated for credit with a different topic. Prerequisite: JUS 101.

#### JUS 296-496 Independent Study

In-depth examination of a topic of specific interest to student. May be repeated for credit with a different topic. Consent of chair required.

#### **JUS 498 Justice Internship**

Opportunity for the student to engage in work in a justice-related agency, including government agencies, community-based and nonprofit organizations. Students must apply the semester before they take the internship. Prerequisite: Background check; major GPA of at least 2.5, junior or senior status; and signature of chair.

#### 2-4 credits

2-4 credits

# **Mount Mary College**

# Board of Trustees February 2010

Kristine Krause, Chair Suzanne Carlton, Vice-Chair Eileen Schwalbach, President Norman Barrientos Susan Bellehumeur Eileen Bloechl Barbara Bolens Sister Jacqueline Buckley, SSND Robert Buerger Sister Kathleen Cornell, SSND Kathryn Maegli Davis J. Miles Goodwin Brian Henke Gary Jorgensen Margaret C. Kelsey Mary Kunze Sister Pamela Moehring, SSND Barbara Nichols Marie O'Brien Ann Roche Sister Debra Sciano, SSND Mary Staudenmaier Rosann Young

William Jensen, *Trustee Emeritus* Geneva Johnson, *Trustee Emerita* Gary Zimmerman, FAIA, *Trustee Emeritus* 

# **President's Council**

Eileen Schwalbach, President: B.A., Marquette University; M.A., Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

David Nixon, Vice President, Academic and Student Affairs: B.A., Indiana University; Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison.

Reyes Gonzalez, Vice President, Finance and Administration: B.S., Illinois Institute of Technology; M.B.A., DePaul University; CPA.

Donna Gastevich, Vice President, External Relations: B.A., Purdue University; M.P.A., Indiana University.

189

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

- David Wegener, Vice President, Enrollment Services: B.A., Lakeland College; M.B.A., Cardinal Stritch University.
- Sister Joan Penzenstadler, SSND, Vice President, Mission and Identity: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.S., Saint John's University; Ph.D., Boston College.

# Administration

#### **Academic and Student Affairs**

- David Nixon, Vice President, Academic and Stu dent Affair s: B.A., Indiana University ; P h.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison.
- Eugene Baer, Academic Technolog y Leader: B.S., Dr. Ma rtin Luther Colleg e; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh; D.A., Illinois State University.

Peter Clark, Computer Systems Administrator.

- Linda Delgadillo, Director, Urban Education Fellows Pr ogram: B.A., M.S., Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Jody Garber, Fieldwork Coordinator, Occupational Therapy: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Madison; M.S., Mount Mary College.
- April Holland, Director, Advising and Career Development: B.S., M.S., Eastern Illinois University.
- Tracy Isaacson, Director, Childcare Center: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Whitewater.
- Kenneth Kalfas, Evening Reference Librarian: B.Mus.Ed., DePaul University; M.Mus.Ed., Illinois State University.
- Julie Kamikawa, Assistant Director, Head of Technical Services, and Chief Cataloger, Library: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh; M.A., M.L.I.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Mary Bunting Karr, Registrar: B.A., University of Massachusetts; M.A., Indiana University.
- Cindy Keller, Director, Teacher Education: B.S., Oklahoma State University; M.A., Mount Mary College.
- Mary Lou Klecha, Seri als Librarian /PS Coordinator: B. A., University of Michigan; M.L.S., University of Maryland.

190

- Joy Klotz, Coordinator, Academic Resource Center: B.A., Concordia College, Illinois; M.A., Carroll College.
- Jennifer Looysen, Coordinator, Academic Counseling: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Whitewater; M.S., Concordia University.

Janae Magnuson, Director, Athletics: B.A., University of Washington.

Katy Matola, Coordinator, Service Learning: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Madison.

Wendy J. McCredie, Associate Dean, Academic Affairs: B.A., Yale University; M.A., Ph.D., University of Texas.

Florence McCutchin, Director, Computer Services: B.A., M.I.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

- Ann McInty re, Archivist: B.S., M.S.E., University of Wisconsi n-LaCrosse; M.L.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Douglas Mickelson, Associate Dean, Graduate Education: B.A., St. Olaf College; Ed.M., Ph.D., State University of New York, Buffalo.
- Kelsi Miller, Assist ant Director, At hletics, Coordi nator, Athletic Facilit ies, and NCAA S enior Woman Administrator: B.S., Utah Valley University; M.A.Ed., University of Phoenix, Salt Lake City.

Michelle Mueller, Computer Database Administrator: B.A., B.S., Mount Mary College.

- Marci Ock er, Coordinator, Student Disabilities Services: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire; M.S.S.W., University of Wisconsin-Madison.
- Ann Osm anski, Assistant Registrar f or Records and In stitutional Resear ch: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; M.B.A., Cardinal Stritch University.
- Ryan Parker, Interlibrary Loan Librarian: B.S., M.L.I.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Isabel Ma ria Piana, Post -baccalaureate Supervisor, E ducation Depart ment and Director, Teacher E ducation Center/Archdiocesan Resource Center: B.A., M.A., Mount Mary College.
- Sandra Ruesink, Fieldwork Coordinator, Education Department: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; M.A., Cardinal Stritch University.

- Donna Schmidt, Recruitment Coordinator, Urban Education Fellows Program: B.A., John Carroll University; M.A., Cardinal Stritch University.
- Beth Schoen wetter, Coordinator, Residence Life and Student Engagem ent: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh; M.S., Western Illinois University.

Pamela Schoessling, Director, Campus Ministry: B.A., M.A., Mount Mary College.

Michelle Sim ons, Outreach Coordinator, College in the Community : B.S., M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

Greg Talaska, Computer Network Specialist: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Stevens Point.

Yang Zhuo, Reference Librarian: B.A., Wuhan University, China; M.L.I.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

#### Enrollment

David Wegener, Vice President, Enrollment Services: B.A., Lakeland College; M.B.A., Cardinal Stritch University.

Heidi Blossy, Financial Aid Counselor: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

- Judith Borawski, Ad mission Counselor, Graduate and Accelerated Programs: B.A., Eastern Michigan University; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Debra Duff, Director, Financial Aid: B.A., Mount Mary College.
- Katie Eippert, Assistant Director, Admission: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Madison; M.A., Mount Mary College.
- Rachel Gonnering, Admission Counselor: B.A., St. Norbert College.
- Andrea Kurtz, Admission Counselor: B.S., University of Evansville.
- Lorissa Najer a-Lester, Admission Counselor and C oordinator, Midtown Campus Enrollment: B.A., Mount Mar y College.

Erin Ortiz, Admission Counselor: B.A., Mount Mary College.

Karen Siegel, Associate Director, Admission: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Stout.

#### 192 Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Antje Streckel, Assistant Director, Admission: B.A., Info Neuss, Germany.

Jenifer Wessels, Admission Counselor: B.A., St. Norbert College.

Andrea White, Data and Technology Administrator, Admission: B.A., Marquette University.

Erica White, Data and Technology Administrator, Financial Aid: B.S., Carroll College.

#### **Business Affairs**

- Reyes Gonzalez, Vice President, Finance and Administra tion: B.S., Illinoi s Institute of Technology; M.B.A., DePaul University; CPA.
- Teri Cox, Director, Hu man Resources: B.A., M.A., Univer sity of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; M.B.A., University of Phoenix.

Sandra Griesbach, Staff Accountant: B.A., Lakeland College.

Kathleen Hauck, Coordinator, Employee Benefits and Well-Being: B.A., Mount Mary College, PHR.

Sister Georgeann Krzy zanowski, SSND, Director, Buildings and Grounds: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

Fredric Lex, Controller: B.B.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; CPA.

Cindy Meier, Manager, Bookstore: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Madison.

#### **External Relations**

Donna Gastevich, Vice President, External Relations: B.A., Purdue University; M.P.A., Indiana University.

Beth Bacik, Manager, Campus Facilities Use: B.A., Alverno College.

Tyler Curtis, Grant Writer: B.A., Marquette University.

- Cynthia Echols, External Relations and Cam paign Mana ger: B.A., Bucknell University; M.A., University of Chicago.
- Sister Aloyse Hessburg, SSND, Executive Director, Friends of Fashion: B.S., Mount Mary College; M.S., Drexel University.

193

- Sister Marilyn Kesler, SSND, Planned Giving Officer and Coordinator, Special Events: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.A., Marquette University.
- Sameera Kulkarni, Manager, Accounting and Database Support: B.Com., M.Com., University of Poona, India.
- Yvonne Lumsden-Dill, Executive Director, Women's Leadership Institute: B.A., Brooklyn College.
- Mary McCann, Discovery Officer: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.A., St. Mary's University.
- M. Kate Nava, Major Gifts Officer: B.S., University of Oregon; M.B.A., University of Notre Dame.
- Erica Neube rger, Assist ant Director, Marketing and Pub lic Relations for Website and Recruit ment: B.B.A., University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh.
- Susan Nieberle, Coordinator, Alumnae Activities: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Madison.
- Mara Riebau, Manager, Annual Giving: B.A., Mount Mary College.
- M. Susan Seiler, Director, Marketing and Public Relations: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Platteville.
- Susan Shimshak, Senior Manager, Media Relations and External Communications: B.S., Viterbo University.
- Eichelle Thompson, Website and Photo Manager: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Janice W einfurt, Coordina tor, Institutional Communications: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.
- Anne Wright, Director, Grant and Scholarship Stewar dship: B.A., Mount Hol yoke Colle ge; M.A., New York University.

# Faculty

- Patricia Ahrens: B.A., Albertus Magnus College; Ph.D., Un iversity of Virginia, Charlottesville; Professor, Natural Sciences/Biology; Chairperson, Health and Sciences Division.
- Kathleen M. Alexander: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Madison; O.T.R., M.Ed., Carroll College; Ed.D., Cardinal Stritch University; Assistant Professor, Occupational Therapy.
- Jordan Acker Anderson: B.F.A., University of Nebraska at Omaha; M.A. and M.F.A., University of Iowa; Assistant

194

Professor, Art.

- Ann Angel: B.A., Mount Mary College ; M.A., Marquette University ; M.F. A., Verm ont College of Norwich University; Assistant Professor, English.
- Roxanne Back: B.A., Florida Southern College; Ph.D., Auburn University; Assistant Professor, Mathematics.
- Megan Baumler: B.S., Ph.D., University of Wiscons in-Madison; Assistant Professor, Graduate Progra m Director, Dietetics.
- Stephanie Beisbier: B.S., M.S., Mount Mary College; Instructor, Occupational Therapy.
- Christopher Belkofer: B. A., University of Missour i, Columbia; M.A., School of the Art Institute of Chicago; Instructor, Art Therapy.
- Brad A. Bernard: B.F.A., Milwaukee Institute of Art and Design; M.F.A., University of Mississippi, Oxford; Assistant Professor, Art.
- Sister Linda Marie Bos: B.A., Mount Mary College; M. A., Ph.D.; Marquette University ; Associate Professor, Chairperson, History.
- Marmy Clason: B.A., Concordia University, Wisconsin; M.A., Miami University; Ph.D., Marquette University; Assistant Professor, Chairperson, Communication.
- James J. Conlon: B.A., Seattle University; M.A., Ph.D., Marquette University; Prof essor, Philosophy; Program Director, Liberal Studies.
- Colleen Conway : B.A., Knox College; M.S., Ph.D., Univ ersity of Wisconsin-Madison; Associate P rofessor, Natural Sciences/Chemistry.
- Robert Crombie: B.Com., McGill University; M.B.A., Concordia University, Montreal; CMA; Assistant Professor, Graduate Program Director, Business Administration.
- Sister Shawnee Daniels S ykes: B.S., Spelman College; B.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; M.A., Saint Francis Seminary; Ph.D., Marquette University; Assistant Professor, Theology.

Lynn Diener: B.A., Bard College; Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Madison; Assistant Professor, Biology.

Joseph Dooley: B.A., Mia mi University, Ohio; M.S.W., I ndiana University; Ph.D., Loyola University, Chicago; Professor, Behavioral Science/Social Work; Field Coordinator, Social Work Program.

195

- Debra Dosemagen: B. A., Alverno College; M.A., Mount Mary College; Ph.D., Marque tte University; Associate Professor, Graduate Program Director, Education; Chairperson, Education and Mathematics Division.
- Laurel End: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Green Bay ; M.A., Ph.D., Kent State University ; Associate Pr ofessor, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Psychology.
- Mary Ellen Fletcher: B.B.A., M.B.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; CPA ; Associate Professor, Chairperson, Business Administration; Chairperson, Business Administration Division.
- Karen Friedl en: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Eau Cl aire; M.S., Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Professor, C hairperson, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Psychology; Chairperson, Social Science es and Related Disciplines Division.
- Elizabeth Gaston: B.A., O hio State University, Columbus; M.A., State University of New York, New York City ; Curator, Historic Costume Collection; Assistant Professor, Fashion.
- Linda Gleason: B.S., M. S., University of Illi nois-Chicago; R.D.; Instructor, Dietetics; Director, Coordinated Program in Dietetics.
- Miriam Guttman: B.A., College of Stat en Island; M.S., Adelphi University; Ed.D., St. John's University; Assistant Professor, Education.
- Deb Heer mans: B.A., Mount Mar y College; M.S., Univ ersity of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Assistant Professor, Chairperson, Art.

Andrea Hilkovitz: B.A., Rice University; B.A., University of Texas, Austin; Instructor, English.

- Jennifer Hockenbery: B.A., Bowdoin College; M.A., Ph.D., Boston University; Associate Professor, Chairperson, Philosophy.
- Wendy Honey: B.A., We st Virginia Wesley an College; M.A., Michigan State Univer sity; Assist ant Professor, Fashion.
- Kari Inda: B.S., M.S., Mount Mar y College; P h.D., Nova Southeastern University ; Assi stant Professor, Chairperson, Occupational Therapy.
- Judith Johnson: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Stevens Point; M.A., Pepperdine University; R.D., C.D.; Assistant Professor, Dietetics.
- Lela A. Joscely n: B.A., University of Hawaii; M.A., Ph.D., University of Windsor-Ontario; Associate Professor, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Psychology.

Julie Kamikawa: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh; M.A., M.L.I.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

- Lynn J. Kap itan: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Madison; M.P. S., Pratt Inst itute; A.T.R.; Ph.D., The Union Institute; Professor, Art Therapy.
- Sandra Keiser: B.S., M.S., University of Wisconsin-Stout; Associate Professor, Chairperson, Fashion.
- Dennis K. Klopfer: B.S., M.U.P., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Associate Professor, Interior Design.
- Leona Knobloch-Nelson: B.S., Lawrence Technological Un iversity; B.S., M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Associate Professor, Chairperson, Interior Design.
- Mary Ellen Kohn-Buday: B.A., M.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee,; Ph.D., University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign; Associate Professor, Foreign Languages/Spanish; Chairperson, World Languages.
- Jennifer Las ke: B.S., Santa Clara U niversity; M.A., The Catholic University of American; Ph.D., Marquette University; Assistant Professor, Chairperson, Theology.
- Steven Levsen: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Platteville; Ph.D., Marquette University ; Associat e P rofessor, Program Director, Natural Sciences/Chemistry.
- Maureen Leonard: B.S., State University of New York, Bingham ton; M.S., University of C entral Florida; Ph.D., University of New Mexico, Albuquerque; Assistant Professor, Natural Sciences/Chemistry.
- Nancy Lohmiller: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.A., Cardinal Stritch University; Assistant Professor, Chairperson, Graphic Design.
- Jackie Luedt ke: B.F.A., M.S., University of Wisconsin -Milwaukee; Instructor, Interi m Chairperson, Phy sical Education and Dance.
- Ariane Machin: B.A., Franklin and Marshall Col lege; M.A., University of Minnesota, Minneapolis; Ph.D., University of North Texas, Denton; Assistant Professor, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Counseling.
- Beth Mas ch: B.A., Alver no College; M.S.; Cardinal Stritch C ollege; Ph.D., Nova Southeastern Uni versity; Associate Professor, Business Administration.
- Douglas Mickelson: B.A., St. Olaf Co llege; Ed.M., Ph.D ., State University of New York, Buffalo; Associate Professor, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Psychology; Counseling; Associate Dean, Graduate Education; Director of Assessment.

197

- Bruce Moon: B.S., Wright State University, Dayton, Ohio; M.A., M.Div., Methodist Theol ogical School; Ph.D., The Union Institute; Associate Professor, Chairperson and Graduate Program Director, Art Therapy.
- Krista Moore: B.S., Ph.D., Oklahom a State University; M.A., Trinity University; Associate Professor, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Gerontology.
- Sister Patrici a Ann Obremski: B.S., Mount Mar y Colle ge; M.S., Marquette University ; Associat e P rofessor, Director, Physics Program, Natural Sciences/Physics.
- Jane Olson: B.A., University of Wisconsin-Madison; B.S., Mount Mary College; O.T.R.; M.S., Cardinal Stritch College; Ph.D., Marquette University; Professor, Graduate Program Director, Occupational Therapy.
- Laura Otto: B.A., University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign; M.F.A., Indiana University, Bloomington; Assistant Professor, English.
- Aeran Park: B.S., M.S., Chung-Ang University, Korea; Associate Professor, Fashion.
- Sister Joanne Poehlman: B.A., Mount Mary College; M.A., St. Louis University; Ph.D., University of Minnesota; Associate Professor, Behavioral Science/Anthropology.
- Donald Rappé: B.A., St. Mary's University, Minnesota; M.A., St. John's University; Ph.D., Marquette University; Associate Professor, Theology; Chairperson, Philosophy and Theology Division.
- Mary C. Raven: B.B.A., St. Norbert College; M .B.A., Marquette Univer sity; Associate Professor, Busines s Administration.
- Paula Reiter: B.A., University of Iowa; M.A., University of Illinois; Ph.D., Duke University; Associate Professor, Chairperson, English.
- Catherine Ritterbusch: B.A., Marquette University; J.D., Marquette University Law School; Assi stant Professor, Chairperson, Justice.
- Tammy Scheidegger: B.S., M.S., Ph.D., The Ohio State University, Columbus; Assistant Professor, Be havioral Science and Social Work/Counseling; Practicum Internship Coordinator, Counseling.
- Kristi Siegel: B.A., M.A., Ph.D., University of Wiscons in–Milwaukee; Prof essor, Gr aduate Progra m Director, English; Chairperson, Language, Literature and Communication Division.
- Carrie Smith King: B.S., M.S., Ph.D., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Assistant Professor, Graduate Program Director, Behavioral Science and Social Work/Counseling.

198

- Pamela Smith-Steffen: B.S., M.S., University of Wisconsin-Madison; A.S.I.D.(Ed.); Associate Professor, Interior Design; Chairperson, Arts and Design Division.
- Jane St. Peter: B.S., Mount Mary College; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Instructor, Mathematics.
- Lisa Stark: B.S., Iowa Stat e University; R.D., C.D., M.S., Mount Mary College; Associate Professor, Chairperson, Dietetics; Director, Dietetics Internship Program.
- Mary Ann Suppes: B.S., M.S.W., University of Wisconsin -Milwaukee; A.C.S.W.; Professor, Chairperson, Social Work.
- Julie Tatlock: B.S., Wisconsin Luther an College; M.A., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Ph.D., Marquette University; Instructor, Mathematics.
- Melody Todd: B.A., Elm hurst College; M.S., A.T.R., No rthern Illinois University; Assistant Profe ssor, Art Therapy.
- Sandra Tonz: B.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, Instructor, Fashion.
- Beth Vogel: B.S., University of Wis consin-Whitewater; M.S., University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; C.P.A.; Assistant Professor, Business Administration.
- Wendy A. Weaver: B.A., Pacific Lutheran University; M.A., University of Alaska, Anchor age; Ph.D., Marquette University; Assistant Professor, English.
- Choya Wilson: B.S., M. Ed., Te mple University; Ph.D., Stanford University; Assist ant Professor, Education; Director, Midtown Campus Program.
- Lynne Woehrle: B.A., Colgate University; M.A., U niversity of Notre Dame; M.A., S yracuse University; Ph.D., Syracuse University; Associate Professor, Behavioral Science/Sociology.
- Toni Wulff: A.B., Mount Holy oke College; M.A., Ph.D ., Sy racuse Univer sity; A ssociate Professor, Foreign Languages/French.

# **Part-Time Faculty**

The following faculty members offer part-time instruction within the discipline specified.

Jane Baldridge: B.S.Ed., Southern Illinois University ; M.S., Ed.D., Northern Illinois University , Primary

199

Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Montessori Certificate; Associate Professor, Education.

- Diana Bart els: B.S., Milwaukee Dow ner College; O.T. R.; M.S., Ph.D., U niversity of Wisconsin-Milwaukee; Associate Professor, Occupational Therapy.
- Shannon Duval: B.A., Furman University; Ph.D., Pennsylvania State University, Associate Professor, Philosophy.
- Sister Angel ee Fuchs: B. A., Notre Dame College of St. Louis; M.A., Uni versity of Notre Da me; Associate Professor, Art.
- Sister Ellen Lorenz: B.A., Mount Mar y Col lege; M.A., Loyola University, Chicago; Ed.D., Northern Illinois University; Professor, Education.
- Margaret Ot well: B.M., The Catholic University of Am erica; M.M., D.M.A., University of Mar yland, College Park; Assistant Professor, Music.

# **Professors Emeriti:**

Leonor Andrade, M.A., Spanish.

- Rita Bakalars, Ph.D., Consumer Science.
- Phyllis E. Carey, Ph.D., English.

Kay Elsen: Ph.D., Chemistry.

Sister Mary Briant Foley: Ph.D., History.

Sister Joan Cook: M.A., English.

M. Beryl Hintz: Ph.D., Behavioral Science/Social Work.

Sister Rosemarita Huebner: M.S./M.F.A., Art.

Colleen Jacobson: M.A., Physical Education.

Dennis Jesmok: M.S., Business Administration.

#### 200 Mount Mary College Undergraduate Bulletin

Sister M. Frances Therese Jungwirth: M.A., German.

Catharine Malloy: Ph.D., English.

Margaret Mirenda: M.S., O.T.R., Occupational Therapy.

Mary Bell Mueller: M.A., History.

Sister Mary Isaac Jogues Rousseau: Ph.D., Classics.

Angela Sauro: Ph.D., Biology.

Irene Schey: Ph.D., Education.

Kathleen Scullin: Ph.D., English.

Charlotte Sharpless: M.S.T., Business Administration.

Sister Francele Sherburne: M.A., English.

Sister Helen Francis Small: Ph.D., Behavioral Science.

Geraldine Wind: M.A., Art.

Sister Luetta Wolf: Ph.D., English.

Elaine Koepsel Zarse: M.S., Fashion.

# 2010-2011 Academic Calendar

#### 2010 Fall Semester

Monday-Saturday, August 23-28 Accelerated Term 1 classes begin Wednesday, August 25 All-College Workshop Thursday/Friday, August 26-27 Orientation (move in August 25 p.m.) Friday, August 27 Investiture Saturday, August 28 Regular semester classes start, 1st Quarter begins Saturday-Monday, September 4-6 Labor Day Break – No classes Tuesday, September 7 Last day to add semester classes Monday, September 13 Last day to apply for December 2010 Graduation Monday, October 4 Last day to drop 1st quarter classes Monday, October 18 Accelerated Term 1 classes end Tuesday, October 19 Accelerated Term 2 classes begin Thursday, October 21 1st Quarter ends Friday, October 22 Mid-semester break Monday, October 25 2nd Quarter begins Thursday, November 11 Evening Only Registration (Accelerated and evening only students) Graduate students register online. Monday, November 15 Last day to drop full semester classes Monday-Friday, November 15-19 Priority Registration Monday, November 22 Open Registration begins Wednesday, November 24- Thanksgiving Break Sunday, November 28 Monday, November 29 Last day to drop 2nd quarter class Saturday, December 4 New Student Registration Saturday, December 11 Last day of full semester classes/Deadline for Removal of Incompletes from Spring and Summer 2010 Thursday, December 16 Accelerated Term 2 ends Monday, December 13- Exam week Friday, December 17 (Friday only classes meet December 17th) Saturday, December 18 Graduation NOTE: WITHDRAWING FROM ACCELERATED CLASSES 8-week class: A student may withdraw anytime before the 7th class 4-week class: A student may withdraw anytime before the 3rdclass

#### 2011 Spring Semester

Thursday, January 13 New Student Registration Day Monday, January 17 MARTIN LUTHER KING DAY-COLLEGE CLOSED Tuesday-Monday, January 18-24 Accelerated Term 3 begins Wednesday, January 19 All College Workshop Friday, January 21 Orientation Monday, January 24 Regular semester classes begin, 1st Quarter begins Monday, January 31 Last day to add semester classes Friday, February 4 Last day to apply for May 2011 Graduation Monday, February 28 Last day to drop 1st quarter class Monday, March 14 Accelerated Term 3 ends Thursday. March 17 Accelerated Term 4 Thursday classes begin Thursday, March 17 1st Quarter ends Sunday, March 20- Spring break Sunday, March 27 Monday, March 28 2nd Quarter begins Monday -Wednesday March 28-30 Accelerated Term 4 Monday-Wednesday classes begin Thursday, April 7 Evening Only Registration (Accelerated and evening only students) Graduate students register online. Monday-Friday, April 11-15 Priority Registration Monday, April 18 Open Registration Monday, April 18 Last day to drop full semester classes

202

Thursday-Monday April 21-25\* Easter break \*Monday, April 25 Accelerated classes must meet Saturday, April 30 New Student Registration Monday, May 2 Last day to drop 2nd quarter classes Saturday, May 14 Last day of full semester classes/Deadline for Removal of Incompletes from Fall 2010 Monday, May 16- Exam week Thursday, May 19 Thursday, May 19 2nd Quarter ends Thursday, May 19 Accelerated Term 4 ends Saturday, May 21 Graduation **2011 Summer Sessions** Early session Monday, May 23 through Friday, June 17 Regular summer session Monday, June 20 through Monday, August 1 Summer accelerated Term 5 Monday, June 6 through Monday, August 1 NOTE: WITHDRAWING FROM ACCELERATED CLASSES 8-week class: A student may withdraw anytime before the 7th class 4-week class: A student may withdraw anytime before the 3rd class **Proposed Summer New Student Registration Dates** June 25, July 20, August 11, August 20